
I hereby certify that the following Agenda was posted at least 72 
hours prior to the time of the Board Meeting so noticed below, at 
the usual agenda posting location of the South Orange County  
Wastewater Authority [SOCWA] and at www.socwa.com. 
 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Regular Meeting of The  
South Orange County Wastewater Authority 

Board of Directors 
 

Thursday, October 4, 2018 
8:30 a.m. 

 

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING ROOM IS LOCATED AT 34156 DEL OBISPO STREET, DANA POINT, CA. THE 

ROOM IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE.  IF YOU REQUIRE ANY SPECIAL DISABILITY RELATED ACCOMMODATIONS (I.E. 
ACCESS TO AN AMPLIFIED SOUND SYSTEM, ETC.), PLEASE CONTACT THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER 

AUTHORITY’S SECRETARY’S OFFICE AT 949-234-5421 AT LEAST SEVENTY-TWO (72) HOURS PRIOR TO THE 

SCHEDULED MEETING.  THIS AGENDA CAN BE OBTAINED IN ALTERNATE FORMAT UPON WRITTEN REQUEST TO THE 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY SECRETARY AT LEAST SEVENTY-TWO (72) HOURS PRIOR TO 

THE SCHEDULED MEETING. 
 

AGENDA ATTACHMENTS AND OTHER WRITINGS THAT ARE DISCLOSABLE PUBLIC RECORDS DISTRIBUTED TO ALL, OR 

A MAJORITY OF, THE MEMBERS OF THE SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

IN CONNECTION WITH A MATTER SUBJECT TO DISCUSSION OR CONSIDERATION AT AN OPEN MEETING OF THE BOARD 

OF DIRECTORS ARE AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION IN THE AUTHORITY OFFICE, 34156 DEL OBISPO STREET, 
DANA POINT, CA (“AUTHORITY OFFICE”).  IF SUCH WRITINGS ARE DISTRIBUTED TO MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS LESS THAN SEVENTY-TWO (72) HOURS PRIOR TO THE MEETING, THEY WILL BE AVAILABLE IN THE 

RECEPTION AREA OF THE AUTHORITY OFFICE AT THE SAME TIME AS THEY ARE DISTRIBUTED TO THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS, EXCEPT THAT, IF SUCH WRITINGS ARE DISTRIBUTED IMMEDIATELY PRIOR TO, OR DURING, THE MEETING, 
THEY WILL BE AVAILABLE IN THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING ROOM. 
 

1.  CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 

2.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3.  ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 
 

A. Members of the public may address the board regarding an item on the agenda or may 

reserve this opportunity during the meeting at the time item is discussed by the board.  

There will be a three-minute limit for public comments. 
 

4.  CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A.  Minutes of Board of Directors Meeting(s) 
 

Board of Directors Meeting September 6, 2018 ..................................................... 1 
 

ACTION The Board will be requested to approve subject Minutes. 
 

 

 

 

http://www.socwa.com/


AGENDA 
South Orange County Wastewater Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting  
October 4, 2018 

   

 

 

SOCWA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
34156 Del Obispo Street ▪ Dana Point, CA 92629 ▪ 949-234-5400 

 

B.  Minutes of Finance Committee Meeting(s) 
 

     Finance Committee Meeting December 6, 2017 ..................................................... 26 
      

ACTION The Board will be requested to receive and file subject 

Minutes. 
 

C.  Financial Matters 
 

      1)  Monthly Financials Report for June 2018 ......................................................... 29 
 

 a)  Summary of Disbursements for June 2018 – Exhibit A ............................... 31 

 b)  Schedule of Funds Available for Reinvestment – Exhibit B ......................... 32 

 c)  Schedule of Cash and Investments – Exhibit C ........................................... 33 

 d)  Capital Summaries – Exhibit D ................................................................... 34 

                       Capital Projects - Graph – Exhibit D1 ......................................................... 35 

 e)  Budget vs. Actual Expenses  

      O&M Budget vs. Actual Comparison by PC – Exhibit E1 & E1.2 ................. 36  

      Budget vs. Actual Comparison - Engineering – Exhibit E2 .......................... 44 

      Budget vs. Actual Comparison Administration – Exhibit E3 ......................... 45 

                       Actual General Fund Expenses Exhibit E3.2 .............................................. 46 

 Budget vs. Actual Comparison Information Technology (IT) – Exhibit E4 ... 47 

 f)  FY 2017-18 Actual Fringe Pool and Fringe Rate, 75.8 percent compared 

  to Budget Fringe Rate of 74.2 percent, a 1 percent Change (Exhibit E5) ... 48 
 

ACTION The Board will be requested to ratify the Summary of 

Disbursements for the period from June 1, 2018 through 

June 30 2018, totaling $2,432,143, and to receive and file 

the June 2018 Financial Reports as submitted. 
 

D.  Operational Reports 
 

 1)  Monthly Operations Report – August 2018 ................................................. 49 

 2)  Ocean Outfall Discharges ........................................................................... 60 

 3)  Beach/Ocean Monitoring Report ................................................................. 62 

 4)  Recycled Water Report ............................................................................... 85 

 5)  Pretreatment Report ................................................................................... 89 
 

ACTION The Board will be requested to receive and file the August 
2018 Operations Report.    

 

E.  Capital Improvement Program 
  

Status Report(s) .................................................................................................... 92 
 

ACTION The Board will be requested to receive and file subject reports. 

  



AGENDA 
South Orange County Wastewater Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting  
October 4, 2018 

   

 

 

SOCWA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
34156 Del Obispo Street ▪ Dana Point, CA 92629 ▪ 949-234-5400 

 

F.  Project Committee No. 2 
 

Change Order – Carollo Engineers Design Service Contract [PC2] ....................... 105 
 

ACTION   The PC2 Board will be requested to approve Change Orders 

5 and 6 to the design services contract with Carollo 

Engineers for the J.B. Latham Treatment Plant Package ‘B’ 

Improvements Project in the amount of $65,594. 
 

G.  Minutes of Engineering Committee Meeting(s) 
 

 Engineering Committee Meeting August 9, 2018 ................................................... 108 

 Engineering Committee Meeting May 10, 2018 ..................................................... 111 
      

 ACTION The Board will be requested to receive and file subject Minutes. 
 

5.  ENGINEERING MATTERS 
 

A. Award Contract – CTP Tertiary System Upgrade Project [PC 15] .......................... 117 
 

ACTION The Board will be requested to approve the award of 

construction contract to SS Mechanical at a price not to 

exceed $883,211. 
 

6.  GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORTS 
 

A.  Final 2016-17 Use Audit ......................................................................................... 124 
 

ACTION The Board will be requested to approve the Use Audit and 

collection from and payments to SOCWA member agencies 

consistent with the results of the FY 2016-17 Use Audit as 

submitted. 
 

B.  Final 2016-17 Use Audit Reconciliation to Finance Statements Audit .................... 208  
 

ACTION The Board will be requested to receive and file the SOCWA 

Financial Reconciliation for the Year Ended June 30, 2017. 
 

C.  Unfunded Pension Liability (UAL) Distribution by Member Agencies Results and 

 Recommendation .................................................................................................. 210 
 

ACTION The Board will be requested to approve member agency 

Distribution Percentages, Timing and Future Application (as 

detailed in staff report). 
 

D.  Monthly Progress Report on State Audit Recommendations  ................................. 238 

ACTION  The Board will be requested to receive and file the Monthly 
Progress Report on State Audit Recommendations – State 

Audit Response Schedule. 



AGENDA 
South Orange County Wastewater Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting  
October 4, 2018 

   

 

 

SOCWA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
34156 Del Obispo Street ▪ Dana Point, CA 92629 ▪ 949-234-5400 

 

E.  Resolution No. 2018-13 – Basin Plan Amendment ................................................. 242 
 

ACTION  1) SOCWA Board of Directors approve Resolution No.   
2018-13 – Basin Plan Amendment. 

2)  As needed, costs to be assigned through PC 12 to 
SMWD and MNWD (as noted in FY 2018-19 Budget 
Assumptions Item 2: expenses incurred for single 
agency or group of agencies that is less than a full PC 
may be billed to and paid for by the incurring agency or 
agencies). 

3) SMWD and MNWD to be requested to authorize the 
funding commitment. 

 

F.  Contract Extension – Chlor-Alkai Products ............................................................. 245 
 

ACTION The Board will be requested to award an up to one (1) year 

contract extension to Olin Corporation DBA Olin Chlor-Alkali 

Products for Chlor-Alkali Products for (5.25%-12.5% 

Sodium Hypochlorite and 30%-50% Sodium Hydroxide) 

with the prices as indicated including applicable additional 

charges. 
 

G.  Change Order – Treatment Cost Allocation Analysis ............................................. 248 
 

ACTION The Board will be requested to approve the Carollo 

Engineering Contract Change Order for the Treatment Cost 

Allocation Analysis in the amount of $28,374 for a total not 

to exceed amount of $68,268.  
 

H.  General Manager’s Status Report .......................................................................... 251 
  

 ACTION  The Board will review the General Manager’s Status Report:  
 

• Board Questions    

• Receive and file 
 

7.  CLOSED SESSION 
 

 A.  Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation 
 

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of 
subdivision (d) of section 54956.9: 1 potential case 

  

 B.  Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation 
        
  Noson v. SOCWA et al., Case No. 30-2018-01016336-CU-OE-CJC 
  Pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9 (d)(1). 
 

  



AGENDA 
South Orange County Wastewater Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting  
October 4, 2018 

   

 

 

SOCWA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
34156 Del Obispo Street ▪ Dana Point, CA 92629 ▪ 949-234-5400 

 

OTHER MATTERS 
 
     A.  Open discussion or items received too late to be agendized. 

 

Note: Determine the need to take action on the following item(s) 

introduced by the General Manager which arose subsequent to 

the agenda being posted. 

 

[Adoption of this action requires a two-thirds vote of the Board, or 

if less than two-thirds are present an unanimous vote.] 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

 
THE NEXT REGULAR SOCWA BOARD MEETING WILL HELD ON 

November 1, 2018 at 8:30 a.m. 



1



2



3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE  

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

Finance Committee 

December 6, 2017 

The Special Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater Authority (SOCWA) Finance 
Committee Meeting was held on December 6, 2017 at 8:30 a.m. at their Administrative Offices 
located at 34156 Del Obispo Street, Dana Point, California. The following members of the Finance 
Committee were present: 
 

 DENNIS ERDMAN  South Coast Water District 
 RAY MILLER  City of San Juan Capistrano 
 MATT COLLINGS  Moulton Niguel Water District 
 TONI ISEMAN  City of Laguna Beach 
 DAN FERONS  Santa Margarita Water District 

FRED ADJARIAN  El Toro Water District 
  

Staff Present: 
 

 BETTY BURNETT General Manager 
 DANITA HIRSH Executive Assistant 
 MARY CAREY  Finance Controller 
 JIM BURROR  Director of Operations 
 AMBER BAYLOR  Director of Environmental Compliance 
 NADYN KIM Accountant 
  
 

Also Present: 
 

 PAT GIANNONE Giannone & Giannone 
 DAVID BARANOWSKI Carollo 
 ANDY BRUNHART  South Coast Water District 
 PAM ARENDS-KING South Coast Water District 
 STEPHEN DOPUDJA Trabuco Canyon Water District 
 JAKE VOLLEGBREGT Moulton Niguel Water District 
  
1. Call Meeting to Order 

Chairperson Erdman called the meeting to order at 8:33 a.m. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance – Chairman Erdman 

 

2. Public Comments - None 

 

3. Approval of Minutes 

a. Finance Committee Meeting Minutes of 9/21/17 

b. Finance Committee Meeting Minutes of 10/31/17 

 

 

 

 

 

26



 

 

 

ACTION TAKEN 

Motion was made by Director Ferons and seconded by Director Miller to approve the Finance 

Committee meeting minutes of September 21, 2017 and October 31, 2017. 

 
Motion carried: Aye 6; Nay 0; Abstain 0; Absent 0 

        Director Collings Aye 
        Director Erdman Aye 
        Director Miller  Aye 
        Director Ferons Aye 
        Director Iseman Aye 
        Director Adjarian Aye 
 

4. Current FY General Budget of $365,323 – Policy/Expense/Percentage Decisions 

Mr. Dopudja of Trabuco Canyon Water District(TCWD) provided an updated presentation on 
TCWD’s 2017/18 potential general budget concept.  An open discussion ensued. 
  
Mr. Dopudja would be providing the same presentation at SOCWA’s Board of Directors 
meeting on December 7, 2017. 

 

ACTION TAKEN – None; Information item. 
 

5. FY 2015-16 Audited Financial Statements Supplemental Schedules 
Ms. Burnett provided the committee with an update on the Supplemental Schedules. An open 
discussion ensued. 

  

ACTION TAKEN 
Motion was made by Director Ferons and seconded by Director Adjarian that the Finance 
Committee recommend to the Board of Directors to accept the current version of the FY2015-16 
Supplemental Schedules, provide direction to staff that before June 30, 2018 to acquire 
assistance needed to evaluate the allocation of the net pension liability to the Project Committees, 

and to consider revision as to how costs are allocated to the Supplemental Schedules.   
 
    Motion carried: Aye 5; Nay 1; Abstain 0; Absent 0 
        Director Collings Nay 
        Director Erdman Aye 
        Director Miller  Aye 
        Director Ferons Aye 
        Director Iseman Aye 
        Director Adjarian Aye 
  
Director Collings voted no on the recommended action but noted for the recorded that he is in 
favor of the additional assistance needed to evaluate the allocations. 

 
Chairman Erdman recessed the meeting at 9:55 a.m. 
Chairman Erdman reconvened the meeting at 10:04 a.m.  

27



 
 
 
 
6. Infrastructure Valuation Services 

Ms. Burnett provided a brief overview of the presentation that Carollo would be providing to the 
Finance Committee. 
 
Mr. Baranowski representative of Carollo presented the Infrastructure Valuation Services 
Report. An open discussion ensued. 

   
ACTION TAKEN – None. 
 

7. Use Audit 2016-17 Recommendation for Approval – Provided Under Separate Cover 

Ms. Carey, Finance Controller discussed the details of the Use Audit 2016-17 Report 
that was distributed to the Finance Committee as a hand out.  An open discussion 
ensued.  

 
ACTION TAKEN – None.  
 
Ms. Burnett stated to the committee members that a couple of revisions would be made to the 

2016-17 Use Audit and re-distributed later in the day.   She also stated that the report would 
be brought back to the Finance Committee for review and approval prior to going to the 
December 14, 2017 Board Meeting.  
 
8. General Manager Report on Open Items 

Ms. Burnett had no items to report. 
 
The Finance Committee Meeting members decided to meet again on December 11, 2017 
at 12:00 p.m.  
                                                                                                                                                                  
Adjournment 
There being no further business, Chairman Erdman adjourned the meeting at 10:47 a.m. 

 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Minutes are a true and accurate copy of the Minutes of 
Special Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater Authority Finance Committee of 
December 6, 2017 and approved by the Finance Committee and received and filed by the Board 
of Directors of the South Orange County Wastewater Authority. 
 
                   _______________________________________________________________________ 

Betty Burnett, General Manager/Secretary 
SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



Agenda Item                      

 Meeting Date:  October 4, 2018 

        
TO:   Board of Directors  
 

FROM:  Betty Burnett, General Manager 
 

STAFF CONTACT: Jim Burror, Director of Operations 
     

SUBJECT:      August 2018 Operations Report 
  

 
Summary/Discussion 
 

The following selected operational reports are provided monthly to the Board of Directors. The 
operational reports included are as follows: 
 

1) Monthly Operational Report 
 
An eight (8) page overview and comparison of owner use of facilities, including influent 
and recycled water production. The pages include ongoing calculation used by SOCWA 
for billing the agencies. Other items include important statistics for regulatory 
compliance, visits by the public to the treatment works, and other vendor interactions. 
The information is broken down by facility and by member agency. 
 

2) SOCWA Ocean Outfall Discharges by Agency 
 
This data shows how much water is being discharged to the ocean each month and for 
the last 12 months. This data is presented for the agencies planning reuse projects to 
better understand the potential to expand water reuse in their service area. 
 

3) Beach Ocean Monitoring Report 
 

4) Recycled Water Report 
 

5) Pretreatment Report 
 

Fiscal impact 
 

No change 
 

Recommendation 
 
Receive and file the operational reports. 

 

49



Monthly Operational Report 

50



Events CTP RTP JBL Totals

Odor 0 0 0 0

Noise 0 0 0 0

Spills 0 0 0 0

Violations 0 0 0 0

Others 0 0 1(1) 1

(1) Complaint that there is a homeless person sleeping in the bushes in front of the plant.

Key Parameters CTP RTP JBL TP1 JBL TP2 Totals

Influent (mgd) (1) 2.59 7.64 5.02 1.07 16.32
Effluent (mgd) 1.59 0.68 5.02 1.17 8.46
Peak Flow (mgd) 7.26 17.95 11.92 4.75 41.88
Influent BOD (mg/l) 327 238 247 251
Influent TSS (mg/l) 317 328 431 378
Effluent BOD (mg/l) 4.1 6.0 6.8 8.5
Effluent TSS (mg/l) 5.5 9.6 6.0 6.2
Effluent Turbidity (NTU) 2.4 3.1 3.3 3.4
(1) CTP Influent value does not include AWT backwash in this table.

Key Parameters CTP RTP JBL Totals

Average Flow (mgd) 1.60 6.96 0.00 8.56
Days of Operation (days) 31 31
Total Flow (million gallons) 49.5 215.7 265.3
Plant Irrigation (million gallons) 0.00 0.00 0.33
AWT Time Online (%) 100.0 99.0 0.389

Wastewater Unit Definitions

mgd = million gallons per day

mg/l = milligram per liter also known as parts per million

NTU = Nephelometric Turbidity Units 

SOCWA Operational Report August, 2018

Plant Wastewater  Billing Characteristics

Recycled Water (AWT) Operations

Excursion, Complaint, and Violation Events

51



Biosolids Management Site CTP RTP JBL Totals
Synagro Compost (tons) 787.2 0.0 787.2
Nursery Products (tons) 253.1 359.9 613.0
Prima Deshecha (tons) 241.2 189.5 430.7
Other:______________  (tons) 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total Processed (tons) 1,281.6 549.4 1,830.9

Task Type CTP RTP JBL Totals
Preventative Maintenance 412 886 629 1,927
Corrective Maintenance 64 118 51 233

Visitor Types CTP RTP JBL Totals
Regulatory 1 1 3 5
Member Agency 0 1 1 2
Residents 0 0 0 0
Others 24 0 32 56
Tours #/Visitors 1 24 0 25

Grit & Screenings CTP RTP JBL Totals
Simi Valley Landfill (tons) NA 18.5 NA 18.5

Chemical/Utility CTP RTP JBL Totals
Ferric Chloride (tons) 8.2 NA NA 8.2
Utility Power Purchase (kWh) 192,740 361,291 361,291 915,322
Cogen Power (kWh) 269,306 454,953 724,259
Natural Gas (Dth) 19 9,772 NA 9,791
Digester Gas to Engine (scfm) 3,064,230 3,775,289 6,839,519
Digester Gas to Boiler (scfm) 0 0
Digester Gas to Flares (scfm) 2,648,355 125,843 2,774,198
Digester Gas Power Savings $39,769.93
(1) The bills to calculate these values are received after this report is prepared for the 
      Board meeting, but will be available upon request at the Board meeting.
NA = Not Available at the time this report was generated.

Wastewater Unit Definitions

kWh = kilowatt hours

Dth = Dekatherms

scfm = standard cubic feet per minute

SOCWA Operational Report August, 2018 (cont'd)

Site Visitors

Grit Disposal Management

Summary of Maintenance Activities

Biosolids Management

Chemical and Energy Utilization

52



Agency CTP 
(mgd) CTP (%)

RTP 
(mgd)

JBL  
(mgd) JBL (%)

Total 
(mgd)

CLB 1.592 58.34% 1.59
EBSD 0.049 1.80% 0.05
SCWD 1.088 39.86% 1.796 29.49% 2.88
MNWD 0.000 0.00% 7.64 1.400 22.99% 9.04
CSJC 2.105 34.55% 2.10
SMWD 0.790 12.97% 0.79
Total 2.729 100.00% 7.64 6.090 100.00% 16.46

Agency
SJCOO 
(mgd)

SJCOO 
(%)

SJCOO 
Meter 
(mgd)

ACOO 
(mgd)

ACOO 
(%)

Total 
(mgd) Notes

CLB 1.59 36.24% 1.59
EBSD 0.05 1.12% 0.05
SCWD 1.87 21.30% -0.14 -3.12% 1.73 Includes Desalters
MNWD 1.65 18.74% 0.68 15.56% 2.33
ETWD 1.29 29.31% 1.29 Direct Outfall Only
CSJC 2.54 28.92% 2.54 Incudes Desalter
SMWD 0.84 9.55% 0.84 Includes Chiquita
CSC 1.89 21.49% 1.89 Direct Outfall Only
IRWD 0.92 20.89% 0.92 Direct Outfall Only
Total 8.79 100.00% 9.46 4.39 100.00% 13.18

Agency Wastewater Flows to SOCWA by Facility

Total Agency Outfall Flows by Outfall System-Billing Flows

SOCWA Operational Report August, 2018 (cont'd)

 (Including Internal Waste Streams Used for Billing)

53



Agency Own 
(mgd)

Own    
(%)

Budget 
(mgd)

Budget 
(%)

Month 
(mgd)(1)

Month (%) FY Avg to 
Date (mgd)

FY Avg to 
Date (%)

CSJC 4.00 30.77% 2.12 31.98% 2.105 34.55% 2.12 35.46%
MNWD 3.00 23.08% 1.40 21.12% 1.400 22.99% 1.40 23.40%
SCWD 3.75 28.85% 1.70 25.64% 1.796 29.49% 1.88 31.51%
SMWD 2.25 17.31% 1.41 21.27% 0.790 12.97% 0.58 9.63%
Total 13.00 100.00% 6.63 100.00% 6.090 100.00% 5.98 100.00%

Agency Own 
(lbs/d)

Own    
(%)

Budget 
(lbs/d)

Budget 
(%)

Month 
(lbs/d)

Month (%) 36 Month 
Rol. Avg. 
(lbs/d) (2)

36 Month 
Rol. Avg. 

(%)

CSJC 11,572 30.00% 5,767 24.54% 5,698 31.77% 5,326 24.34%
MNWD 8,340 21.62% 4,396 18.70% 4,439 24.75% 5,662 25.87%
SCWD 7,715 20.00% 5,391 22.94% 5,293 29.51% 5,262 24.05%
SMWD 10,946 28.38% 7,949 33.82% 2,505 13.97% 5,632 25.74%
Total 38,573 100.00% 23,503 100.00% 17,936 100.00% 21,882 100.00%

Agency Own    (%) Variable 
Budget 
(mgd)

Variable 
Budget 

(%)

Month 
Outfall 
Flow 
(mgd)

Month 
Outfall 

Flow (%)

Month EPS 
Outfall 

Flow (mgd)

Month EPS 
Outfall Flow 

(%)

CSC 16.62% 2.531 21.57% 1.89 21.49%
CSJC 11.08% 2.348 20.01% 2.54 28.92% 2.10 34.55%
MNWD(3) 15.51% 2.013 17.16% 1.65 18.74% 1.40 22.99%
SCWD 12.47% 1.740 14.83% 1.87 21.30% 1.80 29.49%
SMWD 44.32% 3.101 26.43% 0.84 9.55% 0.79 12.97%
Total 100.00% 11.733 3.10% 8.79 100.00% 6.09 100.00%
(1) Influent billing meter summary:

       a. CSJC is metered daily in the collection system. The area‐velocity meter has an accuracy of +/‐ 20%.

       b. MNWD is assumed to be 1.4 mgd unless Treatment Plant 3A is discharging to the sewer. If other

            discharges occur, they are estimated.

       c. SCWD is the summation of the DPSD and Victoria PS meters. The two metering systems have an

            accuracy of +/‐ 10%.

       d. The Oso Trabuco sewer is metered daily in the collection system.

            The flows from MNWD are subtracted from the metering data collected to determine SMWD's
            flows. The area velocity metering system in the collection system has an accuracy of +/‐ 20%.
(2) The 36‐month average is the average of the past 36 months. The Use Audit is based on the last 3

Fiscal Years versus the average of the past 36 months.

(3) All monthly flow data for 3A is reported as part of MNWD's flow to the ocean outfall. The actual allocation

of the flows split between MNWD and SMWD is completed annually during the Use Audit.

Sources: 1) Cost Allocation Methodology for Project Committees, Dudek Engineering 2012.

                 2) Instructions to SOCWA Staff regarding the constant flow of 1.4 MGD from MNWD and SMWD

                       dated March 2018.

Project Committee No. 2 Solids (JBL)

Project Committee No. 2 Liquids (JBL)

Project Committee No. 5 - Effluent Pumping Station (SJCOO EPS)

FY Flow/Solids Summary-Billing

SOCWA Operational Report August, 2018 (cont'd)

54



Agency FY  Avg 
Outfall 
Flow 
(mgd)

FY  Avg 
Outfall 

Flow (%)

FY Avg 
EPS Outfall 
Flow (mgd)

FY Avg 
EPS 

Outfall 
Flow (%)

CSC 2.006 22.71%
CSJC 2.564 29.02% 2.12 35.46%
MNWD 1.639 18.55% 1.40 23.40%
SCWD 2.002 22.66% 1.88 31.51%
SMWD 0.625 7.07% 0.58 9.63%
Total 8.835 100.00% 5.98 100.00%

Agency Own 
(mgd)

Own    (%) Budget 
(mgd)

Budget 
(%)

Month 
(mgd)

Month 
(%)

FY Avg to 
Date 

(mgd)

FY Avg to 
Date (%)

CLB 2.54 37.91% 1.770 59.00% 1.592 58.34% 1.652 58.86%
EBSD 0.20 2.99% 0.050 1.67% 0.049 1.80% 0.049 1.73%
SCWD 2.00 29.85% 1.180 39.33% 1.088 39.86% 1.106 39.41%
MNWD 1.96 29.25% 0.000 0.00% 0.000 0.00% 0.000 0.00%
Total 6.70 100.00% 3.000 100.00% 2.729 100.00% 2.807 100.00%

Agency Budget 
Liquids 
(mgd)

Budget 
Liquids 

(%)

Month 
Plant 

Influent 
(mgd)

Month 
Centrate 

(mgd)

Month 
Total 

(mgd)(1)

Month 
Total (%)

FY Avg to 
Date 

(mgd)

FY Avg to 
Date (%)

CLB 0.01220 0.157% 0.0000 0.0146 0.0146 0.19% 0.0147 0.19%
EBSD 0.00040 0.005% 0.0000 0.0005 0.0005 0.01% 0.0004 0.01%
SCWD 0.00810 0.104% 0.0000 0.0100 0.0100 0.13% 0.0098 0.13%
ETWD 0.01410 0.181% 0.0000 0.0118 0.0118 0.15% 0.0122 0.16%
MNWD 7.75000 99.553% 7.6426 0.0546 7.6972 99.52% 7.7054 99.52%
Total 7.78480 100.000% 7.6426 0.0915 7.7341 100.00% 7.7426 100.00%
(1) Month total does not double count MNWD centrate. It is included in the Monthly Plant Influent too.

Project Committee No. 15 (CTP)

Project Committee No. 17 Liquids (RTP)

SOCWA Operational Report August, 2018 (cont'd)

FY Flow/Solids Summary-Billing (cont'd)

Project Committee No. 5 - Outfall (SJCOO)

55



Agency
Own 

(lbs/d)
Own    
(%)

Budget 
(lbs/d)

Budget 
(%)

Total 
Month 
(lbs)

Total 
Month 

(%)

FY Avg 
Total to 

Date (lbs)

FY Avg 
Total to 
Date (%)

CLB 5,605 11.22% 5,133 12.48% 189,831 15.99% 201,825 16.50%
EBSD 295 0.59% 158 0.38% 5,843 0.49% 5,919 0.48%
SCWD 4,480 8.96% 3,546 8.62% 129,712 10.93% 135,093 11.05%
ETWD 10,200 20.41% 5,755 13.99% 153,668 12.94% 167,598 13.70%
MNWD 29,395 58.82% 26,532 64.52% 708,156 59.65% 712,584 58.26%
Total 49,975 100.00% 41,124 100.00% 1,187,210 100.00% 1,223,020 100.00%

Agency

Own    (%)
Budget 
(mgd)

Budget 
(%)

Month 
Outfall 
Flow 
(mgd)

Month 
Outfall 

Flow (%)

FY Avg 
Outfall 
Flow 
(mgd)

FY Avg 
Outfall 

Flow (%)

CLB 11.000% 1.89 17.73% 1.592 36.24% 1.652 38.17%
EBSD 0.780% 0.05 0.47% 0.049 1.12% 0.049 1.12%
ETWD 16.302% 2.46 23.08% 1.287 29.31% 1.336 30.87%
IRWD 15.760% 2.48 23.26% 0.918 20.89% 0.781 18.06%
MNWD 43.848% 3.08 28.89% 0.683 15.56% 0.641 14.81%
SCWD 12.310% 0.70 6.57% -0.137 -3.12% -0.131 -3.02%
Total 100.000% 10.66 100.00% 4.392 0.00% 4.327 100.00%

SOCWA Operational Report August, 2018 (cont'd)

Project Committee No. 24 (ACOO)

FY Flow/Solids Summary (cont'd)

Project Committee No. 17 Solids (RTP)

56



Select Critical Equipment Repairs

JBL ‐ PC2

Installed a new eye wash station

Corrected missing confined space signage at 4 different locations

Repaired corroded ¾” airline for fluffing outfall tank

Completed installation of new east RAS pump

Install new safety grating for scum pit

Replaced degrading safety cabinet for AWT area

Repaired leaking east 1&2 primary collector gear boxes

Repaired potable water air compressor system

Removed agitation aeration blower #1 for repair

Repaired leaking/broken pipings @ east aeration basin #1

Repaired cracked/leaking piping for the caustic system in the scrubber area

Repaired broken process water line near the west secondary tanks

Repaired bleeding/sample line for RAS pump #4

Realigned fan motor for exhaust fan #1 in aeration building

CTP ‐ PC15

Corrected missing confined space signage at different locations

Troubleshot and replaced scrubber pump motor.

Troubleshot and removed aeration blower #1 for overhaul and repairs

Repaired blech line leak for cell #2 for the AWT

Troubleshot AWT mixer #2

Replaced damaged and missing toe boards in the clarifier area

Repaired leaking air line for the process water pumping system

Replaced missing shear pin on Primary Scum Skimmer #3 / West #1

Troubleshot Secondary Scum Skimmer #4 / East #1

Repaired air leak on the compressed air line for the instrument air system

Replaced AWT floor compressor #2

Troubleshot pressure gauges on scrubber stage #1 recirculation pump

Troubleshot RAS pump #2 vibration

Repaired RAS pump East‐West leaking valve

Replaced plastic tubing for the East RAS bleach pump

Repaired leaking West RAS bleach pump line

Repaired oil leak at the base on the AWT filter supply pump #2

Troubleshot the air compressor for the potable water air gap

Items with a (*) have been identified as preventable repairs.

SOCWA Operational Report August, 2018 (cont'd)

57



Select Critical Equipment Repairs (cont'd)

RTP ‐ PC17
Replaced failed Ultra‐Flex Panels in Aeration Tank #2

Jetted out blocked waste gas burner and replaced failed flame arrestors

Fabricated new deck plating for the engine room and replaced old plates posing safety hazards

Rebuilt worn Secondary scum pump

Tighten tension on Primary Tank 5 drive chain and reinstalled lube lines to bull gear shaft

Tighten tension on Primary Tank 6 drive chain and reinstalled lube lines to bull gear shaft

Removed broken Hydrogritter auger and send out for repair

Replaced failed gasket on AWT 2 bleach tank #2 feed line

Rehabilitated 2‐water system pumps, valves and check valves

Rebuilt the DynaBlend #2

Replaced failed SET Pump #2 Motor

All PC's ‐ Electrical and SCADA Staff

Troubleshot the JBL Vulcan Wash Press failure alarm
Troubleshot filtered water turbidimeter meter at CTP
Troubleshot CTP outfall flow meter
Rewired the CTP Aeration Blower #1
Troubleshot failed Bleach Pump #2
Troubleshot AWT Area Cell #3 backwash sensor
Replaced RTP Centrifuge 1 failed flow meter
Troubleshot screenings conveyor # 2 at RTP

Troubleshot Odor Scrubber 1 SC200
Troubleshot the final chlorine analyzer at RTP
Troubleshot the Sump Pump #2 at RTP
Troubleshot the polymer mixer on tank #1
Investigate chattering in ORT Recirc. Pump #1
Troubleshot the Aeration Blower #1 that failed to start
Removed and replaced failed H2S meter at new gas skid

Items with a (*) have been identified as preventable  repairs.

SOCWA Operational Report August, 2018 (cont'd)

58



SOCWA Ocean Outfall Discharges by Agency 

59



Agency
SJCOO 
(mgd)

SJCOO 
(%)

ACOO 
(mgd) ACOO (%) Total (mgd)

CLB 1.59 36.24% 1.59
EBSD 0.05 1.12% 0.05
SCWD 1.87 21.30% -0.14 -3.12% 1.73
MNWD 1.65 18.74% 0.68 15.56% 2.33
ETWD 1.29 29.31% 1.29
CSJC 2.54 28.92% 2.54

SMWD 0.84 9.55% 0.84
CSC 1.89 21.49% 1.89

IRWD 0.92 20.89% 0.92
Total 8.79 100.00% 4.39 100.00% 13.18

14,759

12-Month Running Total Discharge to Ocean Outfalls (AF)

Aug-18 1,207
Jul-18 1,205
Jun-18 1,307
May-18 1,564
Apr-18 1,702
Mar-18 2,529
Feb-18 1,923
Jan-18 2,208
Dec-17 1,744
Nov-17 1,883
Oct-17 1,537
Sep-17 1,568
Total 20,378

SOCWA Outfall Discharge Report August, 2018

            or Acre-Feet per year equivalent

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

Jun‐17 Sep‐17 Dec‐17 Apr‐18 Jul‐18 Oct‐18

Last 12 months

Prior 12 months

60



Beach / Ocean Monitoring 

Report 

August 2018 

61



A
LI

S
O

 C
R

E
E

K
 O

C
E

A
N

 O
U

T
FA

LL
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 R

E
P

O
R

T

A
ug

us
t 2

01
8

IR
W

D
S

O
C

W
A

S
O

C
W

A
IR

W
D

IR
W

D
S

C
W

D
LO

S
 A

LI
S

O
S

 W
R

P
E

L 
T

O
R

O
 W

R
P

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L 
P

LA
N

T
C

O
A

S
TA

L 
P

LA
N

T
ID

P
S

G
U

A
C

W
R

F
A

C
O

O
R

ai
n

F
LO

W
T

S
S

cB
O

D
S

S
F

LO
W

T
S

S
cB

O
D

S
S

F
LO

W
T

S
S

cB
O

D
S

S
F

LO
W

T
S

S
cB

O
D

S
S

F
LO

W
F

LO
W

F
LO

W
F

LO
W

F
al

l

D
A

T
E

M
G

D
m

g/
L

m
g/

L
m

l/L
M

G
D

m
g/

L
m

g/
L

m
l/L

M
G

D
m

g/
L

m
g/

L
m

l/L
M

G
D

m
g/

L
m

g/
L

m
l/L

M
G

D
M

G
D

M
G

D
M

G
D

in
ch

es

08
/0

1/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
1.

15
4

6.
2

2.
6

0.
1

0.
17

0
7.

1
2.

0
0.

1
1.

41
0

6.
1

3.
0

<
0.

1
0.

19
1

0.
62

2
0.

09
8

3.
64

5
0.

00

08
/0

2/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
1.

21
6

6.
8

2.
5

0.
1

0.
06

6.
9

4.
0

0.
1

1.
41

8
5.

5
4.

0
0.

1
0.

29
3

0.
62

1
0.

05
6

3.
66

4
0.

00

08
/0

3/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
1.

08
5

5.
8

2.
2

0.
5

0.
27

0
8.

9
3.

0
0.

3
1.

65
3

11
.1

3.
0

0.
1

0.
00

0
0.

62
1

0.
11

7
3.

74
6

0.
00

08
/0

4/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
1.

49
2

7.
4

3.
9

0.
1

0.
18

0
1.

60
4

0.
01

8
0.

62
0

0.
10

3
4.

01
7

0.
00

08
/0

5/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
1.

58
2

8.
2

3.
0

0.
1

0.
83

0
8.

2
5.

0
0.

8
1.

78
9

23
.2

11
.0

0.
00

0
0.

62
0

0.
09

0
4.

91
1

0.
00

08
/0

6/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
0.

66
9

10
.8

3.
9

<
0.

1
1.

11
0

30
.3

4.
0

0.
1

1.
98

3
5.

3
4.

0
<

0.
1

0.
00

0
0.

62
0

0.
10

1
4.

48
3

0.
00

08
/0

7/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
1.

36
8

6.
2

2.
8

<
0.

1
0.

21
0

5.
1

4.
0

0.
3

1.
52

0
3.

9
3.

0
<

0.
1

0.
00

0
0.

61
9

0.
09

6
3.

81
3

0.
00

08
/0

8/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
1.

21
2

6.
0

2.
5

0.
1

0.
36

0
18

.1
8.

0
1.

1
1.

53
5

2.
3

3.
0

<
0.

1
0.

00
0

0.
23

2
0.

12
4

3.
46

3
0.

01

08
/0

9/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
1.

42
8

7.
4

2.
7

0.
1

0.
37

0
28

.7
4.

0
0.

4
1.

22
9

7.
4

4.
0

0.
1

0.
40

6
0.

36
6

0.
10

3
3.

90
2

0.
00

08
/1

0/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
1.

14
8

9.
7

3.
1

0.
1

0.
38

0
11

.7
4.

0
0.

5
1.

48
9

3.
9

3.
0

0.
1

0.
40

6
0.

56
6

0.
10

1
4.

09
0

0.
00

08
/1

1/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
1.

26
7

11
.8

3.
5

0.
1

0.
52

0
1.

50
5

0.
40

9
0.

59
3

0.
10

8
4.

40
2

0.
00

08
/1

2/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
1.

53
7

7.
8

3.
1

0.
1

0.
70

0
11

.8
4.

0
0.

5
1.

53
3

3.
2

4.
0

0.
40

8
0.

59
9

0.
09

9
4.

87
6

0.
00

08
/1

3/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
1.

07
2

10
.4

3.
4

<
0.

1
0.

93
0

14
.7

8.
0

0.
1

1.
71

4
9.

4
7.

0
<

0.
1

0.
40

9
0.

59
8

0.
09

9
4.

82
2

0.
00

08
/1

4/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
1.

50
4

4.
0

1.
6

0.
1

0.
55

0
3.

8
6.

0
0.

2
1.

23
0

4.
1

3.
0

0.
1

0.
40

7
0.

62
2

0.
08

1
4.

39
4

0.
00

08
/1

5/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
0.

76
0

6.
7

1.
9

0.
1

0.
53

0
6.

6
7.

0
<

0.
1

1.
54

2
2.

6
5.

0
0.

1
0.

40
8

0.
62

0
0.

12
7

3.
98

7
0.

00

08
/1

6/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
0.

89
8

9.
4

3.
3

0.
1

0.
37

0
9.

4
8.

0
0.

1
1.

24
7

6.
0

3.
0

<
0.

1
0.

40
6

0.
61

6
0.

07
3

3.
61

0
0.

00

08
/1

7/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
0.

95
5

5.
4

1.
9

0.
1

0.
23

0
5.

5
8.

0
0.

1
1.

43
1

3.
7

4.
0

0.
1

0.
41

6
0.

61
3

0.
10

4
3.

74
9

0.
00

08
/1

8/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
1.

45
5

5.
0

2.
1

0.
1

1.
88

0
1.

49
8

0.
41

1
0.

64
5

0.
10

7
5.

99
6

0.
00

08
/1

9/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
1.

71
3

5.
8

2.
8

0.
2

0.
36

0
4.

6
7.

0
0.

1
1.

82
4

2.
2

3.
0

0.
40

8
0.

65
7

0.
10

5
5.

06
7

0.
00

08
/2

0/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
1.

35
8

10
.4

4.
4

0.
1

4.
03

0
5.

3
12

.0
0.

2
1.

69
7

2.
1

3.
0

0.
3

0.
40

7
0.

65
6

0.
04

7
8.

19
5

0.
00

08
/2

1/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
2.

07
6

6.
4

2.
4

0.
1

1.
13

0
9.

3
0.

1
1.

32
5

4.
5

<
0.

1
0.

40
7

0.
65

3
0.

05
8

5.
64

9
0.

00

08
/2

2/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
1.

35
7

6.
6

2.
7

0.
1

0.
16

0
5.

4
6.

0
0.

3
1.

57
3

2.
0

2.
0

<
0.

1
0.

36
1

0.
65

2
0.

07
8

4.
18

1
0.

00

08
/2

3/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
1.

17
1

10
.4

4.
9

0.
1

0.
18

0
9.

4
7.

0
0.

2
1.

39
4

4.
8

5.
0

0.
1

0.
40

6
0.

56
7

0.
10

8
3.

82
6

0.
00

08
/2

4/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
0.

83
2

13
.0

5.
3

0.
1

0.
45

0
7.

0
6.

0
0.

1
1.

56
9

4.
0

3.
0

0.
1

0.
39

1
0.

59
3

0.
03

3
3.

86
8

0.
00

08
/2

5/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
1.

55
6

16
.3

6.
1

0.
2

0.
63

0
1.

24
1

0.
40

8
0.

63
6

0.
10

0
4.

57
1

0.
00

08
/2

6/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
1.

55
7

14
.7

5.
0

0.
1

1.
26

0
4.

5
12

.0
0.

1
1.

68
8

12
.4

7.
0

0.
40

7
0.

63
9

0.
09

3
5.

64
4

0.
00

08
/2

7/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
0.

99
5

21
.3

5.
2

0.
1

1.
96

0
5.

3
4.

0
0.

2
1.

67
3

3.
1

4.
0

0.
1

0.
40

6
0.

63
6

0.
06

5
5.

73
5

0.
00

08
/2

8/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
1.

43
5

17
.7

5.
6

0.
2

0.
22

0
5.

0
3.

0
0.

1
1.

39
4

3.
8

3.
0

<
0.

1
0.

40
7

0.
63

4
0.

05
0

4.
14

0
0.

00

08
/2

9/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
0.

90
6

17
.0

4.
4

<
0.

1
0.

75
0

4.
3

5.
0

0.
2

1.
30

8
4.

7
5.

0
0.

1
0.

40
7

0.
63

2
0.

08
5

4.
08

8
0.

00

08
/3

0/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
1.

57
7

7.
3

2.
3

<
0.

1
0.

32
0

9.
1

12
.0

0.
3

1.
44

9
4.

1
5.

0
0.

1
0.

40
7

0.
63

0
0.

11
7

4.
50

0
0.

00

08
/3

1/
18

N
o 

F
lo

w
1.

57
2

11
.0

3.
7

<
0.

1
0.

08
0

12
.7

2.
0

0.
3

1.
15

3
3.

6
3.

0
0.

1
0.

40
6

0.
63

0
0.

08
6

3.
92

7
0.

00

A
V

G
N

o 
F

lo
w

1.
28

7
9.

4
3.

4
<

0.
1

0.
68

3
9.

6
6.

0
<

0.
3

1.
50

4
5.

5
4.

1
<

0.
1

0.
31

7
0.

60
1

0.
09

1
4.

48
3

T
O

TA
L

N
o 

F
lo

w
39

.9
1

21
.1

8
46

.6
2

9.
82

18
.6

3
2.

81
2

13
8.

96
0.

01

62



U
n
if
ie

d
 B

e
a

c
h
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
#
1

S
o
u
th

 O
ra

n
g
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 W

a
s
te

w
a
te

r 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
-A

lis
o
 C

re
e
k
 O

c
e
a

n
 O

u
tf
a

ll

R
E

P
O

R
T

 F
O

R
: 
 

A
u
g
u

s
t 
 2

0
1

8
R

E
P

O
R

T
 F

R
E

Q
U

E
N

C
Y

:
M

o
n

th
ly

R
E

P
O

R
T

 D
U

E
:  
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
1
  
2
0
1

8
E

X
A

C
T

 S
A

M
P

L
E

 P
O

IN
T

S
:

A
s 

s
p
e

c
if
ie

d
 in

 U
n
if
ie

d
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
 P

la
n

S
A

M
P

L
E

 S
O

U
R

C
E

:
S

u
rf

 z
o
n

e
S

A
M

P
L
E

S
 C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 B
Y

: S
O

C
W

A
  
L
a

b

T
Y

P
E

 O
F

 S
A

M
P

L
E

:
G

r a
b

S
A

M
P

L
E

S
 A

N
A

LY
Z

E
D

 B
Y

:
S

O
C

W
A

  
L
a

b

T
id

a
l C

o
n

d
iti

o
n
:

L
o

w
 T

id
e

 0
7
0

2

W
e
a

th
e
r:

C
le

a
r

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

:

To
ta

l
F

e
c
a
l

E
n
te

ro
-

C
o
lif

o
rm

C
o
lif

o
rm

c
o
c
c
u
s

M
a
te

ri
a
l o

f 
S

e
w

a
g
e

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

O
ri

g
in

O
il 

&
W

a
te

r
H

2
0

W
a
te

r 
W

a
te

r

S
T
A

#
D

A
T

E
T

IM
E

S
M

9
2

2
2

B
S

M
9
2

2
2

D
E

P
A

 1
6
0

0
O

n
s
h
o

re
O

ff
s
h
o

re
G

re
a

s
e

O
d

o
r

C
o
lo

r
Te

m
p
(F

)
C

o
n

d
iti

o
n

O
u

tle
t

B
ir
d
s

S
3

0
8

/0
2

/1
8

1
0

2
5

9
<

2
0

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
7

3
S

lig
h

tly
 T

u
rb

id

S
4

0
8

/0
2

/1
8

1
0

0
0

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

S
lig

h
tly

 T
u

rb
id

S
5

0
8

/0
2

/1
8

0
9

3
5

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
6

0
8

/0
2

/1
8

9
2

5
<

2
0

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
S

lig
h

tly
 T

u
rb

id

W
E

S
T

0
8

/0
2

/1
8

0
9

2
0

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

S
lig

h
tly

 T
u

rb
id

S
7

0
8

/0
2

/1
8

0
9

1
5

3
0

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
S

lig
h

tly
 T

u
rb

id

S
8

0
8

/0
2

/1
8

0
9

1
0

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

S
lig

h
tly

 T
u

rb
id

S
9

0
8

/0
2

/1
8

0
8

5
5

<
1

0
<

1
0

<
4

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

A
C

M
1

0
8

/0
2

/1
8

0
8

5
0

9
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

S
1

0
0

8
/0

2
/1

8
0

8
4

0
<

2
0

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
C

le
a

r

S
11

0
8

/0
2

/1
8

0
8

3
5

3
0

3
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
1

2
0

8
/0

2
/1

8
0

8
3

0
<

2
0

3
0

1
0

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

7
3

C
le

a
r

R
E

C
R

E
A

T
IO

N
A

L
 W

A
T

E
R

 L
IM

IT
A

T
IO

N
S

:S
in

g
le

 S
a
m

p
le

 M
a
xi

m
u
m

 -
 T

o
ta

l c
o

lif
o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
,0

0
0

 p
e
r 

1
0
0

m
l; 

F
e
c
a
l c

o
lif

o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e

4
0

0
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l; 
E

n
te

ro
c
o
c
c
u
s
 d

e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
4
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l.

63



U
n
if
ie

d
 B

e
a

c
h
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
#
2

S
o
u
th

 O
ra

n
g
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 W

a
s
te

w
a
te

r 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
-A

lis
o
 C

re
e
k
 O

c
e
a

n
 O

u
tf
a

ll

R
E

P
O

R
T

 F
O

R
: 
 

A
u
g
u

s
t 
 2

0
1

8
R

E
P

O
R

T
 F

R
E

Q
U

E
N

C
Y

:
M

o
n

th
ly

R
E

P
O

R
T

 D
U

E
: 
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
1
, 
2
0
1

8
E

X
A

C
T

 S
A

M
P

L
E

 P
O

IN
T

S
:

A
s 

s
p
e

c
if
ie

d
 in

 U
n
if
ie

d
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
 P

la
n

S
A

M
P

L
E

 S
O

U
R

C
E

:
R

e
c
e
iv

in
g

 w
a
te

r 
su

rf
 z

o
n

e
S

A
M

P
L
E

S
 C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 B
Y

:S
O

C
W

A
  
L
a

b

T
Y

P
E

 O
F

 S
A

M
P

L
E

:
G

r a
b

S
A

M
P

L
E

S
 A

N
A

LY
Z

E
D

 B
Y

:
S

O
C

W
A

  
L
a

b

T
id

a
l C

o
n

d
iti

o
n
:

H
ig

h
 T

id
e

 0
8
0

3

W
e
a

th
e
r:

C
le

a
r

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

:

To
ta

l
F

e
c
a
l

E
n
te

ro
-

C
o
lif

o
rm

C
o
lif

o
rm

c
o
c
c
u
s

M
a
te

ri
a
l o

f 
S

e
w

a
g
e

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

O
ri

g
in

O
il 

&
W

a
te

r
H

2
0

W
a
te

r 
W

a
te

r

S
T
A

#
D

A
T

E
T

IM
E

S
M

9
2

2
2

B
S

M
9
2

2
2

D
E

P
A

 1
6
0

0
O

n
s
h
o

re
O

ff
s
h
o

re
G

re
a

s
e

O
d

o
r

C
o
lo

r
Te

m
p
(F

)
C

o
n

d
iti

o
n

O
u

tle
t

B
ir
d
s

S
3

0
8

/0
8

/1
8

1
0

0
0

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

7
2

S
lig

h
tly

 T
u

rb
id

S
4

0
8

/0
8

/1
8

0
9

4
5

3
0

<
2

0
2

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

S
lig

h
tly

 T
u

rb
id

S
5

0
8

/0
8

/1
8

0
9

3
0

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

S
lig

h
tly

 T
u

rb
id

S
6

0
8

/0
8

/1
8

0
9

1
0

<
2

0
<

2
0

2
N

o
n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

S
lig

h
tly

 T
u

rb
id

W
E

S
T

0
8

/0
8

/1
8

0
9

0
5

9
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

S
lig

h
tly

 T
u

rb
id

S
7

0
8

/0
8

/1
8

0
9

0
0

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

S
lig

h
tly

 T
u

rb
id

S
8

0
8

/0
8

/1
8

0
8

5
0

9
<

2
0

8
N

o
n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

S
9

0
8

/0
8

/1
8

0
8

3
5

5
<

1
0

<
4

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

A
C

M
1

0
8

/0
8

/1
8

0
8

3
0

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

S
1

0
0

8
/0

8
/1

8
0

8
2

0
<

2
0

9
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

S
lig

h
tly

 T
u

rb
id

S
11

0
8

/0
8

/1
8

0
8

1
5

9
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

S
lig

h
tly

 T
u

rb
id

S
1

2
0

8
/0

8
/1

8
0

8
1

0
9

3
0

2
N

o
n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

7
1

S
lig

h
tly

 T
u

rb
id

R
E

C
E

IV
IN

G
 W

A
T

E
R

 L
IM

IT
A

T
IO

N
S

:S
in

g
le

 S
a
m

p
le

 M
a
xi

m
u
m

 -
 T

o
ta

l c
o

lif
o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
,0

0
0

 p
e
r 

1
0
0

m
l; 

F
e
c
a
l c

o
lif

o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 

4
0

0
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l; 
E

n
te

ro
c
o
c
c
u
s
 d

e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
4
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l.

64



U
n
if
ie

d
 B

e
a
ch

 M
o
n
ito

ri
n
g

#
3

S
o
u
th

 O
ra

n
g
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 W
a
st

e
w

a
te

r  
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

-A
lis

o
 C

re
e
k
 O

ce
a
n
 O

u
tf

a
ll

R
E

P
O

R
T

 F
O

R
: 
 

A
u
g
u
st

  
2
0
1
8

R
E

P
O

R
T

 F
R

E
Q

U
E

N
C

Y
:

M
o
n
th

ly

R
E

P
O

R
T

 D
U

E
: 
 

O
ct

o
b
e
r 

1
, 
2
0
1
8

E
X

A
C

T
 S

A
M

P
L
E

 P
O

IN
T

S
:

A
s
 s

p
e
ci

fi
e
d
 in

 U
n
if
ie

d
 M

o
n
ito

ri
n
g
 P

la
n

S
A

M
P

L
E

 S
O

U
R

C
E

:
R

e
ce

iv
in

g
 w

a
te

r 
su

rf
 z

o
n
e

S
A

M
P

L
E

S
 C

O
L
L
E

C
T

E
D

 B
Y

:S
O

C
W

A
  
L
a
b

T
Y

P
E

 O
F

 S
A

M
P

L
E

:
G

ra
b

S
A

M
P

L
E

S
 A

N
A

L Y
Z

E
D

 B
Y

:
S

O
C

W
A

  
L
a
b

T
id

a
l C

o
n
d
iti

o
n
:

L
o
w

 T
id

e
 6

3
5

W
e
a
th

e
r:

C
le

a
r

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

:

T
o
ta

l
F

e
ca

l
E

n
te

ro
-

C
o
lif

o
rm

C
o
lif

o
rm

co
cc

u
s

M
a
te

ri
a
l o

f 
S

e
w

a
g
e

C
F

U
/1

0
0
m

l
C

F
U

/1
0
0
m

l
C

F
U

/1
0
0
m

l
O

ri
g
in

O
il 

&
W

a
te

r
H

2
0

W
a
te

r 
W

a
te

r

S
T
A

#
D

A
T

E
T

IM
E

S
M

9
2
2
2
B

S
M

9
2
2
2
D

E
P

A
 1

6
0
0

O
n
sh

o
re

O
ff

sh
o
re

G
re

a
se

O
d
o
r

C
o
lo

r
T
e
m

p
(F

)
C

o
n
d
iti

o
n

O
u
tle

t
B

ir
d
s

S
3

0
8

/1
5

/1
8

7
5

0
3

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

7
5

C
le

a
r

S
4

0
8

/1
5

/1
8

1
0

0
5

3
0

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
C

le
a

r

S
5

0
8

/1
5

/1
8

9
5

0
4

0
2

0
2

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
6

0
8

/1
5

/1
8

9
3

0
<

2
0

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
C

le
a

r

W
E

S
T

0
8

/1
5

/1
8

9
2

5
4

0
<

2
0

1
0

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
7

0
8

/1
5

/1
8

9
1

5
9

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
C

le
a

r

S
8

0
8

/1
5

/1
8

9
1

0
<

2
0

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
B

lu
e

C
le

a
r

S
9

0
8

/1
5

/1
8

8
5

5
5

<
1

0
<

4
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
C

le
a

r

A
C

M
1

0
8

/1
5

/1
8

8
4

5
9

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
C

le
a

r

S
1

0
0

8
/1

5
/1

8
8

3
0

<
2

0
9

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
11

0
8

/1
5

/1
8

8
2

5
3

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
1

2
0

8
/1

5
/1

8
8

2
0

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

R
E

C
E

IV
IN

G
 W

A
T

E
R

 L
IM

IT
A

T
IO

N
S

:S
in

g
le

 S
a
m

p
le

 M
a
xi

m
u
m

 -
 T

o
ta

l c
o
lif

o
rm

 d
e
n
si

ty
 s

h
a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e
d
 1

0
,0

0
0
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
m

l; 
F

e
ca

l c
o
lif

o
rm

 d
e
n
si

ty
 s

h
a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e

4
0
0
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
m

l; 
E

n
te

ro
co

cc
u
s 

d
e
n
si

ty
 s

h
a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e
d
 1

0
4
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
m

l.

65



U
n
if
ie

d
 B

e
a
ch

 M
o
n
ito

ri
n
g

#
4

S
o
u
th

 O
ra

n
g
e
 C

o
u
n
ty

 W
a
st

e
w

a
te

r  
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

-A
lis

o
 C

re
e
k
 O

ce
a
n
 O

u
tf

a
ll

R
E

P
O

R
T

 F
O

R
: 
 

A
u
g
u
st

  
2
0
1
8

R
E

P
O

R
T

 F
R

E
Q

U
E

N
C

Y
:

M
o
n
th

ly

R
E

P
O

R
T

 D
U

E
: 
 

O
ct

o
b
e
r 

1
, 
2
0
1
8

E
X

A
C

T
 S

A
M

P
L
E

 P
O

IN
T

S
:

A
s
 s

p
e
ci

fi
e
d
 in

 U
n
if
ie

d
 M

o
n
ito

ri
n
g
 P

la
n

S
A

M
P

L
E

 S
O

U
R

C
E

:
R

e
ce

iv
in

g
 w

a
te

r 
su

rf
 z

o
n
e

S
A

M
P

L
E

S
 C

O
L
L
E

C
T

E
D

 B
Y

:S
O

C
W

A
  
L
a
b

T
Y

P
E

 O
F

 S
A

M
P

L
E

:
G

ra
b

S
A

M
P

L
E

S
 A

N
A

LY
Z

E
D

 B
Y

:
S

O
C

W
A

  
L
a
b

T
id

a
l C

o
n
d
iti

o
n
:

H
ig

h
 T

id
e
 8

2
8

W
e
a
th

e
r:

C
le

a
r

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

:

T
o
ta

l
F

e
ca

l
E

n
te

ro
-

C
o
lif

o
rm

C
o
lif

o
rm

co
cc

u
s

M
a
te

ri
a
l o

f 
S

e
w

a
g
e

C
F

U
/1

0
0
m

l
C

F
U

/1
0
0
m

l
C

F
U

/1
0
0
m

l
O

ri
g
in

O
il 

&
W

a
te

r
H

2
0

W
a
te

r 
W

a
te

r

S
T
A

#
D

A
T

E
T

IM
E

S
M

9
2
2
2
B

S
M

9
2
2
2
D

E
P

A
 1

6
0
0

O
n
sh

o
re

O
ff

sh
o
re

G
re

a
se

O
d
o
r

C
o
lo

r
T
e
m

p
(F

)
C

o
n
d
iti

o
n

O
u
tle

t
B

ir
d
s

S
3

0
8

/2
2

/1
8

8
3

0
9

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
7

3
C

le
a

r

S
4

0
8

/2
2

/1
8

1
0

5
0

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
5

0
8

/2
2

/1
8

1
0

3
5

9
<

2
0

2
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
C

le
a

r

S
6

0
8

/2
2

/1
8

1
0

2
0

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

W
E

S
T

0
8

/2
2

/1
8

1
0

1
5

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
7

0
8

/2
2

/1
8

1
0

1
0

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
8

0
8

/2
2

/1
8

1
0

0
0

9
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

B
lu

e
C

le
a

r

S
9

0
8

/2
2

/1
8

9
4

5
<

2
0

<
2

0
2

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

A
C

M
1

0
8

/2
2

/1
8

9
4

0
2

0
<

2
0

7
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
C

le
a

r

S
1

0
0

8
/2

2
/1

8
9

1
5

9
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
11

0
8

/2
2

/1
8

9
1

0
<

2
0

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
C

le
a

r

S
1

2
0

8
/2

2
/1

8
9

0
5

<
1

0
5

1
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
C

le
a

r

R
E

C
E

IV
IN

G
 W

A
T

E
R

 L
IM

IT
A

T
IO

N
S

:S
in

g
le

 S
a
m

p
le

 M
a
xi

m
u
m

 -
 T

o
ta

l c
o
lif

o
rm

 d
e
n
si

ty
 s

h
a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e
d
 1

0
,0

0
0
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
m

l; 
F

e
ca

l c
o
lif

o
rm

 d
e
n
si

ty
 s

h
a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e
d
 

4
0
0
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
m

l; 
E

n
te

ro
co

cc
u
s 

d
e
n
si

ty
 s

h
a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e
d
 1

0
4
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
m

l.

66



U
n
if
ie

d
 B

e
a

c
h
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
#
5

S
o
u
th

 O
ra

n
g
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 W

a
s
te

w
a
te

r 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
-A

lis
o
 C

re
e
k
 O

c
e
a

n
 O

u
tf
a

ll

R
E

P
O

R
T

 F
O

R
: 
 

A
u
g
u

s
t 
 2

0
1

8
R

E
P

O
R

T
 F

R
E

Q
U

E
N

C
Y

:
M

o
n

th
ly

R
E

P
O

R
T

 D
U

E
:  
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
1
, 
2
0
1

8
E

X
A

C
T

 S
A

M
P

L
E

 P
O

IN
T

S
:

A
s 

s
p
e

c
if
ie

d
 in

 U
n
if
ie

d
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
 P

la
n

S
A

M
P

L
E

 S
O

U
R

C
E

:
R

e
c
e
iv

in
g

 w
a
te

r 
su

rf
 z

o
n

e
S

A
M

P
L
E

S
 C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 B
Y

:S
O

C
W

A
  
L
a

b

T
Y

P
E

 O
F

 S
A

M
P

L
E

:
G

r a
b

S
A

M
P

L
E

S
 A

N
A

LY
Z

E
D

 B
Y

:
S

O
C

W
A

  
L
a

b

T
id

a
l C

o
n

d
iti

o
n
:

H
ig

h
 T

id
e

 1
1
2

6

W
e
a

th
e
r:

C
le

a
r

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

:

To
ta

l
F

e
c
a
l

E
n
te

ro
-

C
o
lif

o
rm

C
o
lif

o
rm

c
o
c
c
u
s

M
a
te

ri
a
l o

f 
S

e
w

a
g
e

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

O
ri

g
in

O
il 

&
W

a
te

r
H

2
0

W
a
te

r 
W

a
te

r

S
T
A

#
D

A
T

E
T

IM
E

S
M

9
2

2
2

B
S

M
9
2

2
2

D
E

P
A

 1
6
0

0
O

n
s
h
o

re
O

ff
s
h
o

re
G

re
a

s
e

O
d

o
r

C
o
lo

r
Te

m
p
(F

)
C

o
n

d
iti

o
n

O
u

tle
t

B
ir
d
s

S
3

0
8

/2
9

/1
8

7
5

0
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

7
4

C
le

a
r

S
4

0
8

/2
9

/1
8

1
0

2
5

9
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
5

0
8

/2
9

/1
8

1
0

0
5

2
0

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
C

le
a

r

S
6

0
8

/2
9

/1
8

9
4

5
<

2
0

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
C

le
a

r

W
E

S
T

0
8

/2
9

/1
8

9
4

0
<

2
0

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
C

le
a

r

S
7

0
8

/2
9

/1
8

9
3

5
<

2
0

<
2

0
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
C

le
a

r

S
8

0
8

/2
9

/1
8

9
3

0
<

2
0

9
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
B

lu
e

C
le

a
r

S
9

0
8

/2
9

/1
8

9
1

5
2

0
<

2
0

2
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
C

le
a

r

A
C

M
1

0
8

/2
9

/1
8

9
0

5
<

2
0

9
<

3
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
C

le
a

r

S
1

0
0

8
/2

9
/1

8
8

4
5

<
2

0
<

2
0

<
3

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

C
le

a
r

S
11

0
8

/2
9

/1
8

8
3

5
2

0
<

2
0

2
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
C

le
a

r

S
1

2
0

8
/2

9
/1

8
8

3
0

2
0

<
1

0
<

4
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
C

le
a

r

R
E

C
E

IV
IN

G
 W

A
T

E
R

 L
IM

IT
A

T
IO

N
S

:S
in

g
le

 S
a
m

p
le

 M
a
xi

m
u
m

 -
 T

o
ta

l c
o

lif
o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
,0

0
0

 p
e
r 

1
0
0

m
l; 

F
e
c
a
l c

o
lif

o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 

4
0

0
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l; 
E

n
te

ro
c
o
c
c
u
s
 d

e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
4
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l.

67



Aliso Creek Ocean Outfall

Unified Beach Water Quality Monitoring Stations

SOCWA's NPDES discharge permit requires participation in the South Orange County 

Unified Beach Water Quality Monitoring Program. The monitoring stations below are tested by

SOCWA at least once per week for Total and Fecal Coliform and Enterococcus Bacteria.

Station Location

S3 Three Arch Bay Beach; 10,000' down-coast from ACOO

S4 Ninth Street-1000 Steps; 5,000' down-coast from ACOO

S5 Laguna Lido Beach; 4,000 down-coast from ACOO

West West Street Drain; 2,000' down-coast from ACOO

S6 Table Rock Beach; 3,000' down-coast from ACOO

S7 Camel Point Beach; 2,000' down-coast from ACOO

S8 Aliso Beach south; 1,000' down-coast from ACOO

S9 Aliso Beach middle; at ACOO

ACM1 Aliso Beach at Aliso Creek Outlet

S10 Aliso Beach north; 1,000' up-coast of ACOO

S11 Treasure Island Beach; 2,000' up-coast of ACOO

S12 Goff Island Beach; 3,000' up-coast of ACOO

68



U
ni

fie
d 

Be
ac

h 
W

at
er

 Q
ua

lit
y 

Sa
m

pl
e 

St
at

io
n 

M
ap

 –
 A

lis
o 

C
re

ek
 O

ce
an

 O
ut

fa
ll 

    

 

69



MONITORING REPORT Off Shore Stations

South Orange County Wastewater Authority

DISCHARGE:  Aliso Creek Ocean Outfall

REPORT FOR: August 2018 REPORT FREQUENCY:  Monthly

REPORT DUE: October 1, 2018

SAMPLE SOURCE:  Receiving water, nearshore and offshore SAMPLING FREQUENCY:  Monthly

EXACT SAMPLE POINTS:  As specified in permit TYPE OF SAMPLE:  Grab

SAMPLES COLLECTED BY:  Seaventures/SOCWA staff

SAMPLES ANALYZED BY:  SOCWA  Lab

Comments: Low Tide 830

Total Fecal Entero- 0 - None

Coliform Coliform coccus 1 - Mild

Sta Sample Sample CFU/100ml CFU/100ml CFU/100ml Sample Oil & Sewage 2 - Moderate

No. Depth Date SM9222B SM9222D EPA 1600 Time Grease Debris 3 - Severe

A-1 Surface 08/04/18 <2 <2 <2 806 0 0

A-1 Mid depth 08/04/18 <10 <10 <10

A-2 Surface 08/04/18 <2 <2 <2 750 0 0

A-2 Mid depth 08/04/18 <10 <10 <10

A-3 Surface 08/04/18 <2 <2 <2 756 0 0

A-3 Mid depth 08/04/18 <10 <10 <10

A-4 Surface 08/04/18 <2 <2 <2 811 0 0

A-4 Mid depth 08/04/18 <10 <10 <10

A-5 Surface 08/04/18 <2 <2 <2 800 0 0

A-5 Mid depth 08/04/18 <10 <10 <10

B-1 Surface 08/04/18 <2 <2 <2 740 0 0

B-1 Mid depth 08/04/18 <10 <10 <10

B-2 Surface 08/04/18 <2 <2 <2 820 0 0

B-2 Mid depth 08/04/18 <10 <10 <10

N1 Surface 08/04/18 <2 <2 <2 835 0 0

N2 Surface 08/04/18 <2 <2 <2 833 0 0

N3 Surface 08/04/18 <2 <2 <2 833 0 0

N4 Surface 08/04/18 <2 2 <2 831 0 0

N5 Surface 08/04/18 2 <2 <2 830 0 0

N6 Surface 08/04/18 <2 <2 <2 828 0 0

N7 Surface 08/04/18 <2 <2 <2 827 0 0

REQUIREMENT:  (1) Floating particulates and grease and oil shall not be visible. (2) The   

discharge of wasteshall not cause aesthetically undesireable discoloration of the ocean surface.  

70



C
o

m
p

li
a

n
c

e
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 R

e
p

o
rt

A
li

s
o

 C
re

e
k

 O
c

e
a

n
 O

u
tf

a
ll

  
2

0
1

8

 
 

A
g

e
n

c
y
 -

 F
a
c
il
it

y
V

io
la

ti
o

n
C

o
n

s
ti

tu
e
n

t
E

ff
lu

e
n

t 
L

im
it

U
n

it
s

P
e
rm

it
R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 V
a
lu

e
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l

D
a
te

V
io

la
ti

o
n

L
im

it
F

in
e

A
C

O
O

 -
 S

O
C

W
A

 

O
u

tf
a

ll
4

/9
/2

0
1

8
C

h
ro

n
ic

 T
o

x
ic

it
y

M
o

n
th

ly
T

U
c

2
3
8

1
0
0

0
 T

U
c

$
3
0
0
0

A
C

O
O

 P
e
rm

it
 O

rd
e
r 

N
o

. 
R

9
-2

0
1
2
-0

0
1
3

71



S
O

C
W

A
 a

n
d

 M
E

M
B

E
R

 A
G

E
N

C
Y

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S

A
C

O
O

 S
p

il
l 
/ 
O

v
e
rf

lo
w

 R
e
p

o
rt

 L
o

g
 -

 2
0
1
8

O
rd

e
r 

N
o

. 
R

9
-2

0
1
2
-0

0
1
3
  
~

  
N

P
D

E
S

 P
e
rm

it
 N

o
. 
C

A
0
1
0
7
6
1
1

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
D

a
te

R
e
p

o
rt

in
g

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
V

o
lu

m
e

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
R

e
c
e
iv

in
g

R
e
p

o
rt

e
d

D
a
te

A
g

e
n

c
y

A
g

e
n

c
y

(G
a
ll
o

n
s
)

D
is

c
h

a
rg

e
L

o
c
a
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
W

a
te

rs
T

o
 S

ta
te

R
e
s
o

lv
e
d

N
o
 s

p
ill

s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
is

 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 p

e
ri
o
d
.

72



S
A

N
 J

U
A

N
 C

R
E

E
K

 O
C

E
A

N
 O

U
T

F
A

L
L
 M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 

A
u
g
u
st

 2
0
1
8

C
S

JC
S

C
W

D

 J
.B

. 
L
A

T
H

A
M

 F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

S
A

N
 C

L
E

M
E

N
T

E
 W

R
P

S
M

W
D

 C
H

IQ
U

IT
A

 W
R

P
 3

-A
 P

L
A

N
T

D
e
sa

lte
r

D
e
sa

lte
r

S
J
C

O
O

R
a

in

F
L
O

W
T

S
S

cB
O

D
S

S
F

L
O

W
T

S
S

cB
O

D
S

S
F

L
O

W
T

S
S

cB
O

D
S

S
F

L
O

W
T

S
S

cB
O

D
S

S
F

L
O

W
F

L
O

W
F

L
O

W
F

a
ll

D
A

T
E

M
G

D
m

g
/L

m
g
/L

m
l/L

M
G

D
m

g
/L

m
g
/L

m
l/L

M
G

D
m

g
/L

m
g
/L

m
l/L

M
G

D
m

g
/L

m
g
/L

m
l/L

M
G

D
M

G
D

M
G

D
in

c
h

e
s

0
8
/0

1
/1

8
5
.5

7
0

3
.8

3
.6

0
.1

2
.3

1
0

6
.7

8
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

0
0

0
.1

2
4

4
.9

3
.0

<
0
.1

0
.4

2
7

0
.1

5
6

8
.5

6
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/0

2
/1

8
5
.5

4
0

4
.7

3
.2

<
0
.1

2
.6

5
0

5
.1

6
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

0
0

0
.2

4
2

3
.5

2
.0

<
0
.1

0
.4

2
7

0
.1

5
6

9
.1

2
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/0

3
/1

8
6
.1

4
0

7
.0

5
.4

0
.1

1
.7

3
4

9
.6

7
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

2
0

0
.9

2
.2

<
0
.1

0
.3

1
2

3
.9

2
.0

<
0
.1

0
.4

2
8

0
.1

6
1

8
.7

4
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/0

4
/1

8
5
.7

7
0

1
.1

3
5

0
.0

0
0

0
.3

5
3

0
.4

2
8

0
.1

5
5

8
.2

4
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/0

5
/1

8
6
.0

5
0

3
.5

4
.8

1
.6

3
0

4
.0

7
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

0
0

0
.4

0
1

0
.4

2
9

0
.1

5
6

8
.6

7
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/0

6
/1

8
6
.0

3
0

4
.3

4
.5

0
.1

2
.0

4
0

4
.4

5
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

0
0

0
.3

7
0

4
.3

1
4
.0

<
0
.1

0
.4

2
8

0
.1

6
0

9
.0

2
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/0

7
/1

8
5
.5

9
0

4
.8

4
.7

0
.1

1
.6

4
4

4
.0

6
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

0
0

0
.2

8
0

4
.4

1
5
.0

0
.1

0
.4

2
9

0
.1

6
0

8
.3

4
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/0

8
/1

8
5
.7

5
0

5
.8

5
.0

0
.1

1
.7

8
7

4
.0

3
.0

<
0
.1

0
.1

5
0

1
.8

3
.1

<
0
.1

0
.1

4
6

4
.9

3
.0

0
.1

0
.4

3
0

0
.1

5
8

8
.2

2
0

0
.0

1

0
8
/0

9
/1

8
5
.4

5
0

5
.9

5
.4

0
.2

1
.1

1
3

4
.1

5
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

0
0

0
.0

9
6

4
.4

2
.0

0
.1

0
.4

2
9

0
.1

5
7

7
.7

8
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/1

0
/1

8
5
.7

9
0

7
.1

5
.2

<
0
.1

1
.4

8
3

4
.1

6
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

1
0

1
.6

2
.8

<
0
.1

0
.1

0
2

4
.3

3
.0

0
.1

0
.4

3
0

0
.1

6
1

8
.0

1
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/1

1
/1

8
5
.6

8
0

1
.8

7
6

4
.2

6
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

0
0

0
.1

1
8

0
.4

3
1

0
.1

5
7

8
.5

4
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/1

2
/1

8
5
.8

4
0

6
.1

1
.9

5
6

0
.0

0
0

0
.2

0
5

0
.4

3
1

0
.1

5
6

8
.2

6
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/1

3
/1

8
5
.7

9
0

4
.8

11
.5

0
.2

2
.1

9
9

5
.0

7
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

0
0

0
.2

2
3

1
.2

1
3
.0

0
.1

0
.4

3
1

0
.1

6
1

8
.8

8
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/1

4
/1

8
5
.6

3
0

5
.8

1
0
.6

0
.1

1
.6

6
4

5
.7

7
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

0
0

0
.1

7
8

2
.4

1
3
.0

0
.2

0
.4

4
1

0
.1

5
7

8
.6

3
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/1

5
/1

8
5
.2

5
0

4
.3

8
.8

<
0
.1

1
.6

2
5

6
.2

5
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

0
0

0
.1

9
6

3
.2

2
.0

0
.2

0
.4

3
9

0
.1

3
3

7
.7

0
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/1

6
/1

8
5
.5

3
0

7
.3

6
.8

0
.1

1
.5

2
0

6
.4

6
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

5
0

2
.2

2
.4

0
.4

0
.1

5
8

1
.8

2
.0

0
.1

0
.4

3
3

N
o
 F

lo
w

8
.1

5
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/1

7
/1

8
5
.4

8
0

9
.2

9
.6

0
.1

1
.6

1
3

6
.4

6
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

2
0

3
.9

3
.8

<
0
.1

0
.1

6
6

2
.5

2
.0

<
0
.1

0
.4

3
3

N
o
 F

lo
w

7
.6

3
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/1

8
/1

8
5
.3

6
0

1
.1

1
4

0
.0

0
0

0
.1

8
8

0
.4

3
3

N
o
 F

lo
w

7
.7

3
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/1

9
/1

8
5
.5

3
0

7
.2

8
.8

2
.0

2
3

0
.0

0
0

0
.2

3
2

0
.4

3
3

N
o
 F

lo
w

8
.5

1
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/2

0
/1

8
5
.5

7
0

8
.4

6
.9

0
.1

2
.5

1
5

7
.0

7
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

0
0

0
.3

0
4

3
.7

1
3
.0

0
.4

0
.4

3
4

N
o
 F

lo
w

9
.0

9
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/2

1
/1

8
5
.5

6
0

7
.8

0
.1

1
.7

8
0

8
.6

7
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

0
0

0
.3

0
2

4
.4

1
3
.0

0
.2

0
.4

3
4

N
o
 F

lo
w

8
.6

3
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/2

2
/1

8
5
.3

3
0

4
.7

8
.2

<
0
.1

2
.3

7
6

6
.8

3
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

0
0

0
.2

2
5

2
.6

1
4
.0

<
0
.1

0
.4

3
5

N
o
 F

lo
w

8
.4

6
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/2

3
/1

8
5
.3

0
0

4
.6

6
.2

0
.3

1
.6

0
2

6
.9

4
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

0
0

0
.6

6
0

4
.2

3
.0

<
0
.1

0
.4

3
4

N
o
 F

lo
w

8
.6

3
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/2

4
/1

8
5
.3

8
0

7
.4

9
.0

0
.1

2
.0

1
6

9
.0

7
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

2
0

6
.4

3
.8

2
.5

0
.1

8
2

4
.9

3
.0

<
0
.1

0
.4

3
4

N
o
 F

lo
w

8
.3

9
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/2

5
/1

8
5
.2

0
0

2
.1

2
2

0
.0

0
0

0
.1

9
8

0
.4

3
4

N
o
 F

lo
w

8
.5

1
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/2

6
/1

8
5
.2

9
0

6
.1

7
.8

2
.6

8
2

0
.9

8
0

0
.3

1
3

0
.4

3
4

N
o
 F

lo
w

8
.8

1
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/2

7
/1

8
5
.3

5
0

6
.4

7
.2

0
.2

2
.7

7
4

7
.8

6
.0

<
0
.1

0
.2

2
0

2
.6

1
5
.2

<
0
.1

0
.4

1
8

5
.2

1
3
.0

0
.1

0
.4

3
3

N
o
 F

lo
w

1
0
.6

7
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/2

8
/1

8
5
.2

2
0

6
.7

5
.4

0
.1

2
.0

2
2

7
.6

7
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

0
0

0
.2

9
0

5
.6

1
2
.0

0
.2

0
.4

5
0

N
o
 F

lo
w

8
.7

6
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/2

9
/1

8
4
.9

7
0

5
.5

11
.4

0
.1

2
.6

0
0

7
.3

4
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

0
0

0
.2

5
6

5
.2

3
.0

0
.2

0
.4

6
8

N
o
 F

lo
w

8
.7

7
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/3

0
/1

8
5
.2

6
0

6
.2

1
2
.6

0
.1

1
.4

8
1

7
.3

4
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

3
0

4
.8

11
.0

0
.2

0
.2

11
6
.3

2
.0

<
0
.1

0
.4

6
8

N
o
 F

lo
w

8
.1

6
0

0
.0

0

0
8
/3

1
/1

8
5
.0

1
0

7
.7

5
.6

0
.1

1
.4

4
8

9
.1

5
.0

<
0
.1

0
.0

2
0

1
0
.3

<
0
.1

0
.1

9
0

2
.9

1
.0

<
0
.1

0
.4

6
7

N
o
 F

lo
w

7
.4

5
0

0
.0

0

A
V

G
5
.5

2
3

6
.0

7
.1

<
0
.1

1
.8

8
8

6
.3

5
.8

<
0
.1

0
.0

4
9

3
.8

5
.5

<
0
.4

0
.2

4
6

3
.9

6
.7

<
0
.1

0
.4

3
6

0
.0

7
6

8
.4

8
6

T
O

T
A

L
1
7
1
.2

1
0

5
8
.5

3
4

1
.5

2
0

7
.6

3
9

1
3
.5

1
5

2
.3

4
4

2
6
3
.0

6
0

0
.0

1

73



U
n
if
ie

d
 B

e
a

c
h
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
#
1

S
o
u
th

 O
ra

n
g
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 W

a
s
te

w
a
te

r 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
-S

a
n
 J

u
a

n
 C

re
e
k
 O

c
e
a

n
 O

u
tf
a

ll

R
E

P
O

R
T

 F
O

R
: 
 

A
u
g
u

s
t 
 2

0
1

8
R

E
P

O
R

T
 F

R
E

Q
U

E
N

C
Y

:
M

o
n

th
ly

R
E

P
O

R
T

 D
U

E
: 
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
1
, 
2
0
1

8
E

X
A

C
T

 S
A

M
P

L
E

 P
O

IN
T

S
:

A
s 

s
p
e

c
if
ie

d
 in

 U
n
if
ie

d
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
 P

la
n

S
A

M
P

L
E

 S
O

U
R

C
E

:
R

e
c
e
iv

in
g

 w
a
te

r 
su

rf
 z

o
n

e
S

A
M

P
L
E

S
 C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 B
Y

:S
O

C
W

A
 L

a
b

T
Y

P
E

 O
F

 S
A

M
P

L
E

:
G

r a
b

S
A

M
P

L
E

S
 A

N
A

LY
Z

E
D

 B
Y

:
S

O
C

W
A

 L
a
b

T
id

a
l C

o
n

d
iti

o
n
:

L
o

w
 T

id
e

 0
6
2

8

W
e
a

th
e
r:

C
le

a
r

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

:

To
ta

l
F

e
c
a
l

E
n
te

ro
-

C
o
lif

o
rm

C
o
lif

o
rm

c
o
c
c
u
s

M
a
te

ri
a
l o

f 
S

e
w

a
g
e

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

O
ri

g
in

O
il 

&
W

a
te

r
H

2
0

W
a
te

r 
W

a
te

r

S
T
A

#
D

A
T

E
T

IM
E

S
M

9
2

2
2

B
S

M
9
2

2
2

D
E

P
A

 1
6
0

0
O

n
s
h
o

re
O

ff
s
h
o

re
G

re
a

s
e

O
d

o
r

C
o
lo

r
Te

m
p
(F

)
C

o
n

d
iti

o
n

O
u

tle
t

B
ir
d
s

S
0

0
8

/0
1

/1
8

0
9

0
5

<
4

0
<

4
0

<
4

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

B
lu

e
7

7
T

u
rb

id

S
1

0
8

/0
1

/1
8

0
9

1
5

<
4

0
<

4
0

<
4

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

B
lu

e
T

u
rb

id

S
2

0
8

/0
1

/1
8

0
9

2
0

<
4

0
<

4
0

<
4

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

B
lu

e
T

u
rb

id

D
S

B
5

0
8

/0
1

/1
8

1
0

0
0

9
<

3
0

<
5

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

B
lu

e
T

u
rb

id

S
3

0
8

/0
1

/1
8

0
9

2
5

<
4

0
<

4
0

2
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
B

lu
e

T
u

rb
id

D
S

B
4

0
8

/0
1

/1
8

0
9

2
5

<
4

0
<

4
0

<
4

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

B
lu

e
T

u
rb

id

S
5

0
8

/0
1

/1
8

0
9

3
0

<
4

0
<

4
0

<
4

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

B
lu

e
7

7
T

u
rb

id

D
S

B
1

0
8

/0
1

/1
8

0
9

3
5

<
4

0
<

4
0

<
4

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

B
lu

e
T

u
rb

id

S
J
C

1
0

8
/0

1
/1

8
0

9
0

7
<

2
0

0
<

2
0

0
<

2
0

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

B
lu

e
T

u
rb

id

R
E

C
E

IV
IN

G
 W

A
T

E
R

 L
IM

IT
A

T
IO

N
S

:S
in

g
le

 S
a
m

p
le

 M
a
xi

m
u
m

 -
 T

o
ta

l c
o

lif
o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
,0

0
0

 p
e
r 

1
0
0

m
l; 

F
e
c
a
l c

o
lif

o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 

4
0

0
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l; 
E

n
te

ro
c
o
c
c
u
s
 d

e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
4
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l.

74



U
n
if
ie

d
 B

e
a

c
h
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
#
2

S
o
u
th

 O
ra

n
g
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 W

a
s
te

w
a
te

r 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
-S

a
n
 J

u
a

n
 C

re
e
k
 O

c
e
a

n
 O

u
tf
a

ll

R
E

P
O

R
T

 F
O

R
: 
 

A
u
g
u

s
t 
 2

0
1

8
R

E
P

O
R

T
 F

R
E

Q
U

E
N

C
Y

:
M

o
n

th
ly

R
E

P
O

R
T

 D
U

E
: 
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
1
, 
2
0
1

8
E

X
A

C
T

 S
A

M
P

L
E

 P
O

IN
T

S
:

A
s 

s
p
e

c
if
ie

d
 in

 U
n
if
ie

d
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
 P

la
n

S
A

M
P

L
E

 S
O

U
R

C
E

:
R

e
c
e
iv

in
g

 w
a
te

r 
su

rf
 z

o
n

e
S

A
M

P
L
E

S
 C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 B
Y

:S
O

C
W

A
 L

a
b

T
Y

P
E

 O
F

 S
A

M
P

L
E

:
G

ra
b

S
A

M
P

L
E

S
 A

N
A

LY
Z

E
D

 B
Y

:
S

O
C

W
A

 L
a
b

T
id

a
l C

o
n

d
iti

o
n
:

H
ig

h
 T

id
e

 0
7
11

W
e
a

th
e
r:

C
le

a
r

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

:

To
ta

l
F

e
c
a
l

E
n
te

ro
-

C
o
lif

o
rm

C
o
lif

o
rm

c
o
c
c
u
s

M
a
te

ri
a
l o

f 
S

e
w

a
g
e

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

O
ri

g
in

O
il 

&
W

a
te

r
H

2
0

W
a
te

r 
W

a
te

r

S
T
A

#
D

A
T

E
T

IM
E

S
M

9
2

2
2

B
S

M
9
2

2
2

D
E

P
A

 1
6
0

0
O

n
s
h
o

re
O

ff
s
h
o

re
G

re
a

s
e

O
d

o
r

C
o
lo

r
Te

m
p
(F

)
C

o
n

d
iti

o
n

O
u

tle
t

B
ir
d
s

S
0

0
8

/0
7

/1
8

0
8

1
8

1
0

0
<

4
0

1
0

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

S
1

0
8

/0
7

/1
8

0
8

2
5

5
0

<
4

0
<

4
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id

S
2

0
8

/0
7

/1
8

0
8

1
0

4
0

<
4

0
4

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

D
S

B
5

0
8

/0
7

/1
8

0
7

5
9

5
0

4
0

5
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
B

ro
w

n
7

3
T

u
rb

id

S
3

0
8

/0
7

/1
8

0
8

3
0

<
4

0
<

4
0

4
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id

D
S

B
4

0
8

/0
7

/1
8

0
8

3
5

2
0

<
4

0
<

4
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id

S
5

0
8

/0
7

/1
8

0
8

4
0

2
0

<
4

0
<

4
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id

D
S

B
1

0
8

/0
7

/1
8

0
8

4
5

2
0

<
4

0
<

4
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id

C
1

0
8

/0
7

/1
8

0
9

1
5

9
0

<
2

0
0

9
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
7

3
T

u
rb

id

R
E

C
E

IV
IN

G
 W

A
T

E
R

 L
IM

IT
A

T
IO

N
S

:S
in

g
le

 S
a
m

p
le

 M
a
xi

m
u
m

 -
 T

o
ta

l c
o

lif
o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
,0

0
0

 p
e
r 

1
0
0

m
l; 

F
e
c
a
l c

o
lif

o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 

4
0

0
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l; 
E

n
te

ro
c
o
c
c
u
s
 d

e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
4
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l.

75



U
n
if
ie

d
 B

e
a

c
h
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
#
3

S
o
u
th

 O
ra

n
g
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 W

a
s
te

w
a
te

r 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
-S

a
n
 J

u
a

n
 C

re
e
k
 O

c
e
a

n
 O

u
tf
a

ll

R
E

P
O

R
T

 F
O

R
: 
 

A
u
g
u

s
t 
 2

0
1

8
R

E
P

O
R

T
 F

R
E

Q
U

E
N

C
Y

:
M

o
n

th
ly

R
E

P
O

R
T

 D
U

E
: 
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
1
, 
2
0
1

8
E

X
A

C
T

 S
A

M
P

L
E

 P
O

IN
T

S
:

A
s 

s
p
e

c
if
ie

d
 in

 U
n
if
ie

d
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
 P

la
n

S
A

M
P

L
E

 S
O

U
R

C
E

:
R

e
c
e
iv

in
g

 w
a
te

r 
su

rf
 z

o
n

e
S

A
M

P
L
E

S
 C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 B
Y

:S
O

C
W

A
 L

a
b

T
Y

P
E

 O
F

 S
A

M
P

L
E

:
G

r a
b

S
A

M
P

L
E

S
 A

N
A

LY
Z

E
D

 B
Y

:
S

O
C

W
A

 L
a
b

T
id

a
l C

o
n

d
iti

o
n
:

L
o

w
 T

id
e

 0
7
2

0

W
e
a

th
e
r:

O
v
e
rc

a
s
t

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

:

To
ta

l
F

e
c
a
l

E
n
te

ro
-

C
o
lif

o
rm

C
o
lif

o
rm

c
o
c
c
u
s

M
a
te

ri
a
l o

f 
S

e
w

a
g
e

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

O
ri

g
in

O
il 

&
W

a
te

r
H

2
0

W
a
te

r 
W

a
te

r

S
T
A

#
D

A
T

E
T

IM
E

S
M

9
2

2
2

B
S

M
9
2

2
2

D
E

P
A

 1
6
0

0
O

n
s
h
o

re
O

ff
s
h
o

re
G

re
a

s
e

O
d

o
r

C
o
lo

r
Te

m
p
(F

)
C

o
n

d
iti

o
n

O
u

tle
t

B
ir
d
s

S
0

0
8

/1
6

/1
8

0
8

1
0

2
0

<
4

0
4

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

B
ro

w
n

6
8

T
u

rb
id

S
1

0
8

/1
6

/1
8

0
8

2
0

<
4

0
<

4
0

<
4

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

S
2

0
8

/1
6

/1
8

0
8

0
5

<
4

0
<

4
0

<
4

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

D
S

B
5

0
8

/1
6

/1
8

0
8

0
0

<
3

0
2

0
2

0
0

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

S
3

0
8

/1
6

/1
8

0
8

3
0

2
0

<
4

0
<

4
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id

D
S

B
4

0
8

/1
6

/1
8

0
8

3
5

2
0

<
4

0
1

0
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id

S
5

0
8

/1
6

/1
8

0
8

4
0

4
0

<
4

0
2

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

D
S

B
1

0
8

/1
6

/1
8

0
8

4
5

2
0

<
4

0
<

4
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
B

ro
w

n
T

u
rb

id

C
1

0
8

/1
6

/1
8

0
8

1
5

<
2

0
0

<
2

0
0

9
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
B

ro
w

n
6

9
T

u
rb

id

R
E

C
E

IV
IN

G
 W

A
T

E
R

 L
IM

IT
A

T
IO

N
S

:S
in

g
le

 S
a
m

p
le

 M
a
xi

m
u
m

 -
 T

o
ta

l c
o

lif
o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
,0

0
0

 p
e
r 

1
0
0

m
l; 

F
e
c
a
l c

o
lif

o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 

4
0

0
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l; 
E

n
te

ro
c
o
c
c
u
s
 d

e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
4
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l.

76



U
n
if
ie

d
 B

e
a

c
h
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
#
4

S
o
u
th

 O
ra

n
g
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 W

a
s
te

w
a
te

r 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
-S

a
n
 J

u
a

n
 C

re
e
k
 O

c
e
a

n
 O

u
tf
a

ll

R
E

P
O

R
T

 F
O

R
: 
 

A
u
g
u

s
t 
 2

0
1

8
R

E
P

O
R

T
 F

R
E

Q
U

E
N

C
Y

:
M

o
n

th
ly

R
E

P
O

R
T

 D
U

E
:  
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
1
, 
2
0
1

8
E

X
A

C
T

 S
A

M
P

L
E

 P
O

IN
T

S
:

A
s 

s
p
e

c
if
ie

d
 in

 U
n
if
ie

d
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
 P

la
n

S
A

M
P

L
E

 S
O

U
R

C
E

:
R

e
c
e
iv

in
g

 w
a
te

r 
su

rf
 z

o
n

e
S

A
M

P
L
E

S
 C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 B
Y

: S
O

C
W

A
  
L
a

b

T
Y

P
E

 O
F

 S
A

M
P

L
E

:
G

r a
b

S
A

M
P

L
E

S
 A

N
A

LY
Z

E
D

 B
Y

:
S

O
C

W
A

  
L
a

b

T
id

a
l C

o
n

d
iti

o
n
:

H
ig

h
 T

id
e

 0
7
5

8

W
e
a

th
e
r:

O
v
e
rc

a
s
t

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

:

To
ta

l
F

e
c
a
l

E
n
te

ro
-

C
o
lif

o
rm

C
o
lif

o
rm

c
o
c
c
u
s

M
a
te

ri
a
l o

f 
S

e
w

a
g
e

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

O
ri

g
in

O
il 

&
W

a
te

r
H

2
0

W
a
te

r 
W

a
te

r

S
T
A

#
D

A
T

E
T

IM
E

S
M

9
2

2
2

B
S

M
9
2

2
2

D
E

P
A

 1
6
0

0
O

n
s
h
o

re
O

ff
s
h
o

re
G

re
a

s
e

O
d

o
r

C
o
lo

r
Te

m
p
(F

)
C

o
n

d
iti

o
n

O
u

tle
t

B
ir
d
s

S
0

0
8

/2
1

/1
8

0
8

3
6

<
4

0
<

4
0

5
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
6

7
T

u
rb

id

S
1

0
8

/2
1

/1
8

0
8

4
0

2
0

<
4

0
7

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

S
2

0
8

/2
1

/1
8

0
8

2
5

<
4

0
2

0
2

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

B
ro

w
n

T
u

rb
id

D
S

B
5

0
8

/2
1

/1
8

0
8

1
0

<
3

0
1

0
5

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

B
ro

w
n

T
u

rb
id

S
3

0
8

/2
1

/1
8

0
8

4
5

<
4

0
<

4
0

2
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id

D
S

B
4

0
8

/2
1

/1
8

0
8

4
5

<
4

0
2

0
<

4
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
T

u
rb

id

S
5

0
8

/2
1

/1
8

0
8

5
0

<
4

0
<

4
0

<
4

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

T
u

rb
id

D
S

B
1

0
8

/2
1

/1
8

0
8

5
5

<
4

0
<

4
0

<
4

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

6
7

T
u

rb
id

C
1

0
8

/2
1

/1
8

0
8

3
6

<
2

0
0

<
2

0
0

2
0

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

B
ro

w
n

T
u

rb
id

R
E

C
E

IV
IN

G
 W

A
T

E
R

 L
IM

IT
A

T
IO

N
S

:S
in

g
le

 S
a
m

p
le

 M
a
xi

m
u
m

 -
 T

o
ta

l c
o

lif
o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
,0

0
0

 p
e
r 

1
0
0

m
l; 

F
e
c
a
l c

o
lif

o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 

4
0

0
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l; 
E

n
te

ro
c
o
c
c
u
s
 d

e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
4
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l.

77



U
n
if
ie

d
 B

e
a

c
h
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
#
5

S
o
u
th

 O
ra

n
g
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 W

a
s
te

w
a
te

r 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
-S

a
n
 J

u
a

n
 C

re
e
k
 O

c
e
a

n
 O

u
tf
a

ll

R
E

P
O

R
T

 F
O

R
: 
 

A
u
g
u

s
t 
 2

0
1

8
R

E
P

O
R

T
 F

R
E

Q
U

E
N

C
Y

:
M

o
n

th
ly

R
E

P
O

R
T

 D
U

E
:  
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
1
, 
2
0
1

8
E

X
A

C
T

 S
A

M
P

L
E

 P
O

IN
T

S
:

A
s 

s
p
e

c
if
ie

d
 in

 U
n
if
ie

d
 M

o
n

ito
ri
n

g
 P

la
n

S
A

M
P

L
E

 S
O

U
R

C
E

:
R

e
c
e
iv

in
g

 w
a
te

r 
su

rf
 z

o
n

e
S

A
M

P
L
E

S
 C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 B
Y

: S
O

C
W

A
  
L
a

b

T
Y

P
E

 O
F

 S
A

M
P

L
E

:
G

r a
b

S
A

M
P

L
E

S
 A

N
A

LY
Z

E
D

 B
Y

:
S

O
C

W
A

  
L
a

b

T
id

a
l C

o
n

d
iti

o
n
:

H
ig

h
 T

id
e

 1
1
5

8

W
e
a

th
e
r:

C
le

a
r

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

:

To
ta

l
F

e
c
a
l

E
n
te

ro
-

C
o
lif

o
rm

C
o
lif

o
rm

c
o
c
c
u
s

M
a
te

ri
a
l o

f 
S

e
w

a
g
e

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

C
F

U
/1

0
0

m
l

O
ri

g
in

O
il 

&
W

a
te

r
H

2
0

W
a
te

r 
W

a
te

r

S
T
A

#
D

A
T

E
T

IM
E

S
M

9
2

2
2

B
S

M
9
2

2
2

D
E

P
A

 1
6
0

0
O

n
s
h
o

re
O

ff
s
h
o

re
G

re
a

s
e

O
d

o
r

C
o
lo

r
Te

m
p
(F

)
C

o
n

d
iti

o
n

O
u

tle
t

B
ir
d
s

S
0

0
8

/3
0

/1
8

9
2

6
<

3
0

<
3

0
1

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

7
1

S
lig

h
tly

 T
u

rb
id

S
1

0
8

/3
0

/1
8

9
5

6
<

4
0

<
4

0
4

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

S
lig

h
tly

 T
u

rb
id

S
2

0
8

/3
0

/1
8

9
1

7
<

4
0

<
4

0
<

4
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
S

lig
h

tly
 T

u
rb

id
3

D
S

B
5

0
8

/3
0

/1
8

9
0

8
>

=
2

0
0

7
0

4
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
N

o
n

e
G

re
e

n
7

0
C

le
a

r

S
3

0
8

/3
0

/1
8

1
0

0
2

<
4

0
<

4
0

<
4

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

S
lig

h
tly

 T
u

rb
id

D
S

B
4

0
8

/3
0

/1
8

1
0

0
3

<
4

0
<

4
0

<
4

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

S
lig

h
tly

 T
u

rb
id

S
5

0
8

/3
0

/1
8

1
0

1
0

4
0

2
0

2
0

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

7
0

S
lig

h
tly

 T
u

rb
id

D
S

B
1

0
8

/3
0

/1
8

1
0

1
4

<
4

0
<

4
0

2
0

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

S
lig

h
tly

 T
u

rb
id

C
1

0
8

/3
0

/1
8

9
2

3
<

4
0

<
4

0
9

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

N
o

n
e

G
re

e
n

7
1

S
lig

h
tly

 T
u

rb
id

R
E

C
E

IV
IN

G
 W

A
T

E
R

 L
IM

IT
A

T
IO

N
S

:S
in

g
le

 S
a
m

p
le

 M
a
xi

m
u
m

 -
 T

o
ta

l c
o

lif
o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
,0

0
0

 p
e
r 

1
0
0

m
l; 

F
e
c
a
l c

o
lif

o
rm

 d
e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 

4
0

0
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l; 
E

n
te

ro
c
o
c
c
u
s
 d

e
n

s
ity

 s
h

a
ll 

n
o
t 
e
xc

e
e

d
 1

0
4
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
m

l.

78



San Juan Creek Ocean Outfall

Unified Beach Water Quality Monitoring Stations

SOCWA's NPDES discharge permit requires participation in the South Orange County Unified

Beach Water Quality Monitoring Program. The monitoring stations below are tested by SOCWA

SOCWA at least once per week for Total and Fecal Coliform and Enterococcus Bacteria.

Station Location

DSB 5 Doheny Beach – North Creek Outlet   1500’ up-coast from SJCOO

S2 Doheny Beach- Midway between Jetty and San Juan Creek 

SJC1 San Juan Creek Mouth – up-coast from SJCOO

S0 Doheny Beach at Outfall; surf line over SJCOO

S1 Doheny Beach Campground;  1,000’ down-coast from SJCOO

DSB 4 Doheny State Beach;    1,900’ down-coast from SJCOO

S3 South Day Use;     2000’ down-coast from SJCOO

S5 Doheny Beach near overpass;   3000’ down-coast from SJCOO

DSB 1 End of Doheny State Beach;   3500’ down-coast from SJCOO

79



 

80



MONITORING REPORT Offshore

South Orange County Wastewater Authority

DISCHARGE:  San Juan Creek Ocean Outfall

REPORT FOR: August 2018 REPORT FREQUENCY:  Monthly

REPORT DUE: October 1, 2018

SAMPLE SOURCE:  Receiving water, nearshore and offshore SAMPLING FREQUENCY:  Monthly

EXACT SAMPLE POINTS:  As specified in permit TYPE OF SAMPLE:  Grab

SAMPLES COLLECTED BY:  Seaventures/SOCWA staff

SAMPLES ANALYZED BY:  SOCWA  Lab

Comments: Low Tide 830

Total Fecal Entero- 0 - None

Coliform Coliform coccus 1 - Mild

Sta Sample Sample CFU/100ml CFU/100ml CFU/100ml Sample Oil & Sewage 2 - Moderate

No. Depth Date SM9222B SM9222D EPA 1600 Time Grease Debris 3 - Severe

A-1 Surface 08/04/18 <2 <2 <2 934 0 0

A-1 Mid depth 08/04/18 40 20 20

A-2 Surface 08/04/18 <2 <2 <2 939 0 0

A-2 Mid depth 08/04/18 <10 <10 <10

A-3 Surface 08/04/18 <2 <2 <2 943 0 0

A-3 Mid depth 08/04/18 <10 <10 <10

A-4 Surface 08/04/18 <2 <2 <2 952 0 0

A-4 Mid depth 08/04/18 <10 10 <10

A-5 Surface 08/04/18 <2 <2 <2 946 0 0

A-5 Mid depth 08/04/18 <10 <10 <10

B-1 Surface 08/04/18 <2 <2 <2 925 0 0

B-1 Mid depth 08/04/18 190 260 10

B-2 Surface 08/04/18 <2 <2 <2 959 0 0

B-2 Mid depth 08/04/18 <10 <10 <10

N1 Surface 08/04/18 <2 <2 <2 917 0 0

N2 Surface 08/04/18 <2 <2 <2 914 0 0

N3 Surface 08/04/18 2 <2 <2 912 0 0

N4 Surface 08/04/18 <2 2 <2 907 0 0

N5 Surface 08/04/18 <2 <2 <2 905 0 0

N6 Surface 08/04/18 <2 <2 <2 903 0 0

REQUIREMENT:  (1) Floating particulates and grease and oil shall not be visible. (2) The  

discharge of waste shall not cause aesthetically undesireable discoloration of the ocean surface.  

81



C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 R
e
p

o
rt

S
a
n

 J
u

a
n

 C
re

e
k
 O

c
e
a
n

 O
u

tf
a
ll
  
2
0
1
8

 
 

A
g

e
n

c
y

V
io

la
ti

o
n

C
o

n
s
ti

tu
e
n

t
E

ff
lu

e
n

t 
L

im
it

U
n

it
s

P
e
rm

it
R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 V
a
lu

e
P

o
te

n
ti

a
l

D
a
te

V
io

la
ti

o
n

L
im

it
F

in
e

C
it
y
 o

f 
S

a
n

 C
le

m
e

n
te

4
/2

/2
0

1
8

S
e

tt
le

a
b

le
 S

o
lid

s
In

s
ta

n
ta

n
e

o
u

s
m

L
/L

3
.0

0
7

.5
0

$
3

,0
0

0

C
it
y
 o

f 
S

a
n

 C
le

m
e

n
te

4
/2

/2
0

1
8

S
e

tt
le

a
b

le
 S

o
lid

s
W

e
e

k
ly

 A
v
e

ra
g

e
m

L
/L

1
.5

0
1

.5
8

$
3

,0
0

0

S
M

W
D

5
/2

5
/2

0
1

8
c
B

O
D

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 V

io
la

ti
o

n
m

g
/L

D
a

ily
N

o
t 
R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

$
3

,0
0

0

S
M

W
D

0
5
/2

8
/2

0
1
8

c
B

O
D

W
e

e
k
ly

 A
v
e

ra
g

e
m

g
/L

4
0

9
2

$
3

,0
0

0

S
M

W
D

0
5
/2

8
/2

0
1
8

c
B

O
D

M
o

n
th

ly
 A

v
e

ra
g

e
m

g
/L

2
5

3
9

$
3

,0
0

0

S
M

W
D

0
5
/2

8
/2

0
1
8

T
S

S
W

e
e

k
ly

 A
v
e

ra
g

e
m

g
/L

4
5

3
8
1

$
3

,0
0

0

S
M

W
D

0
5
/2

8
/2

0
1
8

T
S

S
M

o
n

th
ly

 A
v
e

ra
g

e
m

g
/L

3
0

1
3
0

$
3

,0
0

0
C

it
y
 o

f 
S

a
n

 C
le

m
e

n
te

7
/1

9
/2

0
1

8
S

e
tt
le

a
b

le
 S

o
lid

s
In

s
ta

n
ta

n
e

o
u

s
m

L
/L

3
.0

0
1

0
.0

0
$

3
,0

0
0

S
M

W
D

8
/3

1
/2

0
1

8
c
B

O
D

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 V

io
la

ti
o

n
m

g
/L

D
a

ily
N

o
t 
R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

$
3

,0
0

0

S
J
C

O
O

 P
e
rm

it
 O

rd
e
r 

N
o

. 
R

9
-2

0
1
2
-0

0
1
2

82



S
O

C
W

A
 a

n
d

 M
E

M
B

E
R

 A
G

E
N

C
Y

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S

S
J
C

O
O

 S
p

il
l 
/ 
O

v
e
rf

lo
w

 R
e
p

o
rt

 L
o

g
 -

 2
0
1
8

O
rd

e
r 

N
o

. 
R

9
-2

0
1
2
-0

0
1
2
  
~

  
N

P
D

E
S

 P
e
rm

it
 N

o
. 
C

A
0
1
0
7
4
1
7

E
s
ti

m
a
te

d
D

a
te

R
e
p

o
rt

in
g

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
V

o
lu

m
e

T
y
p

e
 o

f 
R

e
c
e
iv

in
g

R
e
p

o
rt

e
d

D
a
te

A
g

e
n

c
y

A
g

e
n

c
y

(G
a
ll
o

n
s
)

D
is

c
h

a
rg

e
L

o
c
a
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
W

a
te

rs
T

o
 S

ta
te

R
e
s
o

lv
e
d

S
O

C
W

A
S

O
C

W
A

-J
B

L
5
,4

0
0

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

Ir
ri
g
a
ti
o
n
 v

a
lv

e
 m

a
lf
u
n
c
ti
o
n

S
a
n
 J

u
a
n
 

C
re

e
k

0
2
-0

9
-1

8
0
2
-0

9
-1

8

   

 
 

 

83



Recycled Water Report 

84



C
o

m
p

li
a
n

c
e
 S

u
m

m
a
ry

 R
e
p

o
rt

R
e
c
y
c
le

d
 W

a
te

r 
P

e
rm

it

2
0
1
8

 
 

A
g

e
n

c
y
 -

 F
a
c
il
it

y
V

io
la

ti
o

n
C

o
n

s
ti

tu
e
n

t
E

ff
lu

e
n

t 
L

im
it

U
n

it
s

P
e
rm

it
R

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 V
a
lu

e
R

e
m

a
rk

s

D
a
te

V
io

la
ti

o
n

L
im

it

S
O

C
W

A
 -

 R
T

P
1
/1

6
/2

0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

5
0
.0

7

S
O

C
W

A
 -

 R
T

P
2
/1

/2
0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

5
0
.0

6

S
O

C
W

A
 -

 R
T

P
3
/1

/2
0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

5
0
.0

6

S
M

W
D

 -
 3

A
3
/2

7
/2

0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

5
0
.0

6

T
C

W
D

 -
 R

R
W

R
P

3
/2

9
/2

0
1
8

N
it
ra

te
 a

s
 N

O
3

A
n
n
u
a
l

m
g
/L

4
5

5
5

S
O

C
W

A
 -

 R
T

P
4
/1

8
/2

0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

5
0
.0

6

S
M

W
D

 -
 3

A
4
/2

4
/2

0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

5
0
.0

6

S
O

C
W

A
 -

 R
T

P
5
/1

/2
0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

6
0
.0

6

S
M

W
D

 -
 3

A
5
/3

1
/2

0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

6
0
.0

6

S
M

W
D

 -
 3

A
6
/3

/2
0
1
8

C
o
lif

o
rm

A
c
u
te

c
fu

/1
0
0
m

L
<

2
1
6
0
0
.0

0
S

M
W

D
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 s

a
m

p
le

 c
o
n
ta

in
e
r 

w
a
s
 c

o
n
ta

m
in

a
te

d
.

S
O

C
W

A
 -

 R
T

P
6
/7

/2
0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

6
0
.0

6

S
M

W
D

 -
 3

A
6
/8

/2
0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

6
0
.0

6

S
O

C
W

A
 -

 R
T

P
7
/3

/2
0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

6
0
.0

7

S
M

W
D

 -
 3

A
7
/1

2
/2

0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

6
0
.0

6

S
M

W
D

 -
 3

A
8
/6

/2
0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

6
0
.0

6
S

O
C

W
A

 -
 R

T
P

8
/1

6
/2

0
1
8

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

1
2
-M

o
n
th

m
g
/L

0
.0

6
0
.0

6

W
a
s
te

 D
is

c
h

a
rg

e
 R

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
O

rd
e
r 

9
7
 -

 5
2

85



Q
U

A
R

T
E

R
L
Y

  
R

E
C

Y
C

L
E

D
  

W
A

T
E

R
  

M
O

N
IT

O
R

IN
G

 M
o
n
it
o
ri
n

g
 P

e
ri
o

d
 E

n
d
in

g
:

A
u
g
 3

1
, 

2
0
1
8

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

e
n
t

U
n
it
s

1
2
-m

o
n
th

 A
v
g

IR
W

D
-L

A
W

R
P

E
T

W
D

-W
R

P
T

C
W

D
S

M
W

D
 O

s
o

S
M

W
D

 C
h
iq

u
it
a

S
M

W
D

 N
ic

h
o
ls

M
N

W
D

-3
A

M
N

W
D

-R
T

P
S

C
W

D
-C

T
P

M
a
x
im

u
m

1
2
-m

o
n
th

  
1
2
-m

o
n
th

1
2
-m

o
n
th

 
1
2
-m

o
n
th

1
2
-m

o
n
th

1
2
-m

o
n
th

1
2
-m

o
n
th

1
2
-m

o
n
th

1
2
-m

o
n
th

 
P

e
rm

it
 L

im
it

A
v
e
ra

g
e

A
v
e
ra

g
e

A
v
e
ra

g
e

A
v
e
ra

g
e

A
v
e
ra

g
e

A
v
e
ra

g
e

A
v
e
ra

g
e

A
v
e
ra

g
e

A
v
e
ra

g
e

 

*
**

**
*

T
D

S
m

g
/L

1
0

0
0

8
4

4
8

8
8

9
7

7
7

5
6

7
9

7
8

7
6

7
7

3
8

9
6

7
2

7

C
h
lo

ri
d

e
m

g
/L

3
7

5
1

8
6

1
7

2
2

4
2

1
7

9
1

8
4

2
2

9
1

9
5

2
3

6
2

0
9

S
u
lf
a
te

m
g
/L

4
0

0
2

5
1

2
1

7
2

6
8

2
0

9
1

8
3

2
1

2
1

7
7

2
9

1
2

2
8

S
o
d
iu

m
m

g
/L

N
o
n

e
1

6
5

1
5

0
1

9
5

1
4

7
1

5
7

1
8

3
1

5
7

1
6

0
1

4
5

A
lk

a
lin

it
y

m
g
/L

N
o
n

e
-

-
-

-
-

-
2

4
0

1
7

5

A
d
ju

s
te

d
 S

A
R

R
a
ti
o

N
o
n

e
5

.1
0

-
4

.3
6

4
.7

7
4

.9
8

5
.9

4
5

.0
3

4
.8

3
4

.5
5

Ir
o
n

m
g
/L

0
.3

0
.0

3
2

0
.0

5
5

0
.0

2
0

0
.0

5
1

0
.1

2
3

0
.0

1
5

0
.1

3
0

.1
9

3
0

.0
8

9

M
a
n
g
a
n
e
s
e

m
g
/L

0
.0

5
0

.0
3

4
0

.0
0

8
0

.0
1

7
0

.0
2

5
0

.0
3

7
0

.0
0

4
0

.0
6

2
0

.0
6

0
0

.0
5

5

M
B

A
S

m
g
/L

0
.5

0
.0

9
0

.0
0

0
.0

5
0

.2
4

0
.2

0
0

.2
0

0
.2

4
0

.0
3

0
.0

5

B
o
ro

n
m

g
/L

0
.7

5
0

.3
2

0
.2

6
0

0
.2

9
9

0
.3

4
0

0
.3

7
0

0
.3

9
0

0
.3

4
0

.3
0

0
0

.3
1

F
lu

o
ri
d

e
m

g
/L

N
o
n

e
0

.4
4

1
.0

1
0

0
.2

3
0

.9
9

0
0

.7
9

0
.8

3
0

.8
9

0
.9

5
0

.9
6

T
o

ta
l 
O

rg
a
n
ic

 C
a
rb

o
n

m
g
/L

N
o
n

e
1

0
.0

-
7

.7
1

2
.3

1
1

.3
7

.5
1

0
.5

9
.8

9
.5

* 
T

h
e
 L

A
W

R
P

 1
2
-m

o
n
th

 p
e
rm

it
 l
im

it
s
 a

re
 l
is

te
d
 b

e
lo

w
:

**
T

h
e
 E

T
W

D
 1

2
-m

o
n
th

 p
e
rm

it
 l
im

it
s
 a

re
 l
is

te
d
 b

e
lo

w
:

**
* 

T
h
e
 C

T
P

 1
2
-m

o
n
th

 p
e
rm

it
 l
im

it
s
 a

re
 l
is

te
d
 b

e
lo

w
:

T
D

S
1
0
0
0
 m

g
/L

T
D

S
9
1
0
 m

g
/L

 
T

D
S

1
2
0
0
 m

g
/L

C
h
lo

ri
d

e
1
8
0
 m

g
/L

C
h
lo

ri
d

e
4
0
0
 m

g
/L

S
u
lf
a
te

3
4
0
 m

g
/L

 
S

u
lf
a
te

 
5
0
0
 m

g
/L

S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

86



A
n
n
u
a
l

A
g
e
n
c
y

J
a
n
 '1

8
F

e
b
 '1

8
M

a
r 

'1
8

A
p
r 

'1
8

M
a
y
 '
1
8

J
u
n
 '
1
8

J
u
l 
'1

8
A

u
g
 '
1
8

S
e
p
 '1

8
O

c
t 
'1

8
N

o
v
 '1

8
D

e
c
 '1

8
T

o
ta

ls

C
S

J
C

 1
3

-A
 P

la
n

t/
M

N
W

D
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
.6

7
3
0
.1

6
1
0
.6

7

C
S

J
C

 2
C

h
iq

u
it
a

/S
M

W
D

1
3
.7

0
1
9
.2

0
0
.0

0
1
4
.4

1
1
5
.3

5
1
5
.8

1
2
3
.2

6
2
2
.8

6
1
2
4
.5

8

C
S

J
C

 3
N

o
n

-D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 W

e
ll

1
3
.3

2
1
6
.3

1
2
6
.4

0
5
0
.3

7
5
2
.1

8
6
6
.6

5
5
9
.3

4
5
8
.3

9
3
4
2
.9

6

E
T

W
D

R
e
g

io
n

 8
5
9
.0

7
9
2
.0

1
4
3
.9

8
1
4
0
.3

0
1
2
9
.2

3
1
8
0
.4

6
2
1
5
.8

7
2
3
3
.3

0
1
0
9
4
.2

2

IR
W

D

4
IR

W
D

 -
 8

5
5
.6

4
7
7
.7

7
2
8
.8

0
1
1
1
.4

4
1
2
3
.1

0
1
5
2
.9

0
1
6
8
.3

2
1
8
1
.2

3
8
9
9
.2

0

4
IR

W
D

 -
 9

6
1
.2

8
7
2
.8

9
1
8
.1

5
1
2
4
.8

0
1
0
7
.1

5
1
4
1
.2

9
1
4
9
.4

2
1
3
3
.0

1
8
0
7
.9

7

S
C

W
D

S
O

C
W

A
 C

T
P

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
3
.0

5
1
0
7
.6

1
1
2
9
.4

1
1
4
1
.5

5
1
5
1
.9

7
7
0
0
.8

7

M
N

W
D

 J
R

P
4
3
8
.8

5
5
2
2
.4

8
1
9
4
.2

6
4
5
4
.0

7
4
4
6
.0

0
5
6
6
.5

2
6
7
2
.2

1
6
6
2
.0

8
4
3
1
2
.0

0

3
-A

 P
la

n
t

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
7
.7

3
2
1
0
.2

6
2
1
8
.5

8
2
1
0
.3

4
2
1
8
.1

2
2
2
6
.2

2
1
1
9
1
.2

6

5
C

T
P

-3
6
.7

0
-4

8
.8

5
-3

8
.1

2
-1

8
.4

5
9
.4

7
8
.8

2
1
5
.1

0
1
3
.5

0
-1

0
8
.7

1

S
M

W
D

O
s
o

 C
re

e
k

1
4
7
.8

0
1
3
2
.3

3
1
4
5
.6

5
1
3
7
.8

5
1
4
6
.7

5
1
4
0
.9

5
1
4
6
.9

7
1
3
7
.4

6
1
1
3
5
.7

6

C
h
iq

u
it
a

3
3
0
.9

8
4
2
2
.4

6
3
1
8
.4

6
4
7
1
.6

0
4
8
7
.4

9
4
7
8
.1

3
4
9
0
.6

2
4
8
9
.0

0
3
4
8
8
.7

4

N
ic

h
o

ls
1
.9

4
1
.7

5
2
.1

7
1
.9

6
2
.0

4
2
.0

5
2
.4

3
2
.6

9
1
7
.0

4

T
C

W
D

R
R

W
R

P
4
7
.8

4
4
0
.6

8
4
2
.1

1
4
2
.1

2
4
6
.7

0
4
3
.3

9
4
4
.2

7
4
2
.1

8
3
4
9
.2

9

T
O

T
A

L
S

1
1
3
3
.7

2
1
3
4
9
.0

3
8
8
9
.5

8
1
8
1
3
.7

9
1
8
9
1
.6

7
2
1
3
6
.7

3
2
3
5
8
.1

5
2
3
4
0
.3

8
1
4
3
6
5
.8

7

1
D

e
n
o
te

s
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

re
c
y
c
le

d
 w

a
te

r 
fr

o
m

 M
N

W
D

 (
3
A

 P
la

n
t)

 f
o
r 

u
s
e
 i
n

 t
h
e
 C

S
J
C

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
. 

 N
o
t 

c
o
u
n
te

d
 a

s
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o

n
.

2
D

e
n
o
te

s
 r

e
c
y
c
le

d
 w

a
te

r 
p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
d
 f

ro
m

 S
M

W
D

 C
h
iq

u
it
a
-W

R
P

 u
s
e
d
 i
n

 t
h
e
 C

S
J
C

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
. 

N
o
t 

c
o
u
n
te

d
 a

s
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o

n
.

3
D

e
n
o
te

s
 n

o
n
d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 g

ro
u
n
d
w

a
te

r 
p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 f

ro
m

 w
e
lls

 u
s
e
d
 f

o
r 

la
n
d
s
c
a
p
e
 i
rr

ig
a
ti
o

n
.

4
IR

W
D

 p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 f

ro
m

 r
e
c
y
c
le

d
 w

a
te

r 
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o

n
, 

n
o
n
p
o
ta

b
le

 w
a
te

r 
w

e
lls

, 
a
n
d
 s

u
rf

a
c
e
 w

a
te

r 
im

p
o
u
n
d
m

e
n
ts

5
D

e
n
o
te

s
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
o
f 

re
c
y
c
le

d
 w

a
te

r 
fr

o
m

 S
C

W
D

 (
S

O
C

W
A

 C
T

P
) 

fo
r 

u
s
e
 i
n

 t
h
e
 M

N
W

D
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
. 

 N
o
t 

c
o
u
n
te

d
 a

s
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o

n
.

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 N

o
te

: 
 A

ll 
o
f 

E
T

W
D

 r
e
c
la

im
e
d
 w

a
te

r 
p
ro

d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
d
 i
n
 R

e
g
io

n
 8

.

N
R

 =
 N

o
 R

e
p
o
rt

R
e
c
y
c
le

d
 W

a
te

r 
P

ro
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 (

a
c
-f

t)
 2

0
1
8

S
O

C
W

A
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 A

re
a

F
a
c
ili

ty
 o

r 
  
  
 

R
e
g
io

n

87



Pretreatment Report 

 August  and  September 2018

88



Agenda Item                    

 Legal Counsel Review: N/A 

 Meeting Date: October 4, 2018 

        

TO: SOCWA Board of Directors    
 

FROM: Betty Burnett, General Manager 
 

STAFF CONTACT: Katie Greenwood, Source Control Manager 
     
SUBJECT:     Monthly Pretreatment Report, August and September 2018 
 San Juan Creek Ocean Outfall  
 NPDES Permit #CA0107417 Order #R9-2012-0012  
 Aliso Creek Ocean Outfall 
 NPDES Permit #CA0107611 Order #R9-2012-0013 
 

 

Summary of Program Activities 
 

Staff continues to utilize the CA Manufacturers Directory to identify Industrial Users (IUs). 
SOCWA’s dental user survey spreadsheet is also continually updated via submittal of Member 
Agency (MA) Will-Serve Letter, and SOCWA’s one-time compliance report provided via 
SOCWA’s website. 
 

Permit Related Activities 
 

The following Wastewater Discharge (WD) Permits, Special Wastewater Discharge (SWD) 
Permits, Nuisance Water-Special Wastewater Discharge (NSWD) Permits, Non-Industrial 
Wastewater Discharge (NIWD) forms, and BMP letters were issued or are in the process of 
being drafted for issuance: 
 

MNWD – WD Permit No. MNWD-1NS-002 – Jared Jewelers – Renewal WD Permit to continue 
to allow no more than 100 gpd of categorical wastewater, subject to metal finishing 
pretreatment standards, from the cleaning and repair of jewelry to be discharged to the sewer. 
A renewal WD permit application was received on September 6, 2018 and a new WD Permit 
issued on September 19, 2018. 
 

SCWD – NSWD Permit No. SCWD-N4-011 – OC Public Works Poche Beach – Renewal 
NSWD Permit to continue to allow backwash wastewater from the treatment system to be 
discharged to the sewer. The current permit expired October 1, 2018, and a permit extension 
was granted until a new Agreement or an extension of the existing Agreement between OC and 
SCWD is finalized. A renewal NSWD Permit Application was provided on September 5, 2018. 
 

IRWD – SWD Permit No. IRWD-4-001 – Beacon Bay – Renewal SWD Permit to continue to 
allow treated groundwater to be discharge to the sewer. A renewal SWD Permit Application was 
provided on September 18, 2018. The current SWD Permit expires October 20, 2018. 
 

SCWD – NSWD Permit No. SCWD-N4-010 – Three Arch Bay – Renewal NSWD Permit to 
continue to allow dry weather nuisance flows to discharge to the sewer. The permit renewal 
requires a new Agreement or an extension of the existing Agreement with SCWD. A renewal 
NSWD Permit Application was provided on September 5, 2018.  The current NSWD Permit 
expires November 20, 2018. 
 

89



Trainings and Meetings Attended  
 

On September 11, 2018, SOCWA and SCWD Staff met with Three Arch Bay personnel to look 
at their on-site diversion wet well, discuss solutions for flow meter replacement and pump 
clogging issues and to provide an introduction for new SCWD Staff. 
 

On September 11, 2018, SOCWA Staff attended the Industry Advisory Council Meeting at the 
LA Sanitation Long Beach Pumping Plant in Long Beach, CA. 

 

Public Outreach Events 
 

On September 15, 2018 SOCWA Staff joined CSC Staff in conducting the annual California 
Coastal Clean-up Day event. Staff set-up a table with CSC Staff at the SC pier and displayed 
environmental educational information related to water quality issues and engaged with clean-
up volunteers and the public. SOCWA also provided give-away items such as pencils and rulers 
for the public and reusable water bottles for outstanding clean-up volunteers. A total of 128 
clean-up volunteers reported at the pier clean-up station and removed 161 lbs. of trash from the 
surrounding beach. There were 256 total volunteers reported from all CSC clean-up sites and 
545 lbs. of trash removed. 
 

SOCWA Staff continues to attend monthly OC Strike Force Meetings to receive and share legal 
information related to environmental cases and incidents throughout the county.  
 

Inspections/Sampling Events 
 

CSC – On approximately September 1, 2018, SOCWA began a flow and loading investigation 
in the La Pata/Pico industrial area. Currently, Staff has three flow meters in place and is 
performing quarterly monitoring to establish loadings and track trends. 
 

CSC – On August 29-30, SOCWA Staff conducted the annual inspection and sampling event at 
Flavorchem. There were no significant inspection findings and all measured parameters were 
compliant with permit limits. SOCWA Staff is waiting on plumbing as-builts and pictures of 
clarifier and discharge point at next pump-out. 
 

ETWD – SOCWA has been working with ETWD Staff to inspect a new brewery, Game Craft 
Brewery. 
 

CSC – On September 18, 2018, SMWD Staff informed SOCWA Staff of recent odor complaints 
potentially originating from Left Coast Brewery. SOCWA Staff visited site and discussed 
requirement to obtain WD Permit and install automatic pH adjustment system and end of pipe 
flow meter. Site provided WD Permit Application on August 8, 2018, and again on September 
19, 2018. 
 

Enforcement 
 

SDG&E, 674 Camino De Los Mares, San Clemente, CA 92673 
Issued a Warning Notice of Non-Compliance (WNON) on September 18, 2018 for failing to 
perform monthly sampling in August 2018 as required. However, the same wastewater was 
sampled three times in July 2018 and all results were compliant with permit limits. SOCWA 
considers this enforcement action resolved. 
 

Summary of Activities and Types of IUs in the SOCWA Service Area - YTD through 

September 19, 2018.    
MA   Events Permit NIWD BMP FSE OSE Closed Enforcement   # of IUs 
CLB (S)     0   3     2    5     8   111   0 0     129   
CSC (M)     0   7   35  18 181 1283   0 5   1524 

90



CSJC (S)     0   2   27  59 137  1669   0 0   1894 
ETWD (M)     0   3   98    0 262   134   0 0     497 
EBSD (U)     0   1     0    0     0       0   0 0         1 
IRWD (S)     4   4   51  21   63   920   0 0   1059 
MNWD (S)  105   5 124  40 623 2078  23 1   2870 
SMWD (S)      46           6   19  20 192   752   9 1     992 
SCWD (S)     7   7   33    7 148   184   0 0     380 
TCWD (S)     0 11     0    0     7     33   0 0       51 
SOCWA (S)     0          3     1    0     0       0   0 0         4  
Totals     162    52 390 170 1621 7164      32       7    9401 
Dentist (All)             444  

 Total Known IUs      9845 
 (S) = SOCWA conducts PT program. NIWD = Non-industrial Waste Discharger.    
 (M) = MA conducts PT program /w SOCWA oversight. BMP = Best Management Practices. 
 (U) = Urban Diversion Only. FSE = Food Service Establishment. 
 YTD = Year to Date. OSE = Other Surveyed Establishment.  

91



Agenda Item                    

 Legal Counsel Review: N/A  

 Meeting Date:  October 4, 2018  

        

TO:   Board of Directors    

 

FROM:  Betty Burnett, General Manager 

 

STAFF CONTACT: Brian Peck, Director of Engineering 

     

SUBJECT:      Capital Improvement Program Status Report  

 

 
The status of the SOCWA Capital Improvement Program is presented in the tables on the 
following pages. 
 
 

 

92



S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 N
O

. 
2
(R

) 
- 

J
B

 L
A

T
H

A
M

 T
R

E
A

T
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

N
T

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S

T
a
s
k
 

C
o

d
e

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

P
h

a
s
e

S
ta

tu
s

32
13

-0
00

W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
 P

ip
in

g 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 (2

01
4)

D
es

ig
n

St
ud

y 
co

m
pl

et
ed

.  
R

em
ai

ni
ng

 w
or

k 
is

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 

Pa
ck

ag
e 

'B
' I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

.  
 

32
14

-0
00

4M
G

D
 D

iv
er

si
on

 F
lo

w
 M

et
er

 &
 C

on
tro

l S
tru

ct
ur

e 
(2

01
2)

D
es

ig
n

 P
ar

t o
f t

he
 P

ac
ka

ge
 'B

' I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. 

32
12

-0
00

Ea
st

 P
rim

ar
y 

In
flu

en
t C

ha
nn

el
 R

ep
ai

r (
20

15
)

D
es

ig
n

 P
ar

t o
f t

he
 P

ac
ka

ge
 'B

' I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. 

32
80

-0
00

Fa
ci

lit
y 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 B
 - 

Ba
si

n 
U

pg
ra

de
s 

(2
01

8)
D

es
ig

n
 S

ub
m

itt
al

 o
f 9

0%
 c

om
pl

et
e 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

in
 

O
ct

ob
er

, 2
01

8.
 

32
52

-0
00

Pl
an

t 1
 S

ta
nd

by
 P

ow
er

 G
en

er
at

or
 R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

(2
01

7)
D

es
ig

n

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 s

ta
ff 

ha
s 

re
qu

es
te

d 
a 

st
an

db
y 

po
w

er
 

ge
ne

ra
to

r l
ar

ge
 e

no
ug

h 
to

 s
up

pl
y 

po
w

er
 to

 a
ll 

of
 P

la
nt

 
N

o.
1.

  D
es

ig
n 

on
 h

ol
d 

to
 a

llo
w

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
(s

ee
 

Pr
oj

ec
t 3

35
2-

00
0)

. 

32
50

-0
00

Pl
an

t 1
 G

rit
 B

as
in

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 (2
01

7)
D

es
ig

n

SS
 M

ec
ha

ni
ca

l h
as

 le
ar

ne
d 

th
at

 n
ew

 a
lu

m
in

um
 c

ov
er

s 
w

ill 
no

t b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 to
 th

e 
si

te
 u

nt
il 

D
ec

em
be

r, 
20

18
.  

W
or

k 
re

qu
iri

ng
 m

aj
or

 b
yp

as
s 

w
ill 

no
t b

eg
in

 u
nt

il 
th

e 
sp

rin
g 

of
 2

01
9.

 

32
53

-0
00

Ef
flu

en
t S

ys
te

m
 V

al
ve

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t (
20

17
)

D
es

ig
n

H
az

en
 a

nd
 S

aw
ye

r d
es

ig
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
; p

ro
je

ct
 to

 b
e 

in
cl

ud
ed

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 P

ac
ka

ge
 B

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n.
 

32
85

-0
00

M
ai

n 
Pl

an
t D

ra
in

 R
ec

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(2
01

8)
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

 P
ar

t o
f t

he
 P

ac
ka

ge
 'B

' I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
. 

33
50

-0
00

M
ot

or
 C

on
tro

l C
en

te
r '

M
' R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t (

20
19

)
D

es
ig

n
R

FP
 fo

r e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r p

ro
je

ct
 to

 b
e 

is
su

ed
 in

 
Se

pt
em

be
r, 

20
18

. 

33
51

-0
00

Fa
ci

lit
y 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 B
 - 

Ba
si

n 
U

pg
ra

de
s 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
I (

20
19

)
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

 P
ro

je
ct

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 g
o 

to
 b

id
 in

 N
ov

em
be

r, 
20

18
. 

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 L
IQ

U
ID

S

('
1

8
/'
1
9
)

93



S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 N
O

. 
2
(R

) 
- 

J
B

 L
A

T
H

A
M

 T
R

E
A

T
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

N
T

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S

T
a
s
k
 

C
o

d
e

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

P
h

a
s
e

S
ta

tu
s

32
18

-0
00

En
er

gy
 B

ui
ld

in
g 

R
oo

f R
ec

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

(2
01

5)
D

es
ig

n
 P

ar
t o

f t
he

 P
ac

ka
ge

 'B
' I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

.  
32

16
-0

00
H

oi
st

 S
ys

te
m

 fo
r M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 S

ho
p 

(2
01

3)
D

es
ig

n
 P

ar
t o

f t
he

 P
ac

ka
ge

 'B
' I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. 

32
86

-0
00

PL
C

 U
pg

ra
de

s 
(2

01
8)

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
 P

ro
je

ct
 u

nd
er

w
ay

 b
y 

SO
C

W
A 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t. 

33
52

-0
00

El
ec

tri
ca

l S
ys

te
m

 E
va

lu
at

io
n 

(2
01

8)
St

ud
y

 R
FP

 fo
r e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 fo

r p
ro

je
ct

 to
 b

e 
is

su
ed

 in
 

N
ov

em
be

r, 
20

18
. 

40
01

-0
00

Pl
an

t D
ra

in
 S

ys
te

m
 S

tu
dy

 (2
01

7)
 (N

C
P)

St
ud

y
 T

et
ra

Te
ch

 is
 p

ro
ce

ed
in

g 
w

ith
 th

e 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
dr

ai
n 

sy
st

em
. 

32
87

-0
00

Fa
ci

lit
y 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 B
 - 

D
AF

T 
an

d 
An

ci
lla

ry
 

So
lid

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 (2

01
8)

D
es

ig
n

 S
ub

m
itt

al
 o

f 9
0%

 c
om

pl
et

e 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
in

 
O

ct
ob

er
, 2

01
8.

 

32
10

-0
00

Fa
ci

lit
y 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 - 
So

lid
s 

Ar
ea

 (2
01

5)
D

es
ig

n
 T

et
ra

Te
ch

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 9

0%
 c

om
pl

et
e 

dr
aw

in
gs

 a
nd

 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
tio

ns
 to

 S
O

C
W

A 
on

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 2

1,
 2

01
8.

 
33

53
-0

00
C

en
tra

te
 S

ys
te

m
 D

es
ig

n 
(2

01
9)

D
es

ig
n

 Is
su

e 
R

FP
 fo

r d
es

ig
n 

in
 N

ov
em

be
r, 

20
18

. 

33
54

-0
00

Em
ul

si
on

 P
ol

ym
er

 F
ee

de
r R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t (

20
19

)
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

 P
ro

je
ct

 e
xp

ec
te

d 
to

 g
o 

to
 b

id
 in

 N
ov

em
be

r, 
20

18
. 

33
55

-0
00

D
ig

es
te

r N
o.

4 
R

eh
ab

ilit
at

io
n 

(2
01

9)
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n

 T
hi

s 
ite

m
 w

ill 
go

 to
 b

id
 w

ith
 th

e 
Pa

ck
ag

e 
'B

' 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 J
an

ua
ry

, 2
01

9.
 

33
56

-0
00

Fa
ci

lit
y 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 B
 - 

D
AF

T 
an

d 
An

ci
lla

ry
 

So
lid

s 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

- P
ar

t I
 (2

01
9)

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
 P

ro
je

ct
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 g

o 
to

 b
id

 in
 J

an
ua

ry
, 2

01
9.

 

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 S
O

L
ID

S

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 C
O

M
M

O
N

('
1

8
/'
1
9
)

94



T
a
s
k
 

C
o

d
e

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
P

h
a
s

e
S

ta
tu

s

36
01

-0
00

Ju
nc

tio
n 

St
ru

ct
ur

e 
 R

eh
ab

ilit
at

io
n 

D
es

ig
n

D
es

ig
n

 D
es

ig
n 

w
or

k 
to

 b
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 u

nd
er

 T
as

k 
33

57
-0

00
. 

33
57

-0
00

Ju
nc

tio
n 

St
ru

ct
ur

e 
R

ei
nf

or
ce

m
en

t P
er

m
itt

in
g 

an
d 

Fi
na

l D
es

ig
n

D
es

ig
n

 It
em

 to
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 w

ith
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
C

om
m

itt
ee

 a
t 

re
gu

la
rly

 s
ch

ed
ul

ed
 N

ov
em

be
r m

ee
tin

g.
 

40
04

-0
00

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
Pl

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t (

20
16

) (
N

C
P)

St
ud

y
 S

O
C

W
A 

st
af

f w
ill 

co
m

pl
et

e 
W

or
d 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 b

eg
un

 b
y 

Bl
ac

k 
& 

Ve
at

ch
. T

ar
ge

t c
om

pl
et

io
n 

is
 J

an
ua

ry
, 2

01
9.

 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 N

O
. 

5
 -

 S
A

N
 J

U
A

N
 C

R
E

E
K

 O
C

E
A

N
 O

U
T

F
A

L
L

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S

S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

('
1

8
/'
1

9
)

95



T
a
s
k
 C

o
d

e
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

P
h

a
s
e

S
ta

tu
s

1
3
6
7

E
x
p
o
rt

 S
lu

d
g
e
 L

in
e
 R

e
p
a
ir

 &
 R

ip
 R

a
p
 (

R
 -

 2
) 

(2
0
1
2
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t

h
is

 a
re

a
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e
 r

o
u
ti
n
g
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 E
x
p
o
rt

 S
lu

d
g
e
 p

ip
e
lin

e
 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 m

in
o
r 

e
m

b
a
n
k
m

e
n
t 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 

fe
a
tu

re
s
 t

h
a
t 

w
ill

 b
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 w

it
h
 E

x
p
o
rt

 S
lu

d
g
e
 

S
y
s
te

m
 r

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t.

 

3
5
9
3
-0

0
0

P
ri

m
a
ry

 S
lu

d
g
e
 V

a
lv

e
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

(2
0
1
8
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 S
ta

ff
 h

a
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 t
o
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
n
to

 

th
e
 F

a
c
ili

ty
 I

m
p
ro

v
em

e
n
ts

 P
ro

je
c
t.
 

3
5
9
5
-0

0
0

P
ri

m
a
ry

 D
e
v
ic

e
 E

le
c
tr

ic
a
l 
C

o
n
d
u
it
 a

n
d
 C

o
n
d
u
c
to

r 

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

(2
0
1
8
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 S
ta

ff
 h

a
s
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 t
o
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
n
to

 

th
e
 F

a
c
ili

ty
 I

m
p
ro

v
em

e
n
ts

 P
ro

je
c
t.
 

3
5
1
4
-0

0
0

C
T

P
 F

a
c
ili

ty
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 D

e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0
1
6
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 F

a
c
ili

ty
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 P
ro

je
c
t;

 m
o
n
th

ly
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 H

a
z
e
n
 &

 S
a
w

y
e
r 

h
e
ld

 o
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

1
1
, 

2
0
1
8
. 

3
5
3
4
-0

0
0

E
x
p
o
rt

 S
lu

d
g
e
 S

y
s
te

m
  

(1
9
9
7
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 T
h
e
 L

o
w

 E
ff

e
c
t 

H
a
b
it
a
t 

C
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 

In
c
id

e
n
ta

l 
T

a
k
e
 P

e
rm

it
 A

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 

to
 t

h
e
 U

S
F

W
S

 f
o
r 

re
v
ie

w
; 

re
v
ie

w
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 c

o
n
d
u
c
te

d
 

w
it
h
 O

C
 P

a
rk

s
 o

n
 M

a
y
 1

0
, 

2
0
1
8
. 

3
5
1
2
-0

0
0

G
ra

ti
n
g
 R

e
b
a
te

 a
n
d
 C

o
n
c
re

te
 R

e
p
a
ir

 B
e
tw

e
e
n
 H

W
 

B
u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 B
a
s
in

s
 (

2
0
1
6
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 F

a
c
ili

ty
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 P
ro

je
c
t;

 m
o
n
th

ly
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 H

a
z
e
n
 &

 S
a
w

y
e
r 

h
e
ld

 o
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

1
1
, 

2
0
1
8
. 

3
5
9
4
-0

0
0

P
L
C

 R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

(2
0
1
8
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 P
ro

je
c
t 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 b

y
 S

O
C

W
A

 O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t.

 

3
5
9
2
-0

0
0

F
a
c
ili

ty
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0
1
8
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 F

a
c
ili

ty
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 P
ro

je
c
t;

 m
o
n
th

ly
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 H

a
z
e
n
 &

 S
a
w

y
e
r 

h
e
ld

 o
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

1
1
, 

2
0
1
8
. 

3
3
5
8
-0

0
0

P
e
rs

o
n
n
e
l 
B

u
ild

in
g
 R

e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 (

2
0
1
9
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 P
ro

je
c
t 

to
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
 f

o
r 

b
id

s
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r,

 2
0
1
8
. 

3
3
5
9
-0

0
0

F
a
c
ili

ty
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 P
ro

je
c
t 

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 -

 P
a
rt

 I
 

(2
0
1
9
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 P
ro

je
c
t 

e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t

o
 g

o
 t

o
 b

id
 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

, 
2
0
1
9
. 

3
3
6
0
-0

0
0

V
e
h
ic

le
 S

to
ra

g
e
 B

u
ild

in
g
 R

o
o
f 

(2
0
1
9
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 P
ro

je
c
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 s

ta
ff

. 

('
1
8
/'
1
9
)

S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 N
O

. 
1
5
(R

) 
- 

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
 T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

T
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 L

IQ
U

ID
S

96



T
a
s
k
 C

o
d

e
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

P
h

a
s
e

S
ta

tu
s

3
3
6
1
-0

0
0

A
W

M
A

 R
o
a
d
 S

it
e
s
 W

e
s
t 

1
 a

n
d
 2

 E
m

b
a
n
k
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 (

2
0
1
9
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 R
F

P
 f

o
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 

d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 p

e
rm

it
ti
n
g
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 i
n
 

O
c
to

b
e
r,

 2
0
1
8
. 

3
3
6
2
-0

0
0

A
lis

o
 C

re
e
k
 L

o
n
g
 T

e
rm

 R
e
p
a
ir

 P
la

n
n
in

g
 (

2
0
1
9
)

P
la

n
n
in

g

 R
F

P
 f

o
r 

p
ro

je
c
t 

d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 p

e
rm

it
ti
n
g
 t

o
 b

e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 i
n
 

O
c
to

b
e
r,

 2
0
1
8
. 

3
5
5
3
-0

0
0

P
la

n
t 

D
ra

in
a
g
e
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 (
2
0
1
7
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 T
e
tr

a
T

e
c
h
 h

a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 d

e
s
ig

n
. 

 W
o
rk

 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 

in
 F

a
c
ili

ty
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 b
id

. 

3
5
6
2
-0

0
0

A
W

T
 A

p
p
lie

d
 W

a
te

r 
P

u
m

p
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

(A
W

T
) 

(2
0
1
7
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

P
ro

je
c
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

3
5
9
6
-0

0
0

A
p
p
lie

d
 W

a
te

r 
V

F
D

 P
u
m

p
 P

a
n
e
l 
a
n
d
 E

le
c
tr

ic
a
l 

(A
W

T
) 

(2
0
1
8
)

 B
id

d
in

g
 

B
id

s
 o

p
e
n
e
d
; 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
w

a
rd

 t
o
 b

e
 

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 o
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

4
, 

2
0
1
8
.

3
5
9
7
-0

0
0

M
C

C
 A

 R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

D
e
s
ig

n
 (

A
W

T
) 

(2
0
1
8
)

 D
e
s
ig

n
 

P
ro

je
c
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

3
3
6
4
-0

0
0

C
h
lo

ri
n
e
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 

B
a
s
in

 M
ix

e
r 

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 (

A
W

T
) 

(2
0
1
9
)

B
id

d
in

g

B
id

s
 o

p
e
n
e
d
; 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
w

a
rd

 t
o
 b

e
 

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 o
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

4
, 

2
0
1
8
.

3
3
6
5
-0

0
0

M
C

C
 A

 R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 (

A
W

T
) 

(2
0
1
9
)

B
id

d
in

g

B
id

s
 o

p
e
n
e
d
; 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
w

a
rd

 t
o
 b

e
 

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 o
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

4
, 

2
0
1
8
.

3
3
6
6
-0

0
0

A
W

T
 F

ilt
e
r 

V
a
lv

e
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 (

A
W

T
) 

(2
0
1
9
)

B
id

d
in

g

B
id

s
 o

p
e
n
e
d
; 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
w

a
rd

 t
o
 b

e
 

p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 B

o
a
rd

 o
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

4
, 

2
0
1
8
.

3
5
1
7
-0

0
0

A
W

T
 B

a
c
k
w

a
s
h
 W

a
te

r 
P

u
m

p
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

(A
W

T
) 

(2
0
1
6
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

P
ro

je
c
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 L

IQ
U

ID
S

('
1
8
/'
1
9
)

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 A
W

T

S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 N
O

. 
1
5
(R

) 
- 

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
 T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

T
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S

97



S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 N
O

. 
1
7
(R

) 
- 

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

T
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S

T
a
s
k
 C

o
d

e
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

P
h

a
s
e

S
ta

tu
s

3
7
0
1
-0

0
0

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 E
le

c
tr

ic
a
l 
S

y
s
te

m
 R

e
ro

u
ti
n
g
 (

2
0
1
4
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 R

T
P

 M
is

c
e
lla

n
e
o
u
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 2
0
1
8
 

P
ro

je
c
t;
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 g

o
 t
o
 b

id
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r,

 

2
0
1
8
. 

3
7
3
0
-0

0
0

P
ri

m
a
ry

 G
a
lle

ry
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 (

2
0
1
4
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 R

T
P

 M
is

c
e
lla

n
e
o
u
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 2
0
1
8
 

P
ro

je
c
t;
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 g

o
 t
o
 b

id
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r,

 

2
0
1
8
. 

3
7
0
2
-0

0
0

W
a
s
te

 A
c
ti
v
a
te

d
 S

lu
d
g
e
 V

F
D

 C
o
n
tr

o
l 
P

a
n
e
l 
(2

0
1
3
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 R

T
P

 M
is

c
e
lla

n
e
o
u
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 2
0
1
8
 

P
ro

je
c
t;
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 g

o
 t
o
 b

id
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r,

 

2
0
1
8
. 

3
7
5
2
-0

0
0

A
W

T
 N

o
.2

 U
p
g
ra

d
e
 D

e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0
1
7
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
 f

o
r 

b
id

 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

, 

2
0
1
9
. 

3
7
8
1
-0

0
0

P
ri

m
a
ry

 S
c
u
m

 S
k
im

m
e
r 

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
(2

0
1
8
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 D
e
s
ig

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 L

e
e
 &

 R
o
; 
th

is
 w

o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 b

id
 i
n
 

2
0
1
9
. 

3
7
8
4
-0

0
0

D
A

F
 (

M
a
n
n
ic

h
) 

P
o
ly

m
e
r 

S
y
s
te

m
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

(2
0
1
8
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 R

T
P

 M
is

c
e
lla

n
e
o
u
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 2
0
1
8
 

P
ro

je
c
t;
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 g

o
 t
o
 b

id
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r,

 

2
0
1
8
. 

3
7
8
5
-0

0
0

D
A

F
 D

is
s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 T

a
n
k
 S

y
s
te

m
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
(2

0
1
8
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 R

T
P

 M
is

c
e
lla

n
e
o
u
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 2
0
1
8
 

P
ro

je
c
t;
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 g

o
 t
o
 b

id
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r,

 

2
0
1
8
. 

3
7
8
6
-0

0
0

P
ri

m
a
ry

 G
a
lle

ry
 M

e
c
h
a
n
ic

a
l 
a
n
d
 E

le
c
tr

ic
a
l 
U

p
g
ra

d
e
 

(2
0
1
8
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 R

T
P

 M
is

c
e
lla

n
e
o
u
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 2
0
1
8
 

P
ro

je
c
t;
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 g

o
 t
o
 b

id
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r,

 

2
0
1
8
. 

3
3
6
7
-0

0
0

S
o
u
th

w
e
s
t 
In

fl
u
e
n
t 
S

e
w

e
r 

a
n
d
 M

a
n
h
o
le

 D
e
s
ig

n
 

(2
0
1
9
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 T
h
e
 d

ra
ft

 R
F

P
 f

o
r 

th
is

 i
te

m
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

E
n
g
in

e
e
ri

n
g
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

ft
e
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 M

o
u
lt
o
n
 

N
ig

u
e
l 
W

a
te

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t 
s
tu

d
y
. 

3
3
6
8
-0

0
0

A
e
ra

ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 (

2
0
1
9
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
 f

o
r 

b
id

 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

, 

2
0
1
9
. 

3
3
6
9
-0

0
0

A
e
ra

ti
o
n
 G

a
te

 R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
(2

0
1
9
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
 f

o
r 

b
id

 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

, 

2
0
1
9
. 

3
7
8
7
-0

0
0

A
e
ra

ti
o
n
 A

re
a
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 D

e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0
1
8
)

D
e
s
ig

n

A
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 L

e
e
 &

 R
o
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 o
n
 

M
a
y
 3

1
, 
2
0
1
8
.

4
0
0
8
-0

0
0

E
ff

lu
e
n
t 
E

q
u
a
liz

a
ti
o
n
 P

o
n
d
 a

n
d
 G

a
te

 C
o
n
d
it
io

n
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
(2

0
1
7
) 

(N
C

P
)

 C
o
n
d
it
io

n
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

je
c
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

w
a
rd

e
d
 t
o
 V

&
A

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

; 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
, 
2
0
1
9
.

('
1
8
/'
1
9
)

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 L
IQ

U
ID

S

98



S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 N
O

. 
1
7
(R

) 
- 

R
E

G
IO

N
A

L
 T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

T
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S

T
a
s
k
 C

o
d

e
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

P
h

a
s
e

S
ta

tu
s

3
7
1
5
-0

0
0

S
w

it
c
h
g
e
a
r 

U
p
g
ra

d
e
 (

2
0
0
6
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 P
a
c
if
ic

 H
y
d
ro

te
c
h
 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

u
n
c
h
 l
is

t 
fo

r 
th

is
 

p
ro

je
c
t.
 

3
7
6
0
-0

0
0

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 B

u
ri

e
d
 P

ip
in

g
 R

e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 M

a
s
te

r 
P

la
n
 

(2
0
1
7
)

S
tu

d
y

 C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

3
7
6
1
-0

0
0

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
L
ig

h
ti
n
g
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 (

2
0
1
7
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 R

T
P

 M
is

c
e
lla

n
e
o
u
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 2
0
1
8
 

P
ro

je
c
t;
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 b

id
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r,

 2
0
1
8
. 

3
3
7
0
-0

0
0

A
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 B

u
ild

in
g
 R

e
p
a
ir

 D
e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0
1
9
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 T
h
e
 R

F
P

 f
o
r 

th
is

 w
o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 i
n
 

O
c
to

b
e
r,

 2
0
1
8
. 

3
3
7
1
-0

0
0

W
e
s
t 
S

lo
p
e
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 (

2
0
1
9
)

S
tu

d
y

 T
h
e
 R

F
P

 f
o
r 

th
is

 w
o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 i
n
 

O
c
to

b
e
r,

 2
0
1
8
. 

3
3
7
2
-0

0
0

M
o
to

r 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
C

e
n
te

r 
A

, 
G

, 
H

 D
e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0
1
9
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 T
h
e
 R

F
P

 f
o
r 

th
is

 w
o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 i
n
 

O
c
to

b
e
r,

 2
0
1
8
. 

3
3
7
3
-0

0
0

S
o
u
th

s
id

e
 P

la
n
t 
F

lo
o
d
in

g
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 (

2
0
1
9
)

S
tu

d
y

 T
h
e
 R

F
P

 f
o
r 

th
is

 w
o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 i
n
 

O
c
to

b
e
r,

 2
0
1
8
. 

3
3
7
4
-0

0
0

S
E

 E
le

c
tr

ic
a
l 
M

a
n
h
o
le

 R
e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 (

2
0
1
8
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 T
h
e
 R

F
P

 f
o
r 

th
is

 w
o
rk

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 i
n
 

O
c
to

b
e
r,

 2
0
1
8
. 

3
7
8
8
-0

0
0

P
L
C

 U
p
g
ra

d
e
 (

2
0
1
8
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 P
ro

je
c
t 
u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 b

y
 S

O
C

W
A

 O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 D

e
p
t.
 

3
7
2
0
-0

0
0

D
ig

e
s
te

r 
D

o
m

e
 R

e
c
o
a
ti
n
g
 (

2
0
1
4
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 S
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
lly

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 P

a
c
if
ic

 H
y
d
ro

te
c
h
. 

3
3
7
5
-0

0
0

P
h
a
s
e
 I
 S

o
lid

s
 P

ip
in

g
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 (

2
0
1
9
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
 f

o
r 

b
id

 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
, 

2
0
1
9
. 

3
3
7
6
-0

0
0

D
e
w

a
te

ri
n
g
 R

o
o
m

 F
lo

o
r 

S
e
a
lin

g
 a

n
d
 L

ig
h
ti
n
g
 (

2
0
1
9
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 H
a
rp

e
r 

&
 A

s
s
o
c
ia

te
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
ta

in
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

th
e
 f

lo
o
r 

s
e
a
lin

g
. 

3
3
7
7
-0

0
0

E
n
e
rg

y
 B

u
ild

in
g
 R

o
o
f 

a
n
d
 B

re
e
z
e
w

a
y
 (

2
0
1
9
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 R

T
P

 M
is

c
e
lla

n
e
o
u
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 2
0
1
8
 

P
ro

je
c
t;
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 g

o
 t
o
 b

id
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r,

 

2
0
1
8
. 

3
3
7
9
-0

0
0

S
E

T
 P

ip
in

g
 R

e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 (

2
0
1
9
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 T
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 a

d
v
e
rt

is
e
 f

o
r 

b
id

 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
, 

2
0
1
9
. 

3
7
2
2
-0

0
0

C
o
-G

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 R

e
tr

o
fi
t 
(2

0
0
8
)

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n

 F
in

a
l 
s
y
s
te

m
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
; 
P

a
c
if
ic

 

H
y
d
ro

te
c
h
 w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

u
n
c
h
 l
is

t 
it
e
m

s
. 

3
7
9
0
-0

0
0

S
o
lid

s
 A

re
a
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 D

e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0
1
8
)

D
e
s
ig

n

 P
a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 R

T
P

 M
is

c
e
lla

n
e
o
u
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 2
0
1
8
 

P
ro

je
c
t;
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 g

o
 t
o
 b

id
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r,

 

2
0
1
8
. 

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 C
O

M
M

O
N

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 S
O

L
ID

S

('
1
8
/'
1
9
)

99



T
a
s
k
 

C
o

d
e

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
P

h
a
s

e
S

ta
tu

s

31
81

-0
00

Ai
r V

ac
uu

m
 R

el
ea

se
 V

al
ve

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t R
ea

ch
 D

 
(2

01
8)

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 m
em

or
an

du
m

 re
ce

iv
ed

 fr
om

 T
et

ra
Te

ch
. 

31
82

-0
00

Ai
r V

ac
uu

m
 R

el
ea

se
 V

al
ve

 R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t R
ea

ch
 E

 
(2

01
8)

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 m
em

or
an

du
m

 re
ce

iv
ed

 fr
om

 T
et

ra
Te

ch
. 

40
04

-0
00

Tr
ai

l B
rid

ge
 C

re
ek

 C
ro

ss
in

g 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

(R
ea

ch
 D

)
D

es
ig

n

 D
ra

ft 
m

em
or

an
du

m
 re

ce
iv

ed
 fr

om
 T

et
ra

Te
ch

; 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
to

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
at

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 o

n 
O

ct
ob

er
 1

1,
 2

01
8.

 

T
a
s
k
 

C
o

d
e

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
P

h
a
s

e
S

ta
tu

s

34
80

-0
00

In
te

rn
al

 S
ea

l R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t (
20

18
)

D
es

ig
n

 A
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

or
de

r h
as

 b
ee

n 
is

su
ed

 to
 B

la
ck

 &
 V

ea
tc

h 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
de

si
gn

 d
oc

um
en

ts
. 

40
04

-0
00

Em
er

ge
nc

y 
Pl

an
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t (

20
16

) (
N

C
P)

St
ud

y
 S

O
C

W
A 

st
af

f w
ill 

co
m

pl
et

e 
W

or
d 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 b

eg
un

 b
y 

Bl
ac

k 
& 

Ve
at

ch
. T

ar
ge

t c
om

pl
et

io
n 

is
 J

an
ua

ry
, 2

01
9.

 

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 N

O
. 

2
4
 -

 A
L

IS
O

 C
R

E
E

K
 O

C
E

A
N

 O
U

T
F

A
L

L
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S

('
1

8
/'
1

9
)

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S

S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 N

O
. 

2
1
 -

 E
F

F
L

U
E

N
T

 T
R

A
N

S
M

IS
S

IO
N

 M
A

IN
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S

('
1

8
/'
1

9
)

C
A

P
IT

A
L

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S

S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

100



S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 N

O
. 

2
(R

) 
- 

J
B

 L
A

T
H

A
M

 T
R

E
A

T
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

N
T

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

T
a

s
k

 C
o

d
e

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n

1
s
t 

Q
tr

2
n

d
 Q

tr
3
rd

 Q
tr

4
th

 Q
tr

1
s
t 

Q
tr

2
n

d
 Q

tr
3
rd

 Q
tr

4
th

 Q
tr

F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 P
A

C
K

A
G

E
 B

D
D

B
&

A
C

C
C

C
C

3
2

1
3

-0
0

0
W

a
te

r 
S

y
s
te

m
 P

ip
in

g
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 (
2

0
1

4
)

D
D

B
&

A
C

C
C

C
C

3
2

0
2

-0
0

0

P
re

lim
in

a
ry

 a
n

d
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 T
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
Im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 

(P
a

c
k
a

g
e

 "
B

")
 (

2
0

1
6

)
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
2

8
5

-0
0

0
M

a
in

 P
la

n
t 

D
ra

in
 L

in
e

 R
e

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 (

2
0

1
8

)
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C
3

2
8

0
-0

0
0

; 

3
3

5
1

-0
0

0
F

a
c
ili

ty
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 B
 -

 B
a

s
in

 U
p

g
ra

d
e

s
 (

2
0

1
8

)
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C
3

2
8

7
-0

0
0

; 

3
3

5
6

-0
0

0
F

a
c
ili

ty
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 B
 -

 D
A

F
T

 (
2

0
1

8
)

D
D

B
&

A
C

C
C

C
C

3
2

1
2

-0
0

0
E

a
s
t 

P
ri

m
a

ry
 I

n
fl
u

e
n

t 
C

h
a

n
n

e
l 
R

e
p

a
ir

 (
2

0
1

5
)

D
D

B
&

A
C

C
C

C
C

3
2

1
8

-0
0

0
E

n
e

rg
y
 B

u
ild

in
g

 R
o

o
f 

R
e

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 (

2
0

1
5

)
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
2

1
6

-0
0

0
H

o
is

t 
S

y
s
te

m
 f

o
r 

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 S
h

o
p

 (
2

0
1

3
)

D
D

B
&

A
C

C
C

C
C

3
2

8
7

-0
0

0
; 

3
2

1
0

-0
0

0
; 

3
3

5
5

-0
0

0
F

a
c
ili

ty
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 -
 D

ig
e

s
te

r 
4

 I
m

p
s
. 

(2
0

1
8

)
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C

3
2

5
3

-0
0

0
E

ff
lu

e
n

t 
S

y
s
te

m
 V

a
lv

e
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

(2
0

1
7

)
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
T

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

3
2

5
0

-0
0

0
P

la
n

t 
1

 G
ri

t 
B

a
s
in

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 (
2

0
1

7
)

C
C

C
C

3
2

8
6

-0
0

0
P

L
C

 U
p

g
ra

d
e

s
 (

2
0

1
8

)
C

4
0

0
1

-0
0

0
P

la
n

t 
D

ra
in

 S
y
s
te

m
 S

tu
d

y
 (

2
0

1
7

) 
(N

C
P

)
P

3
3

5
0

-0
0

0
M

C
C

 "
M

" 
R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

D
e

s
ig

n
 (

2
0

1
9

)
D

D
D

3
3

5
4

-0
0

0
E

m
u

ls
io

n
 P

o
ly

m
e

r 
F

e
e

d
e

r 
R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

(2
0

1
9

)
C

C

3
3

5
3

-0
0

0
C

e
n

tr
a

te
 S

y
s
te

m
 D

e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0

1
9

)
D

D
D

 

F
is

c
a
l 
Y

e
a
r 

1
8
/1

9
F

is
c
a
l 
Y

e
a
r 

1
9
/2

0

 

101



T
a

s
k
 C

o
d

e
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

1
s

t 
Q

tr
2

n
d

 Q
tr

3
rd

 Q
tr

4
th

 Q
tr

1
s

t 
Q

tr
2

n
d

 Q
tr

3
rd

 Q
tr

4
th

 Q
tr

F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 P
A

C
K

A
G

E
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C
3
5
9
2
-0

0
0
; 

3
3
5
9
-0

0
0

F
a

c
ili

ty
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 P
ro

je
c
t 

D
e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0
1
8
)

D
D

B
&

A
C

C
C

C
C

3
5
9
5
-0

0
0

P
ri
m

a
ry

 D
e
v
ic

e
 E

le
c
tr

ic
a
l 
C

o
n
d
u
it
 (

2
0
1
8
)

D
D

B
&

A
C

C
C

C
C

3
5
9
3
-0

0
0

P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
lu

d
g
e
 V

a
lv

e
 R

e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

(2
0
1
8
)

D
D

B
&

A
C

C
C

C
C

T
E

R
T

IA
R

Y
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
 I

M
P

R
O

V
E

M
E

N
T

S
 2

0
1
8

B
&

A
C

C
C

3
5
9
7
-0

0
0
; 

3
3
6
5
-0

0
0

M
C

C
-A

 R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

(2
0
1
8
)

B
&

A
C

C
C

3
5
9
6
-0

0
0

A
p
p
lie

d
 W

a
te

r 
V

F
D

 P
u
m

p
 P

a
n
e
l 
a
n
d
 E

le
c
tr

ic
a
l 

(2
0
1
8
)

B
&

A
C

C
C

3
3
6
4
-0

0
0

C
h
lo

ri
n

e
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 

B
a
s
in

 M
ix

e
r 

C
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 (

A
W

T
) 

(2
0
1
9
)

B
&

A
C

C
C

3
3
6
6
-0

0
0

A
W

T
 F

ilt
e
r 

V
a
lv

e
 U

p
g
ra

d
e
 C

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 (

A
W

T
) 

(2
0
1
9
)

B
&

A
C

C
C

E
X

P
O

R
T

 S
L

U
D

G
E

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

 R
E

P
L

A
C

E
M

E
N

T
E

N
V

E
N

V
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

1
3
6
7

E
x
p
o
rt

 S
lu

d
g
e
 L

in
e
 R

e
p
a
ir
 &

 R
ip

 R
a
p
 (

R
 -

 2
) 

(2
0
1
2
)

E
N

V
E

N
V

B
&

A
C

C
C

C

3
5
3
4
-0

0
0

E
x
p
o
rt

 S
lu

d
g
e
 S

y
s
te

m
  

(1
9
9
7
)

E
N

V
E

N
V

B
&

A
C

C
C

C

IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
T

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S

3
5
9
4
-0

0
0

P
L
C

 R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

(2
0
1
8
)

C
C

3
5
5
3
-0

0
0

P
la

n
t 

D
ra

in
a
g
e
 I

m
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 (
2
0
1
7
)

D
D

B
&

A
C

3
3
5
8
-0

0
0

P
e
rs

o
n
n
e
l 
B

u
ild

in
g
 R

e
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 (

2
0
1
9
)

D
B

&
A

C
C

3
3
6
1
-0

0
0

A
W

M
A

 R
o
a
d
 S

it
e
s
 W

e
s
t 

1
 a

n
d
 2

 E
m

b
a
n
k
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 (

2
0
1
9
)

E
N

V
E

N
V

E
N

V
E

N
V

E
N

V
B

&
A

3
3
6
2
-0

0
0

A
lis

o
 C

re
e
k
 L

o
n
g
 T

e
rm

 R
e
p
a
ir
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 (

2
0
1
9
)

E
N

V
E

N
V

E
N

V
E

N
V

S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

  

F
is

c
a

l 
Y

e
a

r 
1
9

/2
0

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 C
O

M
M

IT
T

E
E

 N
O

. 
1
5
(R

) 
- 

C
O

A
S

T
A

L
 T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

 P
L

A
N

T
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S

F
is

c
a

l 
Y

e
a

r 
1
8

/1
9

102



S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 N

O
. 

1
7

(R
) 

- 
R

E
G

IO
N

A
L

 T
R

E
A

T
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

N
T

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

T
a

s
k

 C
o

d
e

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
1
s
t 

Q
tr

2
n

d
 Q

tr
3
rd

 Q
tr

4
th

 Q
tr

1
s
t 

Q
tr

2
n

d
 Q

tr
3
rd

 Q
tr

4
th

 Q
tr

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 2
0

1
8

B
&

A
C

C
C

C
C

3
7

0
1

-0
0

0
S

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 E
le

c
tr

ic
a

l 
S

y
s
te

m
 R

e
ro

u
ti
n

g
 (

2
0

1
4

)
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
7

0
2

-0
0

0
W

a
s
te

 A
c
ti
v
a

te
d

 S
lu

d
g

e
 V

F
D

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 
P

a
n

e
l 
(2

0
1

3
)

B
&

A
C

C
C

C
C

3
7

3
0

-0
0

0
P

ri
m

a
ry

 G
a

lle
ry

 U
p

g
ra

d
e

 (
2

0
1

4
)

B
&

A
C

C
C

C
C

3
7

8
1

-0
0

0
P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
c
u

m
 S

k
im

m
e

r 
R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

(2
0

1
8

)
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
7

8
4

-0
0

0

D
A

F
 (

M
a

n
n

ic
h

) 
P

o
ly

m
e

r 
S

y
s
te

m
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

(2
0

1
8

)
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
7

8
5

-0
0

0
D

A
F

 D
is

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 T

a
n

k
 S

y
s
te

m
 R

e
p

la
c
e

m
e

n
t 

(2
0

1
8

)
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
7

8
6

-0
0

0

P
ri

m
a

ry
 G

a
lle

ry
 M

e
c
h

a
n

ic
a

l 
a

n
d

 E
le

c
tr

ic
a

l 
U

p
g

ra
d

e
 

(2
0

1
8

)
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
3

7
7

-0
0

0
E

n
e

rg
y
 B

u
ild

in
g

 R
o

o
f 

a
n

d
 B

re
e

z
e

w
a

y
 (

2
0

1
9

)
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
7

6
1

-0
0

0
E

x
te

rn
a

l 
L

ig
h

ti
n

g
 U

p
g

ra
d

e
 (

2
0

1
7

)
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

M
IS

C
E

L
L

A
N

E
O

U
S

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 2
0

1
9

D
D

B
&

A
C

C
C

C
C

3
7

8
7

-0
0

0
; 

3
3

6
8

-0
0

0
A

e
ra

ti
o

n
 A

re
a

 U
p

g
ra

d
e

 D
e

s
ig

n
 (

2
0

1
8

)
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
3

6
9

-0
0

0
A

e
ra

ti
o

n
 G

a
te

 R
e

p
la

c
e

m
e

n
t 

(2
0

1
9

)
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
3

7
5

-0
0

0
P

h
a

s
e

 I
 S

o
lid

s
 P

ip
in

g
 U

p
g

ra
d

e
 (

2
0

1
9

)
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
7

5
2

-0
0

0
A

W
T

 N
o

.2
 U

p
g

ra
d

e
 D

e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0

1
7

)
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

3
3

7
9

-0
0

0
S

E
T

 P
ip

in
g

 R
e

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 (

2
0

1
9

)
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

3
7

9
0

-0
0

0
S

o
lid

s
 A

re
a

 U
p

g
ra

d
e

 D
e

s
ig

n
 (

2
0

1
8

)
D

D
B

&
A

C
C

C
C

C

F
is

c
a
l 
Y

e
a
r 

1
8
/1

9
F

is
c
a
l 
Y

e
a
r 

1
9
/2

0

103



S
O

U
T

H
 O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 W

A
S

T
E

W
A

T
E

R
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y

P
R

O
J

E
C

T
 C

O
M

M
IT

T
E

E
 N

O
. 

1
7

(R
) 

- 
R

E
G

IO
N

A
L

 T
R

E
A

T
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

N
T

 C
A

P
IT

A
L

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

T
a

s
k

 C
o

d
e

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n
1
s
t 

Q
tr

2
n

d
 Q

tr
3
rd

 Q
tr

4
th

 Q
tr

1
s
t 

Q
tr

2
n

d
 Q

tr
3
rd

 Q
tr

4
th

 Q
tr

IN
D

E
P

E
N

D
E

N
T

 P
R

O
J

E
C

T
S

4
0

0
8

-0
0

0

E
ff

lu
e

n
t 

E
q

u
a

liz
a

ti
o

n
 P

o
n

d
 a

n
d

 G
a

te
 C

o
n

d
it
io

n
 

A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
(2

0
1

7
) 

(N
C

P
)

C
A

C
A

3
7

8
8

-0
0

0
P

L
C

 U
p

g
ra

d
e

 (
2

0
1

8
)

C

3
3

6
7

-0
0

0

S
o

u
th

w
e

s
t 

In
fl
u

e
n

t 
S

e
w

e
r 

a
n

d
 M

a
n

h
o

le
 D

e
s
ig

n
 

(2
0

1
9

)
P

D
D

3
3

7
0

-0
0

0
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
o

n
 B

u
ild

in
g

 R
e

p
a

ir
 D

e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0

1
9

)
P

D
C

3
3

7
1

-0
0

0
W

e
s
t 

S
lo

p
e

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 E

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 (

2
0

1
9

)
P

P

3
3

7
2

-0
0

0
M

o
to

r 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
C

e
n

te
r 

A
, 

G
, 

H
 D

e
s
ig

n
 (

2
0

1
9

)
D

D
D

3
3

7
3

-0
0

0
S

o
u

th
s
id

e
 P

la
n

t 
F

lo
o

d
in

g
 E

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 (

2
0

1
9

)
P

P

3
3

7
4

-0
0

0
S

E
 E

le
c
tr

ic
a

l 
M

a
n

h
o

le
 R

e
c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 (

2
0

1
8

)
D

C

3
3

7
6

-0
0

0

D
e

w
a

te
ri

n
g

 R
o

o
m

 F
lo

o
r 

S
e

a
lin

g
 a

n
d

 L
ig

h
ti
n

g
 

(2
0

1
9

)
D

C

F
is

c
a
l 
Y

e
a
r 

1
8
/1

9
F

is
c
a
l 
Y

e
a
r 

1
9
/2

0

104



Agenda Item                      

 Budgeted:  Yes  

 Budget amount: $1,946,000 

 Line Items:  PC 2 Tasks 3280-000 and 
3287-000 

 Legal Counsel Review: No  

 Meeting Date:  October 4, 2018 

        

TO:   Project Committee 2    
 

FROM:  Betty Burnett, General Manager 

 

STAFF CONTACT: Brian Peck, Director of Engineering 

     

SUBJECT:     Change Orders to Carollo Engineers Design Services Contract for the J. 
B. Latham Treatment Plant Package ‘B’ Improvements Project  

 

 

Recommendation 
 
The Engineering Committee recommends that the Board of Directors approve Change Orders 5 
and 6 to the design services contract with Carollo Engineers for the J. B. Latham Treatment 
Plant Package ‘B’ Improvements Project in the amount of $65,594.  

 

Change Orders 

 
1. Recommend Change Order 5 to the design services contract for the Facility Improvements 

Package ‘B’ DAFT and Ancillary Solids Improvements (PC 2, Task 3287-000). 
   

CO # CO Item Description 

Change 

Order 

Price 

Cumulative 

Change 

Order* 

Status 

5 Revised 
Design for the 
Thickened 
Waste 
Activated 
Sludge 
(TWAS) 
Pump Station  

Revise the TWAS 
Pump Station design 
to rotary-lobe pump 
including revised 
configuration of 
suction/discharge 
piping and electrical, 
instrumentation and 
control designs.   

$38,226.00 $136,893.00 SOCWA 
Engineering 
Committee 
Recommended 

 
*   Cumulative for specific task order only 

 
 

 
 

 

105



2. Recommend Change Order 6 to the design services contract for the Facility 
Improvements Package ‘B’ Basin Upgrades (PC 2, Task 3280-000). 

 

CO # CO Item Description 

Change 

Order 

Price 

Cumulative 

Change 

Order* 

Status 

6 Complete the 
Programmable 
Logic 
Controller 
(PLC) Fiber 
Loop  

Modifications for the 
fiber loop will include 
an updated network 
system block diagram, 
conduit routing and 
coordination with 
civil/duct banks.    

$27,368.00 $27,368.00 SOCWA 
Engineering 
Committee 
Recommended 

 

*  Total change order price associated with that specific task code.  
 

Advisory Status  
 
Reviewed and recommended by the SOCWA Engineering Committee on September 13, 2018. 
 

Financial Status 
 

Original Contract Amount:      ____$    1,597,876.00 
Net change by previous change orders:    ____$         98,667.00         
Contract amount prior to this change order:    ____$    1,696,543.00 
Net increase, decrease due to this change order:   ____$         65,594.00 
New contract amount, including this change order:   ____$    1,762,137.00 

 
The allocation of the change order costs is shown below. 
 

Member Agency 
Task  

3287-000 

Task  

3280-000 
Total 

Moulton Niguel Water District $8,264.46 $6,316.54 $14,581.00 

City of San Juan Capistrano $11,467.80 $8,421.13 $19,888.93 

Santa Margarita Water District $10,848.54 $4,737.40 $15,585.94 

South Coast Water District  $7,645.20 $7,892.93 $15,538.13 

Total $38,226.00 $27,368.00 $65,594.00 

 
The overall project remains within budget.  The revised project ledger is presented in Exhibit 1.  

106



Facility 

Improvements 'B' 

- Basin Upgrades

Facility 

Improvements 'B' 

- DAFT and 

Ancillary Solids 

Improvements Total

Budget (2018/2019) 1.148 0.798 1.946

Budget Task Codes 3280-000 3287-000

Estimated Costs-

Constr. 0.000 0.000 0.000

Construction Change 

Orders 0.000 0.000 0.000

Design 0.994 0.604 1.598  

Design Change Orders 0.027 0.137 0.164

Contingency 0.1270 0.0568 0.1839

Construction 

Management 0.000 0.000 0.000

Utilities 0.000 0.000 0.000

Total Project Costs 1.148 0.798 1.946

Spending

Total Current 

Spending (0.568) (0.285) (0.853)  

Remaining Spending (0.580) (0.513) (1.093)

Remaining Budget 0.000 0.000 0.000

 

 

Exhibit 1

Project Cost Ledger:  J . B. Latham Treatment Plant

Facility Improvements Package 'B'

(Millions)

107



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 
 

Engineering Committee 
 

August 9, 2018 

 The Regular Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater Authority (SOCWA) 

Engineering Committee was held on Thursday, August 9, 2018, at 8:30 a.m. at their 

Administrative Offices located at 34156 Del Obispo Street, Dana Point, California.  The following 

members present: 

 

ROD WOODS    Moulton Niguel Water District    

MIKE MARQUIS   City of San Juan Capistrano [exit 9:10 a.m.] 

DON BUNTS    Santa Margarita Water District [exit 9:10 a.m.] 

SARA MATHIS   South Coast Water District [exit 9:15 a.m.] 

BOBBY YOUNG     El Toro Water District 
 

Absent: 

 LORRIE LAUTSEN   Trabuco Canyon Water District 

KEVIN BURTON   Irvine Ranch Water District  

DAVE REBENSDORF  City of San Clemente 

  MICHAEL DUNBAR    Emerald Bay Service District  

DAVID SHISSLER   City of Laguna Beach 
 

Staff present:  

 

BRIAN PECK    Director of Engineering 

JIM BURROR    Director of Operations 

BETTY BURNETT   General Manager [exit 9:10 a.m.] 

 RONI YOUNG    Associate Engineer 

 JASON MANNING   Senior Engineer 

 JEANETTE COTINOLA  Procurement/Contracts Administrator 

 DAN WHEELER   Operation & Maintenance Superintendent 
 

Also Present: 
 

 DONALD FROELICH    Moulton Niguel Water District  

DENNIS ERDMAN   South Coast Water District [exit 9:10 a.m.] 

 KEVIN THOMAS   Kimley-Horn [exit 9:30 a.m.] 

 

 

 Mr. Peck called the meeting to order at 8:33 a.m. and welcomed everyone present. 

 

Public Comments 

Mr. Peck asked if members of the public desired to address the Engineering Committee 

or desired to reserve addressing the Engineering Committee during the meeting regarding any 

item on the Agenda.   

No comments received.    

 

108



Operations Report 

DISCUSSION 

Mr. Burror presented the Operations Report.  

ACTION TAKEN 

Information only, no action required. 

 

Innovative Biosolids Handling Technologies Engineering Support Services Proposal 

Review (Project Committees 2 and 17)  

DISCUSSION 

Mr. Peck reviewed proposals from Brown & Caldwell and Carollo Engineers. 

 

ACTION TAKEN 

The representatives from Project Committees 2 and 17 recommended the award of the 

Innovative Biosolids Technologies Engineering Support Services to Carollo Engineers at a fee 

of $99,948. 

 

Asset Register Pilot Project Proposal Review (Project Committees 2 and 17)  

DISCUSSION 

Mr. Peck reviewed proposals from GHD and Hazen & Sawyer. 

 

ACTION TAKEN 

The representatives from Project Committees 2 and 17 recommended the award of the Asset 

Register Pilot Project to Hazen & Sawyer at a fee of $89,728. 

 

Regional Treatment Plant Co-Generation and Switchgear Project Construction Project 

Status Update (Project Committee 17)  

DISCUSSION 

Mr. Manning presented Change Orders Nos. 35, 36, and 37 for the Regional Treatment 

Plant Co-Generation and Switchgear Upgrade Project. 

 

ACTION TAKEN 

The representatives from Project Committee 17 recommended that the Board of Directors 

approve Change Orders Nos. 35, 36, and 37. 

 

Regional Treatment Plant Draft Ten Year Plan Review (Project Committee 17) 

DISCUSSION 

Mr. Peck presented the draft Ten Year Plan for the Regional Treatment Plant.  Mr. Peck 

noted that he was not satisfied with the costs presented in Table 7.1.  These numbers will be 

reviewed and revised as needed prior to the September Engineering Committee. 

 

ACTION TAKEN 

Information only, no action required.  This topic is to be continued at the September Engineering 

Committee meeting. 

 

Coastal Treatment Plant Facility Improvements Environmental Documentation Review 

(Project Committee No. 15)  

109



DISCUSSION 

Ms. Young reviewed the proposed Notice of Exemption (NOE) as prepared by Kimley 

Horn (under contract to Hazen & Sawyer).  Mr. Woods indicated that the Moulton Niguel Water 

District (MNWD) had concerns about the approach. MNWD will be transmitting written 

comments. 

 

ACTION TAKEN 

Action pending receipt and review of MNWD comments. 

 

Adjournment 

There being no further business, Mr. Peck adjourned the meeting at 10:04 a.m. 

 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Minutes are a true and accurate copy of the Minutes of 
the Regular Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater Authority Engineering Committee 
of August 9, 2018 and approved by the Board of Directors of the South Orange County 
Wastewater Authority. 
 

 
_________________________________________________________ 

Betty Burnett, General Manager/Secretary 
SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

110



MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 
 

Engineering Committee 
 

May 10, 2018 

 The Regular Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater Authority (SOCWA) 

Engineering Committee was held on Thursday, May 10, 2018, at 8:30 a.m. at the SOCWA 

Administrative Offices located at 34156 Del Obispo Street, Dana Point, California.  The following 

members present: 

 

ROD WOODS    Moulton Niguel Water District    
MIKE MARQUIS   City of San Juan Capistrano 
DAVE REBENSDORF  City of San Clemente [arrival 8:56 a.m./exit 9:54 a.m.] 
DENNIS CAFFERTY   El Toro Water District [exit 10:05 a.m.] 

 DON BUNTS    Santa Margarita Water District [arrival 8:39 a.m./exit 10:05 a.m.] 
 SARA MATHIS   South Coast Water District  
 

Absent: 
  

KEVIN BURTON   Irvine Ranch Water District  
MICHAEL DUNBAR    Emerald Bay Service District  
LORRIE LAUTSEN     Trabuco Canyon Water District 
DAVID SHISSLER   City of Laguna Beach  

  
 

Staff Present:  
 

BRIAN PECK    Director of Engineering 
BETTY BURNETT   General Manager 
JIM BURROR    Director of Operations 

 RONI YOUNG-GRANT  Associate Engineer 
 JASON MANNING   Senior Engineer 
 KEITH BACON   Lab Manager [exit 9:20 a.m.] 

AMBER BAYLOR Director of Environmental Compliance [exit 9:20 a.m.] 
 

Also Present: 
 

 JESUS GARIBAY, JR   Moulton Niguel Water District 
 SCOTT JENKINS   Michael Baker Inc. [exit 9:20 a.m.] 
 DON KING    DHK Engineers [exit 9:52 a.m.] 

    
 

 Mr. Peck called the meeting to order at 8:32 a.m. and welcomed everyone present. 

 

Public Comments 

Mr. Peck asked if members of the public desired to address the Engineering Committee 

or desired to reserve addressing the Engineering Committee during the meeting regarding any 

item on the Agenda.  No public comments were received. 

 

Review/Approval of Meeting Minutes 

DISCUSSION 

 A quorum of the Engineering Committee was not present for the review of the 

Engineering Committee meeting minutes. 

 

111



ACTION TAKEN 

Action on the April 12, 2018, Engineering Committee meeting minutes will be deferred to the 

June 14, 2018, Engineering Committee meeting. 

 

Operations Report 

DISCUSSION 

Mr. Burror stated that he was working with Carollo Engineers on the development of a 

project considering the allocation of treatment costs. 

Mr. Burror noted that SOCWA was working with several of the member agencies to 

develop a plan for how to handle the discharge from vactor trucks.  

 

ACTION TAKEN 

No action necessary at this time. 

 

Proposed Modifications to the San Juan Creek Ocean Outfall Diffusers  

[Project Committee No. 5]  

DISCUSSION 

 Ms. Baylor reviewed the proposed modifications to the San Juan Creek Ocean Outfall 

diffusers.  Dr. Jenkins reviewed the objective of modifying the diffusers to reach a minimum 

200:1 initial dilution rate.  Michael Baker, Inc. reviewed two options for modifying the diffusers 

including (a) retrofitting duckbill nozzles over the ports and (b) retrofitting nozzle inserts into the 

existing ports.  The capital cost for the proposed improvements ranged from $368,900 to 

$836,500.  The retrofit of the diffusers is not recommended until the need for a modified dilution 

rate has been clarified. 

 

ACTION TAKEN 

No action necessary at this time.  

 

South Coast Water District Desalination Project Update  

DISCUSSION 

 Ms. Baylor gave an updated on the South Coast Water District Desalination Project with 

regards to impacts on the SOCWA operations.  Ms. Baylor noted that the Doheny Desalination 

project would be obtaining its own discharge permit through the Regional Water Quality Control 

Board (RWQCB).  However, the discharge permits for the Doheny Desalination project, the 

Aliso Creek Ocean Outfall and the San Juan Creek Ocean Outfall are to be reviewed together 

by the RWQCB.  These permits are expected to be issued by December 2019. 

 Ms. Baylor noted that the modeling completed by the GHD team indicates that treated 

wastewater discharges in the San Juan Creek Ocean Outfall could fall as low as 0.35 mgd while 

meeting ocean discharge requirements (for a desalination facility producing 5 mgd of product 

water). 

 

ACTION TAKEN 

No action necessary at this time. 

 

 

112



Review Draft Request for Proposals for Asset Register Pilot Project [Project Committees 

No. 2 & 17]  

DISCUSSION 

Mr. Peck presented the draft Request for Proposals (RFP) for the Asset Register Pilot 

Projects.  The scope for the Pilot Project work is largely drawn from the scope being used for 

similar work by Hazen & Sawyer for the Moulton Niguel Water District. The pilot work will be 

conducted at two locations: (a) J. B. Latham Treatment Plant Blower Building No.1 and (b) 

Regional Treatment Plant Anaerobic Digestion System.  Mr. Peck intends to issue this RFP to 

the following firms: Brown and Caldwell, Carollo Engineers, GHD, and Hazen & Sawyer.  The 

anticipated transmittal date for the RFP’s is May 29, 2018.  Mr. Peck asked that the Engineering 

Committee members provide any comments to Mr. Peck by May 24, 2018.  

 

ACTION TAKEN 

Comments on the draft Asset Register Pilot Projects RFP are requested by May 24, 2018. 

 

Odor Control System Reconstruction Preliminary Planning [Project Committees No. 2 & 17]  

DISCUSSION 

Mr. Peck provided a PowerPoint presentation regarding odor control system 

reconstruction planning at the J. B. Latham and Regional Treatment Plants.  The presentation 

was based on a series of technical reports prepared by Don King of DHK Engineering.  Mr. 

Peck noted of the six chemical odor control scrubbers operated by SOCWA, three were 

installed in the 1990’s.  These units have an expected life of 30 years.  Reasons for planning for 

the future replacement of these units include the following: (a) age of the assets, (b) high cost of 

chemical usage, (c) need for added redundancy during maintenance, (d) space utilization, and 

(e) changing attitudes on the part of plant neighbors.  Mr. Peck reviewed the technologies, site 

locations and estimated costs for new odor control facilities.  These projects are probably in the 

3 to 5-year planning time frame.  These improvements will be integrated into the draft Ten Year 

Plan. 

 

ACTION TAKEN 

No action necessary at this time. 

 

J.B. Latham Treatment Plant Package ‘B’ Project Status Update [Project Committee No.  2]  

DISCUSSION 

Ms. Young noted that Carollo Engineers would be making the 35% design submittal for 

the project later in May 2018.  Ms. Young presented four change orders to the Carollo 

Engineers construction services contract.  Change Order No. 1 involves the insulation of the 

domes for Digesters No.1 and No.2.  This will reduce the size of the needed boiler.  The design 

fee for Change Order No.1 is $18,925.00.  Change Order No.2 is a deduct of $2,449.00 

reflecting the decision to install one new boiler in the Energy Building rather that two boilers in 

the Digester Control Buildings.  Change Order No.3 involves the design of instrumentation 

modifications to the heat loop to allow for more robust monitoring of the hot water system.  The 

added design fee for Change Order No.3 is $43,998.00.  Change Order No.4 involves the 

installation of seismic wall anchors in the Energy Building.  The need for these anchors was 

identified in a condition assessment that was completed after the design of Package ‘B’ began.  

113



The design cost for Changer Order No.4 is $38,193.00.  The total amount of proposed changes 

to the construction services contract is $98,667.00. 

 

ACTION TAKEN 

The present Project Committee 2 Engineering Committee members supported the proposed 

amendments to the Carollo Engineers design contract. 

 

Regional Treatment Plant Co-Generation and Switchgear Project Construction Project 

Status Update [Project Committee No. 17]  

DISCUSSION 

Mr. Manning indicated that the project had been signed off by Southern California 

Edison (SCE) and that the paperwork for the SGIP grant had been submitted by the deadline.  

The commissioning of the system will take place in mid-June, 2018. 

 Mr. Manning presented five change orders to the Carollo Engineers construction 

services contract.  Change Order No. 7 involved additional time to obtain the permit to operate 

from SCE at a cost of $3,579.00. Change Order No. 8 involved on-site support and coordination 

for SCE commissioning at a cost of $5,794.00.   Change Order No. 9 involved working with 

Leed Electric to develop as-built drawings to reflect the significant number of changes from 

Design Clarification No.1.  The cost for Change Order No.9 is $14,776.00.  Change Order No. 

10 included assistance with operation of digester gas through the new boiler.  The cost for 

Change Order No.10 is $9,045.00.  Change Order No. 11 involved additional coordination with 

SCE.  The cost for Change Order No. 11 is $2,900.00.  The total amount of proposed changes 

to the construction services contract is $36,094. 

 

ACTION TAKEN 

The present Project Committee 17 Engineering Committee members supported the proposed 

amendments to the Carollo Engineers construction services contract. 

 

Coastal Treatment Plant Facility Improvements Project Status Update  

[Project Committee No. 15]  

DISCUSSION 

 Ms. Young reviewed the status of the Hazen & Sawyer work for the Coastal Treatment 

Plant Facility Improvements project.  Ms. Young presented a table with thirteen potential change 

orders for the design project.  Ms. Young reviewed the first five change orders noting that these 

were preliminary design issues that had already been completed.  Ms. Young discussed 

Change Order No.6 in some detail noting that the reasons for shifting the new switchgear from 

the originally planned location in the existing Switchgear Building to the existing Chlorine 

Building.  Ms. Young indicated that Change Order No.7 is a large deductive change order 

resulting from the removal of the proposed Headworks Screenings Compaction system.  This 

portion of the Facility Improvements Project has been deemed by staff to be of relatively lower 

importance compared to other needed improvements.  Mr. Peck noted that Hazen & Sawyer 

had not spent any of its fee on this item.  Ms. Young stated that this project component would 

be put back into a later year of the Ten-Year Plan.  Ms. Young review Change Orders No. 8 

through No. 10 that involved small increases to the design fee based on items identified after 

the start of design.  Change Order No.11 involved a deduction for rerouting conduit and 

conductors due to an alternative design approach.  Ms. Young identified Change Order No.12 

114



as another deduct change order to eliminate the standby power generator for MCC-1.  Ms. 

Burnett expressed concern that eliminating this item would create a greater exposure for the 

reliable operation of the headworks.  Mr. Peck indicated that MCC-1 was already served by the 

plant-wide standby power generator.  Ms. Burnett indicated that it was important for Project 

Committee 15 to review this item. 

 Change Order No.13 reflected added work for the design of the aeration system.  Mr. 

Peck noted that this cost was needed to design a new Blower Building.  CH2MHill had based 

the facility plan on installing the new blowers in the Auxiliary Blower Control Building.  This is the 

original blower building constructed in 1967.  However, Hazen & Sawyer had determined that 

the high efficiency turbo blowers would not fit into this building.  Mr. Peck expressed concern 

about adding $140,000 to a design fee for an item that was not likely to be constructed.  Mr. 

Peck made a PowerPoint presentation regarding the Coastal Plant aeration system.  Mr. Peck 

noted that the problem with the aeration system had always been that the three east aeration 

basins had a depth of 15 feet while the two west aeration basins have a depth of 25 feet.  It is 

problematic to use the same blowers to aerate the basins with different depths.  CH2MHill had 

noted that a plant with a 4 mgd capacity could be handled with operation of the three east 

aeration basins.  The bottom level in one of the west aeration basins could be raised to serve as 

a back-up basin.  This would allow the aeration system to run with multi-stage blowers on 

variable frequency drives while using the existing Blower Building.  However, maintaining the 

6.7 mgd capacity requires two separate blower systems.  Mr. Peck had originally believed that 

the Project Committee 15 dispute would be resolved prior to going to bid for the Facility 

Improvements Project.  However, it appears that a trial date may not be set until the autumn 

(the Facility Improvements project is scheduled to go out to bid in October, 2018).  Mr. Peck 

reviewed this situation with Mr. Burror and the SOCWA Operations Department.  It was agreed 

that the aeration portion of the project could be shifted two years to allow resolution of the plant 

capacity.  Therefore, Change Order No.13 is not recommended for execution. 

 Mr. Woods expressed concern that Mr. Peck had stated at a previous Engineering 

Committee meeting that all of the Project Committee 15 agencies believed that the 6.7 mgd 

capacity was to be maintained.  Mr. Woods emphasized that the Moulton Niguel Water District 

(MNWD) was not supportive of maintaining the 6.7 mgd capacity; MNWD is supportive of the 

remaining three agencies determining what those agencies need for their own capacity at the 

Coastal Treatment Plant.  MNWD has indicated in previous Engineering Committee meetings 

that MNWD did not intend to send wastewater flow to the Coastal Plant and did not intend to 

renew its participation in the Project Committee 15 agreement when the project agreement 

expires.  Mr. Peck clarified that MNWD’s prior Engineering Committee representative, Mr. Marc 

Serna, had supported the 6.7 mgd capacity as the baseline for engineering decision making 

while at the same time indicating MNWD had no interest in using its owned capacity at the 

Coastal Plant. 

 Ms. Young indicated that this item was being presented for information only.  Formal 

action would be taken at a subsequent Engineering Committee meeting. 

 

ACTION TAKEN 

No action necessary at this time. 

 

Adjournment 

There being no further business, Mr. Peck adjourned the meeting at 10:30 a.m. 

115



I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Minutes are a true and accurate copy of the Minutes of 
the Regular Meeting of the South Orange County Wastewater Authority Engineering Committee 
of May 10, 2018 and approved by the Board of Directors of the South Orange County 
Wastewater Authority. 
 

__________________________________________________________ 
Betty Burnett, General Manager/Secretary 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY 

116



Agenda Item                      
 Budgeted:  Yes  

 Budget Amount: $1,090,000 

 Line Item:  PC 15 Tasks 3364-000, 3365-
000, 3366-000, and 3596-000 

 Legal Counsel Review: Yes  

 Meeting Date:  October 4, 2018  

        

TO:   Project Committee 15 Board of Directors    
 

FROM:  Betty Burnett, General Manager 
 

STAFF CONTACT: Brian Peck, Director of Engineering 
 

SUBJECT:     Construction Contract for SS Mechanical Construction for the Coastal 
Treatment Plant Tertiary System Upgrade Project 

 

 

Summary 
 

This agenda item provides a recommendation for actions related to the award of a construction 
contract to SS Mechanical Construction for the Coastal Treatment Plant Tertiary System 
Upgrade Project. 
 

Background 
 

The Coastal Treatment Plant (CTP) Tertiary System Upgrades Project includes the following 
key elements: 
 

1. Replacement of components of the filtration system including filter media, butterfly 
valves and pneumatic actuators. 

 

2. Replacement of level floats with ultrasonic level meters. 
 

3. Recoating of the exterior of filtration tanks, piping and walkway supports and the 
replacement of corroded walkway support beams. 
 

4. Replacement of Filter Supply Pump No. 1 including base and motor, existing suction 
and discharge piping and valves and repair of the concrete pump pad. 
 

5. Replacement of two chlorine contact mixers. 
 

6. Replacement of Motor Control Center A (MCC A). 
 

Discussion/Analysis 
 

Bidding Process 
 

Bidding documents were made available to the following list of contractors on July 30, 2018: 
 

• Filanc 

• Gateway Pacific 

• Olsson Construction 

• Pacific Hydrotech 

• Pascal & Ludwig 

• S.S. Mechanical 

• Schuler Engineering 

117



Five bids were received and opened on August 30, 2018.  The results of these bids are 
summarized in Table 1. A tabulation of the bids is attached in Exhibit A. The apparent low 
bidder is S. S. Mechanical. 
  

Table 1 - Overall Bid Prices 

Contractor Bid Price 

Filanc $    960,076.00 

Olsson $    998,409.00 

Pacific Hydrotech $ 1,021,881.00 

Pascal & Ludwig $    921,400.00 

SS Mechanical Construction $    883,211.00 

 
Bid and Budget Evaluation 
 
The available budget and contingency levels are presented in Table 2.   
 
Table 2 - Project Bid, Budget and Contingency 
 

     
Contingency 

  

Bid 

Amount 

Task 

Code 
Budget 

Const. 

Man. 
Amount Percentage 

Chlorine 
Contact 
Basin Mixer $52,802.00 

3364-
000 $125,000.00   $72,198.00 136.73% 

Applied 
Water VFD 
Pump Panel 
and 
Electrical $146,327.00 

3596-
000 $230,000.00 $10,000.00 $73,673.00 50.35% 

MCC A 
Replacement $193,630.00 

3365-
000 $200,000.00 $15,000.00 -$8,630.00 -4.46% 

AWT Filter 
Valve 
Upgrades $490,452.00 

3366-
000 $535,000.00 $25,000.00 $19,548.00 3.99% 

  $883,211.00   $1,090,000.00 $50,000.00 $156,789.00 17.75% 

 

Advisory Committee Review 
 
The Coastal Treatment Plant Tertiary System Upgrade Project bids were reviewed by the 
members of the Project Committee 15 Engineering Committee on September 13, 2018.  The 
Engineering Committee recommended the award of the project to SS Mechanical Construction.  
It was noted during the Engineering Committee discussion that this contract amount only 
financially impacted the South Coast Water District (SCWD) as SCWD is the sole owner of 
tertiary capacity at the Coastal Plant.  

 

Fiscal Impact 
 
The proposed construction contract amount with S.S. Mechanical is $ 883,211.00. 
 

118



The project ledger for the Coastal Treatment Plant Tertiary System Upgrade Project is 
presented in Exhibit B. 
All costs for this project will be fully allocated to the South Coast Water District as this project is 
completely associated with the tertiary system.  
 

Requested Action 
 

The following action is requested: 
 

• Approve award of construction contract to SS Mechanical at a price not to exceed 
$883,211. 

 

 

119



E
X

H
IB

IT
 A

B
ID

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

C
T

P
 T

E
R

T
IA

R
Y

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

 U
P

G
R

A
D

E
S

B
a
s
e
 B

id
 I

te
m

 A
 -

 

S
S

 M
e
c
h

a
n

ic
a
l 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 C
o

rp
.

P
a
s
c
a
l 

&
 L

u
d

w
ig

O
ls

s
o

n
P

a
c
if

ic
 H

y
d

ro
te

c
h

F
il

a
n

c

 
1

M
o
b
ili

z
a
ti
o
n
/D

e
m

o
b
ili

z
a
ti
o
n

$
3
6
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
2
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
1
1
2
,8

0
0
.0

0
$
6
8
,9

6
6
.0

0

2

D
e
m

o
 o

f 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 F

ilt
e
r 

S
u
p
p
ly

 

P
u
m

p
 N

o
.1

 a
n
d
 a

p
p
u
rt

e
n
a
n
c
e
s
 a

s
 

s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 D

ra
w

in
g
s
 M

-1
$
4
,3

4
0
.0

0
$
4
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
6
,2

0
0
.0

0
$
5
,0

9
3
.0

0

3

In
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 f
ilt

e
r 

s
u
p
p
ly

 

p
u
m

p
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
u
rt

e
n
a
n
c
e
s
 a

s
 

s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 D

ra
w

in
g
s
 M

-2
 a

n
d
 M

-6
$
8
5
,6

3
7
.0

0
$
8
8
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
9
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
9
2
,3

0
0
.0

0
$
8
9
,9

4
5
.0

0

4

M
a
te

ri
a
ls

 a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

s
a
n
d
 

fi
lt
e
r 

re
h
a
b
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

g
u
a
ra

n
te

e
 p

ri
c
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
fo

r 
th

e
 

fi
lt
e
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 d

a
te

d
 o

n
 J

u
ly

 3
0
, 

2
0
1
8

$
1
1
3
,2

8
1
.0

0
$
1
1
3
,2

8
1
.0

0
$
1
1
3
,2

8
1
.0

0
$
1
1
3
,2

8
1
.0

0
$
1
1
3
,2

8
1
.0

0

5

F
ilt

e
r 

c
o
m

p
o
n
e
n
ts

 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

a
ll 

o
th

e
r 

w
o
rk

 a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 

D
ra

w
in

g
s
 M

-3
, 

M
-4

, 
M

-6
 a

n
d
 M

-7
.

$
1
2
9
,1

2
0
.0

0
$
1
6
6
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
2
8
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
1
7
5
,3

0
0
.0

0
$
1
5
7
,2

5
7
.0

0

 
6

T
h
e
 r

e
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 

c
o
a
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 

c
o
a
ti
n
g
 o

f 
fi
lt
e
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 a

s
 s

h
o
w

n
 

o
n
 D

ra
w

in
g
s
 M

-3
, 

M
-4

, 
M

N
-6

 a
n
d
 

M
-7

$
1
8
2
,1

2
5
.0

0
$
1
2
7
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
1
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
1
2
8
,7

0
0
.0

0
$
1
1
6
,6

9
1
.0

0

 
7

R
e
tr

o
fi
t 

o
f 

tw
o
 b

a
c
k
w

a
s
h
 p

u
m

p
 

im
p
e
lle

rs
 a

s
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 b

y
 O

w
n
e
r 

p
e
r 

S
p
e
c
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 0

1
0
2
0

$
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0

 
8

R
e
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

tw
o
 c

h
lo

ri
n
e
 

m
ix

e
rs

 a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 D

ra
w

in
g
 M

-5
$
5
1
,5

1
2
.0

0
$
4
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
5
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
4
3
,5

0
0
.0

0
$
4
3
,3

1
4
.0

0

9

P
re

p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 M
C

C
 A

 s
h
o
p
 

d
ra

w
in

g
s

$
6
,5

8
0
.0

0
$
7
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
1
1
,1

2
8
.0

0
$
8
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
1
0
,0

8
0
.0

0

1
0

P
re

p
 w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

te
m

p
. 

p
o
w

e
r 

a
n
d
 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

M
C

C
 A

, 
c
h
lo

ri
n
e
 

m
ix

e
rs

 a
n
d
 l
e
v
e
l 
tr

a
n
s
m

it
te

rs
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
, 

b
u
t 

n
o
t 

lim
it
e
d
 c

a
b
le

, 

c
o
n
d
u
it
s
, 

b
re

a
k
e
r,

 s
a
fe

ty
 s

w
it
c
h
, 

c
a
b
le

 p
e
n
e
tr

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

p
o
w

e
r 

a
n
d
 t

e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 p

o
w

e
r 

c
a
b
le

 

a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 D

ra
w

in
g
s
 E

-2
 a

n
d
 E

-

8
 

$
1
5
,8

0
0
.0

0
$
1
9
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
1
6
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
1
9
,3

0
0
.0

0
$
1
7
,6

9
6
.0

0

120



E
X

H
IB

IT
 A

B
ID

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

C
T

P
 T

E
R

T
IA

R
Y

 S
Y

S
T

E
M

 U
P

G
R

A
D

E
S

B
a
s
e
 B

id
 I

te
m

 A
 -

 

S
S

 M
e
c
h

a
n

ic
a
l 

C
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti

o
n

 C
o

rp
.

P
a
s
c
a
l 

&
 L

u
d

w
ig

O
ls

s
o

n
P

a
c
if

ic
 H

y
d

ro
te

c
h

F
il

a
n

c

1
1

D
e
m

o
 o

f 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 M

C
C

 A
 a

n
d
 

in
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 M
C

C
 A

 a
n
d
 

a
p
p
u
rt

e
n
a
n
c
e
s
 a

s
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 

D
ra

w
in

g
s
 E

-3
 a

n
d
 E

-4
$
1
7
1
,2

5
0
.0

0
$
2
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
1
7
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
2
0
9
,2

0
0
.0

0
$
1
6
9
,1

4
2
.0

0

1
2

F
ilt

e
r 

s
u
p
p
ly

 p
u
m

p
 e

le
c
tr

ic
a
l 
w

o
rk

 

a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 D

ra
w

in
g
s
 E

-5
, 

E
-7

, 
E

-

8
 a

n
d
 E

-9
$
2
8
,3

5
0
.0

0
$
3
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
2
8
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
3
4
,6

0
0
.0

0
$
2
3
,5

2
0
.0

0

1
3

C
h
lo

ri
n
e
 m

ix
e
r 

e
le

c
tr

ic
a
l 
w

o
rk

 a
s
 

s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 D

ra
w

in
g
 E

-6
$
1
,2

9
0
.0

0
$
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
2
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
1
,6

0
0
.0

0
$
1
7
,9

2
0
.0

0

1
4

F
ilt

e
r 

s
y
s
te

m
 u

lt
ra

s
o
n
ic

 l
e
v
e
l 

tr
a
n
s
m

it
te

rs
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
u
rt

e
n
a
n
c
e
s
 a

s
 

s
h
o
w

n
 o

n
 D

ra
w

in
g
 E

-1
0

$
2
9
,4

0
0
.0

0
$
3
8
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
3
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
5
0
,3

0
0
.0

0
$
2
5
,7

6
0
.0

0

1
5

In
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 o

f 
L
IT

/F
IT

 a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 o

n
 

D
ra

w
in

g
s
 E

-2
 a

n
d
 E

-8
$
9
,1

5
0
.0

0
$
1
1
,1

1
9
.0

0
$
1
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
1
6
,7

0
0
.0

0
$
2
4
,6

4
0
.0

0

1
6

A
ll 

o
th

e
r 

it
e
m

s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 t
o
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 t

h
e
 w

o
rk

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 

a
re

 n
o
t 

d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 i
n
 B

id
 I

te
m

s
 1

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

1
5

$
3
3
,1

3
1
.0

0
$
0
.0

0
$
3
,0

0
0
.0

0
$
1
0
0
.0

0
$
4
9
,5

7
1
.0

0

 
S

u
b
 T

o
ta

l
$
9
0
6
,9

6
6
.0

0
$
9
2
1
,4

0
0
.0

0
$
9
9
8
,4

0
9
.0

0
$
1
,0

2
1
,8

8
1
.0

0
$
9
4
2
,8

7
6
.0

0

 
A

d
d

/D
e
d

u
c
t

S
S

 M
e
c
h

a
n

ic
a
l

P
a
s
c
a
l 

&
 L

u
d

w
ig

O
ls

s
o

n
P

a
c
if

ic
 H

y
d

ro
T

e
c
h

F
il

a
n

c

-$
2
3
,7

5
5
.0

0
$
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0
$
0
.0

0
$
1
7
,2

0
0
.0

0

T
O

T
A

L
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
 P

R
IC

E
 

$
8
8
3
,2

1
1
.0

0
$
9
2
1
,4

0
0
.0

0
$
9
9
8
,4

0
9
.0

0
$
1
,0

2
1
,8

8
1
.0

0
$
9
6
0
,0

7
6
.0

0

121



E
X

H
IB

IT
 A

B
ID

 S
U

M
M

A
R

Y

S
T

A
T

E
M

E
N

T
S

 B
Y

 B
ID

D
E

R

S
u

p
p

li
e
rs

S
S

 M
e
c
h

a
n

ic
a
l

P
a
s
c
a
l 

&
 L

u
d

w
ig

O
ls

s
o

n
P

a
c
if

ic
 H

y
d

ro
T

e
c
h

F
il

a
n

c

H
o
ri
z
o
n
ta

l 
C

e
n
tr

if
u
g
a
l 
P

u
m

p
C

o
rn

e
ll

C
o
rn

e
ll

C
o
rn

e
ll

G
ru

n
d
fo

s
C

o
rn

e
ll

M
e
c
h
a
n
ic

a
l 
M

ix
e
r

E
n
v
ir
o
P

a
x

K
h
e
m

in
e
e
r

A
n
c
o
/E

n
v
ir
o
P

a
x

C
h
e
m

in
e
e
r

C
h
e
m

in
e
e
r

P
n
e
u
m

a
ti
c
a
lly

 A
c
tu

a
te

d
 B

u
tt

e
rf

ly
 

V
a
lv

e
B

ra
y

B
ra

y
B

ra
y

B
ra

y
B

ra
y

B
u
tt

e
rf

ly
 V

a
lv

e
M

u
e
lle

r
P

ra
tt

P
ra

tt
P

ra
tt

D
e
z
u
ri
k

C
h
e
c
k
 V

a
lv

e
M

u
e
lle

r
P

ra
tt

P
ra

tt
P

ra
tt

A
p
c
o

V
a
ri
a
b
le

 F
re

q
u
e
n
c
y
 D

r
T

o
s
h
ib

a
T

o
s
h
ib

a
T

o
s
h
ib

a
T

o
s
h
ib

a
T

o
s
h
ib

a

M
o
to

r 
C

o
n
tr

o
l 
C

e
n
te

r
A

lle
n
 B

ra
d
le

y
A

lle
n
 B

ra
d
le

y
A

lle
n
 B

ra
d
le

y
A

lle
n
 B

ra
d
ly

A
lle

n
 B

ra
d
le

y

U
lt
ra

s
o
n
ic

 L
iq

u
id

 L
e
v
e
l 
T

ra
n
s
m

it
te

r
H

y
d
ro

 R
a
n
g
e
r

S
ie

m
e
n
s

S
ie

m
e
n
s

S
ie

m
e
n
s

S
ie

m
e
n
s

S
u

b
c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
S

S
 M

e
c
h

a
n

ic
a
l

P
a
s
c
a
l 

&
 L

u
d

w
ig

O
ls

s
o

n
P

a
c
if

ic
 H

y
d

ro
T

e
c
h

F
il

a
n

c

E
le

c
tr

ic
a
l

H
y
d
ro

te
c
h
 E

le
c
tr

ic
a
l

H
y
d
ro

te
c
h
 E

le
c
tr

ic
a
l

H
y
d
ro

te
c
h
 E

le
c
tr

ic
a
l

H
y
d
ro

te
c
h
 E

le
c
tr

ic
a
l

H
y
d
ro

te
c
h
 E

le
c
tr

ic
a
l

C
o
a
ti
n
g

P
a
ra

d
a
 P

a
in

ti
n
g

P
a
ra

d
a
 P

a
in

ti
n
g

P
a
ra

d
a
 P

a
in

ti
n
g

P
a
ra

d
a
 P

a
in

ti
n
g

P
a
ra

d
a
 P

a
in

ti
n
g

122



Chlorine 

Contact Basins 

Mixers

Applied 

Water VFDs

MCC A 

Replace-

ment

AWT Filter 

Upgrade Total 

Budget (2018/19) 0.125 0.230 0.200 0.535 1.090

Budget Task Codes 3364-000 3596-000 3365-000 3366-000

Actual Bid Costs-Constr. 0.053 0.146 0.194 0.490 0.883
Construction Change 

Orders 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000
Previous Costs (Prior 

Construct and Design) 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000  

Contingency 0.072 0.074 -0.009 0.020 0.157

Construction Services 0.000 0.010 0.015 0.025 0.050

Total Project Costs 0.125 0.230 0.200 0.535 1.090

Spending

Total Current Spending 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000  

Remaining Spending (0.125) (0.230) (0.200) (0.535) (1.090)

Remaining Budget 0.125 0.230 0.200 0.535 1.090

Exhibit B

Project Cost Ledger:  Coastal Treatment Plant

Tertiary Upgrade Project

(Millions)

123



Agenda Item                       

 Legal Counsel Review: N/A 

 Meeting Date:  October 4, 2018 

        
TO:   Board of Directors   
 
FROM:  Betty Burnett, General Manager 
 
STAFF CONTACT: Mary Carey, Finance Controller 
     
SUBJECT:      Approval of FY 2016-17 Use Audit (Final) 

                  

 
Summary 
 
The Finance Committee and the Board of Directors received the draft FY 2016-17 Use Audit in 
early December 2017. The Finance Committee considered member agency staff comments to 
the draft Use Audit on December 11, 2017.  Several items were discussed at that time including: 
 

• Use Audit includes addition of Capital Assets placed in service 
 

• Effluent Pump Station costs for JBL are within PC 2 Liquids (policy decision of the Board 
within the Assumptions of the FY ’17-’18 Budget) 

 

• Adjustment to outfall flows for PC 5 
 

• MNWD/SMWD requested additional time to review the distribution of Oso/Trabuco flows 
to the JBL Plant (PC 2) 

 

Additionally, the Finance Committee and the Board of Directors again considered the approval of 
the 2016-17 Use Audit in March/April 2018.  Several additional directions were included from the 
member agencies, including: 
 

• Cost redistribution based on flow and solids as directed for the Oso Trabuco sewer line 
(by member agencies Santa Margarita Water District and Moulton Niguel Water District) 
 

• Correction to the FY 2016-17 Use Audit made to redistribute PC 24 cost 
 
At that time, MNWD again requested the approval remain in abeyance while staff investigated 
options and the Board considered policies for the distribution of Unfunded Liabilities (“Unfunded 
Liabilities” meaning PERS UAL, OPEB and Compensated Absences).    
 
In the intervening time period work has proceeded on the options for allocation of Unfunded 
Liabilities. 
 
At the August 29, 2018 Finance Committee meeting, the majority of the committee supported an 
approach to the distribution of Unfunded Liabilities based on percentages determined by historical 
labor distributions.  This method is recommended by outside consultants Bartel & Associates and 
Nyhart (“Actuaries”).  The Actuaries recommendation was also presented to the SOCWA Board 
of Directors for consideration of approval at the September 6, 2018 Board meeting.  MNWD 
requested additional time to review with its Board of Directors the Actuaries recommendation due 
to the financial impact to MNWD.   
 
 
 

124



Board of Directors Meeting 
October 4, 2018 
Page 2 of 2 

At the September 6, 2018 Board meeting direction was given to staff to proceed to bring back the 
FY 2016-17 Use Audit, and to present the FY 2017-18 Use Audit continuing the approach to 
Unfunded Liabilities used in prior period Use Audits (since 2015-16) which would include all 
PERS, OPEB and Compensated Absences incurred payments in the fringe pool approach.  As 
the member agencies are aware, the fringe pool is distributed based on annual distribution of 
labor across project committees with administration labor charged via the administration budget 
distribution, and a portion of that through the general fund distribution as approved by the Board 
with the annual budget (detailed in the Budget Assumptions portion of the Budget documents).   

The Finance Committee considered the FY2016-17 Use Audit again at its September 19, 2018 
meeting, and without additional changes recommends to the Board of Directors approval of the 
Use Audit and collection from and payments to SOCWA member agencies consistent with the 
results of the FY 2016-17 Use Audit as presented.   

Recommendation

The Finance Committee recommends to the Board of Directors approval of the Use Audit and 
collection from and payments to SOCWA member agencies consistent with the results of the FY 
2016-17 Use Audit as submitted.   

125



South Orange County Wastewater Authority 

USE AUDIT BOOK ‐ FINAL 

FY 2016‐17 Budget vs. Actual 

Finance Commi ee Mee ng September 19, 2018 

Board Mee ng October 4, 2018 

126



Pages Report Description

Pages 1-7 Management Discussion and Analysis of FY 2016-17 USE AUDIT
Page 8 USE AUDIT Summary
Page 9 Admin and Residual Engineering Allocation to PC and Member Agencies

Pages 10-10a USE Audit by Project Committee and Member Agency
Page 11 O&M Expenses by Project Committee
Page 12 *Wastewater Budget vs. Actual -PC 2
Page 13 *Wastewater Budget vs. Actual -PC 3
Page 14 *Wastewater Budget vs. Actual -PC 5
Page 15 *Wastewater Budget vs. Actual -PC 8
Page 16 *Wastewater Budget vs. Actual -PC 12
Page 17 *Wastewater Budget vs. Actual -PC 15
Page 18 *Wastewater Budget vs. Actual -PC 17
Page 19 *Wastewater Budget vs. Actual -PC 21
Page 20 *Wastewater Budget vs. Actual -PC 24

Pages 21-21x USE AUDIT Detail by Line Item, PC and Member Agency
Pages 22-22a O&M Summary by Account Code
Pages 23-23i Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee

Page 24 Engineering Budget vs. Actual
Page 25 Admin Budget vs. Actual
Page 26 IT Budget vs. Actual
Page 27 Direct Labor Dollars by Project Committee and Wastewater
Page 28 Direct Labor Percentages by Project Committee and Wastewater
Page 29 Overtime Labor Dollars by Project Committee and Wastewater
Page 30 Overtime Labor Percentages by Project Committee and Wastewater
Page 31 FY 2016-17 Fringe Benefits Pool
Page 32 Actual Flow and Solids PC 2
Page 33 Actual Flow PC 5
Page 34 PC 2SO/PC 12 Recycled Water
Page 35 Actual Flow PC 15
Page 36 Actual Flow and Solids PC 17
Page 37 Actual Flow PC 24

Page 38 Large Capital Completions FY 2016-17 Summary
Page 39 Assets In Service FY 2016-17

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
USE AUDIT Book

FY 2016-17 Budget vs. Actual

Table of Contents

*Wastewater is name for Liquids, Solids, Common, AWT and other processes

Large Capital

127



 

1 
 

 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS of 

FY 2016-17 USE AUDIT  
 
 

 
 

The USE AUDIT results are comprised of: 
 
 O&M Spending and/or Usage Variance, $695 thousand, or 3.5% under budget 
 Small Capital Spending Variance, $145 thousand over budget, primarily due to the 

purchase of IT Equipment, Business Servers, $114 thousand, which was approved at 
the May 2017 Board Meeting.  The remaining $32 thousand difference was due to a 
combination of emergency equipment replacements and required storm water site 
improvements. 

 Completed Large Capital Projects, $49 thousand under budget 
 Net Refund Due is $600 thousand. 

 
The overall result is a refund; however, there are some Member Agencies with O&M Spending 
Variances and Usage Variances that are over budget which resulted in owing additional 
assessments.   This analysis will focus on the significant variances for those agencies. 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

`

Small Capital Large Capital

FY 2016-17 
Budget

Updated     
FY 2016-17  

Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
(Over)/Under 

Budget
(Over)/Under 

Budget
USE Audit 

Results

SOCWA by Member Agency
     City of Laguna Beach 2,229,832 1,984,598 245,234 (19,660) 225,574
     City of San Clemente 115,988 135,201 (19,213) (881) (20,094)
     City of San Juan Capistrano 2,398,516 1,995,575 402,941 (19,774) 15,171 398,339
     El Toro Water District 954,336 728,928 225,408 (6,140) 219,268
     Emerald Bay Service District 90,156 81,796 8,360 (1,463) 6,897
     Irvine Ranch Water District 193,396 147,885 45,511 (576) 44,935
     Moulton Niguel Water District 8,341,244 8,275,402 65,842 (77,123) 11,159 (122)
     Santa Margarita Water District 1,881,532 2,064,755 (183,223) (11,648) 11,406 (183,465)
     South Coast Water District 3,391,852 3,491,792 (99,940) (7,541) 12,195 (95,287)
     Trabuco Canyon Water District 26,900 22,776 4,124 4,124

Total Member Agency 19,623,752 18,928,708 695,044 (144,805) 49,931 600,170

Actual Spending and Actual Usage
O&M 

128



 

2 
 

 

 Moulton Niguel Water District O&M variance is $66 thousand under budget due to 
increased/over budget usage totaling $190 thousand (see chart below) offset by reduced 
spending. 

 City of San Juan Capistrano O&M variance is $403 thousand under budget primarily due 
to lower/under budget usage totaling $408 thousand (see chart below). 

 City of Laguna Beach O&M variance is $245 thousand under budget primarily due to 
lower/under budget usage totaling $41 thousand (see chart below) and reduced spending. 

 El Toro Water District O&M variance is $225 thousand under budget primarily due to 
lower/under budget usage totaling $119 thousand (see chart below) and reduced 
spending. 

 South Coast Water District O&M variance is $100 thousand over budget primarily due to 
increased/ over budget usage totaling $181 thousand (see chart below) offset by reduced 
spending. 

 Irvine Ranch Water District O&M variance is $46 thousand under budget due to increased/ 
over budget usage totaling $3 thousand (see chart below) offset by reduced spending. 

 City of San Clemente O&M variance is $19 thousand over budget due to increased/ over 
budget usage totaling $4 thousand (see chart below) with the remainder due to increased 
spending. 

 
Calculation of Usage Variance: 
 

1. The budget is prepared based on estimated flows, solids loading, labor usage, etc. and 
is reviewed with each agency as the budget is prepared. 

2. Actual expenses are allocated based on actual flows, solids loading, labor usage, etc. 
3. The difference between #1 and #2 is the usage variance. 

 
Variance due to (Increased)/Decreased Usage (flows, solids loading, labor usage, etc.) 
compared to Budget: 

 

O&M Usage Variance by Member 
Agency

(Used More)/ 
Used Less $

SOCWA by Member Agency
     City of Laguna Beach 40,647
     City of San Clemente (4,154)
     City of San Juan Capistrano 408,116
     El Toro Water District 118,573
     Emerald Bay Service District 3,460
     Irvine Ranch Water District (2,742)
     Moulton Niguel Water District (190,011)
     Santa Margarita Water District (190,609)
     South Coast Water District (180,856)
     Trabuco Canyon Water District (2,423)

Total Member Agency 0

129



 

3 
 

 
 
 
PC 2 
The Project Committee was $60 thousand under budget.  
 
PC 2 (Refer to page 12) 
Budget vs. Actual Spending: 

 
 
 
Budget vs. Actual Usage: 

Liquids Solids 

Member Agency Budget Actual 
% 

Variance 
Budget Actual 

% 
Variance 

     City of San Juan Capistrano 38.0% 31.96% 6.1% 33.4% 24.54% 8.8% 
     Moulton Niguel Water District 16.7% 21.10% -4.4% 20.2% 18.70% 1.5% 
     Santa Margarita Water District 21.4% 21.31% 0.1% 25.9% 33.82% -7.9% 
     South Coast Water District 23.8% 25.63% -1.8% 20.5% 22.94% -2.4% 

Total 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 
 

 
Liquids Variance: 
 Liquids spending variance was $215 thousand or 10.6% over budget due to increased 

activity 
 MNWD usage was up 4.4% resulting in $135 thousand additional assessments 
 CSJC usage was down 6.1% resulting in a refund of $54 thousand 
 SCWD usage was up 1.8% resulting in $91 thousand additional assessments 
 SMWD had a slight reduction in usage, .1%, however, an additional assessment of $43 

thousand is due because of increased spending. 
 

Solids Variance: 
 Solids spending variance was $160 thousand or 6.6% under budget due to less activity 
 MNWD usage was down 1.5% resulting in a refund of $65 thousand 
 SMWD usage was up 7.9 % resulting in additional assessments of $138 thousand  
 SCWD usage was up 2.4% resulting in additional assessments of $22 thousand 
 CSJC usage was down 8.8% resulting in $254 thousand refund. 

Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance
Member Agency
     City of San Juan Capistrano 771,920 717,616 54,304 810,960 556,976 253,984
     Moulton Niguel Water District 338,860 473,628 (134,768) 489,776 424,490 65,286
     Santa Margarita Water District 435,500 478,452 (42,952) 629,712 767,736 (138,024)
     South Coast Water District 484,032 575,512 (91,480) 499,020 520,652 (21,632)

Total 2,030,312 2,245,208 (214,896) 2,429,468 2,269,854 159,614
-10.6% 6.6%

Liquids Solids

130



 

4 
 

 
PC 2 Cont’d. 

 
Common Spending Variance is $116 thousand under budget. 
 

 Common - Liquids Common - Solids 

 
Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance 

Member Agency           

City of San Juan Capistrano 200,880  183,100  17,780  195,896  178,496  17,400  

Moulton Niguel Water District 150,692  137,336  13,356  141,156  128,652  12,504  

Santa Margarita Water District 188,300  102,936  85,364  130,592  168,868  (38,276) 

South Coast Water District 113,040  171,680  (58,640) 185,292  119,024  66,268  

Total 652,912  595,052  57,860  652,936  595,040  57,896  
 

 

 

 

 

 Spending Variance Spending Variance 

 
Common - Liquids Common - Solids 

Member Agency Budget Actual 
% 

Variance 
Budget Actual 

% 
Variance 

City of San Juan Capistrano 30.8% 30.8% 0.0% 30.0% 30.0% 0.0% 

Moulton Niguel Water District 23.1% 23.1% 0.0% 21.6% 21.6% 0.0% 

*Santa Margarita Water District 28.8% 17.3% 11.5% 20.0% 28.4% -8.4% 

*South Coast Water District 17.3% 28.9% -11.5% 28.4% 20.0% 8.4% 

Total 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 

 No Change in Allocation %'s 
 

 

 

*Santa Margarita Water District and South Coast Water District Common-Liquids and Common-
Solids capacity percentages were switched in the Budget; the Use Audit percentages are 
correct and the (over) and under billed amounts are corrected in the Use Audit results. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

131



 

5 
 

 
 
 
 
PC 15 
Budget vs. Actual Spending: 

 Liquids Common Liquids AWT 

 
Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance 

Member Agency                

City of Laguna Beach 1,079,024  879,400  199,624  323,856  340,840  (16,984)      

Emerald Bay Service District 33,648  24,836  8,812  25,528  26,876  (1,348)      

Moulton Niguel Water District 0  0  0  249,928  263,019  (13,091)      

South Coast Water District 667,616  586,272  81,344  255,040  268,372  (13,332) 295,768  334,792  (39,024) 

Total 1,780,288  1,490,508  289,780  854,352  899,107  (44,755) 295,768  334,792  (39,024) 

   16.3%   -5.2%   -13.2% 

 
 
 

Budget vs. Actual Usage: 
 

Spending Variance 

 Liquids Common Liquids AWT 

Member Agency Budget Actual 
% 

Variance 
Budget Actual 

% 
Variance 

Budget Actual 
% 

Variance 

City of Laguna Beach 60.6% 59.0% 1.6% 37.9% 37.9% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Emerald Bay Service District 1.9% 1.7% 0.2% 3.0% 3.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

Moulton Niguel Water District 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 29.3% 29.3% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 

South Coast Water District 37.5% 39.3% -1.8% 29.9% 29.8% 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 

Total 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 

 
Liquids Variance: 
 Liquids spending variance is $290 thousand or 16.3% under budget. 
 CLB Usage is 1.6% under budget resulting in a refund of $200 thousand 
 SCWD Usage is 1.8% over budget but a refund of $81 thousand is due because of lower 

spending. 
 
Common Variance: 
 The variance, $45 thousand over budget, is primarily due to increased spending for IT 

direct, SCADA system upgrades due to obsolescence, landscaping and insurance. 
 
 
 
 
 

132



 

6 
 

 
 
PC 17 
Budget vs. Actual Spending: 

   Liquids     Solids     AWT   

 Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance 

Member Agency                
City of Laguna Beach 3,444  3,156  288  448,392  383,616  64,776  0  0  0  

El Toro Water District 4,052  3,640  412  559,900  430,152  129,748  0  0  0  

Emerald Bay Service District 192  100  92  13,856  11,832  2,024  0  0  0  

Moulton Niguel Water District 2,014,484  2,009,461  5,023  2,162,696  1,983,112  179,584  536,940  540,472  (3,532) 

South Coast Water District 2,028  2,096  (68) 277,692  265,060  12,632  0  0  0  

Total 2,024,200  2,018,453  5,747  3,462,536  3,073,772  388,764  536,940  540,472  (3,532) 
   0.3%   11.2%   -0.7% 

 
   

Budget vs. Actual Usage: 

       Spending Variance 

   Liquids     Solids     AWT   

 
Budget Actual 

% 
Variance 

Budget Actual 
% 

Variance 
Budget Actual % Variance 

Member Agency             
City of Laguna Beach 0.2% 0.2% 0.0% 12.9% 12.5% 0.5%    0.0% 

El Toro Water District 0.2% 0.2% 0.0% 16.2% 14.0% 2.2%    0.0% 
Emerald Bay Service 
District 

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.4% 0.4% 0.0%    0.0% 

Moulton Niguel Water 
District 

99.5% 99.6% 0.0% 62.5% 64.5% -2.1% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 

South Coast Water District 0.1% 0.1% 0.0% 8.0% 8.6% -0.6%    0.0% 

Total 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 

 
Liquids Variance: 
 Liquids spending is $5,747 or .3% under budget 
 MNWD received most of the benefits of the lower spending, $5,023, since its 

participation percentage is 99.6%. 
 

Solids Variance: 
 Solids spending is $389 thousand or 11.2% under budget 
 MNWD Usage is 2.1% over budget, however, a refund is due because of lower spending  
 The remaining agencies refunds are due to lower usage and spending  

 
AWT Variance: 
 AWT spending is $3,532 or .7% over budget. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

133



 

7 
 

 
PC 17 Cont’d. 
 
Common spending variance is $57 thousand under budget.  
 

   Common Liquids   Common Solids 
 Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual Variance 

Member Agency           
City of Laguna Beach 0  0  0  59,832  60,436  (604) 

El Toro Water District 0  0  0  108,860  109,944  (1,084) 

Emerald Bay Service District 0  0  0  3,144  3,168  (24) 

Moulton Niguel Water District 681,988  619,876  62,112  313,692  316,908  (3,216) 

South Coast Water District 0  0  0  47,788  48,272  (484) 

Total 681,988  619,876  62,112  533,316  538,728  (5,412) 
   9.1%   -1.0% 

       
 Spending Variance Spending Variance 

   Common Liquids   Common Solids 

 
Budget Actual Variance Budget Actual 

% 
Variance 

Member Agency           
City of Laguna Beach 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 11.2% 11.2% 0.0% 

El Toro Water District 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 20.4% 20.4% 0.0% 

Emerald Bay Service District 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.6% 0.6% 0.0% 

Moulton Niguel Water District 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 58.8% 58.8% 0.0% 

South Coast Water District 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 9.0% 9.0% 0.0% 

Total 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0% 

 

134



`

Small Capital Large Capital

FY 2016-17 
Budget

Updated     
FY 2016-17  

Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
(Over)/Under 

Budget
(Over)/Under 

Budget
USE Audit 

Results

SOCWA by Member Agency
     City of Laguna Beach 2,229,832 1,984,598 245,234 (19,660) 225,574
     City of San Clemente 115,988 135,201 (19,213) (881) (20,094)
     City of San Juan Capistrano 2,398,516 1,995,575 402,941 (19,774) 15,171 398,339
     El Toro Water District 954,336 728,928 225,408 (6,140) 219,268
     Emerald Bay Service District 90,156 81,796 8,360 (1,463) 6,897
     Irvine Ranch Water District 193,396 147,885 45,511 (576) 44,935
     Moulton Niguel Water District 8,341,244 8,275,402 65,842 (77,123) 11,159 (122)
     Santa Margarita Water District 1,881,532 2,064,755 (183,223) (11,648) 11,406 (183,465)
     South Coast Water District 3,391,852 3,491,792 (99,940) (7,541) 12,195 (95,287)
     Trabuco Canyon Water District 26,900 22,776 4,124 4,124

Total Member Agency 19,623,752 18,928,708 695,044 (144,805) 49,931 600,170

Small Capital Large Capital Total
FY 2016-17 

Budget FY 2016-17 
(Over)/Under 

Budget
(Over)/Under 

Budget
(Over)/Under 

Budget
USE Audit 

Results
SOCWA by Member Agency
     City of Laguna Beach 2,229,832 2,025,245 204,587 (19,660) 184,926
     City of San Clemente 115,988 131,048 (15,060) (881) (15,940)
     City of San Juan Capistrano 2,398,516 2,403,690 (5,174) (19,774) 15,171 (9,777)
     El Toro Water District 954,336 847,501 106,835 (6,140) 100,696
     Emerald Bay Service District 90,156 85,256 4,900 (1,463) 3,437
     Irvine Ranch Water District 193,396 145,143 48,253 (576) 47,677
     Moulton Niguel Water District 8,341,244 8,085,391 255,853 (77,123) 11,159 189,889
     Santa Margarita Water District 1,881,532 1,874,146 7,386 (11,648) 11,406 7,144
     South Coast Water District 3,391,852 3,310,936 80,916 (7,541) 12,195 85,569
     Trabuco Canyon Water District 26,900 20,353 6,547 -                  6,547

Total Member Agency 19,623,752 18,928,709 695,043 (144,805) 49,931 600,169

Small Capital Large Capital Total
FY 2016-17 

Budget
FY 2016-17 

Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
(Over)/Under 

Budget
(Over)/Under 

Budget
USE Audit 

Results
SOCWA by Member Agency
     City of Laguna Beach 40,647
     City of San Clemente (4,154)
     City of San Juan Capistrano 408,116
     El Toro Water District 118,573
     Emerald Bay Service District 3,460
     Irvine Ranch Water District (2,742)
     Moulton Niguel Water District (190,011)
     Santa Margarita Water District (190,609)
     South Coast Water District (180,856)
     Trabuco Canyon Water District (2,423)

Total Member Agency

O&M 

O&M 

Actual Spending and Actual Usage
O&M 

Actual Spending and Budget Usage

Usage Variance (Used More)/Used Less)

Page 8

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
FY 2016-17 USE AUDIT Summary

135



PC 24 Cost Distribution Correction

Original 
O&M Actual

PC 2 Change 
Only

Member Agency 
Impact

Original 
O&M Actual

Member Agency 
Impact

1,958,644 1,958,644 1,958,644 25,954
135,201 135,201 135,201 0

1,995,575 1,995,575 1,995,575 0
695,114 695,114 695,114 33,814
81,061 81,061 81,061 735

260,392 260,392 260,392 (112,507)
8,425,530 8,233,021 192,509            8,233,021 42,381
1,872,246 2,064,755 (192,509)           2,064,755 0
3,482,170 3,482,170 3,482,170 9,622

22,776 22,776 22,776 0
18,928,709 18,928,709 0                       18,928,709 (0)

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
FY 2016-17 USE AUDIT Summary

PC 2 Flows and Solids Change

Page 8a

136



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 
Actual

(Over)/Under 
Budget % Expended

Member Agency
     City of Laguna Beach 1,984,456 1,739,148 245,308 87.6%
     City of San Clemente 103,224 118,480 (15,256) 114.8%
     City of San Juan Capistrano 2,134,580 1,748,767 385,813 81.9%
     El Toro Water District 849,324 638,776 210,548 75.2%
     Emerald Bay Service District 80,236 71,680 8,556 89.3%
     Irvine Ranch Water District 172,116 129,595 42,521 75.3%
     Moulton Niguel Water District 7,423,356 7,251,921 171,435 97.7%
     Santa Margarita Water District 1,674,484 1,809,391 (134,907) 108.1%
     South Coast Water District 3,018,608 3,059,936 (41,328) 101.4%
     Trabuco Canyon Water District 23,940 19,959 3,981 83.4%

Total Member Agency 17,464,324 16,587,653 876,671 95.0%

Residual Engineering 297,000 344,018 (47,018) 115.8%
Administration & Other Costs 1,862,436 1,997,037 (134,601) 107.2%
Total Admin & Engineering 2,159,436 2,341,055 (181,619) 108.4%

Member Agency Admin Allocation (Percentage)
     City of Laguna Beach 11.4% 10.5% 0.9%
     City of San Clemente 0.6% 0.7% -0.1%
     City of San Juan Capistrano 12.2% 10.5% 1.7%
     El Toro Water District 4.9% 3.9% 1.0%
     Emerald Bay Service District 0.5% 0.4% 0.0%
     Irvine Ranch Water District 1.0% 0.8% 0.2%
     Moulton Niguel Water District 42.5% 43.7% -1.2%
     Santa Margarita Water District 9.6% 10.9% -1.3%
     South Coast Water District 17.3% 18.4% -1.2%
     Trabuco Canyon Water District 0.1% 0.1% 0.0%

Total Member Agency 100.0% 100.0% 0.0%

Member Agency Admin Allocation (Dollars)
     City of Laguna Beach 245,375 245,450 (75) 100.0%
     City of San Clemente 12,763 16,721 (3,958) 131.0%
     City of San Juan Capistrano 263,937 246,808 17,130 93.5%
     El Toro Water District 105,018 90,152 14,866 85.8%
     Emerald Bay Service District 9,921 10,116 (195) 102.0%
     Irvine Ranch Water District 21,282 18,290 2,992 85.9%
     Moulton Niguel Water District 917,886 1,023,481 (105,595) 111.5%
     Santa Margarita Water District 207,047 255,364 (48,316) 123.3%
     South Coast Water District 373,246 431,856 (58,610) 115.7%
     Trabuco Canyon Water District 2,960 2,817 143 95.2%

Total Member Agency 2,159,436 2,341,055 (181,619) 108.4%

SOCWA by Member Agency (O&M + Admin + Engineering)
     City of Laguna Beach 2,229,831 1,984,598 245,233 89.0%
     City of San Clemente 115,987 135,201 (19,214) 116.6%
     City of San Juan Capistrano 2,398,517 1,995,575 402,943 83.2%
     El Toro Water District 954,342 728,928 225,414 76.4%
     Emerald Bay Service District 90,157 81,796 8,361 90.7%
     Irvine Ranch Water District 193,398 147,885 45,513 76.5%
     Moulton Niguel Water District 8,341,242 8,275,402 65,840 99.2%
     Santa Margarita Water District 1,881,531 2,064,755 (183,223) 109.7%
     South Coast Water District 3,391,854 3,491,792 (99,938) 102.9%
     Trabuco Canyon Water District 26,900 22,776 4,124 84.7%

Total Member Agency 19,623,760 18,928,708 695,052 96.5%

Billing Rounding Difference (8) (8)

Amount Invoiced 19,623,752 695,044

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
FY 2016-17 USE AUDIT BY MEMBER AGENCY

O&M 

Page 9

137



C
it

y 
o

f 
S

a
n

E
l T

o
ro

E
m

e
ra

ld
Ir

vi
n

e
 R

a
n

c
h

M
o

u
lt

o
n

S
a

n
ta

 
S

o
u

th
T

ra
b

u
c

o

C
it

y 
o

f
C

it
y 

o
f

J
u

a
n

W
a

te
r

B
a

y 
S

e
rv

ic
e

W
a

te
r

N
ig

u
e

l W
a

te
r

M
a

rg
a

ri
ta

C
o

a
st

 W
a

te
r

C
a

n
yo

n
 W

a
te

r

L
a

g
u

n
a

 B
e

a
c

h
S

a
n

 C
le

m
e

n
te

C
a

p
is

tr
a

n
o

D
is

tr
ic

t
D

is
tr

ic
t

D
is

tr
ic

t
D

is
tr

ic
t

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t
D

is
tr

ic
t

D
is

tr
ic

t
T

o
ta

l

O
&

M
 A

ct
u

al
P

ro
je

ct
 C

om
m

itt
ee

   
  P

C
 2

 -
 J

ay
 B

. L
at

ha
m

 P
la

nt
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

63
6,

18
8

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

16
4,

10
6

   
   

 
1,

51
7,

99
2

   
   

 
1,

38
6,

86
8

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

70
5,

15
4

   
   

   

   
  P

C
 3

 -
 S

O
C

W
A

 P
la

nt
/P

C
A

 A
W

T
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
14

9
   

   
   

   
  

40
8

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

55
7

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
  P

C
 5

 -
 S

an
 J

ua
n 

C
re

ek
 O

ce
an

 O
ut

fa
ll

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
5,

25
6

   
   

   
  

85
,9

63
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
89

,9
00

   
   

   
   

19
3,

54
9

   
   

   
 

75
,1

77
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
54

9,
84

5
   

   
   

   

   
  P

C
 8

 -
 P

re
tr

ea
tm

en
t P

ro
gr

am
6,

02
4

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
,2

24
   

   
   

   
 

7,
02

8
   

   
   

   
  

4,
02

0
   

   
   

  
1,

84
0

   
   

   
18

,2
32

   
   

   
  

35
,4

27
   

   
   

   
38

,3
08

   
   

   
   

26
,0

60
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

0,
16

3
   

   
   

   

   
  P

C
 1

2 
S

O
- 

W
at

er
 R

ec
la

m
at

io
n 

P
er

m
its

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

19
,5

88
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

21
,3

75
   

   
   

  
53

,1
77

   
   

   
   

59
,1

34
   

   
   

   
22

,0
19

   
   

   
   

19
,9

59
   

   
   

   
 

19
5,

25
2

   
   

   
   

   
  P

C
 1

5 
- 

C
oa

st
al

 T
re

at
m

en
t P

la
nt

/A
W

T
1,

22
0,

24
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

51
,7

12
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
26

3,
01

9
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
18

9,
43

6
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
72

4,
40

7
   

   
   

   
  P

C
 1

7 
- 

Jo
in

t R
eg

io
na

l W
as

te
w

at
er

 R
ec

la
im

at
io

n
44

7,
20

8
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

54
3,

73
6

   
   

 
15

,1
00

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

5,
46

9,
82

9
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
31

5,
42

8
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

79
1,

30
1

   
   

   

   
  P

C
 2

1 
 E

ffl
ue

nt
 T

ra
ns

m
is

si
on

 M
ai

n
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

54
8

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

54
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
0

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
33

6
   

   
   

   
   

 

   
  P

C
 2

4 
- 

A
lis

o 
C

re
ek

 O
ce

an
 O

ut
fa

ll
65

,6
76

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

90
,4

72
   

   
   

3,
02

8
   

   
   

89
,4

40
   

   
   

  
17

2,
07

4
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

44
,9

48
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
46

5,
63

8
   

   
   

   

T
o

ta
l

1,
73

9,
14

8
   

   
   

11
8,

48
0

   
   

   
  

1,
74

8,
76

7
   

   
 

63
8,

77
6

   
   

 
71

,6
80

   
   

 
12

9,
59

5
   

   
   

7,
25

1,
92

1
   

   
 

1,
80

9,
39

1
   

   
 

3,
05

9,
93

6
   

   
 

19
,9

59
   

   
   

   
 

16
,5

87
,6

53
   

   
 

T
o

ta
l A

d
m

in
 &

 E
n

g
in

ee
ri

n
g

24
5,

45
0

   
   

   
   

16
,7

21
   

   
   

   
 

24
6,

80
8

   
   

   
 

90
,1

52
   

   
   

10
,1

16
   

   
 

18
,2

90
   

   
   

  
1,

02
3,

48
1

   
   

 
25

5,
36

4
   

   
   

 
43

1,
85

6
   

   
   

 
2,

81
7

   
   

   
   

   
2,

34
1,

05
5

   
   

   

A
d

m
in

 A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

 t
o

 P
ro

je
ct

 C
o

m
m

it
te

es
:

P
ro

je
ct

 C
om

m
itt

ee

   
  P

C
 2

 -
 J

ay
 B

. L
at

ha
m

 P
la

nt
0.

0%
0.

0%
93

.6
%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

16
.1

%
83

.9
%

45
.3

%
0.

0%
34

.4
%

   
  P

C
 3

 -
 S

O
C

W
A

 P
la

nt
/P

C
A

 A
W

T
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

1%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
   

  P
C

 5
 -

 S
an

 J
ua

n 
C

re
ek

 O
ce

an
 O

ut
fa

ll
0.

0%
88

.8
%

4.
9%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

1.
2%

10
.7

%
2.

5%
0.

0%
3.

3%
   

  P
C

 8
 -

 P
re

tr
ea

tm
en

t P
ro

gr
am

0.
3%

11
.2

%
0.

4%
0.

6%
2.

6%
14

.1
%

0.
5%

2.
1%

0.
9%

0.
0%

0.
9%

   
  P

C
 1

2 
S

O
- 

W
at

er
 R

ec
la

m
at

io
n 

P
er

m
its

0.
0%

0.
0%

1.
1%

0.
0%

0.
0%

16
.5

%
0.

7%
3.

3%
0.

7%
10

0.
0%

1.
2%

   
  P

C
 1

5 
- 

C
oa

st
al

 T
re

at
m

en
t P

la
nt

/A
W

T
70

.2
%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

72
.1

%
0.

0%
3.

6%
0.

0%
38

.9
%

0.
0%

16
.4

%
   

  P
C

 1
7 

- 
Jo

in
t R

eg
io

na
l W

as
te

w
at

er
 R

ec
la

im
at

io
n

25
.7

%
0.

0%
0.

0%
85

.1
%

21
.1

%
0.

0%
75

.4
%

0.
0%

10
.3

%
0.

0%
40

.9
%

   
  P

C
 2

1 
 E

ffl
ue

nt
 T

ra
ns

m
is

si
on

 M
ai

n
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

1%
0.

0%
0.

4%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
   

  P
C

 2
4 

- 
A

lis
o 

C
re

ek
 O

ce
an

 O
ut

fa
ll

3.
8%

0.
0%

0.
0%

14
.2

%
4.

2%
69

.0
%

2.
4%

0.
0%

1.
5%

0.
0%

2.
8%

T
o

ta
l

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0

.0
%

A
d

m
in

 A
llo

ca
ti

o
n

 t
o

 P
ro

je
ct

 C
o

m
m

it
te

es
:

P
ro

je
ct

 C
om

m
itt

ee

   
  P

C
 2

 -
 J

ay
 B

. L
at

ha
m

 P
la

nt
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
23

0,
91

9
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
16

4,
29

3
   

   
   

 
21

4,
23

8
   

   
   

 
19

5,
73

2
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
80

5,
18

2
   

   
   

   
   

  P
C

 3
 -

 S
O

C
W

A
 P

la
nt

/P
C

A
 A

W
T

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
58

6
   

   
   

   
   

  
58

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

64
3

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

  P
C

 5
 -

 S
an

 J
ua

n 
C

re
ek

 O
ce

an
 O

ut
fa

ll
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
14

,8
55

   
   

   
   

 
12

,1
32

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
,6

88
   

   
   

   
27

,3
16

   
   

   
   

10
,6

10
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
77

,6
01

   
   

   
   

  
   

  P
C

 8
 -

 P
re

tr
ea

tm
en

t P
ro

gr
am

85
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

86
6

   
   

   
   

   
99

2
   

   
   

   
   

  
56

7
   

   
   

   
  

26
0

   
   

   
   

2,
57

3
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0
   

   
   

   
  

5,
40

6
   

   
   

   
  

3,
67

8
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

21
,1

93
   

   
   

   
  

   
  P

C
 1

2 
S

O
- 

W
at

er
 R

ec
la

m
at

io
n 

P
er

m
its

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
76

5
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
3,

01
7

   
   

   
   

 
7,

50
5

   
   

   
   

  
8,

34
6

   
   

   
   

  
3,

10
8

   
   

   
   

  
2,

81
7

   
   

   
   

   
27

,5
56

   
   

   
   

  
   

  P
C

 1
5 

- 
C

oa
st

al
 T

re
at

m
en

t P
la

nt
/A

W
T

17
2,

21
5

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
7,

29
8

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

37
,1

21
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
7,

86
8

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

38
4,

50
2

   
   

   
   

   
  P

C
 1

7 
- 

Jo
in

t R
eg

io
na

l W
as

te
w

at
er

 R
ec

la
im

at
io

n
63

,1
16

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

76
,7

39
   

   
   

2,
13

1
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
77

1,
97

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

44
,5

17
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
95

8,
47

2
   

   
   

   
   

  P
C

 2
1 

 E
ffl

ue
nt

 T
ra

ns
m

is
si

on
 M

ai
n

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
77

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
77

   
   

   
   

   
   

34
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

18
9

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

  P
C

 2
4 

- 
A

lis
o 

C
re

ek
 O

ce
an

 O
ut

fa
ll

9,
26

9
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
,7

69
   

   
   

42
7

   
   

   
   

12
,6

23
   

   
   

  
24

,2
85

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
6,

34
4

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
65

,7
17

   
   

   
   

  
T

o
ta

l
24

5,
45

0
   

   
   

   
16

,7
21

   
   

   
   

 
24

6,
80

8
   

   
   

 
90

,1
52

   
   

   
10

,1
16

   
   

 
18

,2
90

   
   

   
  

1,
02

3,
48

1
   

   
 

25
5,

36
4

   
   

   
 

43
1,

85
6

   
   

   
 

2,
81

7
   

   
   

   
   

2,
34

1,
05

5
   

   
   

S
o

u
th

 O
ra

n
g

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

F
Y

 2
01

6-
17

 U
S

E
 A

U
D

IT
 b

y 
P

ro
je

ct
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

an
d

 M
em

b
er

 A
g

en
cy

P
a

ge
 1

0

138



C
it

y 
o

f 
S

a
n

E
l T

o
ro

E
m

e
ra

ld
Ir

vi
n

e
 R

a
n

c
h

M
o

u
lt

o
n

S
a

n
ta

 
S

o
u

th
T

ra
b

u
c

o

C
it

y 
o

f
C

it
y 

o
f

J
u

a
n

W
a

te
r

B
a

y 
S

e
rv

ic
e

W
a

te
r

N
ig

u
e

l W
a

te
r

M
a

rg
a

ri
ta

C
o

a
st

 W
a

te
r

C
a

n
yo

n
 W

a
te

r

L
a

g
u

n
a

 B
e

a
c

h
S

a
n

 C
le

m
e

n
te

C
a

p
is

tr
a

n
o

D
is

tr
ic

t
D

is
tr

ic
t

D
is

tr
ic

t
D

is
tr

ic
t

W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t
D

is
tr

ic
t

D
is

tr
ic

t
T

o
ta

l

S
o

u
th

 O
ra

n
g

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

F
Y

 2
01

6-
17

 U
S

E
 A

U
D

IT
 b

y 
P

ro
je

ct
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

an
d

 M
em

b
er

 A
g

en
cy

U
S

E
 A

U
D

IT
 b

y 
P

ro
je

ct
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

&
 

M
em

b
er

 A
g

en
cy

P
ro

je
ct

 C
om

m
itt

ee

   
  P

C
 2

 -
 J

ay
 B

. L
at

ha
m

 P
la

nt
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

86
7,

10
7

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
1,

32
8,

39
9

   
   

 
1,

73
2,

23
0

   
   

 
1,

58
2,

60
0

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

51
0,

33
6

   
   

   
   

  P
C

 3
 -

 S
O

C
W

A
 P

la
nt

/P
C

A
 A

W
T

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
4,

73
5

   
   

   
   

  
46

6
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
20

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

  P
C

 5
 -

 S
an

 J
ua

n 
C

re
ek

 O
ce

an
 O

ut
fa

ll
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
12

0,
11

1
   

   
   

  
98

,0
95

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
2,

58
8

   
   

   
 

22
0,

86
5

   
   

   
 

85
,7

87
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
62

7,
44

6
   

   
   

   
   

  P
C

 8
 -

 P
re

tr
ea

tm
en

t P
ro

gr
am

6,
87

4
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,0
90

   
   

   
   

 
8,

02
0

   
   

   
   

  
4,

58
7

   
   

   
  

2,
10

0
   

   
   

20
,8

05
   

   
   

  
40

,4
27

   
   

   
   

43
,7

14
   

   
   

   
29

,7
38

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

17
1,

35
6

   
   

   
   

   
  P

C
 1

2 
S

O
- 

W
at

er
 R

ec
la

m
at

io
n 

P
er

m
its

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

22
,3

53
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

24
,3

92
   

   
   

  
60

,6
82

   
   

   
   

67
,4

80
   

   
   

   
25

,1
27

   
   

   
   

22
,7

76
   

   
   

   
 

22
2,

80
8

   
   

   
   

   
  P

C
 1

5 
- 

C
oa

st
al

 T
re

at
m

en
t P

la
nt

/A
W

T
1,

39
2,

45
5

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

59
,0

10
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
30

0,
14

0
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,
35

7,
30

4
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
10

8,
90

9
   

   
   

   
  P

C
 1

7 
- 

Jo
in

t R
eg

io
na

l W
as

te
w

at
er

 R
ec

la
im

at
io

n
51

0,
32

4
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

62
0,

47
5

   
   

 
17

,2
31

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

6,
24

1,
79

9
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
35

9,
94

5
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

74
9,

77
3

   
   

   
   

  P
C

 2
1 

 E
ffl

ue
nt

 T
ra

ns
m

is
si

on
 M

ai
n

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
62

5
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
62

5
   

   
   

   
   

 
27

4
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

52
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

   
  P

C
 2

4 
- 

A
lis

o 
C

re
ek

 O
ce

an
 O

ut
fa

ll
74

,9
45

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
3,

24
1

   
   

 
3,

45
5

   
   

   
10

2,
06

3
   

   
   

19
6,

35
9

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
51

,2
92

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

53
1,

35
5

   
   

   
   

T
o

ta
l

1,
98

4,
59

8
   

   
   

13
5,

20
1

   
   

   
  

1,
99

5,
57

5
   

   
 

72
8,

92
8

   
   

 
81

,7
96

   
   

 
14

7,
88

5
   

   
   

8,
27

5,
40

2
   

   
 

2,
06

4,
75

5
   

   
 

3,
49

1,
79

2
   

   
 

22
,7

76
   

   
   

   
 

18
,9

28
,7

08
   

   
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

A
m

o
u

n
t 

In
vo

ic
e

d
P

ro
je

ct
 C

om
m

itt
ee

   
  P

C
 2

 -
 J

ay
 B

. L
at

ha
m

 P
la

nt
2,

22
4,

43
6

1,
25

9,
03

2
1,

55
5,

24
8

1,
43

9,
82

4
6,

47
8,

54
0

   
  P

C
 3

 -
 S

O
C

W
A

 P
la

nt
/P

C
A

 A
W

T
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

  P
C

 5
 -

 S
an

 J
ua

n 
C

re
ek

 O
ce

an
 O

ut
fa

ll
10

3,
33

6
13

1,
28

4
88

,6
92

20
5,

01
2

96
,2

64
62

4,
58

8
   

  P
C

 8
 -

 P
re

tr
ea

tm
en

t P
ro

gr
am

12
,5

52
12

,6
52

20
,5

80
11

,0
64

1,
33

2
13

,3
76

43
,7

64
46

,7
60

35
,0

80
19

7,
16

0
   

  P
C

 1
2 

S
O

- 
W

at
er

 R
ec

la
m

at
io

n 
P

er
m

its
22

,2
16

21
,0

24
25

,0
96

94
,6

20
74

,5
12

29
,9

40
26

,9
00

29
4,

30
8

   
  P

C
 1

5 
- 

C
oa

st
al

 T
re

at
m

en
t P

la
nt

/A
W

T
1,

57
6,

34
4

66
,4

92
28

0,
83

2
1,

36
9,

08
0

3,
29

2,
74

8
   

  P
C

 1
7 

- 
Jo

in
t R

eg
io

na
l W

as
te

w
at

er
 R

ec
la

im
at

io
n

57
4,

93
6

75
6,

00
4

19
,3

16
6,

41
5,

80
8

36
8,

00
4

8,
13

4,
06

8
   

  P
C

 2
1 

 E
ffl

ue
nt

 T
ra

ns
m

is
si

on
 M

ai
n

40
,0

24
40

,0
24

17
,1

28
97

,1
76

   
  P

C
 2

4 
- 

A
lis

o 
C

re
ek

 O
ce

an
 O

ut
fa

ll
66

,0
00

12
6,

22
0

3,
01

6
11

4,
90

0
14

1,
36

8
53

,6
60

50
5,

16
4

T
o

ta
l

2,
22

9,
83

2
11

5,
98

8
2,

39
8,

51
6

95
4,

33
6

90
,1

56
19

3,
39

6
8,

34
1,

24
4

1,
88

1,
53

2
3,

39
1,

85
2

26
,9

00
19

,6
23

,7
52

U
S

E
 A

U
D

IT
 E

n
tr

y
P

ro
je

ct
 C

om
m

itt
ee

   
  P

C
 2

 -
 J

ay
 B

. L
at

ha
m

 P
la

nt
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
35

7,
32

9
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
(6

9,
36

7)
   

   
   

 
(1

76
,9

82
)

   
   

  
(1

42
,7

76
)

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(3

1,
79

6)
   

   
   

   
 

   
  P

C
 3

 -
 S

O
C

W
A

 P
la

nt
/P

C
A

 A
W

T
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

(4
,7

35
)

   
   

   
   

(4
66

)
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(5

,2
00

)
   

   
   

   
   

   
  P

C
 5

 -
 S

an
 J

ua
n 

C
re

ek
 O

ce
an

 O
ut

fa
ll

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(1
6,

77
5)

   
   

   
   

33
,1

89
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
(1

3,
89

6)
   

   
   

 
(1

5,
85

3)
   

   
   

 
10

,4
77

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(2
,8

58
)

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
C

 8
 -

 P
re

tr
ea

tm
en

t P
ro

gr
am

5,
67

8
   

   
   

   
   

 
(2

,4
38

)
   

   
   

   
  

12
,5

60
   

   
   

   
6,

47
7

   
   

   
  

(7
68

)
   

   
   

 
(7

,4
29

)
   

   
   

   
3,

33
7

   
   

   
   

  
3,

04
6

   
   

   
   

  
5,

34
2

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
25

,8
04

   
   

   
   

  
   

  P
C

 1
2 

S
O

- 
W

at
er

 R
ec

la
m

at
io

n 
P

er
m

its
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(1

37
)

   
   

   
   

   
21

,0
24

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

70
4

   
   

   
   

   
 

33
,9

38
   

   
   

   
7,

03
2

   
   

   
   

  
4,

81
3

   
   

   
   

  
4,

12
4

   
   

   
   

   
71

,5
00

   
   

   
   

  
   

  P
C

 1
5 

- 
C

oa
st

al
 T

re
at

m
en

t P
la

nt
/A

W
T

18
3,

88
9

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

  
7,

48
2

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

(1
9,

30
8)

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
11

,7
76

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

18
3,

83
9

   
   

   
   

   
  P

C
 1

7 
- 

Jo
in

t R
eg

io
na

l W
as

te
w

at
er

 R
ec

la
im

at
io

n
64

,6
12

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

13
5,

52
9

   
   

 
2,

08
5

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

17
4,

00
9

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
8,

05
9

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
38

4,
29

5
   

   
   

   
   

  P
C

 2
1 

 E
ffl

ue
nt

 T
ra

ns
m

is
si

on
 M

ai
n

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
39

,3
99

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

39
,3

99
   

   
   

  
16

,8
54

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

95
,6

51
   

   
   

   
  

   
  P

C
 2

4 
- 

A
lis

o 
C

re
ek

 O
ce

an
 O

ut
fa

ll
(8

,9
45

)
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

  
22

,9
79

   
   

   
(4

39
)

   
   

   
 

12
,8

37
   

   
   

  
(5

4,
99

1)
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
36

8
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(2
6,

19
1)

   
   

   
   

 
T

o
ta

l
24

5,
23

4
   

   
   

   
(1

9,
21

3)
   

   
   

   
40

2,
94

1
   

   
   

 
22

5,
40

8
   

   
 

8,
36

0
   

   
   

45
,5

11
   

   
   

  
65

,8
42

   
   

   
   

(1
83

,2
23

)
   

   
  

(9
9,

94
0)

   
   

   
 

4,
12

4
   

   
   

   
   

69
5,

04
4

   
   

   
   

P
a

ge
 1

0
a

139



P
C

 0
2

P
C

 1
2

P
C

 0
3

P
C

 0
5

P
C

 1
5

P
C

 1
7

P
C

 2
1

P
C

 2
4

P
C

 0
8

S
O

C
W

A

   
  S

al
ar

y 
an

d 
F

rin
ge

**
-5

00
0-

**
-*

*-
**

R
eg

ul
ar

 S
al

ar
ie

s-
O

&
M

1,
33

1,
15

0
   

  
35

,5
62

   
   

 
2,

44
7

   
  

99
,6

09
   

  
80

4,
42

7
   

   
 

1,
55

5,
51

3
   

 
-

   
   

   
94

,5
13

   
  

76
,4

94
   

  
3,

99
9,

71
6

   
   

**
-5

00
1-

**
-*

*-
**

O
ve

rt
im

e 
S

al
ar

ie
s-

O
&

M
46

,9
86

   
   

   
 

24
7

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
  

57
   

   
   

   
23

,6
46

   
   

   
75

,6
98

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
55

7
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
  

14
7,

19
0

   
   

   
**

-5
30

2-
**

-*
*-

**
P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 B

as
ed

 M
er

it 
P

ay
10

,6
34

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
6,

77
5

   
   

   
  

6,
51

0
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
2

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

23
,9

22
   

   
   

  
**

-5
30

6-
**

-*
*-

**
S

ch
ed

ul
ed

 H
ol

id
ay

 W
or

k
9,

74
3

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

0
   

   
   

   
  

4,
43

4
   

   
   

  
10

,8
86

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
53

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
25

,1
16

   
   

   
  

**
-5

30
7-

**
-*

*-
**

W
ee

ke
nd

 S
hi

ft
 P

ay
43

6
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

3
   

   
   

   
  

12
1

   
   

   
   

  
43

2
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

4
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
99

6
   

   
   

   
   

 
**

-5
40

1-
**

-*
*-

**
F

rin
ge

 B
en

ef
its

 IN
 to

 P
C

's
 &

 D
ep

ts
.

1,
16

0,
64

4
   

  
30

,8
03

   
   

 
2,

11
0

   
  

86
,2

82
   

  
69

4,
80

1
   

   
 

1,
34

1,
90

7
   

 
-

   
   

   
81

,8
68

   
  

66
,2

62
   

  
3,

46
4,

67
7

   
   

**
-5

70
0-

**
-*

*-
**

S
ta

nd
by

 P
ay

28
,4

38
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

11
,0

50
   

   
   

29
,4

13
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

68
,9

00
   

   
   

  
   

  T
ot

al
 P

ay
ro

ll 
C

os
ts

2,
58

8,
03

1
   

  
66

,6
12

   
   

 
4,

55
7

   
  

18
5,

95
1

   
1,

54
5,

25
5

   
 

3,
02

0,
35

8
   

 
-

   
   

   
17

6,
99

7
   

14
2,

75
6

   
7,

73
0,

51
7

   
   

   
  O

th
er

 E
xp

en
se

s
**

-5
00

2-
**

-*
*-

**
E

le
ct

ric
ity

85
7,

65
9

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
12

8
   

   
   

 
20

5,
21

4
   

   
 

40
1,

87
7

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
1,

46
4,

87
8

   
   

**
-5

00
3-

**
-*

*-
**

N
at

ur
al

 G
as

51
,2

20
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
17

4
   

   
   

 
2,

32
0

   
   

   
  

86
,2

56
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

13
9,

97
1

   
   

   
**

-5
00

4-
**

-*
*-

**
P

ot
ab

le
 &

 R
ec

la
im

ed
 W

at
er

14
,2

25
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

18
,1

32
   

   
   

25
,9

06
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

58
,2

63
   

   
   

  
17

-5
00

5-
01

-0
2-

00
C

o-
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

P
ow

er
 C

re
di

t
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
(2

01
,6

11
)

   
   

-
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

(2
01

,6
11

)
   

   
  

**
-5

00
6-

**
-*

*-
**

C
hl

or
in

e/
S

od
iu

m
 H

yp
oc

hl
or

ite
15

,8
37

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
64

,4
89

   
   

   
34

2,
27

0
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

42
2,

59
6

   
   

   
**

-5
00

7-
**

-*
*-

**
P

ol
ym

er
 P

ro
du

ct
s

17
5,

48
9

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

33
1,

08
1

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
50

6,
57

0
   

   
   

**
-5

00
8-

**
-*

*-
**

F
er

ric
 C

hl
or

id
e

94
,5

60
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

28
,0

75
   

   
   

14
5,

92
3

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
26

8,
55

9
   

   
   

**
-5

00
9-

**
-*

*-
**

O
do

r 
C

on
tr

ol
 C

he
m

ic
al

s
27

,4
21

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
71

,5
50

   
   

   
49

,2
59

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
14

8,
22

9
   

   
   

**
-5

01
0-

**
-*

*-
**

O
th

er
 C

he
m

ic
al

s 
- 

M
is

c.
52

3
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
46

6
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

98
8

   
   

   
   

   
 

**
-5

01
1-

**
-*

*-
**

La
bo

ra
to

ry
 S

er
vi

ce
s

10
,7

34
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

8,
20

9
   

   
   

  
12

,1
70

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

(1
,6

90
)

   
   

29
,4

23
   

   
   

  
**

-5
01

2-
**

-*
*-

**
G

rit
 H

au
lin

g
46

,6
45

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
24

,6
69

   
   

   
48

,8
16

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
12

0,
13

1
   

   
   

**
-5

01
3-

**
-*

*-
**

La
nd

sc
ap

in
g

33
,1

44
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

76
,3

52
   

   
   

89
,8

72
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

19
9,

36
8

   
   

   
**

-5
01

4-
**

-*
*-

**
E

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
- 

M
is

c.
7,

56
4

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

2,
59

4
   

   
 

7,
19

6
   

   
   

  
82

,2
77

   
   

   
80

0
   

   
  

3,
39

4
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

  
10

3,
82

5
   

   
   

**
-5

01
5-

**
-*

*-
**

M
an

ag
em

en
t S

up
po

rt
 S

er
vi

ce
s

34
,1

59
   

   
   

 
2,

40
0

   
   

   
-

   
   

  
19

,5
20

   
  

6,
11

7
   

   
   

  
14

,9
24

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
17

,9
20

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
95

,0
40

   
   

   
  

**
-5

01
7-

**
-*

*-
**

Le
ga

l F
ee

s
7,

20
9

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

48
2

   
   

   
 

30
,5

85
   

   
   

2,
44

1
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
46

1
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
  

41
,1

77
   

   
   

  
08

-5
01

8-
02

-0
0-

00
P

ub
lic

 N
ot

ic
es

/ P
ub

lic
 R

el
at

io
ns

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
14

5
   

   
   

 
14

5
   

   
   

   
   

 
**

-5
01

9-
**

-*
*-

**
C

on
tr

ac
t S

er
vi

ce
s 

M
is

c.
70

,1
26

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
46

,4
91

   
   

   
86

,9
29

   
   

   
52

4
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

20
4,

07
0

   
   

   
**

-5
02

1-
**

-*
*-

**
S

m
al

l V
eh

ic
le

 E
xp

en
se

12
,3

50
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

5,
32

5
   

   
   

  
10

,4
95

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
28

,1
70

   
   

   
  

**
-5

02
2-

**
-*

*-
**

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s 
E

xp
en

se
5,

79
2

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

1,
72

8
   

   
 

1,
47

1
   

   
   

  
2,

62
8

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
72

8
   

   
   

 
12

,3
48

   
   

   
  

**
-5

02
3-

**
-*

*-
**

O
ff

ic
e 

S
up

pl
ie

s 
- 

A
ll

21
,8

20
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

5,
77

9
   

   
   

  
11

,8
32

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
39

,4
31

   
   

   
  

**
-5

02
4-

**
-*

*-
**

P
et

ro
le

um
 P

ro
du

ct
s

4,
08

1
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

3,
96

8
   

   
   

  
26

,5
76

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
34

,6
25

   
   

   
  

**
-5

02
5-

**
-*

*-
**

U
ni

fo
rm

s
13

,4
74

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
7,

38
0

   
   

   
  

16
,0

63
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

36
,9

17
   

   
   

  
**

-5
02

6-
**

-*
*-

**
S

m
al

l V
eh

ic
le

 F
ue

l
6,

82
8

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
1,

22
4

   
   

   
  

6,
69

1
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
14

,7
43

   
   

   
  

**
-5

02
7-

**
-*

*-
**

In
su

ra
nc

e 
- 

P
ro

pe
rt

y/
Li

ab
ili

ty
56

,9
31

   
   

   
 

1,
84

8
   

   
   

-
   

   
  

5,
00

7
   

   
 

26
,0

66
   

   
   

64
,4

78
   

   
   

13
   

   
   

 
4,

42
1

   
   

 
1,

43
9

   
   

 
16

0,
20

1
   

   
   

**
-5

02
8-

**
-*

*-
**

S
m

al
l T

oo
ls

 &
 S

up
pl

ie
s

32
,7

65
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

7,
71

0
   

   
   

  
21

,9
88

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

1,
87

3
   

   
 

64
,3

36
   

   
   

  
**

-5
03

0-
**

-*
*-

**
T

ra
sh

 D
is

po
sa

l
2,

18
2

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
1,

25
7

   
   

   
  

1,
42

4
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
4,

86
3

   
   

   
   

 
**

-5
03

1-
**

-*
*-

**
S

af
et

y 
P

ro
gr

am
 &

 S
up

pl
ie

s
42

,8
34

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

5,
71

5
   

   
 

20
,5

22
   

   
   

44
,6

69
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

5,
71

5
   

   
 

14
5

   
   

   
 

11
9,

60
0

   
   

   
**

-5
03

2-
**

-*
*-

**
E

qu
ip

m
en

t R
en

ta
l

60
0

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

24
5

   
   

   
   

  
14

,9
09

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
15

,7
54

   
   

   
  

**
-5

03
3-

**
-*

*-
**

R
ec

ru
itm

en
t

20
0

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

30
0

   
   

   
   

  
98

2
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

1,
48

2
   

   
   

   
 

**
-5

03
4-

**
-*

*-
**

T
ra

ve
l E

xp
en

se
/T

ec
h.

 C
on

fe
re

nc
es

10
,7

12
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
39

5
   

   
   

 
1,

22
5

   
   

   
  

4,
32

2
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

3,
13

3
   

   
 

19
,7

87
   

   
   

  
**

-5
03

5-
**

-*
*-

**
T

ra
in

in
g 

E
xp

en
se

20
,8

23
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

12
,1

96
   

   
   

17
,9

92
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
1,

50
0

   
   

 
52

,5
11

   
   

   
  

**
-5

03
6-

**
-*

*-
**

La
bo

ra
to

ry
 S

up
pl

ie
s

13
,2

75
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
15

,4
03

   
  

7,
46

3
   

   
   

  
17

,6
82

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
14

,9
75

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
68

,7
99

   
   

   
  

S
o

u
th

 O
ra

n
g

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

20
16

-2
01

7 
P

ro
je

ct
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

D
et

ai
l-

A
ct

u
al

 O
&

M

P
ag

e 
11

140



P
C

 0
2

P
C

 1
2

P
C

 0
3

P
C

 0
5

P
C

 1
5

P
C

 1
7

P
C

 2
1

P
C

 2
4

P
C

 0
8

S
O

C
W

A

   
  S

al
ar

y 
an

d 
F

rin
ge

S
o

u
th

 O
ra

n
g

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

20
16

-2
01

7 
P

ro
je

ct
 C

o
m

m
it

te
e 

D
et

ai
l-

A
ct

u
al

 O
&

M

**
-5

03
7-

**
-*

*-
**

O
ff

ic
e 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t

13
,9

75
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

17
4

   
   

   
   

  
5,

82
0

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

19
,9

69
   

   
   

  
**

-5
03

8-
**

-*
*-

**
P

er
m

its
17

,6
79

   
   

   
 

10
9,

09
5

   
  

-
   

   
  

18
2,

52
7

   
4,

73
6

   
   

   
  

17
,5

34
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

14
3,

44
8

   
-

   
   

   
  

47
5,

01
8

   
   

   
**

-5
03

9-
**

-*
*-

**
M

em
be

rs
hi

p 
D

ue
s/

F
ee

s
6,

35
8

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
1,

58
3

   
   

   
  

6,
28

0
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

13
5

   
   

   
 

14
,3

56
   

   
   

  
**

-5
04

4-
**

-*
*-

**
O

ff
sh

or
e 

M
on

ito
rin

g
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

15
,5

92
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
17

,0
42

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
32

,6
34

   
   

   
  

**
-5

04
6-

**
-*

*-
**

E
ff

lu
en

t C
he

m
is

tr
y

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
14

,1
11

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

24
,7

43
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

38
,8

55
   

   
   

  
**

-5
04

7-
**

-*
*-

**
A

cc
es

s 
R

oa
d 

E
xp

en
se

s
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
36

,2
45

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
36

,2
45

   
   

   
  

15
-5

04
8-

01
-0

0-
00

S
to

rm
 D

am
ag

e
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
30

,5
92

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
30

,5
92

   
   

   
  

**
-5

04
9-

**
-*

*-
**

B
io

so
lid

s 
D

is
po

sa
l

54
9,

53
4

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

93
1,

65
8

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
1,

48
1,

19
2

   
   

**
-5

05
0-

**
-*

*-
**

C
on

tr
ac

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
G

en
er

at
or

s
5,

98
1

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
10

,5
53

   
   

   
5,

98
1

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

22
,5

14
   

   
   

  
**

-5
05

2-
**

-*
*-

**
Ja

ni
to

ria
l S

er
vi

ce
s

16
,0

09
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

6,
97

5
   

   
   

  
11

,4
24

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
34

,4
08

   
   

   
  

**
-5

05
4-

**
-*

*-
**

D
ie

se
l T

ru
ck

 M
ai

nt
9,

25
9

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
3,

35
6

   
   

   
  

11
,5

60
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

24
,1

75
   

   
   

  
**

-5
05

5-
**

-*
*-

**
D

ie
se

l T
ru

ck
 F

ue
l

4,
57

6
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

4,
12

0
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
8,

69
6

   
   

   
   

 
**

-5
05

6-
**

-*
*-

**
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 E

qu
ip

. &
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

(S
ol

i d
14

2,
16

6
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

2,
09

1
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
   

19
9,

61
3

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
34

3,
87

0
   

   
   

**
-5

05
7-

**
-*

*-
**

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 E
qu

ip
. &

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
(L

iq
u

23
4,

99
8

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

12
7,

58
5

   
   

 
17

9,
76

1
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

54
2,

34
4

   
   

   
**

-5
05

8-
**

-*
*-

**
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 E

qu
ip

. &
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

(C
o m

14
,7

92
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

23
,8

13
   

   
   

29
,2

56
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

4,
01

0
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

  
71

,8
72

   
   

   
  

**
-5

05
9-

**
-*

*-
**

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 E
qu

ip
. &

 F
ac

ili
tie

s 
(C

o-
G

36
,2

30
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

57
,7

67
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

93
,9

97
   

   
   

  
**

-5
06

0-
**

-*
*-

**
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 E

qu
ip

. &
 F

ac
ili

tie
s 

(A
W

T
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
29

,9
42

   
   

   
29

,9
28

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
59

,8
70

   
   

   
  

**
-5

06
1-

**
-*

*-
**

M
ile

ag
e

2,
17

1
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

47
2

   
   

   
   

  
1,

86
3

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

4,
50

6
   

   
   

   
 

17
-5

06
8-

02
-0

0-
00

M
N

W
D

 P
ot

ab
le

 W
at

er
 S

up
pl

ie
s 

&
 S

v
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
22

,5
08

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
22

,5
08

   
   

   
  

**
-5

06
9-

**
-*

*-
**

M
is

c-
C

ap
ita

l-D
ilu

tio
n 

&
 M

et
er

in
g 

S
tu

d
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

67
,2

85
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
35

,3
85

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
10

2,
67

0
   

   
   

**
-5

07
7-

**
-*

*-
**

IT
 D

ire
ct

17
1,

39
6

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

82
,7

31
   

   
   

42
,0

31
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

29
6,

15
9

   
   

   
**

-5
10

1-
**

-*
*-

**
E

m
pl

oy
ee

 R
ec

og
ni

tio
n

-
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
1,

22
0

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
   

   
70

6
   

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

1,
92

5
   

   
   

   
 

17
-5

10
5-

01
-0

0-
00

C
o-

G
en

er
at

io
n 

P
ow

er
 C

re
di

t -
 O

ff
se

t
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
20

1,
61

1
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

20
1,

61
1

   
   

   
05

-5
30

1-
02

-1
1-

00
V

eh
ic

le
 P

ay
-

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

16
1.

54
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
16

2
   

   
   

   
   

 
**

-5
30

3-
**

-*
*-

**
G

ro
up

 In
su

ra
nc

e 
W

ai
ve

r
3,

60
0

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
2,

00
3

   
   

   
  

1,
80

0
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
7,

40
3

   
   

   
   

 
**

-5
30

5-
**

-*
*-

**
M

ed
ic

ar
e 

T
ax

 P
ay

m
en

ts
 f

or
 E

m
pl

oy
e e

3,
63

2
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
1,

92
6

   
   

 
4,

40
9

   
   

   
  

2,
08

7
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
12

,0
54

   
   

   
  

**
-5

30
9-

**
-*

*-
**

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Le

as
es

5,
08

5
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
  

5,
08

5
   

   
   

   
 

**
-5

70
5-

**
-*

*-
**

M
on

th
ly

 C
ar

 A
llo

w
an

ce
10

,2
82

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

4,
11

9
   

   
 

6,
01

7
   

   
   

  
11

,2
12

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
31

,6
31

   
   

   
  

**
-5

80
2-

**
-*

*-
**

S
hi

pp
in

g/
F

re
ig

ht
46

5
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

26
   

   
   

   
15

   
   

   
   

   
 

12
8

   
   

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
26

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

  
65

9
   

   
   

   
   

 
**

-6
50

0-
**

-*
*-

**
IT

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
 in

 to
 P

C
's

 &
 D

ep
ts

.
17

7,
74

9
   

   
  

15
,2

98
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

23
,6

91
   

  
11

5,
95

7
   

   
 

21
5,

17
4

   
   

 
-

   
   

   
17

,1
02

   
  

-
   

   
   

  
56

4,
97

1
   

   
   

   
  T

ot
al

 O
th

er
 E

xp
en

se
s

3,
11

7,
12

3
   

  
12

8,
64

0
   

  
-

   
   

  
36

3,
89

4
   

1,
17

9,
15

3
   

 
3,

77
0,

94
3

   
 

1,
33

6
   

  
28

8,
64

1
   

7,
40

7
   

   
 

8,
85

7,
13

8
   

   
T

o
ta

l E
xp

en
se

s
5,

70
5,

15
4

   
  

19
5,

25
2

   
  

4,
55

7
   

  
54

9,
84

5
   

2,
72

4,
40

7
   

 
6,

79
1,

30
1

   
 

1,
33

6
   

  
46

5,
63

8
   

15
0,

16
3

   
16

,5
87

,6
54

   
 

P
ag

e 
11

a

141



B
u

d
g

e
t

A
c

tu
a

l
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t

A
c

tu
a

l
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t

A
c

tu
a

l
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t

A
c

tu
a

l
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t

A
c

tu
a

l
V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

M
e

m
b

e
r 

A
g

e
n

cy
  

  
 C

ity
 o

f 
S

a
n

 J
u

a
n

 C
a

p
is

tr
a

n
o

7
7

1
,9

2
0

7
1

7
,6

1
6

5
4

,3
0

4
8

1
0

,9
6

0
5

5
6

,9
7

6
2

5
3

,9
8

4
2

0
0

,8
8

0
1

8
3

,1
0

0
1

7
,7

8
0

1
9

5
,8

9
6

1
7

8
,4

9
6

1
7

,4
0

0
1

,9
7

9
,6

5
6

1
,6

3
6

,1
8

8
3

4
3

,4
6

8
  

  
 M

ou
lto

n 
N

ig
ue

l W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

33
8,

86
0

47
3,

62
8

(1
3

4
,7

6
8

)
4

8
9

,7
7

6
4

2
4

,4
9

0
6

5
,2

8
6

1
5

0
,6

9
2

1
3

7
,3

3
6

1
3

,3
5

6
1

4
1

,1
5

6
1

2
8

,6
5

2
1

2
,5

0
4

1
,1

2
0

,4
8

4
1

,1
6

4
,1

0
6

(4
3

,6
2

2
)

  
  

 S
a

n
ta

 M
a

rg
a

ri
ta

 W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t
4

3
5

,5
0

0
4

7
8

,4
5

2
(4

2
,9

5
2

)
6

2
9

,7
1

2
7

6
7

,7
3

6
(1

3
8

,0
2

4
)

1
8

8
,3

0
0

1
0

2
,9

3
6

8
5

,3
6

4
1

3
0

,5
9

2
1

6
8

,8
6

8
(3

8
,2

7
6

)
1

,3
8

4
,1

0
4

1
,5

1
7

,9
9

2
(1

3
3

,8
8

8
)

  
  

 S
ou

th
 C

oa
st

 W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

48
4,

03
2

57
5,

51
2

(9
1

,4
8

0
)

4
9

9
,0

2
0

5
2

0
,6

5
2

(2
1

,6
3

2
)

1
1

3
,0

4
0

1
7

1
,6

8
0

(5
8

,6
4

0
)

1
8

5
,2

9
2

1
1

9
,0

2
4

6
6

,2
6

8
1

,2
8

1
,3

8
4

1
,3

8
6

,8
6

8
(1

0
5

,4
8

4
)

T
o

ta
l

2
,0

3
0

,3
1

2
2

,2
4

5
,2

0
8

(2
1

4
,8

9
6

)
2

,4
2

9
,4

6
8

2
,2

6
9

,8
5

4
1

5
9

,6
1

4
6

5
2

,9
1

2
5

9
5

,0
5

2
5

7
,8

6
0

6
5

2
,9

3
6

5
9

5
,0

4
0

5
7

,8
9

6
5

,7
6

5
,6

2
8

5
,7

0
5

,1
5

4
6

0
,4

7
4

-1
0

.6
%

6
.6

%

M
e

m
b

e
r 

A
g

e
n

cy
B

u
d

g
e

t
A

c
tu

a
l

%
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
B

u
d

g
e

t
A

c
tu

a
l

%
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
B

u
d

g
e

t
A

c
tu

a
l

%
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
B

u
d

g
e

t
A

c
tu

a
l

%
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
B

u
d

g
e

t
A

c
tu

a
l

%
 

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
  

  
 C

ity
 o

f 
S

a
n

 J
u

a
n

 C
a

p
is

tr
a

n
o

3
8

.0
%

3
1

.9
6

%
6

.1
%

3
3

.4
%

2
4

.5
4

%
8

.8
%

30
.8

%
3

0
.8

%
0

.0
%

3
0

.0
%

3
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
3

4
.3

%
2

8
.7

%
5

.7
%

  
  

 M
ou

lto
n 

N
ig

ue
l W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
1

6
.7

%
2

1
.1

0
%

-4
.4

%
2

0
.2

%
1

8
.7

0
%

1
.5

%
2

3
.1

%
2

3
.1

%
0

.0
%

2
1

.6
%

2
1

.6
%

0
.0

%
1

9
.4

%
2

0
.4

%
-1

.0
%

  
  

 S
a

n
ta

 M
a

rg
a

ri
ta

 W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t
2

1
.4

%
2

1
.3

1
%

0
.1

%
2

5
.9

%
3

3
.8

2
%

-7
.9

%
2

8
.8

%
1

7
.3

%
1

1
.5

%
2

0
.0

%
2

8
.4

%
-8

.4
%

2
4

.0
%

2
6

.6
%

-2
.6

%
  

  
 S

o
u

th
 C

o
a

st
 W

a
te

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t

2
3

.8
%

2
5

.6
3

%
-1

.8
%

2
0

.5
%

2
2

.9
4

%
-2

.4
%

1
7

.3
%

2
8

.9
%

-1
1

.5
%

2
8

.4
%

2
0

.0
%

8
.4

%
2

2
.2

%
2

4
.3

%
-2

.1
%

T
o

ta
l

1
0

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

0
.0

%

*S
a

n
ta

 M
a

rg
a

ri
ta

 W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
an

d 
S

ou
th

 C
oa

st
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t C
o

m
m

o
n

-L
iq

u
id

s 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

o
n

-S
o

lid
s 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
es

 w
er

e 
sw

itc
he

d 
in

 t
he

 B
ud

ge
t;

 
 t

h
e

 U
se

 A
u

d
it 

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

s 
a

re
 c

o
rr

e
ct

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 (
o

ve
r)

 a
n

d
 u

n
d

e
r 

bi
lle

d 
am

ou
nt

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
co

rr
ec

te
d 

in
 t

he
 U

se
 A

ud
it 

re
su

lts
.

T
o

ta
l

N
o

 C
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 A
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
 %

's

P
ag

e 
12

S
p

e
n

d
in

g
 V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

S
p

e
n

d
in

g
 V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

L
iq

u
id

s
S

o
li

d
s

C
o

m
m

o
n

 -
 L

iq
u

id
s

C
o

m
m

o
n

 -
 S

o
li

d
s

S
o

u
th

 O
ra

n
g

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 W
a

s
te

w
a

te
r 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

P
C

 0
2

 W
a

s
te

w
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 b
y 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

A
g

e
n

c
y

B
u

d
g

e
t 

v
s

 A
c

tu
a

l

L
iq

u
id

s
S

o
li

d
s

C
o

m
m

o
n

 -
 L

iq
u

id
s

C
o

m
m

o
n

 -
 S

o
li

d
s

T
o

ta
l

142



B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
V

ar
ia

n
ce

M
em

be
r 

A
ge

nc
y

  
  

 M
ou

lto
n 

N
ig

ue
l W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1,

90
0

(1
,9

00
)

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1,
90

0
(1

,9
00

)
-

  
  

  
  

  
34

9
(3

49
)

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

 
4,

14
9

(4
,1

49
)

  
  

 S
an

ta
 M

ar
ga

rit
a 

W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

-
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

13
6

(1
36

)
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
13

6
(1

36
)

-
  

  
  

  
  

13
6

(1
36

)
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
 

40
8

(4
08

)
T

ot
al

0
2,

03
6

(2
,0

36
)

0
2,

03
6

(2
,0

36
)

0
48

5
(4

85
)

0
0

0
0

4,
55

7
(4

,5
57

)

M
em

be
r 

A
ge

nc
y

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
%

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
B

u
d

g
et

A
ct

u
al

%
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
%

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
B

u
d

g
et

A
ct

u
al

%
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
%

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
  

  
 M

ou
lto

n 
N

ig
ue

l W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

93
.3

%
-9

3.
3%

93
.3

%
-9

3.
3%

72
.0

%
-7

2.
0%

0.
0%

91
.0

%
-9

1.
0%

  
  

 S
an

ta
 M

ar
ga

rit
a 

W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

6.
7%

-6
.7

%
6.

7%
-6

.7
%

28
.0

%
-2

8.
0%

0.
0%

9.
0%

-9
.0

%
T

ot
al

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
-1

00
.0

%
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

-1
00

.0
%

0.
0%

##
##

##
-1

00
.0

%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

-1
00

.0
%

P
a

g
e

 1
3

T
o

ta
l

S
o

u
th

 O
ra

n
g

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 W
a

s
te

w
a

te
r 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

P
C

 0
3

 W
a

s
te

w
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 b
y 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

A
g

e
n

c
y

B
u

d
g

e
t 

vs
 A

c
tu

a
l

S
p

e
n

d
in

g
 V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

S
p

e
n

d
in

g
 V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

L
iq

u
id

s
S

o
li

d
s

C
o

m
m

o
n

 -
 L

iq
u

id
s

A
W

T

143



T
o

ta
l

M
em

be
r 

A
ge

nc
y

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
V

ar
ia

n
ce

  
  

 C
ity

 o
f 

S
an

 C
le

m
en

te
32

,8
00

42
,3

52
(9

,5
52

)
-

  
  

  
-

  
  

  
0

2,
32

4
2,

44
8

(1
24

)
56

,8
40

60
,4

56
(3

,6
16

)
91

,9
64

10
5,

25
6

(1
3,

29
2)

  
  

 C
ity

 o
f 

S
an

 J
ua

n 
C

ap
is

tr
an

o
21

,8
68

28
,2

36
(6

,3
68

)
24

,5
24

 
-

  
  

  
24

,5
24

1,
55

2
1,

64
4

(9
2)

68
,8

92
56

,0
83

12
,8

09
11

6,
83

6
85

,9
63

30
,8

73
  

  
 M

ou
lto

n 
N

ig
ue

l W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

30
,6

04
39

,5
24

(8
,9

20
)

16
,3

48
 

-
  

  
  

16
,3

48
2,

16
4

2,
28

0
(1

16
)

29
,8

16
48

,0
96

(1
8,

28
0)

78
,9

32
89

,9
00

(1
0,

96
8)

  
  

 S
an

ta
 M

ar
ga

rit
a 

W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

87
,4

56
11

2,
93

2
(2

5,
47

6)
16

,3
48

 
-

  
  

  
16

,3
48

6,
20

0
6,

54
0

(3
40

)
72

,4
48

74
,0

77
(1

,6
29

)
18

2,
45

2
19

3,
54

9
(1

1,
09

7)
  

  
 S

ou
th

 C
oa

st
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
24

,6
08

31
,7

76
(7

,1
68

)
23

,4
28

 
-

  
  

  
23

,4
28

1,
74

8
1,

83
6

(8
8)

35
,8

88
41

,5
65

(5
,6

77
)

85
,6

72
75

,1
77

10
,4

95
T

ot
al

19
7,

33
6

25
4,

82
0

(5
7,

48
4)

80
,6

48
0

80
,6

48
13

,9
88

14
,7

48
(7

60
)

26
3,

88
4

28
0,

27
7

(1
6,

39
3)

55
5,

85
6

54
9,

84
5

6,
01

1

T
o

ta
l

M
em

be
r 

A
ge

nc
y

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
%

 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
%

 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
%

 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
%

 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
%

 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

  
  

 C
ity

 o
f 

S
an

 C
le

m
en

te
16

.6
%

16
.6

%
0.

0%
0.

0%
16

.6
%

16
.6

%
0.

0%
21

.5
%

2
1.

6%
0.

0%
16

.5
%

19
.1

%
-2

.6
%

  
  

 C
ity

 o
f 

S
an

 J
ua

n 
C

ap
is

tr
an

o
11

.1
%

11
.1

%
0.

0%
30

.4
%

30
.4

%
11

.1
%

11
.1

%
-0

.1
%

26
.1

%
20

.0
%

6.
1%

21
.0

%
15

.6
%

5.
4%

  
  

 M
ou

lto
n 

N
ig

ue
l W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
15

.5
%

15
.5

%
0.

0%
20

.3
%

20
.3

%
15

.5
%

15
.5

%
0.

0%
11

.3
%

17
.2

%
-5

.9
%

14
.2

%
16

.3
%

-2
.1

%
  

  
 S

an
ta

 M
ar

ga
rit

a 
W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
44

.3
%

44
.3

%
0.

0%
20

.3
%

20
.3

%
44

.3
%

44
.3

%
0.

0%
27

.5
%

26
.4

%
1.

0%
32

.8
%

35
.2

%
-2

.4
%

  
  

 S
ou

th
 C

oa
st

 W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

12
.5

%
12

.5
%

0.
0%

29
.0

%
29

.0
%

12
.5

%
12

.4
%

0.
0%

13
.6

%
14

.8
%

-1
.2

%
15

.4
%

13
.7

%
1.

7%
T

ot
al

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

0.
0

%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
0.

0%

F
ix

ed
E

P
S

V
ar

 5
%

V
A

R
 9

5%

S
o

u
th

 O
ra

n
g

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

P
C

 0
5 

W
as

te
w

at
er

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 b
y 

M
em

b
er

 A
g

en
cy

B
u

d
g

et
 v

s
 A

ct
u

al

V
ar

 5
%

V
A

R
 9

5%
S

p
en

d
in

g
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

S
p

en
d

in
g

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
1

S
p

en
d

in
g

 V
ar

ia
n

ce

P
a

g
e

 1
4

F
ix

ed
E

P
S

1 
- 

P
ur

su
an

t 
to

 th
e 

20
17

-1
8 

B
ud

ge
t p

ag
e 

16
, B

ud
ge

t A
ss

um
pt

io
ns

, 
It

em
 8

, 
S

O
C

W
A

 d
ire

ct
ed

 to
 a

llo
ca

te
 J

B
L

 E
ff

lu
en

t P
um

p 
S

ta
tio

n 
co

st
s 

w
ith

in
 P

C
2 

liq
ui

ds
 o

w
ne

rs
hi

p 
pe

rc
en

ta
ge

s;
 t

he
re

fo
re

, 
sa

m
e 

pe
rc

en
ta

ge
s 

ar
e 

us
ed

 t
o 

in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

E
P

S
 c

os
ts

 w
ith

in
 P

C
2 

fo
r 

th
e 

20
16

-1
7 

U
S

E
 A

U
D

IT
.

2 
- 

T
he

 a
ct

ua
l f

lo
w

 p
er

ce
nt

ag
es

 w
er

e 
re

vi
se

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 c

om
m

en
ts

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 1

2/
11

/1
7 

F
in

an
ce

 C
om

m
itt

ee
.

144



In
su

ra
n

ce
T

im
e 

C
ar

d
T

o
ta

l
B

u
d

g
et

A
ct

u
al

V
ar

ia
n

ce
B

u
d

g
et

A
ct

u
al

V
ar

ia
n

ce
B

u
d

g
et

A
ct

u
al

V
ar

ia
n

ce
M

em
be

r 
A

ge
nc

y
  

  
 C

ity
 o

f 
La

gu
na

 B
ea

ch
10

0
16

0
(6

0)
11

,0
72

5,
86

4
5,

20
8

11
,1

72
6,

02
4

5,
14

8
  

  
 C

ity
 o

f 
S

an
 C

le
m

en
te

10
0

16
0

(6
0)

11
,1

60
13

,0
64

(1
,9

04
)

11
,2

60
13

,2
24

(1
,9

64
)

  
  

 C
ity

 o
f 

S
an

 J
ua

n 
C

ap
is

tr
an

o
10

0
16

0
(6

0)
18

,2
16

6,
86

8
11

,3
48

18
,3

16
7,

02
8

11
,2

88
  

  
 E

l T
or

o 
W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
10

0
16

0
(6

0)
9,

74
8

3,
86

0
5,

88
8

9,
84

8
4,

02
0

5,
82

8
  

  
 E

m
er

al
d 

B
ay

 S
er

vi
ce

 D
is

tr
ic

t
10

0
16

0
(6

0)
1,

08
4

1,
68

0
(5

96
)

1,
18

4
1,

84
0

(6
56

)
  

  
 I

rv
in

e 
R

an
ch

 W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

10
0

16
0

(6
0)

11
,8

04
18

,0
72

(6
,2

68
)

11
,9

04
18

,2
32

(6
,3

28
)

  
  

 M
ou

lto
n 

N
ig

ue
l W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
10

0
16

0
(6

0)
38

,8
48

35
,2

67
3,

58
1

38
,9

48
35

,4
27

3,
52

1
  

  
 S

an
ta

 M
ar

ga
ri

ta
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
10

0
16

0
(6

0)
41

,5
16

38
,1

48
3,

36
8

41
,6

16
38

,3
08

3,
30

8
  

  
 S

ou
th

 C
oa

st
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
10

0
16

0
(6

0)
31

,1
20

25
,9

00
5,

22
0

31
,2

20
26

,0
60

5,
16

0
T

ot
al

90
0

1,
44

0
(5

40
)

17
4,

56
8

14
8,

72
3

25
,8

45
17

5,
46

8
15

0,
16

3
25

,3
05

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
%

 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
%

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
B

u
d

g
et

A
ct

u
al

%
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

M
em

be
r 

A
ge

nc
y

  
  

 C
ity

 o
f 

La
gu

na
 B

ea
ch

11
.1

%
11

.1
%

0.
0%

6.
3%

3.
9%

2.
4%

6.
4%

4.
0%

2.
4%

  
  

 C
ity

 o
f 

S
an

 C
le

m
en

te
11

.1
%

11
.1

%
0.

0%
6.

4%
8.

8%
-2

.4
%

6.
4%

8.
8%

-2
.4

%
  

  
 C

ity
 o

f 
S

an
 J

ua
n 

C
ap

is
tr

an
o

11
.1

%
11

.1
%

0.
0%

10
.4

%
4.

6%
5.

8%
10

.4
%

4.
7%

5.
8%

  
  

 E
l T

or
o 

W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

11
.1

%
11

.1
%

0.
0%

5.
6%

2.
6%

3.
0%

5.
6%

2.
7%

2.
9%

  
  

 E
m

er
al

d 
B

ay
 S

er
vi

ce
 D

is
tr

ic
t

11
.1

%
11

.1
%

0.
0%

0.
6%

1.
1%

-0
.5

%
0.

7%
1.

2%
-0

.6
%

  
  

 I
rv

in
e 

R
an

ch
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
11

.1
%

11
.1

%
0.

0%
6.

8%
12

.2
%

-5
.4

%
6.

8%
12

.1
%

-5
.4

%
  

  
 M

ou
lto

n 
N

ig
ue

l W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

11
.1

%
11

.1
%

0.
0%

22
.3

%
23

.7
%

-1
.5

%
22

.2
%

23
.6

%
-1

.4
%

  
  

 S
an

ta
 M

ar
ga

ri
ta

 W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

11
.1

%
11

.1
%

0.
0%

23
.8

%
25

.7
%

-1
.9

%
23

.7
%

25
.5

%
-1

.8
%

  
  

 S
ou

th
 C

oa
st

 W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

11
.1

%
11

.1
%

0.
0%

17
.8

%
17

.4
%

0.
4%

17
.8

%
17

.4
%

0.
4%

T
ot

al
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
0.

0%

S
p

en
d

in
g

 V
ar

ia
n

ce

P
ag

e 
15

S
o

u
th

 O
ra

n
g

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

P
C

 0
8

 W
a

s
te

w
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 b
y 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

A
g

e
n

c
y

B
u

d
g

et
 v

s 
A

ct
u

al

145



R
eg

io
n

 9
E

q
u

al
ly

T
o

ta
l

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
1

A
ct

u
al

V
ar

ia
n

ce

M
em

be
r 

A
ge

nc
y

  
  

 C
ity

 o
f 

S
an

 J
ua

n 
C

ap
is

tr
an

o
1,

06
0

3,
32

0
(2

,2
60

)
18

,7
12

16
,2

68
2,

44
4

19
,7

72
19

,5
88

18
4

  
  

 E
l T

or
o 

W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

0
0

0
18

,7
12

0
18

,7
12

18
,7

12
0

18
,7

12
  

  
 I

rv
in

e 
R

an
ch

 W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

3,
62

4
5,

10
7

(1
,4

83
)

18
,7

12
16

,2
68

2,
44

4
22

,3
36

21
,3

75
96

1
  

  
 M

ou
lto

n 
N

ig
ue

l W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

65
,4

96
36

,9
09

28
,5

87
18

,7
12

16
,2

68
2,

44
4

84
,2

08
53

,1
77

31
,0

31
  

  
 S

an
ta

 M
ar

ga
ri

ta
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
47

,6
08

42
,8

66
4,

74
2

18
,7

04
16

,2
68

2,
43

6
66

,3
12

59
,1

34
7,

17
8

  
  

 S
ou

th
 C

oa
st

 W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

7,
94

0
5,

75
1

2,
18

9
18

,7
04

16
,2

68
2,

43
6

26
,6

44
22

,0
19

4,
62

5
  

  
 T

ra
bu

co
 C

an
yo

n 
W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
5,

23
6

3,
69

1
1,

54
5

18
,7

04
16

,2
68

2,
43

6
23

,9
40

19
,9

59
3,

98
1

T
ot

al
13

0,
96

4
97

,6
44

33
,3

20
13

0,
96

0
97

,6
08

33
,3

52
26

1,
92

4
19

5,
25

2
66

,6
72

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
%

 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
%

 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
%

 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

R
W

 a
cf

t
%

 R
W

M
em

be
r 

A
ge

nc
y

  
  

 C
ity

 o
f 

S
an

 J
ua

n 
C

ap
is

tr
an

o
0.

8%
3.

4%
-2

.6
%

14
.3

%
16

.7
%

-2
.4

%
7.

5%
10

.0
%

-2
.5

%
52

9
3.

4%
  

  
 E

l T
or

o 
W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
14

.3
%

0.
0%

14
.3

%
7.

1%
0.

0%
7.

1%
0

0.
0%

  
  

 I
rv

in
e 

R
an

ch
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
2.

8%
5.

2%
-2

.5
%

14
.3

%
16

.7
%

-2
.4

%
8.

5%
10

.9
%

-2
.4

%
81

5
5.

2%
  

  
 M

ou
lto

n 
N

ig
ue

l W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

50
.0

%
37

.8
%

12
.2

%
14

.3
%

16
.7

%
-2

.4
%

32
.1

%
27

.2
%

4.
9%

5,
88

8
37

.8
%

  
  

 S
an

ta
 M

ar
ga

ri
ta

 W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

36
.4

%
43

.9
%

-7
.5

%
14

.3
%

16
.7

%
-2

.4
%

25
.3

%
30

.3
%

-5
.0

%
6,

83
9

43
.9

%
  

  
 S

ou
th

 C
oa

st
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
6.

1%
5.

9%
0.

2%
14

.3
%

16
.7

%
-2

.4
%

10
.2

%
11

.3
%

-1
.1

%
91

8
5.

9%
  

  
 T

ra
bu

co
 C

an
yo

n 
W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
4.

0%
3.

8%
0.

2%
14

.3
%

16
.7

%
-2

.4
%

9.
1%

10
.2

%
-1

.1
%

58
8.

5
3.

8%
T

ot
al

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

0.
0%

15
,5

78
10

0.
0%

1 
- 

P
C

12
 is

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
50

%
 t

o 
th

e 
w

at
er

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
an

d 
th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 5
0%

 s
ha

re
d 

eq
ua

lly
.

S
p

en
d

in
g

 V
ar

ia
n

ce

P
ag

e 
16

S
o

u
th

 O
ra

n
g

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

P
C

 1
2

 R
e

c
yc

le
d

 W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 b
y 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

A
g

e
n

c
y

B
u

d
g

et
 v

s 
A

ct
u

al

146



B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
V

ar
ia

n
ce

M
e

m
b

e
r 

A
g

e
n

cy
   

  C
ity

 o
f L

ag
un

a 
B

ea
ch

1
,0

79
,0

24
87

9,
40

0
19

9,
62

4
32

3,
85

6
34

0,
84

0
(1

6
,9

8
4

)
1

,4
0

2
,8

8
0

1
,2

2
0

,2
4

0
1

8
2

,6
4

0
   

  E
m

e
ra

ld
 B

a
y 

S
e

rv
ic

e
 D

is
tr

ic
t

3
3

,6
4

8
2

4
,8

3
6

8
,8

1
2

2
5

,5
2

8
2

6
,8

7
6

(1
,3

4
8

)
5

9
,1

7
6

5
1

,7
1

2
7

,4
6

4
   

  M
ou

lto
n 

N
ig

ue
l W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
-

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
24

9,
92

8
26

3,
01

9
(1

3
,0

9
1

)
2

4
9

,9
2

8
2

6
3

,0
1

9
(1

3
,0

9
1

)
   

  S
ou

th
 C

oa
st

 W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

66
7,

61
6

58
6,

27
2

81
,3

44
25

5,
04

0
26

8,
37

2
(1

3
,3

3
2

)
2

9
5

,7
6

8
3

3
4

,7
9

2
(3

9
,0

2
4

)
1

,2
1

8
,4

2
4

1
,1

8
9

,4
3

6
2

8
,9

8
8

T
ot

a
l

1
,7

8
0

,2
8

8
1

,4
9

0
,5

0
8

2
8

9
,7

8
0

8
5

4
,3

5
2

8
9

9
,1

0
7

(4
4

,7
5

5
)

2
9

5
,7

6
8

3
3

4
,7

9
2

(3
9

,0
2

4
)

2
,9

3
0

,4
0

8
2

,7
2

4
,4

0
7

2
0

6
,0

0
1

1
6

.3
%

-5
.2

%
-1

3
.2

%
7

.0
%

M
e

m
b

e
r 

A
g

e
n

cy
B

u
d

g
et

A
ct

u
al

%
 

V
ar

ia
n

ce
B

u
d

g
et

A
ct

u
al

%
 

V
ar

ia
n

ce
B

u
d

g
et

A
ct

u
al

%
 

V
ar

ia
n

ce
B

u
d

g
et

A
ct

u
al

%
 

V
ar

ia
n

ce
   

  C
ity

 o
f L

ag
un

a 
B

ea
ch

60
.6

%
59

.0
%

1.
6%

37
.9

%
37

.9
%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0

%
4

7
.9

%
4

4
.8

%
3

.1
%

   
  E

m
e

ra
ld

 B
a

y 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 D
is

tr
ic

t
1

.9
%

1
.7

%
0

.2
%

3
.0

%
3

.0
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

2
.0

%
1

.9
%

0
.1

%
   

  M
ou

lto
n 

N
ig

ue
l W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

29
.3

%
29

.3
%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

8
.5

%
9

.7
%

-1
.1

%
   

  S
o

u
th

 C
o

a
st

 W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t
3

7
.5

%
3

9
.3

%
-1

.8
%

2
9

.9
%

2
9

.8
%

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

4
1

.6
%

4
3

.7
%

-2
.1

%
T

ot
a

l
1

0
0

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

0
.0

%

S
p

en
d

in
g

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
L

iq
u

id
s

C
o

m
m

o
n

 L
iq

u
id

s
A

W
T

S
o

u
th

 O
ra

n
g

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

P
C

 1
5

 W
a

s
te

w
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 b
y 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

A
g

e
n

c
y

B
u

d
g

et
 v

s
 A

ct
u

al

P
a

g
e

 1
7

T
o

ta
l

A
W

T
C

o
m

m
o

n
 L

iq
u

id
s

L
iq

u
id

s

147



L
iq

u
id

s
S

o
lid

s
A

W
T

C
o

m
m

o
n

 L
iq

u
id

s
B

u
d

g
et

A
ct

u
al

V
ar

ia
n

ce
B

u
d

g
et

A
ct

u
al

V
ar

ia
n

ce
B

u
d

g
et

A
ct

u
al

V
ar

ia
n

ce
B

u
d

g
et

A
ct

u
al

V
ar

ia
n

ce
B

u
d

g
et

A
ct

u
al

V
ar

ia
n

ce
B

u
d

g
et

A
ct

u
al

V
ar

ia
n

ce
M

em
be

r 
A

ge
nc

y
   

  C
ity

 o
f L

ag
un

a 
B

ea
ch

3,
44

4
3,

15
6

28
8

44
8,

39
2

38
3,

61
6

64
,7

76
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

 
59

,8
32

60
,4

36
(6

04
)

51
1,

66
8

44
7,

20
8

64
,4

60
   

  E
l T

or
o 

W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

4,
05

2
3,

64
0

41
2

55
9,

90
0

43
0,

15
2

12
9,

74
8

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
 

10
8,

86
0

10
9,

94
4

(1
,0

84
)

67
2,

81
2

54
3,

73
6

12
9,

07
6

   
  E

m
er

al
d 

B
ay

 S
er

vi
ce

 D
is

tr
ic

t
19

2
10

0
92

13
,8

56
11

,8
32

2,
02

4
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
 

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

 
3,

14
4

3,
16

8
(2

4)
17

,1
92

15
,1

00
2,

09
2

   
  M

ou
lto

n 
N

ig
ue

l W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

2,
01

4,
48

4
2,

00
9,

46
1

5,
02

3
2,

16
2,

69
6

1,
98

3,
11

2
17

9,
58

4
53

6,
94

0
54

0,
47

2
(3

,5
32

)
68

1,
98

8
61

9,
87

6
62

,1
12

31
3,

69
2

31
6,

90
8

(3
,2

16
)

5,
70

9,
80

0
5,

46
9,

82
9

23
9,

97
1

   
  S

ou
th

 C
oa

st
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
2,

02
8

2,
09

6
(6

8)
27

7,
69

2
26

5,
06

0
12

,6
32

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
  

-
   

   
   

 
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

  
-

   
   

   
 

47
,7

88
48

,2
72

(4
84

)
32

7,
50

8
31

5,
42

8
12

,0
80

T
ot

al
2,

02
4,

20
0

2,
01

8,
45

3
5,

74
7

3,
46

2,
53

6
3,

07
3,

77
2

38
8,

76
4

53
6,

94
0

54
0,

47
2

(3
,5

32
)

68
1,

98
8

61
9,

87
6

62
,1

12
53

3,
31

6
53

8,
72

8
(5

,4
12

)
7,

23
8,

98
0

6,
79

1,
30

1
44

7,
67

9
0.

3%
11

.2
%

-0
.7

%
9.

1%
-1

.0
%

6.
2%

L
iq

u
id

s
S

o
lid

s
A

W
T

C
o

m
m

o
n

 L
iq

u
id

s

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
%

 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
%

 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
%

 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
%

 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
%

 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

M
em

be
r 

A
ge

nc
y

   
  C

ity
 o

f L
ag

un
a 

B
ea

ch
0.

2%
0.

2%
0.

0%
12

.9
%

12
.5

%
0.

5%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
11

.2
%

11
.2

%
0.

0%
7.

1%
6.

6%
0.

5%
   

  E
l T

or
o 

W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

0.
2%

0.
2%

0.
0%

16
.2

%
14

.0
%

2.
2%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

20
.4

%
20

.4
%

0.
0%

9.
3%

8.
0%

1.
3%

   
  E

m
er

al
d 

B
ay

 S
er

vi
ce

 D
is

tr
ic

t
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

4%
0.

4%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

6%
0.

6%
0.

0%
0.

2%
0.

2%
0.

0%
   

  M
ou

lto
n 

N
ig

ue
l W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
99

.5
%

99
.6

%
0.

0%
62

.5
%

64
.5

%
-2

.1
%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

0.
0%

58
.8

%
58

.8
%

0.
0%

78
.9

%
80

.5
%

-1
.7

%
   

  S
ou

th
 C

oa
st

 W
at

er
 D

is
tr

ic
t

0.
1%

0.
1%

0.
0%

8.
0%

8.
6%

-0
.6

%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
9.

0%
9.

0%
0.

0%
4.

5%
4.

6%
-0

.1
%

T
ot

al
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
0.

0%

S
p

en
d

in
g

 V
ar

ia
n

ce

P
a

ge
 1

8

C
o

m
m

o
n

 S
o

lid
s

T
o

ta
l

S
o

u
th

 O
ra

n
g

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 W
a

s
te

w
a

te
r 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

P
C

 1
7

 W
a

s
te

w
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 b
y 

M
e

m
b

e
r 

A
g

e
n

c
y

B
u

d
g

e
t 

v
s

 A
c

tu
a

l

C
o

m
m

o
n

 S
o

lid
s

T
o

ta
l

S
p

en
d

in
g

 V
ar

ia
n

ce
S

p
en

d
in

g
 V

ar
ia

n
ce

148



R
ea

ch
 B

/C
/D

R
ea

ch
 E

T
o

ta
l

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
V

ar
ia

n
ce

M
em

be
r 

A
ge

nc
y

   
  E

l T
or

o 
W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
28

,9
72

44
8

28
,5

24
6,

64
8

10
0

6,
54

8
35

,6
20

54
8

35
,0

72
   

  I
rv

in
e 

R
an

ch
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
28

,9
72

44
8

28
,5

24
6,

64
8

10
0

6,
54

8
35

,6
20

54
8

35
,0

72
   

  M
ou

lto
n 

N
ig

ue
l W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
-

   
   

-
   

   
 

-
   

   
   

 
15

,2
44

24
0

15
,0

04
15

,2
44

24
0

15
,0

04
T

ot
al

57
,9

44
89

6
57

,0
48

28
,5

40
44

0
28

,1
00

86
,4

84
1,

33
6

85
,1

48

M
em

be
r 

A
ge

nc
y

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
%

 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
%

 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
A

ct
u

al
%

 
V

ar
ia

n
ce

   
  E

l T
or

o 
W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
50

.0
%

50
.0

%
0.

0%
23

.3
%

22
.7

%
0.

6%
41

.2
%

41
.0

%
0.

2%
   

  I
rv

in
e 

R
an

ch
 W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
50

.0
%

50
.0

%
0.

0%
23

.3
%

22
.7

%
0.

6%
41

.2
%

41
.0

%
0.

2%
   

  M
ou

lto
n 

N
ig

ue
l W

at
er

 D
is

tr
ic

t
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
53

.4
%

54
.5

%
-1

.1
%

17
.6

%
18

.0
%

-0
.3

%
T

ot
al

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

0.
0%

P
a

ge
 1

9

S
o

u
th

 O
ra

n
g

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

P
C

 2
1 

W
as

te
w

at
er

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 b
y 

M
em

b
er

 A
g

en
cy

B
u

d
g

et
 v

s 
A

ct
u

al

149



F
ix

e
d

V
a

r 
5

%
V

a
r 

9
5

%
T

o
ta

l
B

u
d

g
e

t
A

c
tu

a
l

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
B

u
d

g
e

t
A

c
tu

a
l

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
B

u
d

g
e

t
A

c
tu

a
l

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
B

u
d

g
e

t
A

c
tu

a
l

V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
M

e
m

b
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

  
  

 C
ity

 o
f 

L
a

g
u

n
a

 B
e

a
ch

1
9

,8
1

6
2

6
,3

1
6

(6
,5

0
0

)
1

,4
8

8
1

,2
5

2
2

3
6

3
7

,4
3

2
3

8
,1

0
8

(6
7

6
)

5
8

,7
3

6
6

5
,6

7
6

(6
,9

4
0

)
  

  
 E

l T
o

ro
 W

a
te

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t

2
9

,3
7

2
3

8
,9

8
4

(9
,6

1
2

)
2

,1
9

6
1

,8
4

4
3

5
2

8
0

,7
6

4
4

9
,6

4
4

3
1

,1
2

0
1

1
2

,3
3

2
9

0
,4

7
2

2
1

,8
6

0
  

  
 E

m
e

ra
ld

 B
a

y 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 D
is

tr
ic

t
1

,4
0

8
1

,8
6

8
(4

6
0

)
1

0
4

8
4

2
0

1
,1

7
2

1
,0

7
6

9
6

2
,6

8
4

3
,0

2
8

(3
4

4
)

  
  

 I
rv

in
e

 R
a

n
ch

 W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t
2

8
,3

9
6

3
7

,6
9

6
(9

,3
0

0
)

2
,1

2
4

1
,7

8
4

3
4

0
7

1
,7

3
6

4
9

,9
6

0
2

1
,7

7
6

1
0

2
,2

5
6

8
9

,4
4

0
1

2
,8

1
6

  
  

 M
o

u
lto

n
 N

ig
u

e
l W

a
te

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t

7
9

,0
0

4
1

0
4

,9
0

2
(2

5
,8

9
8

)
5

,9
0

8
4

,9
6

4
9

4
4

4
0

,9
0

0
6

2
,2

0
8

(2
1

,3
0

8
)

1
2

5
,8

1
2

1
7

2
,0

7
4

(4
6

,2
6

2
)

  
  

 S
o

u
th

 C
o

a
st

 W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t
2

2
,1

8
4

2
9

,4
4

0
(7

,2
5

6
)

1
,6

6
0

1
,3

9
2

2
6

8
2

3
,9

1
2

1
4

,1
1

6
9

,7
9

6
4

7
,7

5
6

4
4

,9
4

8
2

,8
0

8
T

o
ta

l
1

8
0

,1
8

0
2

3
9

,2
0

6
(5

9
,0

2
6

)
1

3
,4

8
0

1
1

,3
2

0
2

,1
6

0
2

5
5

,9
1

6
2

1
5

,1
1

2
4

0
,8

0
4

4
4

9
,5

7
6

4
6

5
,6

3
8

(1
6

,0
6

2
)

B
u

d
g

e
t

A
c

tu
a

l
%

 V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
B

u
d

g
e

t
A

c
tu

a
l

%
 V

a
ri

a
n

c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t

A
c

tu
a

l
%

 V
a

ri
an

c
e

B
u

d
g

e
t

A
c

tu
a

l
%

 V
a

ri
a

n
c

e
M

e
m

b
e

r 
A

g
e

n
cy

  
  

 C
ity

 o
f 

L
a

g
u

n
a

 B
e

a
ch

1
1

.0
%

1
1

.0
%

0
.0

%
1

1
.0

%
1

1
.1

%
0

.0
%

1
4

.6
%

1
7

.7
2

%
-3

.1
%

1
3

.1
%

1
4

.1
%

-1
.0

%
  

  
 E

l T
o

ro
 W

a
te

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t

1
6

.3
%

1
6

.3
%

0
.0

%
1

6
.3

%
1

6
.3

%
0

.0
%

3
1

.6
%

2
3

.0
8

%
8

.5
%

2
5

.0
%

1
9

.4
%

5
.6

%
  

  
 E

m
e

ra
ld

 B
a

y 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 D
is

tr
ic

t
0

.8
%

0
.8

%
0

.0
%

0
.8

%
0

.7
%

0
.0

%
0

.5
%

0
.5

0
%

0
.0

%
0

.6
%

0
.7

%
-0

.1
%

  
  

 I
rv

in
e

 R
a

n
ch

 W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t
1

5
.8

%
1

5
.8

%
0

.0
%

1
5

.8
%

1
5

.8
%

0
.0

%
2

8
.0

%
2

3
.2

3
%

4
.8

%
2

2
.7

%
1

9
.2

%
3

.5
%

  
  

 M
o

u
lto

n
 N

ig
u

e
l W

a
te

r 
D

is
tr

ic
t

4
3

.8
%

4
3

.9
%

0
.0

%
4

3
.8

%
4

3
.9

%
0

.0
%

1
6

.0
%

2
8

.9
2

%
-1

2
.9

%
2

8
.0

%
3

7
.0

%
-9

.0
%

  
  

 S
o

u
th

 C
o

a
st

 W
a

te
r 

D
is

tr
ic

t
1

2
.3

%
1

2
.3

%
0

.0
%

1
2

.3
%

1
2

.3
%

0
.0

%
9

.3
%

6
.5

6
%

2
.8

%
1

0
.6

%
9

.7
%

1
.0

%
T

o
ta

l
1

0
0

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

0
.0

%

S
o

u
th

 O
ra

n
g

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

P
C

 2
4 

W
as

te
w

at
er

 D
is

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 b
y 

M
em

b
er

 A
g

en
cy

B
u

d
g

e
t 

v
s

 A
c

tu
a

l

P
a

ge
 2

0

150



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

     PC 02 - Jay B. Latham Plant
          Member Agency
               City of San Juan Capistrano
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 460,792 385,384 75,408 83.6%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 7,204 13,632 (6,428) 189.2%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 310,432 256,852 53,580 82.7%
      **-5003-**-**-** Natural Gas 10,828 15,340 (4,512) 141.7%
      **-5004-**-**-** Potable & Reclaimed Water 4,968 3,996 972 80.4%
      02-5006-01-01-18 Chlorine/Sodium Hypochlorite 10,340 5,060 5,280 48.9%
      02-5007-01-02-18 Polymer Products 85,952 43,060 42,892 50.1%
      02-5008-01-02-18 Ferric Chloride 30,244 23,204 7,040 76.7%
      **-5009-**-**-** Odor Control Chemicals 7,292 7,828 (536) 107.4%
      **-5010-**-**-** Other Chemicals - Misc. 304 160 144 52.6%
      **-5011-**-**-** Laboratory Services 3,872 3,232 640 83.5%
      02-5012-01-01-18 Grit Hauling - 21A 14,636 14,908 (272) 101.9%
      **-5013-**-**-** Landscaping 13,676 10,072 3,604 73.6%
      **-5014-**-**-** Engineering - Misc. 24,308 2,300 22,008 9.5%
      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 41,324 10,380 30,944 25.1%
      **-5017-**-**-** Legal Fees 7,292 2,188 5,104 30.0%
      **-5019-**-**-** Contract Services Misc. - 29 23,488 21,308 2,180 90.7%
      **-5021-**-**-** Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 2,536 3,552 (1,016) 140.1%
      **-5022-**-**-** Miscellaneous Expense 2,188 1,760 428 80.4%
      **-5023-**-**-** Office Supplies - All 6,076 6,628 (552) 109.1%
      **-5024-**-**-** Petroleum Products 5,752 1,244 4,508 21.6%
      **-5025-**-**-** Uniforms 4,232 3,876 356 91.6%
      **-5026-**-**-** Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 4,972 1,964 3,008 39.5%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 14,508 17,300 (2,792) 119.2%
      **-5028-**-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 9,420 9,956 (536) 105.7%
      **-5030-**-**-** Trash Disposal 244 664 (420) 272.1%
      **-5031-**-**-** Safety Supplies 10,636 13,016 (2,380) 122.4%
      **-5032-**-**-** Equipment Rental 912 184 728 20.2%
      **-5033-**-**-** Recruitment 0 60 (60) 0.0%
      **-5034-**-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 4,408 3,252 1,156 73.8%
      **-5035-**-**-** Training Expense 9,420 6,328 3,092 67.2%
      **-5036-**-**-** Laboratory Supplies 5,160 4,000 1,160 77.5%
      **-5037-**-**-** Office Equipment 4,560 4,248 312 93.2%
      **-5038-**-**-** Permits 6,684 5,372 1,312 80.4%
      **-5039-**-**-** Membership Dues/Fees 1,520 1,928 (408) 126.8%
      02-5049-01-02-18 Biosolids Disposal - 21B 191,800 134,840 56,960 70.3%
      **-5050-**-**-** Contract Services Generators - 29A 2,520 1,816 704 72.1%
      **-5052-**-**-** Janitorial Services 6,076 4,864 1,212 80.1%
      02-5053-01-02-18 Contract Serv - Digester Cleaning - 29E 0 0 0 0.0%
      02-5054-01-02-18 Diesel Truck Maint - 31B 3,340 2,272 1,068 68.0%
      02-5055-01-02-18 Diesel Truck Fuel - 37B 2,004 1,124 880 56.1%
      02-5056-01-02-18 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Solids) 41-A 44,428 34,884 9,544 78.5%
      02-5057-01-01-18 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Liquids) 41-B 88,284 75,112 13,172 85.1%
      **-5058-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Common) 41-C 7,444 4,496 2,948 60.4%
      02-5059-01-02-18 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Co-Gen) 41-D 23,032 8,888 14,144 38.6%
      **-5061-**-**-** Mileage 264 648 (384) 245.5%
      **-5077-**-**-** IT Direct 45,576 52,076 (6,500) 114.3%
      **-5302-**-**-** Performance Based Merit Pay 0 3,056 (3,056) 0.0%
      **-5303-**-**-** Group Insurance Waiver 0 1,044 (1,044) 0.0%
      **-5305-**-**-** Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 1,044 (1,044) 0.0%

Page 21

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

151



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 4,796 2,828 1,968 59.0%
      **-5307-**-**-** Weekend Shift Pay 0 124 (124) 0.0%
      **-5309-**-**-** Operating Leases 1,216 1,548 (332) 127.3%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 327,168 336,004 (8,836) 102.7%
      **-5700-**-**-** Standby Pay 18,152 8,176 9,976 45.0%
      **-5705-**-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 8,236 2,964 5,272 36.0%
      **-5802-**-**-** Shipping/Freight 0 136 (136) 0.0%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 55,140 54,008 1,132 97.9%

               Total City of San Juan Capistrano 1,979,656 1,636,188 343,468 87.2%

               Moulton Niguel Water District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 244,828 308,316 (63,488) 125.9%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 3,820 10,856 (7,036) 284.2%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 155,860 192,812 (36,952) 123.7%
      **-5003-**-**-** Natural Gas 5,440 11,516 (6,076) 211.7%
      **-5004-**-**-** Potable & Reclaimed Water 2,968 3,376 (408) 113.7%
      02-5006-01-01-22 Chlorine/Sodium Hypochlorite 4,540 3,340 1,200 73.6%
      02-5007-01-02-22 Polymer Products 51,912 45,860 6,052 88.3%
      02-5008-01-02-22 Ferric Chloride 18,264 24,712 (6,448) 135.3%
      **-5009-**-**-** Odor Control Chemicals 4,204 6,420 (2,216) 152.7%
      **-5010-**-**-** Other Chemicals - Misc. 224 116 108 51.8%
      **-5011-**-**-** Laboratory Services 1,844 2,400 (556) 130.2%
      02-5012-01-01-22 Grit Hauling - 21A 6,424 9,840 (3,416) 153.2%
      **-5013-**-**-** Landscaping 10,056 7,408 2,648 73.7%
      **-5014-**-**-** Engineering - Misc. 17,880 1,688 16,192 9.4%
      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 30,396 7,636 22,760 25.1%
      **-5017-**-**-** Legal Fees 5,364 1,612 3,752 30.1%
      **-5019-**-**-** Contract Services Misc. - 29 17,276 15,672 1,604 90.7%
      **-5021-**-**-** Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 1,352 2,876 (1,524) 212.7%
      **-5022-**-**-** Miscellaneous Expense 1,612 1,296 316 80.4%
      **-5023-**-**-** Office Supplies - All 4,472 4,876 (404) 109.0%
      **-5024-**-**-** Petroleum Products 2,692 900 1,792 33.4%
      **-5025-**-**-** Uniforms 2,252 3,136 (884) 139.3%
      **-5026-**-**-** Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 2,648 1,588 1,060 60.0%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 10,668 12,724 (2,056) 119.3%
      **-5028-**-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 6,928 7,320 (392) 105.7%
      **-5030-**-**-** Trash Disposal 180 488 (308) 271.1%
      **-5031-**-**-** Safety Supplies 7,824 9,576 (1,752) 122.4%
      **-5032-**-**-** Equipment Rental 672 132 540 19.6%
      **-5033-**-**-** Recruitment 0 48 (48) 0.0%
      **-5034-**-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 3,240 2,392 848 73.8%
      **-5035-**-**-** Training Expense 6,928 4,656 2,272 67.2%
      **-5036-**-**-** Laboratory Supplies 2,456 2,968 (512) 120.8%
      **-5037-**-**-** Office Equipment 3,352 3,124 228 93.2%
      **-5038-**-**-** Permits 4,920 3,952 968 80.3%
      **-5039-**-**-** Membership Dues/Fees 1,116 1,424 (308) 127.6%
      02-5049-01-02-22 Biosolids Disposal - 21B 115,840 143,608 (27,768) 124.0%
      **-5050-**-**-** Contract Services Generators - 29A 1,852 1,340 512 72.4%
      **-5052-**-**-** Janitorial Services 4,472 3,580 892 80.1%
      02-5053-01-02-22 Contract Serv - Digester Cleaning - 29E 0 0 0 0.0%
      02-5054-01-02-22 Diesel Truck Maint - 31B 2,016 2,420 (404) 120.0%
      02-5055-01-02-22 Diesel Truck Fuel - 37B 1,208 1,196 12 99.0%
      02-5056-01-02-22 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Solids) 41-A 26,832 37,152 (10,320) 138.5%
      02-5057-01-01-22 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Liquids) 41-B 38,756 49,576 (10,820) 127.9%
      **-5058-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Common) 41-C 5,476 3,308 2,168 60.4%

Page 21 a

152



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

      02-5059-01-02-22 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Co-Gen) 41-D 13,912 9,468 4,444 68.1%
      **-5061-**-**-** Mileage 140 492 (352) 351.4%
      **-5077-**-**-** IT Direct 33,528 38,308 (4,780) 114.3%
      **-5302-**-**-** Performance Based Merit Pay 0 2,480 (2,480) 0.0%
      **-5303-**-**-** Group Insurance Waiver 0 832 (832) 0.0%
      **-5305-**-**-** Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 848 (848) 0.0%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 2,548 2,256 292 88.5%
      **-5307-**-**-** Weekend Shift Pay 0 96 (96) 0.0%
      **-5309-**-**-** Operating Leases 892 1,136 (244) 127.4%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 173,828 268,832 (95,004) 154.7%
      **-5700-**-**-** Standby Pay 9,656 6,624 3,032 68.6%
      **-5705-**-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 4,356 2,396 1,960 55.0%
      **-5802-**-**-** Shipping/Freight 0 100 (100) 0.0%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 40,560 39,732 828 98.0%

Rounding 0 (30) 30 0.0%
               Total Moulton Niguel Water District 1,120,484 1,332,806 (212,322) 119.0%

               Santa Margarita Water District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 309,240 311,828 (2,588) 100.8%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 4,828 10,976 (6,148) 227.3%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 196,632 194,968 1,664 99.2%
      **-5003-**-**-** Natural Gas 6,860 11,648 (4,788) 169.8%
      **-5004-**-**-** Potable & Reclaimed Water 3,744 3,412 332 91.1%
      02-5006-01-01-23 Chlorine/Sodium Hypochlorite 5,836 3,376 2,460 57.8%
      02-5007-01-02-23 Polymer Products 66,744 46,316 20,428 69.4%
      02-5008-01-02-23 Ferric Chloride 23,484 24,956 (1,472) 106.3%
      **-5009-**-**-** Odor Control Chemicals 5,404 6,484 (1,080) 120.0%
      **-5010-**-**-** Other Chemicals - Misc. 244 120 124 49.2%
      **-5011-**-**-** Laboratory Services 2,368 2,424 (56) 102.4%
      02-5012-01-01-23 Grit Hauling - 21A 8,260 9,940 (1,680) 120.3%
      **-5013-**-**-** Landscaping 10,988 7,572 3,416 68.9%
      **-5014-**-**-** Engineering - Misc. 19,536 1,728 17,808 8.8%
      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 33,212 7,804 25,408 23.5%
      **-5017-**-**-** Legal Fees 5,860 1,648 4,212 28.1%
      **-5019-**-**-** Contract Services Misc. - 29 18,880 16,016 2,864 84.8%
      **-5021-**-**-** Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 1,708 2,908 (1,200) 170.3%
      **-5022-**-**-** Miscellaneous Expense 1,760 1,320 440 75.0%
      **-5023-**-**-** Office Supplies - All 4,884 4,984 (100) 102.0%
      **-5024-**-**-** Petroleum Products 3,464 912 2,552 26.3%
      **-5025-**-**-** Uniforms 2,844 3,176 (332) 111.7%
      **-5026-**-**-** Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 3,340 1,608 1,732 48.1%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 11,660 13,004 (1,344) 111.5%
      **-5028-**-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 7,572 7,484 88 98.8%
      **-5030-**-**-** Trash Disposal 196 496 (300) 253.1%
      **-5031-**-**-** Safety Supplies 8,548 9,784 (1,236) 114.5%
      **-5032-**-**-** Equipment Rental 732 136 596 18.6%
      **-5033-**-**-** Recruitment 0 44 (44) 0.0%
      **-5034-**-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 3,544 2,448 1,096 69.1%
      **-5035-**-**-** Training Expense 7,572 4,756 2,816 62.8%
      **-5036-**-**-** Laboratory Supplies 3,160 2,996 164 94.8%
      **-5037-**-**-** Office Equipment 3,664 3,192 472 87.1%
      **-5038-**-**-** Permits 5,372 4,036 1,336 75.1%
      **-5039-**-**-** Membership Dues/Fees 1,220 1,456 (236) 119.3%
      02-5049-01-02-23 Biosolids Disposal - 21B 148,936 145,036 3,900 97.4%
      **-5050-**-**-** Contract Services Generators - 29A 2,028 1,364 664 67.3%

Page 21 b

153



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

      **-5052-**-**-** Janitorial Services 4,884 3,656 1,228 74.9%
      02-5053-01-02-23 Contract Serv - Digester Cleaning - 29E 0 0 0 0.0%
      02-5054-01-02-23 Diesel Truck Maint - 31B 2,592 2,444 148 94.3%
      02-5055-01-02-23 Diesel Truck Fuel - 37B 1,556 1,208 348 77.6%
      02-5056-01-02-23 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Solids) 41-A 34,500 37,520 (3,020) 108.8%
      02-5057-01-01-23 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Liquids) 41-B 49,808 50,072 (264) 100.5%
      **-5058-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Common) 41-C 5,984 3,380 2,604 56.5%
      02-5059-01-02-23 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Co-Gen) 41-D 17,884 9,560 8,324 53.5%
      **-5061-**-**-** Mileage 176 504 (328) 286.4%
      **-5077-**-**-** IT Direct 36,632 39,144 (2,512) 106.9%
      **-5302-**-**-** Performance Based Merit Pay 0 2,508 (2,508) 0.0%
      **-5303-**-**-** Group Insurance Waiver 0 836 (836) 0.0%
      **-5305-**-**-** Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 860 (860) 0.0%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 3,220 2,280 940 70.8%
      **-5307-**-**-** Weekend Shift Pay 0 96 (96) 0.0%
      **-5309-**-**-** Operating Leases 976 1,160 (184) 118.9%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 219,560 271,896 (52,336) 123.8%
      **-5700-**-**-** Standby Pay 12,200 6,696 5,504 54.9%
      **-5705-**-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 5,496 2,416 3,080 44.0%
      **-5802-**-**-** Shipping/Freight 0 108 (108) 0.0%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 44,312 40,592 3,720 91.6%

               Total Santa Margarita Water District 1,384,104 1,349,292 34,812 97.5%

               South Coast Water District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 291,560 325,624 (34,064) 111.7%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 4,556 11,524 (6,968) 252.9%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 197,072 213,024 (15,952) 108.1%
      **-5003-**-**-** Natural Gas 6,872 12,720 (5,848) 185.1%
      **-5004-**-**-** Potable & Reclaimed Water 3,124 3,440 (316) 110.1%
      02-5006-01-01-24 Chlorine/Sodium Hypochlorite 6,484 4,060 2,424 62.6%
      02-5007-01-02-24 Polymer Products 52,892 40,252 12,640 76.1%
      02-5008-01-02-24 Ferric Chloride 18,608 21,688 (3,080) 116.6%
      **-5009-**-**-** Odor Control Chemicals 4,500 6,688 (2,188) 148.6%
      **-5010-**-**-** Other Chemicals - Misc. 228 128 100 56.1%
      **-5011-**-**-** Laboratory Services 2,416 2,680 (264) 110.9%
      02-5012-01-01-24 Grit Hauling - 21A 9,180 11,956 (2,776) 130.2%
      **-5013-**-**-** Landscaping 10,280 8,096 2,184 78.8%
      **-5014-**-**-** Engineering - Misc. 18,276 1,848 16,428 10.1%
      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 31,072 8,344 22,728 26.9%
      **-5017-**-**-** Legal Fees 5,480 1,760 3,720 32.1%
      **-5019-**-**-** Contract Services Misc. - 29 17,660 17,128 532 97.0%
      **-5021-**-**-** Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 1,608 3,016 (1,408) 187.6%
      **-5022-**-**-** Miscellaneous Expense 1,644 1,416 228 86.1%
      **-5023-**-**-** Office Supplies - All 4,572 5,328 (756) 116.5%
      **-5024-**-**-** Petroleum Products 3,592 1,024 2,568 28.5%
      **-5025-**-**-** Uniforms 2,676 3,292 (616) 123.0%
      **-5026-**-**-** Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 3,148 1,668 1,480 53.0%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 10,908 13,904 (2,996) 127.5%
      **-5028-**-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 7,084 8,004 (920) 113.0%
      **-5030-**-**-** Trash Disposal 180 536 (356) 297.8%
      **-5031-**-**-** Safety Supplies 7,996 10,464 (2,468) 130.9%
      **-5032-**-**-** Equipment Rental 684 148 536 21.6%
      **-5033-**-**-** Recruitment 0 52 (52) 0.0%
      **-5034-**-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 3,312 2,616 696 79.0%

Page 21 c

154



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

      **-5035-**-**-** Training Expense 7,084 5,088 1,996 71.8%
      **-5036-**-**-** Laboratory Supplies 3,224 3,312 (88) 102.7%

      **-5037-**-**-** Office Equipment 3,428 3,412 16 99.5%
      **-5038-**-**-** Permits 5,024 4,320 704 86.0%
      **-5039-**-**-** Membership Dues/Fees 1,144 1,556 (412) 136.0%
      02-5049-01-02-24 Biosolids Disposal - 21B 118,024 126,048 (8,024) 106.8%
      **-5050-**-**-** Contract Services Generators - 29A 1,896 1,464 432 77.2%
      **-5052-**-**-** Janitorial Services 4,572 3,908 664 85.5%
      02-5053-01-02-24 Contract Serv - Digester Cleaning - 29E 0 0 0 0.0%
      02-5054-01-02-24 Diesel Truck Maint - 31B 2,056 2,124 (68) 103.3%
      02-5055-01-02-24 Diesel Truck Fuel - 37B 1,232 1,048 184 85.1%
      02-5056-01-02-24 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Solids) 41-A 27,340 32,608 (5,268) 119.3%
      02-5057-01-01-24 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Liquids) 41-B 55,356 60,236 (4,880) 108.8%
      **-5058-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Common) 41-C 5,596 3,612 1,984 64.5%
      **-5059-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Co-Gen) 41-D 14,172 8,312 5,860 58.7%
      **-5061-**-**-** Mileage 172 540 (368) 314.0%
      **-5077-**-**-** IT Direct 34,268 41,864 (7,596) 122.2%
      **-5114-**-**-** Performance Based Merit Pay 0 2,596 (2,596) 0.0%
      **-5301-**-**-** Group Insurance Waiver 0 880 (880) 0.0%
      **-5303-**-**-** Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 896 (896) 0.0%
      **-5305-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 3,036 2,380 656 78.4%
      **-5306-**-**-** Weekend Shift Pay 0 100 (100) 0.0%
      **-5309-**-**-** Operating Leases 916 1,240 (324) 135.4%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 207,012 283,908 (76,896) 137.1%
      **-5700-**-**-** Standby Pay 11,484 6,944 4,540 60.5%
      **-5705-**-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 5,228 2,512 2,716 48.0%
      **-5802-**-**-** Shipping/Freight 0 116 (116) 0.0%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 41,456 43,416 (1,960) 104.7%

               Total South Coast Water District 1,281,384 1,386,868 (105,484) 112.9%

          Total 5,765,628 5,705,154 60,474 99.0%

     Total PC 02 - Jay B. Latham Plant 5,765,628 5,705,154 60,474 99.0%
     PC 03 - SOCWA Plant/PCA AWT
          Member Agency
               Moulton Niguel Water District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 0 2,224 (2,224) 0.0%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 0 1,920 (1,920) 0.0%

Rounding 0 5 (5) 0.0%
               Total Moulton Niguel Water District 0 4,149 (4,149) 0.0%

               Santa Margarita Water District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 0 216 (216) 0.0%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 0 192 (192) 0.0%

               Total Santa Margarita Water District 0 408 (408) 0.0%

          Total Member Agency 0 4,557 (4,557) 0.0%

     Total PC 03 - SOCWA Plant/PCA AWT 0 4,557 (4,557) 0.0%

Page 21 d

155



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

     PC 05 - San Juan Creek Ocean Outfall
          Member Agency
               City of San Clemente
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 18,264 22,572 (4,308) 123.6%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 480 12 468 2.5%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 444 28 416 6.3%
      **-5003-**-**-** Natural Gas 108 36 72 33.3%
      **-5014-**-**-** Engineering - Misc. 2,132 588 1,544 27.6%
      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 4,260 4,424 (164) 103.8%
      **-5017-**-**-** Legal Fees 0 108 (108) 0.0%
      **-5022-**-**-** Miscellaneous Expense 0 392 (392) 0.0%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 388 832 (444) 214.4%
      **-5031-**-**-** Safety Supplies 108 1,296 (1,188) 1200.0%
      **-5034-**-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 636 92 544 14.5%
      **-5036-**-**-** Laboratory Supplies 3,620 3,492 128 96.5%
      05-5038-02-05-17 Permits 24,100 30,336 (6,236) 125.9%
      **-5044-**-**-** Offshore Monitoring - 20A 4,260 3,532 728 82.9%
      **-5045-**-**-** Offshore Biochemistry - 20B 0 0 0 0.0%
      **-5046-**-**-** Effluent Chemistry - 20C 5,536 3,196 2,340 57.7%
      **-5056-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Solids) 41-A 0 472 (472) 0.0%
      **-5067-**-**-** Port Cleaning 0 0 0 0.0%
      05-5069-02-05-17 Misc-Capital-Dilution & Metering Study 8,312 11,184 (2,872) 134.6%
      **-5101-**-**-** Employee Recognition 0 280 (280) 0.0%
      05-5301-02-12-17 Vehicle Pay 0 36 (36) 0.0%
      **-5305-**-**-** Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 436 (436) 0.0%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 320 0 320 0.0%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 12,968 19,552 (6,584) 150.8%
      **-5705-**-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 0 936 (936) 0.0%
      05-5802-01-12-17 Shipping/Freight 0 4 (4) 0.0%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 6,028 5,368 660 89.1%

               Total City of San Clemente 91,964 109,204 (17,240) 118.7%

               City of San Juan Capistrano
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 29,464 20,724 8,740 70.3%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 796 12 784 1.5%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 532 24 508 4.5%
      **-5003-**-**-** Natural Gas 128 36 92 28.1%
      **-5014-**-**-** Engineering - Misc. 2,536 540 1,996 21.3%
      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 5,072 4,060 1,012 80.0%
      **-5017-**-**-** Legal Fees 0 100 (100) 0.0%
      **-5022-**-**-** Miscellaneous Expense 0 360 (360) 0.0%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 260 556 (296) 213.8%
      **-5031-**-**-** Safety Supplies 128 1,188 (1,060) 928.1%
      **-5034-**-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 760 84 676 11.1%
      **-5036-**-**-** Laboratory Supplies 4,312 3,204 1,108 74.3%
      05-5038-02-05-18 Permits 16,068 20,224 (4,156) 125.9%
      05-5040-02-06-18 Natural Gas - 11-EPS -  PC 5 120 0 120 0.0%
      05-5041-02-06-18 Electricity - 10-EPS - PC 5 9,580 0 9,580 0.0%
      05-5042-02-06-18 Contract Services - 29-EPS - PC 5 1,248 0 1,248 0.0%
      **-5044-**-**-** Offshore Monitoring - 20A 5,072 3,248 1,824 64.0%
      **-5045-**-**-** Offshore Biochemistry - 20B 0 0 0 0.0%
      **-5046-**-**-** Effluent Chemistry - 20C 6,592 2,940 3,652 44.6%
      **-5056-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Solids) 41-A 0 436 (436) 0.0%

Page 21 e

156



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

      **-5067-**-**-** Port Cleaning 0 0 0 0.0%
      05-5069-02-05-18 Misc-Capital-Dilution & Metering Study 5,540 7,456 (1,916) 134.6%
      **-5101-**-**-** Employee Recognition 0 256 (256) 0.0%
      05-5301-02-12-18 Vehicle Pay 0 32 (32) 0.0%

      **-5305-**-**-** Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 404 (404) 0.0%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 532 0 532 0.0%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 20,920 17,956 2,964 85.8%
      **-5705-**-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 0 860 (860) 0.0%
      05-5802-01-12-18 Shipping/Freight 0 4 (4) 0.0%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 7,176 4,932 2,244 68.7%

               Total City of San Juan Capistrano 116,836 89,636 27,200 76.7%

               Moulton Niguel Water District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 15,020 18,072 (3,052) 120.3%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 408 8 400 2.0%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 244 24 220 9.8%
      **-5003-**-**-** Natural Gas 56 32 24 57.1%
      **-5014-**-**-** Engineering - Misc. 1,148 472 676 41.1%
      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 2,304 3,540 (1,236) 153.6%
      **-5017-**-**-** Legal Fees 0 88 (88) 0.0%
      **-5022-**-**-** Miscellaneous Expense 0 312 (312) 0.0%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 360 780 (420) 216.7%
      **-5031-**-**-** Safety Supplies 56 1,036 (980) 1850.0%
      **-5034-**-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 348 72 276 20.7%
      **-5036-**-**-** Laboratory Supplies 1,956 2,796 (840) 142.9%
      05-5038-02-05-22 Permits 22,488 28,308 (5,820) 125.9%
      05-5040-02-06-22 Natural Gas - 11-EPS -  PC 5 80 0 80 0.0%
      05-5041-02-06-22 Electricity - 10-EPS - PC 5 6,384 0 6,384 0.0%
      05-5042-02-06-22 Contract Services - 29-EPS - PC 5 832 0 832 0.0%
      **-5044-**-**-** Offshore Monitoring - 20A 2,304 2,828 (524) 122.7%
      **-5045-**-**-** Offshore Biochemistry - 20B 0 0 0 0.0%
      **-5046-**-**-** Effluent Chemistry - 20C 2,992 2,560 432 85.6%
      **-5056-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Solids) 41-A 0 380 (380) 0.0%
      **-5067-**-**-** Port Cleaning 0 0 0 0.0%
      05-5069-02-05-22 Misc-Capital-Dilution & Metering Study 7,756 10,436 (2,680) 134.6%
      **-5101-**-**-** Employee Recognition 0 220 (220) 0.0%
      05-5301-02-12-22 Vehicle Pay 0 28 (28) 0.0%
      **-5305-**-**-** Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 352 (352) 0.0%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 272 0 272 0.0%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 10,664 15,648 (4,984) 146.7%
      **-5705-**-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 0 748 (748) 0.0%
      05-5802-01-12-22 Shipping/Freight 0 4 (4) 0.0%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 3,260 4,296 (1,036) 131.8%

Rounding 0 (3) 3 0.0%
               Total Moulton Niguel Water District 78,932 93,037 (14,105) 117.9%

               Santa Margarita Water District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 29,428 28,852 576 98.0%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 792 16 776 2.0%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 596 40 556 6.7%
      **-5003-**-**-** Natural Gas 144 52 92 36.1%
      **-5014-**-**-** Engineering - Misc. 2,828 748 2,080 26.4%

Page 21e

Page 21 f

157



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 5,660 5,652 8 99.9%
      **-5017-**-**-** Legal Fees 0 140 (140) 0.0%
      **-5022-**-**-** Miscellaneous Expense 0 504 (504) 0.0%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 1,032 2,216 (1,184) 214.7%
      **-5031-**-**-** Safety Supplies 144 1,656 (1,512) 1150.0%
      **-5034-**-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 852 112 740 13.1%
      **-5036-**-**-** Laboratory Supplies 4,808 4,460 348 92.8%
      05-5038-02-05-23 Permits 64,264 80,896 (16,632) 125.9%
      05-5040-02-06-23 Natural Gas - 11-EPS -  PC 5 80 0 80 0.0%
      05-5041-02-06-23 Electricity - 10-EPS - PC 5 6,384 0 6,384 0.0%
      05-5042-02-06-23 Contract Services - 29-EPS - PC 5 832 0 832 0.0%
      **-5044-**-**-** Offshore Monitoring - 20A 5,660 4,516 1,144 79.8%
      **-5045-**-**-** Offshore Biochemistry - 20B 0 0 0 0.0%
      **-5046-**-**-** Effluent Chemistry - 20C 7,356 4,088 3,268 55.6%
      **-5056-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Solids) 41-A 0 608 (608) 0.0%
      **-5067-**-**-** Port Cleaning 0 0 0 0.0%
      05-5069-02-05-23 Misc-Capital-Dilution & Metering Study 22,160 29,820 (7,660) 134.6%
      **-5101-**-**-** Employee Recognition 0 356 (356) 0.0%
      **-5301-**-**-** Vehicle Pay 0 48 (48) 0.0%
      **-5305-**-**-** Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 560 (560) 0.0%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 524 0 524 0.0%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 20,896 24,992 (4,096) 119.6%
      **-5705-**-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 0 1,192 (1,192) 0.0%
      05-5802-01-12-23 Shipping/Freight 0 8 (8) 0.0%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 8,012 6,860 1,152 85.6%

               Total Santa Margarita Water District 182,452 198,392 (15,940) 108.7%

               South Coast Water District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 18,992 9,384 9,608 49.4%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 524 4 520 0.8%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 288 12 276 4.2%
      **-5003-**-**-** Natural Gas 68 16 52 23.5%
      **-5014-**-**-** Engineering - Misc. 1,356 244 1,112 18.0%
      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 2,708 1,836 872 67.8%
      **-5017-**-**-** Legal Fees 0 48 (48) 0.0%
      **-5022-**-**-** Miscellaneous Expense 0 164 (164) 0.0%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 292 624 (332) 213.7%
      **-5031-**-**-** Safety Supplies 68 540 (472) 794.1%
      **-5034-**-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 408 40 368 9.8%
      **-5036-**-**-** Laboratory Supplies 2,300 1,452 848 63.1%
      05-5038-02-05-24 Permits 18,080 22,760 (4,680) 125.9%
      05-5040-02-06-24 Natural Gas - 11-EPS -  PC 5 116 0 116 0.0%
      05-5041-02-06-24 Electricity - 10-EPS - PC 5 9,152 0 9,152 0.0%
      05-5042-02-06-24 Contract Services - 29-EPS - PC 5 1,192 0 1,192 0.0%
      **-5044-**-**-** Offshore Monitoring - 20A 2,708 1,468 1,240 54.2%
      **-5045-**-**-** Offshore Biochemistry - 20B 0 0 0 0.0%
      **-5046-**-**-** Effluent Chemistry - 20C 3,524 1,328 2,196 37.7%
      **-5056-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Solids) 41-A 0 196 (196) 0.0%
      **-5067-**-**-** Port Cleaning 0 0 0 0.0%
      05-5069-02-05-24 Misc-Capital-Dilution & Metering Study 6,236 8,392 (2,156) 134.6%
      **-5101-**-**-** Employee Recognition 0 116 (116) 0.0%
      05-5301-02-12-24 Vehicle Pay 0 16 (16) 0.0%
      **-5305-**-**-** Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 180 (180) 0.0%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 344 0 344 0.0%

Page 21 g

158



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 13,484 8,132 5,352 60.3%
      **-5705-**-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 0 388 (388) 0.0%
      05-5802-01-12-24 Shipping/Freight 0 4 (4) 0.0%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 3,832 2,232 1,600 58.2%

               Total South Coast Water District 85,672 59,576 26,096 69.5%

          Total Member Agency 555,856 549,845 6,011 98.9%

     Total PC 05 - San Juan Creek Ocean Outfall 555,856 549,845 6,011 98.9%
     PC 08 - Pre Treatment
          Member Agency
               City of Laguna Beach
      08-5000-02-08-16 Regular Salaries-O&M 5,564 3,020 2,544 54.3%
      08-5001-02-08-16 Overtime Salaries-O&M 116 0 116 0.0%
      08-5011-02-08-16 Laboratory Services 160 (68) 228 (42.5%)
      08-5015-02-08-16 Management Support Services 252 0 252 0.0%
      08-5016-02-08-16 Audit - Environmental 32 0 32 0.0%
      08-5017-02-08-16 Legal Fees 128 0 128 0.0%
      08-5018-02-08-16 Public Notices/ Public Relations 32 4 28 12.5%
      08-5021-02-08-16 Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 52 0 52 0.0%
      08-5022-02-08-16 Miscellaneous Expense 96 28 68 29.2%
      08-5026-02-08-16 Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 76 0 76 0.0%
      08-5027-02-07-16 Insurance - Property/Liability 0 160 (160) 0.0%
      **-5028-**-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 260 72 188 27.7%
      08-5031-02-08-16 Safety Program & Supplies 0 4 (4) 0.0%
      08-5034-02-08-16 Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 220 124 96 56.4%
      08-5035-02-08-16 Training Expense 96 60 36 62.5%
      08-5039-02-08-16 Membership Dues/Fees 64 4 60 6.3%
      08-5306-02-08-16 Scheduled Holiday Work 76 0 76 0.0%
      08-5401-02-08-16 Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 3,948 2,616 1,332 66.3%

               Total City of Laguna Beach 11,172 6,024 5,148 53.9%

               City of San Clemente
      08-5000-02-08-17 Regular Salaries-O&M 5,608 6,720 (1,112) 119.8%
      08-5001-02-08-17 Overtime Salaries-O&M 116 0 116 0.0%
      08-5011-02-08-17 Laboratory Services 160 (148) 308 (92.5%)
      08-5015-02-08-17 Management Support Services 256 0 256 0.0%
      08-5016-02-08-17 Audit - Environmental 32 0 32 0.0%
      08-5017-02-08-17 Legal Fees 128 0 128 0.0%
      08-5018-02-08-17 Public Notices/ Public Relations 32 12 20 37.5%
      08-5021-02-08-17 Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 56 0 56 0.0%
      08-5022-02-08-17 Miscellaneous Expense 96 64 32 66.7%
      08-5026-02-08-17 Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 76 0 76 0.0%
      08-5027-02-07-17 Insurance - Property/Liability 0 160 (160) 0.0%
      **-5028-**-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 260 164 96 63.1%
      08-5031-02-08-17 Safety Program & Supplies 0 12 (12) 0.0%
      08-5034-02-08-17 Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 224 276 (52) 123.2%
      08-5035-02-08-17 Training Expense 96 132 (36) 137.5%
      08-5039-02-08-17 Membership Dues/Fees 64 12 52 18.8%
      08-5306-02-08-17 Scheduled Holiday Work 76 0 76 0.0%
      08-5401-02-08-17 Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 3,980 5,820 (1,840) 146.2%

               Total City of San Clemente 11,260 13,224 (1,964) 117.4%

Page 21 h

159



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

               City of San Juan Capistrano
      08-5000-02-08-18 Regular Salaries-O&M 9,160 3,532 5,628 38.6%
      08-5001-02-08-18 Overtime Salaries-O&M 188 0 188 0.0%
      08-5011-02-08-18 Laboratory Services 260 (80) 340 (30.8%)
      08-5015-02-08-18 Management Support Services 416 0 416 0.0%
      08-5016-02-08-18 Audit - Environmental 52 0 52 0.0%
      08-5017-02-08-18 Legal Fees 208 0 208 0.0%
      08-5018-02-08-18 Public Notices/ Public Relations 52 8 44 15.4%
      08-5021-02-08-18 Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 88 0 88 0.0%
      08-5022-02-08-18 Miscellaneous Expense 156 32 124 20.5%
      08-5026-02-08-18 Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 124 0 124 0.0%
      08-5027-02-07-18 Insurance - Property/Liability 0 160 (160) 0.0%
      **-5028-**-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 360 88 272 24.4%
      08-5031-02-08-18 Safety Program & Supplies 0 8 (8) 0.0%
      08-5034-02-08-18 Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 364 144 220 39.6%
      08-5035-02-08-18 Training Expense 156 68 88 43.6%
      08-5039-02-08-18 Membership Dues/Fees 104 8 96 7.7%
      08-5306-02-08-18 Scheduled Holiday Work 124 0 124 0.0%
      08-5401-02-08-18 Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 6,504 3,060 3,444 47.0%

               Total City of San Juan Capistrano 18,316 7,028 11,288 38.4%

               El Toro Water District
      08-5000-02-08-19 Regular Salaries-O&M 4,896 1,984 2,912 40.5%
      08-5001-02-08-19 Overtime Salaries-O&M 100 0 100 0.0%
      08-5011-02-08-19 Laboratory Services 140 (44) 184 (31.4%)
      08-5015-02-08-19 Management Support Services 224 0 224 0.0%
      08-5016-02-08-19 Audit - Environmental 28 0 28 0.0%
      08-5017-02-08-19 Legal Fees 112 0 112 0.0%
      08-5018-02-08-19 Public Notices/ Public Relations 28 4 24 14.3%
      08-5021-02-08-19 Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 48 0 48 0.0%
      08-5022-02-08-19 Miscellaneous Expense 84 20 64 23.8%
      08-5026-02-08-19 Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 68 0 68 0.0%
      08-5027-02-07-19 Insurance - Property/Liability 0 160 (160) 0.0%
      **-5028-**-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 240 48 192 20.0%
      08-5031-02-08-19 Safety Program & Supplies 0 4 (4) 0.0%
      08-5034-02-08-19 Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 196 80 116 40.8%
      08-5035-02-08-19 Training Expense 84 40 44 47.6%
      08-5039-02-08-19 Membership Dues/Fees 56 4 52 7.1%
      08-5306-02-08-19 Scheduled Holiday Work 68 0 68 0.0%
      08-5401-02-08-19 Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 3,476 1,720 1,756 49.5%

               Total El Toro Water District 9,848 4,020 5,828 40.8%

               Emerald Bay Service District
      08-5000-02-08-20 Regular Salaries-O&M 544 868 (324) 159.6%
      08-5001-02-08-20 Overtime Salaries-O&M 12 0 12 0.0%
      08-5011-02-08-20 Laboratory Services 16 (20) 36 (125.0%)
      08-5015-02-08-20 Management Support Services 24 0 24 0.0%
      08-5016-02-08-20 Audit - Environmental 4 0 4 0.0%
      08-5017-02-08-20 Legal Fees 12 0 12 0.0%
      08-5018-02-08-20 Public Notices/ Public Relations 4 0 4 0.0%
      08-5021-02-08-20 Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 4 0 4 0.0%
      08-5022-02-08-20 Miscellaneous Expense 8 8 0 100.0%
      08-5026-02-08-20 Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 8 0 8 0.0%
      08-5027-02-07-20 Insurance - Property/Liability 0 160 (160) 0.0%

Page 21 i

160



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

      **-5028-**-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 116 20 96 17.2%
      08-5034-02-08-20 Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 20 36 (16) 180.0%
      08-5035-02-08-20 Training Expense 8 16 (8) 200.0%
      08-5039-02-08-20 Membership Dues/Fees 8 0 8 0.0%
      08-5306-02-08-20 Scheduled Holiday Work 8 0 8 0.0%
      08-5401-02-08-20 Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 388 752 (364) 193.8%

               Total Emerald Bay Service District 1,184 1,840 (656) 155.4%

               Irvine Ranch Water District
      08-5000-02-08-21 Regular Salaries-O&M 5,940 9,296 (3,356) 156.5%
      08-5001-02-08-21 Overtime Salaries-O&M 120 0 120 0.0%
      08-5011-02-08-21 Laboratory Services 168 (204) 372 (121.4%)
      08-5015-02-08-21 Management Support Services 272 0 272 0.0%
      08-5016-02-08-21 Audit - Environmental 32 0 32 0.0%
      08-5017-02-08-21 Legal Fees 136 0 136 0.0%
      08-5018-02-08-21 Public Notices/ Public Relations 32 16 16 50.0%
      08-5021-02-08-21 Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 56 0 56 0.0%
      08-5022-02-08-21 Miscellaneous Expense 100 88 12 88.0%
      08-5026-02-08-21 Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 80 0 80 0.0%
      08-5027-02-07-21 Insurance - Property/Liability 0 160 (160) 0.0%
      **-5028-**-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 268 228 40 85.1%
      08-5031-02-08-21 Safety Program & Supplies 0 16 (16) 0.0%
      08-5034-02-08-21 Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 236 380 (144) 161.0%
      08-5035-02-08-21 Training Expense 100 184 (84) 184.0%
      08-5039-02-08-21 Membership Dues/Fees 68 16 52 23.5%
      08-5306-02-08-21 Scheduled Holiday Work 80 0 80 0.0%
      08-5401-02-08-21 Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 4,216 8,052 (3,836) 191.0%

               Total Irvine Ranch Water District 11,904 18,232 (6,328) 153.2%

               Moulton Niguel Water District
      08-5000-02-08-22 Regular Salaries-O&M 19,524 18,132 1,392 92.9%
      08-5001-02-08-22 Overtime Salaries-O&M 400 0 400 0.0%
      08-5011-02-08-22 Laboratory Services 556 (400) 956 (71.9%)
      08-5015-02-08-22 Management Support Services 892 0 892 0.0%
      08-5016-02-08-22 Audit - Environmental 112 0 112 0.0%
      08-5017-02-08-22 Legal Fees 444 0 444 0.0%
      08-5018-02-08-22 Public Notices/ Public Relations 112 36 76 32.1%
      08-5021-02-08-22 Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 188 0 188 0.0%
      08-5022-02-08-22 Miscellaneous Expense 332 172 160 51.8%
      08-5026-02-08-22 Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 268 0 268 0.0%
      08-5027-02-07-22 Insurance - Property/Liability 0 160 (160) 0.0%
      **-5028-**-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 656 444 212 67.7%
      08-5031-02-08-22 Safety Program & Supplies 0 36 (36) 0.0%
      08-5034-02-08-22 Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 780 744 36 95.4%
      08-5035-02-08-22 Training Expense 332 356 (24) 107.2%
      08-5039-02-08-22 Membership Dues/Fees 224 32 192 14.3%
      08-5306-02-08-22 Scheduled Holiday Work 268 0 268 0.0%
      08-5401-02-08-22 Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 13,860 15,704 (1,844) 113.3%

Rounding 0 11 (11) 0.0%
               Total Moulton Niguel Water District 38,948 35,427 3,521 90.9%

               Santa Margarita Water District
      08-5000-02-08-23 Regular Salaries-O&M 20,864 19,620 1,244 94.0%
      08-5001-02-08-23 Overtime Salaries-O&M 428 0 428 0.0%

Page 21 j

161



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

      08-5011-02-08-23 Laboratory Services 596 (432) 1,028 (72.5%)
      08-5015-02-08-23 Management Support Services 952 0 952 0.0%
      08-5016-02-08-23 Audit - Environmental 120 0 120 0.0%
      08-5017-02-08-23 Legal Fees 476 0 476 0.0%
      08-5018-02-08-23 Public Notices/ Public Relations 120 36 84 30.0%
      08-5021-02-08-23 Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 204 0 204 0.0%
      08-5022-02-08-23 Miscellaneous Expense 356 188 168 52.8%
      08-5026-02-08-23 Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 284 0 284 0.0%
      08-5027-02-07-23 Insurance - Property/Liability 0 160 (160) 0.0%
      **-5028-**-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 696 480 216 69.0%
      08-5031-02-08-23 Safety Program & Supplies 0 36 (36) 0.0%
      08-5034-02-08-23 Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 832 804 28 96.6%
      08-5035-02-08-23 Training Expense 356 384 (28) 107.9%
      08-5039-02-08-23 Membership Dues/Fees 236 36 200 15.3%
      08-5306-02-08-23 Scheduled Holiday Work 284 0 284 0.0%
      08-5401-02-08-23 Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 14,812 16,996 (2,184) 114.7%

               Total Santa Margarita Water District 41,616 38,308 3,308 92.1%

               South Coast Water District
      08-5000-02-08-24 Regular Salaries-O&M 15,644 13,324 2,320 85.2%
      08-5001-02-08-24 Overtime Salaries-O&M 320 0 320 0.0%
      08-5011-02-08-24 Laboratory Services 444 (296) 740 (66.7%)
      08-5015-02-08-24 Management Support Services 712 0 712 0.0%
      08-5016-02-08-24 Audit - Environmental 88 0 88 0.0%
      08-5017-02-08-24 Legal Fees 356 0 356 0.0%
      08-5018-02-08-24 Public Notices/ Public Relations 88 24 64 27.3%
      08-5021-02-08-24 Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 152 0 152 0.0%
      08-5022-02-08-24 Miscellaneous Expense 268 128 140 47.8%
      08-5026-02-08-24 Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 212 0 212 0.0%
      08-5027-02-07-24 Insurance - Property/Liability 0 160 (160) 0.0%
      **-5028-**-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 544 328 216 60.3%
      08-5031-02-08-24 Safety Program & Supplies 0 24 (24) 0.0%
      08-5034-02-08-24 Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 624 544 80 87.2%
      08-5035-02-08-24 Training Expense 268 260 8 97.0%
      08-5039-02-08-24 Membership Dues/Fees 180 24 156 13.3%
      08-5306-02-08-24 Scheduled Holiday Work 212 0 212 0.0%
      08-5401-02-08-24 Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 11,108 11,540 (432) 103.9%

               Total South Coast Water District 31,220 26,060 5,160 83.5%

          Total Member Agency 175,468 150,163 25,305 85.6%

     Total PC 08 - Pre Treatment 175,468 150,163 25,305 85.6%
     PC 12 - Water Reclamation Permits
          Member Agency
               City of San Juan Capistrano
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 2,492 3,596 (1,104) 144.3%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 108 24 84 22.2%
      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 3,400 244 3,156 7.2%
      **-5017-**-**-** Legal Fees 604 0 604 0.0%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 0 184 (184) 0.0%
      **-5038-**-**-** Permits 9,816 11,032 (1,216) 112.4%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 72 0 72 0.0%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 1,772 3,112 (1,340) 175.6%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 1,508 1,548 (40) 102.7%

               Total City of San Juan Capistrano 19,772 19,740 32 99.8%

Page 21 k

162



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

               El Toro Water District
      12-5000-02-10-19 Regular Salaries-O&M 2,360 0 2,360 0.0%
      12-5001-02-10-19 Overtime Salaries-O&M 104 0 104 0.0%
      12-5015-02-10-19 Management Support Services 3,216 0 3,216 0.0%
      12-5017-02-10-19 Legal Fees 572 0 572 0.0%
      12-5038-02-10-19 Permits 9,288 0 9,288 0.0%
      12-5306-02-10-19 Scheduled Holiday Work 68 0 68 0.0%
      12-5401-02-10-19 Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 1,676 0 1,676 0.0%
      12-6500-02-10-19 IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 1,428 0 1,428 0.0%

               Total El Toro Water District 18,712 0 18,712 0.0%

               Irvine Ranch Water District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 2,816 3,756 (940) 133.4%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 124 24 100 19.4%
      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 3,840 252 3,588 6.6%
      **-5017-**-**-** Legal Fees 684 0 684 0.0%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 0 192 (192) 0.0%
      **-5038-**-**-** Permits 11,088 11,528 (440) 104.0%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 80 0 80 0.0%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 2,000 3,252 (1,252) 162.6%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 1,704 1,616 88 94.8%

               Total Irvine Ranch Water District 22,336 20,620 1,716 92.3%

               Moulton Niguel Water District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 10,624 10,008 616 94.2%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 464 68 396 14.7%
      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 14,468 676 13,792 4.7%
      **-5017-**-**-** Legal Fees 2,572 0 2,572 0.0%
      **-5034-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 0 520 (520) 0.0%
      **-5038-**-**-** Permits 41,796 30,704 11,092 73.5%
      **-5401-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 308 0 308 0.0%
      **-5705-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 7,544 8,668 (1,124) 114.9%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 6,432 4,308 2,124 67.0%

Rounding 0 36 (36) 0.0%
               Total Moulton Niguel Water District 84,208 54,988 29,220 65.3%

               Santa Margarita Water District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 8,368 11,144 (2,776) 133.2%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 364 76 288 20.9%
      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 11,392 752 10,640 6.6%
      **-5017-**-**-** Legal Fees 2,028 0 2,028 0.0%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 0 576 (576) 0.0%
      **-5038-**-**-** Permits 32,912 34,196 (1,284) 103.9%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 244 0 244 0.0%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 5,940 9,652 (3,712) 162.5%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 5,064 4,796 268 94.7%

               Total Santa Margarita Water District 66,312 61,192 5,120 92.3%

               South Coast Water District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 3,360 4,064 (704) 121.0%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 148 28 120 18.9%
      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 4,576 276 4,300 6.0%
      **-5017-**-**-** Legal Fees 816 0 816 0.0%

Page 21 L

163



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 0 208 (208) 0.0%
      **-5038-**-**-** Permits 13,224 12,460 764 94.2%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 96 0 96 0.0%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 2,388 3,516 (1,128) 147.2%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 2,036 1,748 288 85.9%

               Total South Coast Water District 26,644 22,300 4,344 83.7%

               Trabuco Canyon Water District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 3,020 2,992 28 99.1%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 132 20 112 15.2%
      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 4,112 200 3,912 4.9%
      **-5017-**-**-** Legal Fees 732 0 732 0.0%
      12-5027-02-10-25 Insurance - Property/Liability 0 152 (152) 0.0%
      **-5038-**-**-** Permits 11,884 9,172 2,712 77.2%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 88 0 88 0.0%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 2,144 2,588 (444) 120.7%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 1,828 1,288 540 70.5%

               Total Trabuco Canyon Water District 23,940 16,412 7,528 68.7%

          Total Member Agency 261,924 195,252 66,672 74.5%

     Total PC 12 - Water Reclamation Permits 261,924 195,252 66,672 74.5%
     PC 15 - Coastal Treatment Plant
          Member Agency
               City of Laguna Beach
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 423,824 369,200 54,624 87.1%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 6,744 10,788 (4,044) 160.0%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 157,412 116,536 40,876 74.0%
      **-5003-**-**-** Natural Gas 1,544 1,344 200 87.0%
      **-5004-**-**-** Potable & Reclaimed Water 5,264 10,316 (5,052) 196.0%
      15-5006-01-01-16 Chlorine/Sodium Hypochlorite 3,492 380 3,112 10.9%
      15-5007-01-01-16 Polymer Products 520 0 520 0.0%
      15-5008-01-01-16 Ferric Chloride 18,668 16,564 2,104 88.7%
      15-5009-01-01-16 Odor Control Chemicals 49,944 42,216 7,728 84.5%
      15-5010-01-01-16 Other Chemicals - Misc. 0 276 (276) 0.0%
      15-5011-02-01-16 Laboratory Services 5,880 2,420 3,460 41.2%
      15-5012-01-01-16 Grit Hauling - 21A 17,092 14,556 2,536 85.2%
      **-5013-**-**-** Landscaping 18,952 28,944 (9,992) 152.7%
      **-5014-**-**-** Engineering - Misc. 24,640 2,728 21,912 11.1%
      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 4,552 2,320 2,232 51.0%
      **-5017-**-**-** Legal Fees 18,952 11,596 7,356 61.2%
      **-5019-**-**-** Contract Services Misc. - 29 26,952 17,624 9,328 65.4%
      **-5021-**-**-** Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 2,860 2,464 396 86.2%
      **-5022-**-**-** Miscellaneous Expense 1,024 556 468 54.3%
      **-5023-**-**-** Office Supplies - All 2,424 2,192 232 90.4%
      15-5024-01-01-16 Petroleum Products 1,032 2,340 (1,308) 226.7%
      **-5025-**-**-** Uniforms 2,964 3,420 (456) 115.4%
      **-5026-**-**-** Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 2,964 568 2,396 19.2%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 4,984 9,880 (4,896) 198.2%
      **-5028-**-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 2,728 2,924 (196) 107.2%
      **-5030-**-**-** Trash Disposal 1,176 476 700 40.5%
      **-5031-**-**-** Safety Supplies 7,016 7,780 (764) 110.9%
      **-5032-**-**-** Equipment Rental 456 92 364 20.2%
      15-5033-01-03-16 Recruitment 0 112 (112) 0.0%

Page 21 m

164



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

      **-5034-**-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 1,896 464 1,432 24.5%
      **-5035-**-**-** Training Expense 2,272 4,624 (2,352) 203.5%
      15-5036-02-01-16 Laboratory Supplies 5,456 3,304 2,152 60.6%
      **-5037-**-**-** Office Equipment 376 64 312 17.0%
      **-5038-**-**-** Permits 4,928 1,796 3,132 36.4%
      **-5039-**-**-** Membership Dues/Fees 752 600 152 79.8%
      **-5047-**-**-** Access Road Expenses 17,208 13,740 3,468 79.8%
      **-5048-**-**-** Storm Damage 7,048 11,596 (4,548) 164.5%
      15-5049-01-01-16 Biosolids Disposal - 21B 75,764 0 75,764 0.0%
      **-5050-**-**-** Contract Services Generators - 29A 1,592 4,000 (2,408) 251.3%
      **-5052-**-**-** Janitorial Services 3,792 2,644 1,148 69.7%
      15-5054-01-01-16 Diesel Truck Maint - 31B 608 1,980 (1,372) 325.7%
      15-5057-01-01-16 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Liquids) 41-B 90,368 75,276 15,092 83.3%
      **-5058-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Common) 41-C 6,296 9,028 (2,732) 143.4%
      **-5061-**-**-** Mileage 604 216 388 35.8%
      15-5077-01-03-16 IT Direct 0 31,364 (31,364) 0.0%
      15-5301-01-01-16 Vehicle Pay 0 2,316 (2,316) 0.0%
      **-5302-**-**-** Performance Based Merit Pay 0 3,140 (3,140) 0.0%
      **-5303-**-**-** Group Insurance Waiver 0 928 (928) 0.0%
      **-5305-**-**-** Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 2,040 (2,040) 0.0%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 4,504 2,020 2,484 44.8%
      **-5307-**-**-** Weekend Shift Pay 0 52 (52) 0.0%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 300,912 318,880 (17,968) 106.0%
      **-5700-**-**-** Standby Pay 17,376 5,120 12,256 29.5%
      **-5705-**-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 2,012 472 1,540 23.5%
      15-5802-01-03-16 Shipping/Freight 0 4 (4) 0.0%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 45,056 43,960 1,096 97.6%

               Total City of Laguna Beach 1,402,880 1,220,240 182,640 87.0%

               Emerald Bay Service District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 16,152 13,728 2,424 85.0%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 260 348 (88) 133.8%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 5,076 3,432 1,644 67.6%
      **-5003-**-**-** Natural Gas 48 40 8 83.3%
      **-5004-**-**-** Potable & Reclaimed Water 344 328 16 95.3%
      15-5006-01-01-20 Chlorine/Sodium Hypochlorite 108 12 96 11.1%
      15-5007-01-01-20 Polymer Products 16 0 16 0.0%
      15-5008-01-01-20 Ferric Chloride 584 468 116 80.1%
      15-5009-01-01-20 Odor Control Chemicals 1,556 1,192 364 76.6%
      15-5010-01-01-20 Other Chemicals - Misc. 0 8 (8) 0.0%
      15-5011-02-01-20 Laboratory Services 184 68 116 37.0%
      15-5012-01-01-20 Grit Hauling - 21A 532 412 120 77.4%
      **-5013-**-**-** Landscaping 1,496 2,284 (788) 152.7%
      **-5014-**-**-** Engineering - Misc. 1,944 216 1,728 11.1%
      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 360 184 176 51.1%
      **-5017-**-**-** Legal Fees 1,496 916 580 61.2%
      **-5019-**-**-** Contract Services Misc. - 29 2,128 1,392 736 65.4%
      **-5021-**-**-** Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 108 88 20 81.5%
      **-5022-**-**-** Miscellaneous Expense 80 44 36 55.0%
      **-5023-**-**-** Office Supplies - All 192 172 20 89.6%
      15-5024-01-01-20 Petroleum Products 32 68 (36) 212.5%
      **-5025-**-**-** Uniforms 112 124 (12) 110.7%
      **-5026-**-**-** Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 112 20 92 17.9%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 392 780 (388) 199.0%

Page 21 n

165



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

      **-5028-**-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 216 232 (16) 107.4%
      **-5030-**-**-** Trash Disposal 96 36 60 37.5%
      **-5031-**-**-** Safety Supplies 552 612 (60) 110.9%
      **-5032-**-**-** Equipment Rental 32 8 24 25.0%
      15-5033-01-03-20 Recruitment 0 8 (8) 0.0%
      **-5034-**-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 144 36 108 25.0%
      **-5035-**-**-** Training Expense 176 364 (188) 206.8%
      15-5036-02-01-20 Laboratory Supplies 172 92 80 53.5%
      **-5037-**-**-** Office Equipment 32 4 28 12.5%
      **-5038-**-**-** Permits 384 140 244 36.5%
      **-5039-**-**-** Membership Dues/Fees 64 48 16 75.0%
      **-5047-**-**-** Access Road Expenses 1,360 1,084 276 79.7%
      **-5048-**-**-** Storm Damage 560 916 (356) 163.6%
      15-5049-01-01-20 Biosolids Disposal - 21B 2,364 0 2,364 0.0%
      **-5050-**-**-** Contract Services Generators - 29A 128 316 (188) 246.9%
      **-5052-**-**-** Janitorial Services 296 208 88 70.3%
      15-5054-01-01-20 Diesel Truck Maint - 31B 20 56 (36) 280.0%
      15-5057-01-01-20 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Liquids) 41-B 2,816 2,128 688 75.6%
      **-5058-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Common) 41-C 496 712 (216) 143.5%
      **-5061-**-**-** Mileage 24 8 16 33.3%
      15-5077-01-03-20 IT Direct 0 2,472 (2,472) 0.0%
      **-5302-**-**-** Performance Based Merit Pay 0 112 (112) 0.0%
      **-5303-**-**-** Group Insurance Waiver 0 32 (32) 0.0%
      **-5305-**-**-** Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 76 (76) 0.0%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 168 76 92 45.2%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 11,472 11,856 (384) 103.3%
      **-5700-**-**-** Standby Pay 664 188 476 28.3%
      **-5705-**-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 76 100 (24) 131.6%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 3,552 3,468 84 97.6%

               Total Emerald Bay Service District 59,176 51,712 7,464 87.4%

               Moulton Niguel Water District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 47,632 50,312 (2,680) 105.6%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 760 672 88 88.4%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 2,768 2,100 668 75.9%
      **-5003-**-**-** Natural Gas 40 32 8 80.0%
      **-5004-**-**-** Potable & Reclaimed Water 2,904 532 2,372 18.3%
      **-5013-**-**-** Landscaping 14,624 22,332 (7,708) 152.7%
      **-5014-**-**-** Engineering - Misc. 19,016 2,104 16,912 11.1%
      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 3,512 1,788 1,724 50.9%
      **-5017-**-**-** Legal Fees 14,624 8,948 5,676 61.2%
      **-5019-**-**-** Contract Services Misc. - 29 20,800 13,600 7,200 65.4%
      **-5021-**-**-** Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 320 324 (4) 101.3%
      **-5022-**-**-** Miscellaneous Expense 792 432 360 54.5%
      **-5023-**-**-** Office Supplies - All 1,872 1,692 180 90.4%
      **-5025-**-**-** Uniforms 336 448 (112) 133.3%
      **-5026-**-**-** Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 336 76 260 22.6%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 3,848 7,624 (3,776) 198.1%
      **-5028-**-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 2,104 2,256 (152) 107.2%
      **-5030-**-**-** Trash Disposal 904 368 536 40.7%
      **-5031-**-**-** Safety Supplies 5,408 6,004 (596) 111.0%
      **-5032-**-**-** Equipment Rental 352 72 280 20.5%
      15-5033-01-03-22 Recruitment 0 88 (88) 0.0%
      **-5034-**-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 1,464 360 1,104 24.6%

Page 21 o

166



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

      **-5035-**-**-** Training Expense 1,752 3,568 (1,816) 203.7%
      **-5037-**-**-** Office Equipment 296 52 244 17.6%
      **-5038-**-**-** Permits 3,808 1,384 2,424 36.3%
      **-5039-**-**-** Membership Dues/Fees 592 464 128 78.4%
      **-5047-**-**-** Access Road Expenses 13,280 10,600 2,680 79.8%
      **-5048-**-**-** Storm Damage 5,440 8,948 (3,508) 164.5%
      **-5050-**-**-** Contract Services Generators - 29A 1,232 3,088 (1,856) 250.6%
      **-5052-**-**-** Janitorial Services 2,928 2,040 888 69.7%
      **-5058-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Common) 41-C 4,856 6,964 (2,108) 143.4%
      **-5061-**-**-** Mileage 64 28 36 43.8%
      15-5077-01-03-22 IT Direct 0 24,200 (24,200) 0.0%
      15-5302-01-03-22 Performance Based Merit Pay 0 408 (408) 0.0%
      15-5303-01-03-22 Group Insurance Waiver 0 120 (120) 0.0%
      15-5305-01-03-22 Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 268 (268) 0.0%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 504 284 220 56.3%
      **-5307-**-**-** Weekend Shift Pay 0 8 (8) 0.0%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 33,824 43,460 (9,636) 128.5%
      **-5700-**-**-** Standby Pay 1,952 668 1,284 34.2%
      **-5705-**-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 224 364 (140) 162.5%
      15-5802-01-03-22 Shipping/Freight 0 4 (4) 0.0%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 34,760 33,916 844 97.6%

Rounding 0 19 (19) 0.0%
               Total Moulton Niguel Water District 249,928 263,019 (13,091) 105.2%

               South Coast Water District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 356,180 371,184 (15,004) 104.2%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 5,672 11,840 (6,168) 208.7%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 104,752 83,152 21,600 79.4%
      **-5003-**-**-** Natural Gas 968 904 64 93.4%
      **-5004-**-**-** Potable & Reclaimed Water 3,892 6,960 (3,068) 178.8%
      **-5006-**-**-** Chlorine/Sodium Hypochlorite 111,600 64,096 47,504 57.4%
      **-5007-**-**-** Polymer Products 1,464 0 1,464 0.0%
      15-5008-01-01-24 Ferric Chloride 11,552 11,044 508 95.6%
      15-5009-01-01-24 Odor Control Chemicals 30,900 28,144 2,756 91.1%
      15-5010-01-01-24 Other Chemicals - Misc. 0 184 (184) 0.0%
      **-5011-**-**-** Laboratory Services 3,636 5,720 (2,084) 157.3%
      15-5012-01-01-24 Grit Hauling - 21A 10,576 9,704 872 91.8%
      **-5013-**-**-** Landscaping 14,928 22,792 (7,864) 152.7%
      **-5014-**-**-** Engineering - Misc. 19,400 2,148 17,252 11.1%
      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 3,584 1,824 1,760 50.9%
      **-5017-**-**-** Legal Fees 14,928 9,128 5,800 61.1%
      **-5019-**-**-** Contract Services Misc. - 29 21,224 13,876 7,348 65.4%
      **-5021-**-**-** Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 2,404 2,448 (44) 101.8%
      **-5022-**-**-** Miscellaneous Expense 808 440 368 54.5%
      **-5023-**-**-** Office Supplies - All 1,912 1,724 188 90.2%
      15-5024-01-01-24 Petroleum Products 636 1,560 (924) 245.3%
      **-5025-**-**-** Uniforms 2,488 3,388 (900) 136.2%
      **-5026-**-**-** Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 2,488 564 1,924 22.7%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 3,920 7,780 (3,860) 198.5%
      **-5028-**-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 2,152 2,300 (148) 106.9%
      **-5030-**-**-** Trash Disposal 928 376 552 40.5%
      **-5031-**-**-** Safety Supplies 5,520 6,124 (604) 110.9%
      **-5032-**-**-** Equipment Rental 360 72 288 20.0%
      15-5033-01-03-24 Recruitment 0 88 (88) 0.0%

Page 21 p

167



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

      **-5034-**-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 1,496 364 1,132 24.3%
      **-5035-**-**-** Training Expense 1,792 3,640 (1,848) 203.1%
      **-5036-**-**-** Laboratory Supplies 4,376 4,064 312 92.9%
      **-5037-**-**-** Office Equipment 296 52 244 17.6%
      **-5038-**-**-** Permits 3,888 1,412 2,476 36.3%
      **-5039-**-**-** Membership Dues/Fees 592 472 120 79.7%
      **-5047-**-**-** Access Road Expenses 13,552 10,820 2,732 79.8%
      **-5048-**-**-** Storm Damage 5,552 9,132 (3,580) 164.5%
      15-5049-01-01-24 Biosolids Disposal - 21B 46,876 0 46,876 0.0%
      **-5050-**-**-** Contract Services Generators - 29A 1,256 3,152 (1,896) 251.0%
      **-5052-**-**-** Janitorial Services 2,984 2,084 900 69.8%
      15-5054-01-01-24 Diesel Truck Maint - 31B 376 1,320 (944) 351.1%
      15-5057-01-01-24 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Liquids) 41-B 55,912 50,184 5,728 89.8%
      **-5058-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Common) 41-C 4,952 7,108 (2,156) 143.5%
      15-5060-01-04-24 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (AWT) 41-E 26,700 29,940 (3,240) 112.1%
      **-5061-**-**-** Mileage 512 216 296 42.2%
      15-5077-01-03-24 IT Direct 0 24,696 (24,696) 0.0%
      **-5302-**-**-** Performance Based Merit Pay 0 3,112 (3,112) 0.0%
      **-5303-**-**-** Group Insurance Waiver 0 920 (920) 0.0%
      **-5305-**-**-** Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 2,024 (2,024) 0.0%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 3,780 2,052 1,728 54.3%
      **-5307-**-**-** Weekend Shift Pay 0 52 (52) 0.0%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 252,884 320,600 (67,716) 126.8%
      **-5700-**-**-** Standby Pay 14,604 5,076 9,528 34.8%
      **-5705-**-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 1,692 2,764 (1,072) 163.4%
      15-5802-01-03-24 Shipping/Freight 0 4 (4) 0.0%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 35,480 34,612 868 97.6%

               Total South Coast Water District 1,218,424 1,189,436 28,988 97.6%

          Total Member Agency 2,930,408 2,724,407 206,001 93.0%

     Total PC 15 - Coastal Treatment Plant 2,930,408 2,724,407 206,001 93.0%
     PC 17 - Joint Regional Wastewater Reclamation
          Member Agency
               City of Laguna Beach
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 115,724 91,404 24,320 79.0%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 2,364 4,280 (1,916) 181.0%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 33,368 19,204 14,164 57.6%
      17-5003-01-02-16 Natural Gas 17,380 10,764 6,616 61.9%
      **-5004-**-**-** Potable & Reclaimed Water 2,360 1,844 516 78.1%
      17-5005-01-02-16 Co-generation Power Credit (58,276) (25,164) (33,112) 43.2%
      17-5006-01-01-16 Chlorine/Sodium Hypochlorite 88 20 68 22.7%
      **-5007-**-**-** Polymer Products 41,312 34,056 7,256 82.4%
      **-5008-**-**-** Ferric Chloride 10,220 14,612 (4,392) 143.0%
      **-5009-**-**-** Odor Control Chemicals 264 2,204 (1,940) 834.8%
      17-5010-01-23-16 Other Chemicals - Misc. 224 0 224 0.0%
      **-5011-**-**-** Laboratory Services 520 388 132 74.6%
      17-5012-01-01-16 Grit Hauling - 21A 80 76 4 95.0%
      17-5013-01-23-16 Landscaping 3,648 5,040 (1,392) 138.2%
      17-5014-01-23-16 Engineering - Misc. 5,328 4,616 712 86.6%
      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 3,196 836 2,360 26.2%
      17-5017-01-23-16 Legal Fees 224 136 88 60.7%
      17-5019-01-23-16 Contract Services Misc. - 29 6,844 4,876 1,968 71.2%
      **-5021-**-**-** Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 376 684 (308) 181.9%

Page 21 q

168



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

      17-5022-01-23-16 Miscellaneous Expense 304 148 156 48.7%
      17-5023-01-23-16 Office Supplies - All 404 664 (260) 164.4%
      **-5024-**-**-** Petroleum Products 4,944 3,076 1,868 62.2%
      **-5025-**-**-** Uniforms 1,084 1,048 36 96.7%
      **-5026-**-**-** Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 820 436 384 53.2%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 2,524 3,616 (1,092) 143.3%
      17-5028-01-23-16 Small Tools & Supplies 1,156 1,232 (76) 106.6%
      17-5030-01-23-16 Trash Disposal 52 80 (28) 153.8%
      17-5031-02-23-16 Safety Supplies 2,076 2,504 (428) 120.6%
      17-5032-01-23-16 Equipment Rental 168 836 (668) 497.6%
      **-5033-**-**-** Recruitment 0 64 (64) 0.0%
      **-5034-**-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 672 244 428 36.3%
      **-5035-**-**-** Training Expense 1,348 1,008 340 74.8%
      **-5036-**-**-** Laboratory Supplies 668 564 104 84.4%
      17-5037-01-23-16 Office Equipment 304 328 (24) 107.9%
      17-5038-02-23-16 Permits 2,244 984 1,260 43.9%
      **-5039-**-**-** Membership Dues/Fees 224 352 (128) 157.1%
      17-5049-01-02-16 Biosolids Disposal - 21B 106,836 116,276 (9,440) 108.8%
      17-5050-01-23-16 Contract Services Generators - 29A 404 336 68 83.2%
      17-5052-01-23-16 Janitorial Services 1,124 640 484 56.9%
      17-5053-01-02-16 Contract Serv - Digester Cleaning - 29E 0 0 0 0.0%
      17-5054-01-02-16 Diesel Truck Maint - 31B 2,396 1,444 952 60.3%
      17-5055-01-02-16 Diesel Truck Fuel - 37B 804 516 288 64.2%
      17-5056-01-02-16 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Solids) 41-A 23,104 24,912 (1,808) 107.8%
      17-5057-01-01-16 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Liquids) 41-B 252 280 (28) 111.1%
      17-5058-01-23-16 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Common) 41-C 1,076 1,640 (564) 152.4%
      17-5059-01-02-16 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Co-Gen) 41-D 11,592 7,208 4,384 62.2%
      **-5061-**-**-** Mileage 192 116 76 60.4%
      **-5068-**-**-** MNWD Lab Services and Supplies 1,772 0 1,772 0.0%
      17-5077-01-23-16 IT Direct 0 2,356 (2,356) 0.0%
      **-5101-**-**-** Employee Recognition 0 48 (48) 0.0%
      **-5105-**-**-** Co-Generation Power Credit - Offset 58,276 9,636 48,640 16.5%
      **-5302-**-**-** Performance Based Merit Pay 0 424 (424) 0.0%
      **-5303-**-**-** Group Insurance Waiver 0 40 (40) 0.0%
      **-5305-**-**-** Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 132 (132) 0.0%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 1,448 612 836 42.3%
      17-5307-01-02-16 Weekend Shift Pay 0 20 (20) 0.0%
      17-5309-01-23-16 Operating Leases 168 0 168 0.0%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 82,168 78,816 3,352 95.9%
      **-5700-**-**-** Standby Pay 3,388 1,916 1,472 56.6%
      **-5705-**-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 660 700 (40) 106.1%
      17-5802-02-23-16 Shipping/Freight 0 8 (8) 0.0%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 11,772 12,072 (300) 102.5%

               Total City of Laguna Beach 511,668 447,208 64,460 87.4%

               El Toro Water District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 147,688 106,916 40,772 72.4%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 3,024 4,948 (1,924) 163.6%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 43,932 23,228 20,704 52.9%
      17-5003-01-02-19 Natural Gas 21,700 12,072 9,628 55.6%
      **-5004-**-**-** Potable & Reclaimed Water 2,948 2,064 884 70.0%
      17-5005-01-02-19 Co-generation Power Credit (72,764) (28,212) (44,552) 38.8%
      17-5006-01-01-19 Chlorine/Sodium Hypochlorite 104 24 80 23.1%
      **-5007-**-**-** Polymer Products 51,576 38,188 13,388 74.0%

Page 21 r

169



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

      **-5008-**-**-** Ferric Chloride 12,756 16,388 (3,632) 128.5%
      **-5009-**-**-** Odor Control Chemicals 320 2,468 (2,148) 771.3%
      17-5010-01-23-19 Other Chemicals - Misc. 408 0 408 0.0%
      **-5011-**-**-** Laboratory Services 652 436 216 66.9%
      17-5012-01-01-19 Grit Hauling - 21A 92 88 4 95.7%
      17-5013-01-23-19 Landscaping 6,632 9,172 (2,540) 138.3%
      17-5014-01-23-19 Engineering - Misc. 9,696 8,396 1,300 86.6%
      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 5,816 1,524 4,292 26.2%
      17-5017-01-23-19 Legal Fees 408 248 160 60.8%
      17-5019-01-23-19 Contract Services Misc. - 29 12,452 8,872 3,580 71.2%
      **-5021-**-**-** Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 476 788 (312) 165.5%
      17-5022-01-23-19 Miscellaneous Expense 552 268 284 48.6%
      17-5023-01-23-19 Office Supplies - All 736 1,208 (472) 164.1%
      **-5024-**-**-** Petroleum Products 6,176 3,448 2,728 55.8%
      **-5025-**-**-** Uniforms 1,384 1,208 176 87.3%
      **-5026-**-**-** Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 1,048 504 544 48.1%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 4,596 6,580 (1,984) 143.2%
      17-5028-01-23-19 Small Tools & Supplies 2,104 2,244 (140) 106.7%
      17-5030-01-23-19 Trash Disposal 92 144 (52) 156.5%
      17-5031-02-23-19 Safety Supplies 3,776 4,560 (784) 120.8%
      17-5032-01-23-19 Equipment Rental 308 1,520 (1,212) 493.5%
      **-5033-**-**-** Recruitment 0 72 (72) 0.0%
      **-5034-**-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 1,228 440 788 35.8%
      **-5035-**-**-** Training Expense 2,448 1,836 612 75.0%
      **-5036-**-**-** Laboratory Supplies 832 636 196 76.4%
      17-5037-01-23-19 Office Equipment 552 592 (40) 107.2%
      17-5038-02-23-19 Permits 4,084 1,788 2,296 43.8%
      **-5039-**-**-** Membership Dues/Fees 412 640 (228) 155.3%
      17-5049-01-02-19 Biosolids Disposal - 21B 133,404 130,380 3,024 97.7%
      17-5050-01-23-19 Contract Services Generators - 29A 736 612 124 83.2%
      17-5052-01-23-19 Janitorial Services 2,040 1,164 876 57.1%
      17-5053-01-02-19 Contract Serv - Digester Cleaning - 29E 0 0 0 0.0%
      17-5054-01-02-19 Diesel Truck Maint - 31B 2,992 1,616 1,376 54.0%
      17-5055-01-02-19 Diesel Truck Fuel - 37B 1,004 576 428 57.4%
      17-5056-01-02-19 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Solids) 41-A 28,848 27,936 912 96.8%
      17-5057-01-01-19 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Liquids) 41-B 300 324 (24) 108.0%
      17-5058-01-23-19 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Common) 41-C 1,960 2,984 (1,024) 152.2%
      17-5059-01-02-19 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Co-Gen) 41-D 14,472 8,084 6,388 55.9%
      **-5061-**-**-** Mileage 252 140 112 55.6%
      **-5068-**-**-** MNWD Lab Services and Supplies 2,208 0 2,208 0.0%
      17-5077-01-23-19 IT Direct 0 4,288 (4,288) 0.0%
      **-5101-**-**-** Employee Recognition 0 52 (52) 0.0%
      **-5105-**-**-** Co-Generation Power Credit - Offset 72,764 11,652 61,112 16.0%
      **-5302-**-**-** Performance Based Merit Pay 0 488 (488) 0.0%
      **-5303-**-**-** Group Insurance Waiver 0 56 (56) 0.0%
      **-5305-**-**-** Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 148 (148) 0.0%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 1,848 720 1,128 39.0%
      17-5307-01-02-19 Weekend Shift Pay 0 24 (24) 0.0%
      17-5309-01-23-19 Operating Leases 308 0 308 0.0%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 104,852 92,200 12,652 87.9%
      **-5700-**-**-** Standby Pay 4,324 2,212 2,112 51.2%
      **-5705-**-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 840 816 24 97.1%
      17-5802-02-23-19 Shipping/Freight 0 12 (12) 0.0%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 21,416 21,956 (540) 102.5%

               Total El Toro Water District 672,812 543,736 129,076 80.8%

Page 21 s

170



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

               Emerald Bay Service District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 3,728 2,960 768 79.4%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 72 132 (60) 183.3%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 1,136 648 488 57.0%
      17-5003-01-02-20 Natural Gas 536 332 204 61.9%
      17-5004-01-02-20 Potable & Reclaimed Water 72 56 16 77.8%
      17-5005-01-02-20 Co-generation Power Credit (1,800) (776) (1,024) 43.1%
      17-5006-01-01-20 Chlorine/Sodium Hypochlorite 4 0 4 0.0%
      **-5007-**-**-** Polymer Products 1,280 1,052 228 82.2%
      **-5008-**-**-** Ferric Chloride 316 448 (132) 141.8%
      **-5009-**-**-** Odor Control Chemicals 12 68 (56) 566.7%
      17-5010-01-23-20 Other Chemicals - Misc. 12 0 12 0.0%
      17-5011-02-02-20 Laboratory Services 16 12 4 75.0%
      17-5012-01-01-20 Grit Hauling - 21A 4 4 0 100.0%
      17-5013-01-23-20 Landscaping 192 264 (72) 137.5%
      17-5014-01-23-20 Engineering - Misc. 280 244 36 87.1%
      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 168 44 124 26.2%
      17-5017-01-23-20 Legal Fees 12 8 4 66.7%
      17-5019-01-23-20 Contract Services Misc. - 29 360 256 104 71.1%
      17-5021-01-02-20 Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 12 20 (8) 166.7%
      17-5022-01-23-20 Miscellaneous Expense 16 8 8 50.0%
      17-5023-01-23-20 Office Supplies - All 20 36 (16) 180.0%
      17-5024-01-02-20 Petroleum Products 152 96 56 63.2%
      **-5025-**-**-** Uniforms 36 36 0 100.0%
      **-5026-**-**-** Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 28 12 16 42.9%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 136 192 (56) 141.2%
      17-5028-01-23-20 Small Tools & Supplies 60 64 (4) 106.7%
      17-5030-01-23-20 Trash Disposal 4 4 0 100.0%
      17-5031-02-23-20 Safety Supplies 108 132 (24) 122.2%
      17-5032-01-23-20 Equipment Rental 8 44 (36) 550.0%
      **-5034-**-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 36 12 24 33.3%
      **-5035-**-**-** Training Expense 72 56 16 77.8%
      17-5036-02-02-20 Laboratory Supplies 20 16 4 80.0%
      17-5037-01-23-20 Office Equipment 16 16 0 100.0%
      17-5038-02-23-20 Permits 120 52 68 43.3%
      **-5039-**-**-** Membership Dues/Fees 12 20 (8) 166.7%
      17-5049-01-02-20 Biosolids Disposal - 21B 3,300 3,588 (288) 108.7%
      17-5050-01-23-20 Contract Services Generators - 29A 20 16 4 80.0%
      17-5052-01-23-20 Janitorial Services 60 32 28 53.3%
      17-5053-01-02-20 Contract Serv - Digester Cleaning - 29E 0 0 0 0.0%
      17-5054-01-02-20 Diesel Truck Maint - 31B 76 44 32 57.9%
      17-5055-01-02-20 Diesel Truck Fuel - 37B 24 16 8 66.7%
      17-5056-01-02-20 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Solids) 41-A 712 768 (56) 107.9%
      17-5057-01-01-20 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Liquids) 41-B 16 8 8 50.0%
      17-5058-01-23-20 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Common) 41-C 56 88 (32) 157.1%
      17-5059-01-02-20 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Co-Gen) 41-D 360 224 136 62.2%
      17-5061-01-02-20 Mileage 4 4 0 100.0%
      17-5068-02-02-20 MNWD Lab Services and Supplies 56 0 56 0.0%
      17-5077-01-23-20 IT Direct 0 124 (124) 0.0%
      **-5105-**-**-** Co-Generation Power Credit - Offset 1,800 324 1,476 18.0%
      17-5302-01-02-20 Performance Based Merit Pay 0 12 (12) 0.0%
      17-5305-01-02-20 Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 4 (4) 0.0%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 48 16 32 33.3%

Page 21 t

171



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

      17-5309-01-23-20 Operating Leases 8 0 8 0.0%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 2,648 2,552 96 96.4%
      **-5700-**-**-** Standby Pay 108 60 48 55.6%
      17-5705-01-02-20 Monthly Car Allowance 20 20 0 100.0%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 620 632 (12) 101.9%

               Total Emerald Bay Service District 17,192 15,100 2,092 87.8%

               Moulton Niguel Water District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 1,418,952 1,290,436 128,516 90.9%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 29,048 63,348 (34,300) 218.1%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 575,696 345,280 230,416 60.0%
      17-5003-01-02-22 Natural Gas 83,820 55,652 28,168 66.4%
      **-5004-**-**-** Potable & Reclaimed Water 25,156 20,672 4,484 82.2%
      17-5005-01-02-22 Co-generation Power Credit (281,072) (130,072) (151,000) 46.3%
      **-5006-**-**-** Chlorine/Sodium Hypochlorite 399,756 342,208 57,548 85.6%
      **-5007-**-**-** Polymer Products 267,256 234,256 33,000 87.7%
      **-5008-**-**-** Ferric Chloride 100,776 104,372 (3,596) 103.6%
      **-5009-**-**-** Odor Control Chemicals 62,848 43,000 19,848 68.4%
      **-5010-**-**-** Other Chemicals - Misc. 3,176 0 3,176 0.0%
      **-5011-**-**-** Laboratory Services 11,492 11,064 428 96.3%
      17-5012-01-01-22 Grit Hauling - 21A 46,276 48,596 (2,320) 105.0%
      **-5013-**-**-** Landscaping 51,616 71,368 (19,752) 138.3%
      **-5014-**-**-** Engineering - Misc. 75,440 65,336 10,104 86.6%
      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 45,264 11,856 33,408 26.2%
      **-5017-**-**-** Legal Fees 3,176 1,936 1,240 61.0%
      **-5019-**-**-** Contract Services Misc. - 29 96,880 69,028 27,852 71.3%
      **-5021-**-**-** Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 4,596 8,524 (3,928) 185.5%
      **-5022-**-**-** Miscellaneous Expense 4,288 2,088 2,200 48.7%
      **-5023-**-**-** Office Supplies - All 5,716 9,396 (3,680) 164.4%
      **-5024-**-**-** Petroleum Products 26,864 17,832 9,032 66.4%
      **-5025-**-**-** Uniforms 13,316 13,044 272 98.0%
      **-5026-**-**-** Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 10,088 5,432 4,656 53.8%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 35,736 51,204 (15,468) 143.3%
      **-5028-**-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 16,360 17,460 (1,100) 106.7%
      **-5030-**-**-** Trash Disposal 716 1,132 (416) 158.1%
      **-5031-**-**-** Safety Supplies 29,380 35,472 (6,092) 120.7%
      **-5032-**-**-** Equipment Rental 2,384 11,840 (9,456) 496.6%
      **-5033-**-**-** Recruitment 0 800 (800) 0.0%
      **-5034-**-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 9,532 3,432 6,100 36.0%
      **-5035-**-**-** Training Expense 19,060 14,288 4,772 75.0%
      **-5036-**-**-** Laboratory Supplies 16,572 16,072 500 97.0%
      **-5037-**-**-** Office Equipment 4,288 4,624 (336) 107.8%
      **-5038-**-**-** Permits 31,764 13,924 17,840 43.8%
      **-5039-**-**-** Membership Dues/Fees 3,180 4,988 (1,808) 156.9%
      17-5049-01-02-22 Biosolids Disposal - 21B 515,296 601,080 (85,784) 116.6%
      **-5050-**-**-** Contract Services Generators - 29A 5,716 4,752 964 83.1%
      **-5052-**-**-** Janitorial Services 15,884 9,072 6,812 57.1%
      17-5053-01-02-22 Contract Serv - Digester Cleaning - 29E 0 0 0 0.0%
      17-5054-01-02-22 Diesel Truck Maint - 31B 11,556 7,456 4,100 64.5%
      17-5055-01-02-22 Diesel Truck Fuel - 37B 3,872 2,656 1,216 68.6%
      17-5056-01-02-22 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Solids) 41-A 111,428 128,784 (17,356) 115.6%
      17-5057-01-01-22 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Liquids) 41-B 148,384 178,956 (30,572) 120.6%
      **-5058-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Common) 41-C 15,248 23,232 (7,984) 152.4%
      17-5059-01-02-22 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Co-Gen) 41-D 55,900 37,268 18,632 66.7%

Page 21 u

172



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

      17-5060-01-04-22 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (AWT) 41-E 30,900 29,928 972 96.9%
      **-5061-**-**-** Mileage 2,424 1,512 912 62.4%
      **-5068-**-**-** MNWD Lab Services and Supplies 18,864 22,508 (3,644) 119.3%
      **-5077-**-**-** IT Direct 0 33,376 (33,376) 0.0%
      **-5101-**-**-** Employee Recognition 0 572 (572) 0.0%
      **-5105-**-**-** Co-Generation Power Credit - Offset 281,072 173,220 107,852 61.6%
      **-5302-**-**-** Performance Based Merit Pay 0 5,288 (5,288) 0.0%
      **-5303-**-**-** Group Insurance Waiver 0 1,664 (1,664) 0.0%
      **-5305-**-**-** Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 1,704 (1,704) 0.0%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 17,752 9,104 8,648 51.3%
      **-5307-**-**-** Weekend Shift Pay 0 356 (356) 0.0%
      **-5309-**-**-** Operating Leases 2,384 0 2,384 0.0%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 1,007,460 1,113,316 (105,856) 110.5%
      **-5700-**-**-** Standby Pay 41,552 23,892 17,660 57.5%
      **-5705-**-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 8,068 9,176 (1,108) 113.7%
      **-5802-**-**-** Shipping/Freight 0 100 (100) 0.0%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 166,644 170,872 (4,228) 102.5%

Rounding 0 97 (97) 0.0%
               Total Moulton Niguel Water District 5,709,800 5,469,829 239,971 95.8%

               South Coast Water District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 72,660 63,804 8,856 87.8%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 1,484 2,980 (1,496) 200.8%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 21,372 13,520 7,852 63.3%
      17-5003-01-02-24 Natural Gas 10,764 7,436 3,328 69.1%
      **-5004-**-**-** Potable & Reclaimed Water 1,464 1,272 192 86.9%
      17-5005-01-02-24 Co-generation Power Credit (36,092) (17,384) (18,708) 48.2%
      17-5006-01-01-24 Chlorine/Sodium Hypochlorite 52 16 36 30.8%
      **-5007-**-**-** Polymer Products 25,580 23,528 2,052 92.0%
      **-5008-**-**-** Ferric Chloride 6,328 10,100 (3,772) 159.6%
      **-5009-**-**-** Odor Control Chemicals 160 1,520 (1,360) 950.0%
      17-5010-01-23-24 Other Chemicals - Misc. 180 0 180 0.0%
      **-5011-**-**-** Laboratory Services 320 272 48 85.0%
      17-5012-01-01-24 Grit Hauling - 21A 48 52 (4) 108.3%
      17-5013-01-23-24 Landscaping 2,912 4,028 (1,116) 138.3%
      17-5014-01-23-24 Engineering - Misc. 4,256 3,688 568 86.7%
      **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 2,556 672 1,884 26.3%
      17-5017-01-23-24 Legal Fees 180 108 72 60.0%
      17-5019-01-23-24 Contract Services Misc. - 29 5,464 3,896 1,568 71.3%
      **-5021-**-**-** Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 240 476 (236) 198.3%
      17-5022-01-23-24 Miscellaneous Expense 240 116 124 48.3%
      17-5023-01-23-24 Office Supplies - All 324 532 (208) 164.2%
      **-5024-**-**-** Petroleum Products 3,064 2,128 936 69.5%
      **-5025-**-**-** Uniforms 684 728 (44) 106.4%
      **-5026-**-**-** Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 516 304 212 58.9%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 2,016 2,888 (872) 143.3%
      17-5028-01-23-24 Small Tools & Supplies 924 984 (60) 106.5%
      17-5030-01-23-24 Trash Disposal 40 64 (24) 160.0%
      17-5031-02-23-24 Safety Supplies 1,656 2,000 (344) 120.8%
      17-5032-01-23-24 Equipment Rental 136 668 (532) 491.2%
      **-5033-**-**-** Recruitment 0 44 (44) 0.0%
      **-5034-**-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 540 192 348 35.6%
      **-5035-**-**-** Training Expense 1,076 804 272 74.7%
      **-5036-**-**-** Laboratory Supplies 412 388 24 94.2%

Page 21 v

173



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

      17-5037-01-23-24 Office Equipment 240 260 (20) 108.3%
      17-5038-02-23-24 Permits 1,792 784 1,008 43.8%
      **-5039-**-**-** Membership Dues/Fees 180 280 (100) 155.6%
      17-5049-01-02-24 Biosolids Disposal - 21B 66,164 80,336 (14,172) 121.4%
      17-5050-01-23-24 Contract Services Generators - 29A 324 268 56 82.7%
      17-5052-01-23-24 Janitorial Services 896 512 384 57.1%
      17-5053-01-02-24 Contract Serv - Digester Cleaning - 29E 0 0 0 0.0%
      17-5054-01-02-24 Diesel Truck Maint - 31B 1,484 996 488 67.1%
      17-5055-01-02-24 Diesel Truck Fuel - 37B 496 356 140 71.8%
      17-5056-01-02-24 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Solids) 41-A 14,308 17,212 (2,904) 120.3%
      17-5057-01-01-24 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Liquids) 41-B 148 188 (40) 127.0%
      17-5058-01-23-24 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Common) 41-C 860 1,312 (452) 152.6%
      17-5059-01-02-24 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Co-Gen) 41-D 7,176 4,980 2,196 69.4%
      **-5061-**-**-** Mileage 124 84 40 67.7%
      **-5068-**-**-** MNWD Lab Services and Supplies 1,096 0 1,096 0.0%
      17-5077-01-23-24 IT Direct 0 1,884 (1,884) 0.0%
      17-5101-01-02-24 Employee Recognition 0 28 (28) 0.0%
      **-5105-**-**-** Co-Generation Power Credit - Offset 36,092 6,784 29,308 18.8%
      **-5302-**-**-** Performance Based Merit Pay 0 296 (296) 0.0%
      **-5303-**-**-** Group Insurance Waiver 0 28 (28) 0.0%
      **-5305-**-**-** Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 88 (88) 0.0%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 908 424 484 46.7%
      17-5307-01-02-24 Weekend Shift Pay 0 16 (16) 0.0%
      17-5309-01-23-24 Operating Leases 136 0 136 0.0%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 51,588 55,016 (3,428) 106.6%
      **-5700-**-**-** Standby Pay 2,128 1,336 792 62.8%
      **-5705-**-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 412 492 (80) 119.4%
      17-5802-02-23-24 Shipping/Freight 0 4 (4) 0.0%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 9,400 9,640 (240) 102.6%

               Total South Coast Water District 327,508 315,428 12,080 96.3%

          Total Member Agency 7,238,980 6,791,301 447,679 93.8%

     Total PC 17 - Joint Regional Wastewater 
Reclamation

7,238,980 6,791,301 447,679 93.8%

     PC 21 - Effluent Transmission Main
          Member Agency
               El Toro Water District
      **-5014-**-**-** Engineering - Misc. 35,008 328 34,680 0.9%
      **-5019-**-**-** Contract Services Misc. - 29 0 216 (216) 0.0%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 232 4 228 1.7%
      **-5028-**-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 380 0 380 0.0%

               Total El Toro Water District 35,620 548 35,072 1.5%

               Irvine Ranch Water District
      **-5014-**-**-** Engineering - Misc. 35,008 328 34,680 0.9%
      **-5019-**-**-** Contract Services Misc. - 29 0 216 (216) 0.0%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 232 4 228 1.7%
      **-5028-**-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 380 0 380 0.0%

               Total Irvine Ranch Water District 35,620 548 35,072 1.5%

               Moulton Niguel Water District
      21-5014-02-14-22 Engineering - Misc. 14,984 140 14,844 0.9%
      21-5019-02-14-22 Contract Services Misc. - 29 0 92 (92) 0.0%
      21-5027-02-14-22 Insurance - Property/Liability 100 4 96 4.0%

Page 21 w

174



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

      21-5028-01-14-22 Small Tools & Supplies 160 0 160 0.0%
Rounding 0 4 (4) 0.0%
               Total Moulton Niguel Water District 15,244 240 15,004 1.5%

          Total Member Agency 86,484 1,336 85,148 1.5%

     Total PC 21 - Effluent Transmission Main 86,484 1,336 85,148 1.5%

     PC 24 - Aliso Creek Ocean Outfall
          Member Agency
               City of Laguna Beach
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 15,672 6,932 8,740 44.2%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 432 40 392 9.3%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 200 0 200 0.0%
      24-5014-01-05-16 Engineering - Misc. 0 372 (372) 0.0%
      24-5015-02-05-16 Management Support Services 2,200 1,972 228 89.6%
      24-5017-01-05-16 Legal Fees 0 52 (52) 0.0%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 152 488 (336) 321.1%
      **-5031-**-**-** Safety Supplies 72 420 (348) 583.3%
      24-5034-02-05-16 Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 220 0 220 0.0%
      **-5036-**-**-** Laboratory Supplies 2,312 1,100 1,212 47.6%
      24-5038-02-05-16 Permits 15,180 15,780 (600) 104.0%
      **-5044-**-**-** Offshore Monitoring - 20A 2,892 1,876 1,016 64.9%
      **-5045-**-**-** Offshore Biochemistry - 20B 0 0 0 0.0%
      **-5046-**-**-** Effluent Chemistry - 20C 3,756 1,816 1,940 48.3%
      **-5058-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Common) 41-C 0 296 (296) 0.0%
      **-5067-**-**-** Port Cleaning 0 0 0 0.0%
      **-5069-**-**-** Outfall Inspection/Port Cleaning 2,168 3,892 (1,724) 179.5%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 288 4 284 1.4%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 11,128 6,008 5,120 54.0%
      24-5802-01-05-16 Shipping/Freight 0 4 (4) 0.0%
      24-6500-02-05-16 IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 2,064 1,880 184 91.1%

               Total City of Laguna Beach 58,736 42,932 15,804 73.1%

               El Toro Water District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 33,408 9,120 24,288 27.3%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 924 52 872 5.6%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 424 0 424 0.0%
      24-5014-01-05-19 Engineering - Misc. 0 552 (552) 0.0%
      24-5015-02-05-19 Management Support Services 3,260 2,920 340 89.6%
      24-5017-01-05-19 Legal Fees 0 76 (76) 0.0%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 228 720 (492) 315.8%
      **-5031-**-**-** Safety Supplies 152 552 (400) 363.2%
      24-5034-02-05-19 Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 328 0 328 0.0%
      **-5036-**-**-** Laboratory Supplies 4,928 1,448 3,480 29.4%
      24-5038-02-05-19 Permits 22,496 23,380 (884) 103.9%
      **-5044-**-**-** Offshore Monitoring - 20A 6,160 2,776 3,384 45.1%
      **-5045-**-**-** Offshore Biochemistry - 20B 0 0 0 0.0%
      **-5046-**-**-** Effluent Chemistry - 20C 8,008 2,388 5,620 29.8%
      **-5058-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Common) 41-C 0 388 (388) 0.0%
      **-5067-**-**-** Port Cleaning 0 0 0 0.0%
      **-5069-**-**-** Outfall Inspection/Port Cleaning 4,620 5,768 (1,148) 124.8%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 616 4 612 0.6%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 23,720 7,904 15,816 33.3%
      24-5802-01-05-19 Shipping/Freight 0 4 (4) 0.0%
      24-6500-02-05-19 IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 3,060 2,788 272 91.1%

               Total El Toro Water District 112,332 60,840 51,492 54.2%

Page 21 x
175



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

               Emerald Bay Service District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 516 216 300 41.9%
      24-5001-02-12-20 Overtime Salaries-O&M 12 0 12 0.0%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 8 0 8 0.0%
      24-5014-01-05-20 Engineering - Misc. 0 28 (28) 0.0%
      24-5015-02-05-20 Management Support Services 156 140 16 89.7%
      24-5017-01-05-20 Legal Fees 0 4 (4) 0.0%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 12 36 (24) 300.0%
      **-5031-**-**-** Safety Supplies 4 16 (12) 400.0%
      24-5034-02-05-20 Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 16 0 16 0.0%
      **-5036-**-**-** Laboratory Supplies 76 32 44 42.1%
      24-5038-02-05-20 Permits 1,076 1,120 (44) 104.1%
      **-5044-**-**-** Offshore Monitoring - 20A 96 132 (36) 137.5%
      **-5045-**-**-** Offshore Biochemistry - 20B 0 0 0 0.0%
      **-5046-**-**-** Effluent Chemistry - 20C 124 56 68 45.2%
      24-5058-01-12-20 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Common) 41-C 0 8 (8) 0.0%
      **-5067-**-**-** Port Cleaning 0 0 0 0.0%
      **-5069-**-**-** Outfall Inspection/Port Cleaning 68 276 (208) 405.9%
      24-5306-02-12-20 Scheduled Holiday Work 8 0 8 0.0%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 364 188 176 51.6%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 148 132 16 89.2%

               Total Emerald Bay Service District 2,684 2,384 300 88.8%

               Irvine Ranch Water District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 29,740 62,748 (33,008) 211.0%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 824 368 456 44.7%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 384 0 384 0.0%
      24-5014-01-05-21 Engineering - Misc. 0 536 (536) 0.0%
      24-5015-02-05-21 Management Support Services 3,152 2,824 328 89.6%
      24-5017-01-05-21 Legal Fees 0 72 (72) 0.0%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 220 696 (476) 316.4%
      **-5031-**-**-** Safety Supplies 136 3,792 (3,656) 2788.2%
      24-5034-02-05-21 Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 316 0 316 0.0%
      **-5036-**-**-** Laboratory Supplies 4,388 9,944 (5,556) 226.6%
      24-5038-02-05-21 Permits 21,748 22,608 (860) 104.0%
      **-5044-**-**-** Offshore Monitoring - 20A 5,480 2,684 2,796 49.0%
      **-5045-**-**-** Offshore Biochemistry - 20B 0 0 0 0.0%
      **-5046-**-**-** Effluent Chemistry - 20C 7,128 16,428 (9,300) 230.5%
      **-5058-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Common) 41-C 0 2,664 (2,664) 0.0%
      **-5067-**-**-** Port Cleaning 0 0 0 0.0%
      **-5069-**-**-** Outfall Inspection/Port Cleaning 4,116 5,576 (1,460) 135.5%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 548 36 512 6.6%
      24-5307-02-12-21 Weekend Shift Pay 0 4 (4) 0.0%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 21,116 54,356 (33,240) 257.4%
      **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 2,960 2,696 264 91.1%

               Total Irvine Ranch Water District 102,256 188,032 (85,776) 183.9%

               Moulton Niguel Water District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 18,844 12,536 6,308 66.5%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 520 72 448 13.8%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 248 0 248 0.0%
      24-5014-01-05-22 Engineering - Misc. 0 1,488 (1,488) 0.0%
      24-5015-02-05-22 Management Support Services 8,772 7,856 916 89.6%
      24-5017-01-05-22 Legal Fees 0 204 (204) 0.0%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 612 1,940 (1,328) 317.0%

Page 21 y

176



FY 2016-17 
Budget

FY 2016-17 Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O&M Budget vs. Actual by Project Committee, Member Agency and Line Item

      **-5031-**-**-** Safety Supplies 88 756 (668) 859.1%
      24-5034-02-05-22 Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 876 0 876 0.0%
      **-5036-**-**-** Laboratory Supplies 2,780 1,988 792 71.5%
      24-5038-02-05-22 Permits 60,512 62,900 (2,388) 103.9%
      **-5044-**-**-** Offshore Monitoring - 20A 3,476 7,472 (3,996) 215.0%
      **-5045-**-**-** Offshore Biochemistry - 20B 0 0 0 0.0%
      **-5046-**-**-** Effluent Chemistry - 20C 4,520 3,284 1,236 72.7%
      **-5058-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Common) 41-C 0 532 (532) 0.0%
      **-5067-**-**-** Port Cleaning 0 0 0 0.0%
      **-5069-**-**-** Outfall Inspection/Port Cleaning 2,604 15,516 (12,912) 595.9%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 348 4 344 1.1%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 13,380 10,860 2,520 81.2%
      24-5802-01-05-22 Shipping/Freight 0 12 (12) 0.0%
      24-6500-02-05-22 IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 8,232 7,500 732 91.1%

Rounding 0 14 (14) 0.0%
               Total Moulton Niguel Water District 125,812 134,934 (9,122) 107.2%

               South Coast Water District
      **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 10,292 2,952 7,340 28.7%
      **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 288 16 272 5.6%
      **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 136 0 136 0.0%
      24-5014-01-05-24 Engineering - Misc. 0 416 (416) 0.0%
      24-5015-02-05-24 Management Support Services 2,464 2,204 260 89.4%
      24-5017-01-05-24 Legal Fees 0 56 (56) 0.0%
      **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 172 544 (372) 316.3%
      **-5031-**-**-** Safety Supplies 48 180 (132) 375.0%
      24-5034-02-05-24 Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 248 0 248 0.0%
      **-5036-**-**-** Laboratory Supplies 1,520 468 1,052 30.8%
      24-5038-02-05-24 Permits 16,988 17,660 (672) 104.0%
      **-5044-**-**-** Offshore Monitoring - 20A 1,900 2,096 (196) 110.3%
      **-5045-**-**-** Offshore Biochemistry - 20B 0 0 0 0.0%
      **-5046-**-**-** Effluent Chemistry - 20C 2,468 772 1,696 31.3%
      **-5058-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Common) 41-C 0 124 (124) 0.0%
      **-5067-**-**-** Port Cleaning 0 0 0 0.0%
      **-5069-**-**-** Outfall Inspection/Port Cleaning 1,424 4,356 (2,932) 305.9%
      **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 188 0 188 0.0%
      **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 7,308 2,564 4,744 35.1%
      24-5802-01-05-24 Shipping/Freight 0 4 (4) 0.0%
      24-6500-02-05-24 IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 2,312 2,104 208 91.0%

               Total South Coast Water District 47,756 36,516 11,240 76.5%

          Total Member Agency 449,576 465,638 (16,062) 103.6%

     Total PC 24 - Aliso Creek Ocean Outfall 449,576 465,638 (16,062) 103.6%

Rounding 0 1 (1)
Total All Project Committees 17,464,324 16,587,654 876,670 95.0%

Report name: Member Agency Detail

Chart template: MA - Total

Include these Department(s): 01, 02

Page 21 z

177



FY 2016-17 
Orig Bdgt

Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

     Salary and Fringe
          **-5000-**-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 4,249,384  3,999,700  249,684         94.1%
          **-5001-**-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 79,080       147,164     (68,084)          186.1%
          **-5302-**-**-** Performance Based Merit Pay -               23,920       (23,920)          0.0%
          **-5306-**-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 50,700       25,100       25,600           49.5%
          **-5307-**-**-** Weekend Shift Pay -             948             (948)               0.0%
          **-5401-**-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 3,017,080  3,464,656  (447,576)        114.8%
          **-5700-**-**-** Standby Pay 137,588     68,908       68,680           50.1%

     Total Payroll Costs 7,533,832  7,730,396  (196,564)        102.6%

     Other Expenses
          **-5002-**-**-** Electricity 1,809,012  1,464,884  344,128         81.0%
          **-5003-**-**-** Natural Gas 167,304     139,972     27,332           83.7%
          **-5004-**-**-** Potable & Reclaimed Water 59,208       58,268       940                98.4%
          **-5005-**-**-** Co-generation Power Credit (450,004)    (201,608)    (248,396)        44.8%
          **-5006-**-**-** Chlorine/Sodium Hypochlorite 542,404     422,592     119,812         77.9%
          **-5007-**-**-** Polymer Products 646,504     506,568     139,936         78.4%
          **-5008-**-**-** Ferric Chloride 251,800     268,556     (16,756)          106.7%
          **-5009-**-**-** Odor Control Chemicals 167,404     148,232     19,172           88.6%
          **-5010-**-**-** Other Chemicals - Misc. 5,000         992             4,008             19.8%
          **-5011-**-**-** Laboratory Services 35,700       29,424       6,276             82.4%
          **-5012-**-**-** Grit Hauling - 21A 113,200     120,132     (6,932)            106.1%
          **-5013-**-**-** Landscaping 160,000     199,372     (39,372)          124.6%
          **-5014-**-**-** Engineering - Misc. 335,000     103,820     231,180         31.0%
          **-5015-**-**-** Management Support Services 294,024     95,040       198,984         32.3%
          **-5016-**-**-** Audit - Environmental 500             -             500                0.0%
          **-5017-**-**-** Legal Fees 88,004       41,180       46,824           46.8%
          **-5018-**-**-** Public Notices/ Public Relations 500             140             360                28.0%
          **-5019-**-**-** Contract Services Misc. - 29 270,408     204,068     66,340           75.5%
          **-5021-**-**-** Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 19,444       28,168       (8,724)            144.9%
          **-5022-**-**-** Miscellaneous Expense 16,804       12,352       4,452             73.5%
          **-5023-**-**-** Office Supplies - All 33,604       39,432       (5,828)            117.3%
          **-5024-**-**-** Petroleum Products 58,400       34,628       23,772           59.3%
          **-5025-**-**-** Uniforms 34,408       36,924       (2,516)            107.3%
          **-5026-**-**-** Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 33,704       14,744       18,960           43.8%
          **-5027-**-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 110,188     160,192     (50,004)          145.4%
          **-5028-**-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 63,128       64,332       (1,204)            101.9%
          **-5030-**-**-** Trash Disposal 4,808         4,864         (56)                 101.2%
          **-5031-**-**-** Safety Supplies 91,500       119,600     (28,100)          130.7%
          **-5032-**-**-** Equipment Rental 7,204         15,752       (8,548)            218.7%
          **-5033-**-**-** Recruitment -             1,480         (1,480)            0.0%
          **-5034-**-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 40,016       19,784       20,232           49.4%
          **-5035-**-**-** Training Expense 62,496       52,516       9,980             84.0%
          **-5036-**-**-** Laboratory Supplies 75,508       68,796       6,712             91.1%
          **-5037-**-**-** Office Equipment 21,404       19,968       1,436             93.3%
          **-5038-**-**-** Permits 488,020     475,008     13,012           97.3%
          **-5039-**-**-** Membership Dues/Fees 12,012       14,364       (2,352)            119.6%
          **-5040-**-**-** Natural Gas - 11-EPS -  PC 5 396             -             396                0.0%
          **-5041-**-**-** Electricity - 10-EPS - PC 5 31,500       -             31,500           0.0%

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O & M (includes Environmental & Safety Costs) Summary

YTD - As of June 30, 2017

Page 22

178



FY 2016-17 
Orig Bdgt

Actual
(Over)/Under 

Budget
% Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
O & M (includes Environmental & Safety Costs) Summary

YTD - As of June 30, 2017

          **-5042-**-**-** Contract Services - 29-EPS - PC 5 4,104         -             4,104             0.0%
          **-5044-**-**-** Offshore Monitoring - 20A 40,008       32,628       7,380             81.6%
          **-5045-**-**-** Offshore Biochemistry - 20B -             -             -                 0.0%
          **-5046-**-**-** Effluent Chemistry - 20C 52,004       38,856       13,148           74.7%
          **-5047-**-**-** Access Road Expenses 45,400       36,244       9,156             79.8%

          **-5048-**-**-** Storm Damage 18,600       30,592       (11,992)          164.5%
          **-5049-**-**-** Biosolids Disposal - 21B 1,524,604  1,481,192  43,412           97.2%
          **-5050-**-**-** Contract Services Generators - 29A 19,704       22,524       (2,820)            114.3%
          **-5052-**-**-** Janitorial Services 50,008       34,404       15,604           68.8%
          **-5053-**-**-** Contract Serv - Digester Cleaning - 29E -             -             -                 0.0%
          **-5054-**-**-** Diesel Truck Maint - 31B 29,512       24,172       5,340             81.9%
          **-5055-**-**-** Diesel Truck Fuel - 37B 12,200       8,696         3,504             71.3%
          **-5056-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Solids) 41-A 311,500     343,868     (32,368)          110.4%
          **-5057-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Liquids) 41-B 530,400     542,340     (11,940)          102.3%
          **-5058-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Common) 41-C 60,300       71,876       (11,576)          119.2%
          **-5059-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Co-Gen) 41-D 158,500     93,992       64,508           59.3%
          **-5060-**-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (AWT) 41-E 57,600       59,868       (2,268)            103.9%
          **-5061-**-**-** Mileage 4,952         4,508         444                91.0%
          **-5067-**-**-** Port Cleaning -             -             -                 0.0%
          **-5068-**-**-** MNWD Lab Services and Supplies 23,996       22,508       1,488             93.8%
          **-5069-**-**-** Outfall Inspection/Port Cleaning 65,004       102,672     (37,668)          158.0%
          **-5077-**-**-** IT Direct 150,004     296,152     (146,148)        197.4%
          **-5101-**-**-** Employee Recognition -             1,928         (1,928)            0.0%
          **-5105-**-**-** Co-Generation Power Credit - Offset 450,004     201,616     248,388         44.8%
          **-5301-**-**-** Vehicle Pay -             2,476         (2,476)            0.0%
          **-5303-**-**-** Group Insurance Waiver -             7,380         (7,380)            0.0%
          **-5305-**-**-** Medicare Tax Payments for Employees -             12,064       (12,064)          0.0%
          **-5309-**-**-** Operating Leases 7,004         5,084         1,920             72.6%
          **-5705-**-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 37,320       29,316       8,004             78.6%
          **-5802-**-**-** Shipping/Freight -             644             (644)               0.0%
          **-6500-**-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 577,252     564,968     12,284           97.9%

Rounding -             154             (154)               0.0%
     Total Other Expenses 9,930,492  8,857,258  1,073,234      89.2%

Total Expenses 17,464,324 16,587,654 876,670 95.0%

Report name: O & M Costs by Line Item- Segments Masked

Include these Project Committees: 02, 03, 05, 08, 12, 15, 17, 21, 24

Include these Department(s): 02, 01

Page 22a

179



(Over)/Under %

Budget Actual Budget Expended
02 - Jay B. Latham Plant
     Salary and Fringe
          02-5000-01-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 1,164,588 1,181,096 (16,508) 101.42%
          02-5000-02-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 141,832 150,056 (8,224) 105.80%
          02-5001-01-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 18,004 46,392 (28,388) 257.68% (1)
          02-5001-02-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 2,404 596 1,808 24.79%
          02-5302-01-**-** Performance Based Merit Pay 0 10,640 (10,640) 0.00%
          02-5306-01-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 12,004 8,352 3,652 69.58%
          02-5306-02-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 1,596 1,392 204 87.22%
          02-5307-01-**-** Weekend Shift Pay 0 396 (396) 0.00% (2)
          02-5307-02-**-** Weekend Shift Pay 0 20 (20) 0.00% (2)
          02-5401-01-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 826,864 1,030,660 (203,796) 124.65% (3)
          02-5401-02-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 100,704 129,980 (29,276) 129.07% (3)
          02-5700-01-**-** Standby Pay 51,492 28,440 23,052 55.23%

     Total Payroll Costs 2,319,488 2,588,020 (268,532) 111.58%
     Other Expenses
          02-5002-01-**-** Electricity 859,996 857,656 2,340 99.73%
          02-5003-01-**-** Natural Gas 30,000 51,224 (21,224) 170.75% (4)
          02-5004-01-**-** Potable & Reclaimed Water 14,804 14,224 580 96.08%
          02-5006-01-**-** Chlorine/Sodium Hypochlorite 27,200 15,836 11,364 58.22%
          02-5007-01-**-** Polymer Products 257,500 175,488 82,012 68.15%
          02-5008-01-**-** Ferric Chloride 90,600 94,560 (3,960) 104.37%
          02-5009-01-**-** Odor Control Chemicals 21,400 27,420 (6,020) 128.13% (5)
          02-5010-01-**-** Other Chemicals - Misc. 1,000 524 476 52.40%
          02-5011-02-**-** Laboratory Services 10,500 10,736 (236) 102.25%
          02-5012-01-**-** Grit Hauling - 21A 38,500 46,644 (8,144) 121.15% (6)
          02-5013-01-**-** Landscaping 45,000 33,148 11,852 73.66%
          02-5014-01-**-** Engineering - Misc. 80,000 7,564 72,436 9.46%
          02-5015-01-**-** Management Support Services 96,000 5,232 90,768 5.45%
          02-5015-02-**-** Management Support Services 40,004 28,932 11,072 72.32%
          02-5017-01-**-** Legal Fees 23,996 7,208 16,788 30.04%
          02-5019-01-**-** Contract Services Misc. - 29 77,304 70,124 7,180 90.71%
          02-5021-01-**-** Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 7,204 12,352 (5,148) 171.46% (7)
          02-5022-01-**-** Miscellaneous Expense 7,204 5,792 1,412 80.40%
          02-5023-01-**-** Office Supplies - All 20,004 21,816 (1,812) 109.06% (8)
          02-5024-01-**-** Petroleum Products 15,500 4,080 11,420 26.32%
          02-5025-01-**-** Uniforms 12,004 13,480 (1,476) 112.30% (9)
          02-5026-01-**-** Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 14,108 6,828 7,280 48.40%
          02-5027-01-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 42,748 56,932 (14,184) 133.18% (10)
          02-5027-02-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 4,996 0 4,996 0.00% (10)
          02-5028-01-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 31,004 32,764 (1,760) 105.68% (11)
          02-5030-01-**-** Trash Disposal 800 2,184 (1,384) 273.00% (12)
          02-5031-02-**-** Safety Supplies 35,004 42,840 (7,836) 122.39% (13)
          02-5032-01-**-** Equipment Rental 3,000 600 2,400 20.00%
          02-5033-01-**-** Recruitment 0 204 (204) 0.00% (14)
          02-5034-01-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 11,000 8,964 2,036 81.49%
          02-5034-02-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 3,504 1,744 1,760 49.77%
          02-5035-01-**-** Training Expense 31,004 15,948 15,056 51.44%
          02-5035-02-**-** Training Expense 0 4,880 (4,880) 0.00% (15)
          02-5036-02-**-** Laboratory Supplies 14,000 13,276 724 94.83%
          02-5037-01-**-** Office Equipment 15,004 13,976 1,028 93.15%
          02-5038-02-**-** Permits 22,000 17,680 4,320 80.36%
          02-5039-01-**-** Membership Dues/Fees 4,000 6,092 (2,092) 152.30%
          02-5039-02-**-** Membership Dues/Fees 1,000 272 728 27.20%

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Budget vs. Actual Comparison by Project Committee

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Page 23

180



(Over)/Under %

Budget Actual Budget Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Budget vs. Actual Comparison by Project Committee

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

          02-5049-01-**-** Biosolids Disposal - 21B 574,600 549,532 25,068 95.64%
          02-5050-01-**-** Contract Services Generators - 29A 8,296 5,984 2,312 72.13%
          02-5052-01-**-** Janitorial Services 20,004 16,008 3,996 80.02% (16)
          02-5054-01-**-** Diesel Truck Maint - 31B 10,004 9,260 744 92.56%
          02-5055-01-**-** Diesel Truck Fuel - 37B 6,000 4,576 1,424 76.27%
          02-5056-01-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Solids) 4 133,100 142,164 (9,064) 106.81% (17)
          02-5057-01-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Liquids) 232,204 234,996 (2,792) 101.20%
          02-5058-01-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Commo 24,500 14,796 9,704 60.39%
          02-5059-01-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Co-Gen 69,000 36,228 32,772 52.50%
          02-5061-01-**-** Mileage 496 1,028 (532) 207.26% (18)
          02-5061-02-**-** Mileage 256 1,156 (900) 451.56% (18)
          02-5077-01-**-** IT Direct 150,004 171,392 (21,388) 114.26% (19)
          02-5303-01-**-** Group Insurance Waiver 0 2,948 (2,948) 0.00% (14)
          02-5303-02-**-** Group Insurance Waiver 0 644 (644) 0.00% (14)
          02-5305-01-**-** Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 3,560 (3,560) 0.00% (14)
          02-5305-02-**-** Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 88 (88) 0.00% (14)
          02-5309-01-**-** Operating Leases 4,000 5,084 (1,084) 127.10% (20)
          02-5705-01-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 11,000 10,288 712 93.53%
          02-5705-02-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 12,316 0 12,316 0.00%
          02-5802-01-**-** Shipping/Freight 0 348 (348) 0.00% (14)
          02-5802-02-**-** Shipping/Freight 0 112 (112) 0.00% (14)
          02-6500-01-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 162,416 158,912 3,504 97.84%
          02-6500-02-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 19,052 18,836 216 98.87%

Rounding 0 (30) 30 0.00%
     Total Other Expenses 3,446,140 3,117,134 329,006 90.45%

Total Expenses 5,765,628 5,705,154 60,474 98.95%

(1) New equipment startup and troubleshooting Issues, January/February Storms, odor complaint investigations, 
and staff filling in for vacancies.

(2) Budgeted as regular salaries in past budgets.
(3)  Actual fringe rate was 86.6%
(4) Engine project at JBL was behind schedule. This caused increased natural gas purchases for the 

Boiler to heat the digesters.
(5) Three deliveries of chemicals were received at the end of the fiscal year and the chemicals will actually

be used in FY17-18.
(6) The January and February storms caused equipment damage and the equipment failures increased

the weight of the grit hauled offsite.
(7) Increasing expenses due to average fleet age of 11 years.
(8) Office supplies and equipment due to new office set ups.
(9) Employee expenses due to 10% workforce retirements.
(10) Increased Premiums
(11) Extra metric and specialty tools required for the new engine maintenance were unanticipated.
(12) Elevated trash disposals due to cleaning areas for planned CIP projects.
(13) Safety supplies are restocked for the FY and limited expenses are planned for the remainder of the FY.
(14) Expense Line Item Not Budgeted 
(15) Training Expenses for new employees.
(16) Budgeted high level of expense for newly anticipated contract with more thorough cleaning requirements. Proposals received 

were too high and rejected by the Board in May. The contract services scope is being revised for reissuance.
(17) Solids expenses were elevated due to several larger repairs to the digester gas system to allow the

system to be placed back in service with the larger CIP project.
(18) Mileage increase.
(19) IT Direct higher due to unanticipated SCADA software and hardware upgrades due to obsolesce.
(20) Engine project at JBL was behind schedule. This caused the construction trailer to be onsite longer 

than planned.

Page 23a

181



(Over)/Under %

Budget Actual Budget Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Budget vs. Actual Comparison by Project Committee

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

03 - SOCWA Plan/PCA AWT
     Salary and Fringe
          03-5000-01-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 0 2,440 (2,440) 0.00%
          03-5401-01-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 0 2,112 (2,112) 0.00%

Rounding 0 5 (5) 0.00%
     Total Payroll Costs 0 4,557 (4,557) 0.00%

Total Expenses 0 4,557 (4,557) 0.00%

Page 23b

182



(Over)/Under %

Budget Actual Budget Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Budget vs. Actual Comparison by Project Committee

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

05 - San Juan Creek Ocean Outfall
     Salary and Fringe
          05-5000-01-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 11,496 520 10,976 4.52%
          05-5000-02-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 99,672 99,084 588 99.41%
          05-5001-02-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 3,000 52 2,948 1.73%
          05-5306-02-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 1,992 0 1,992 0.00%
          05-5401-01-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 8,164 448 7,716 5.49% (1)
          05-5401-02-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 70,768 85,832 (15,064) 121.29% (1)

     Total Payroll Costs 195,092 185,936 9,156 95.31%

     Other Expenses
          05-5002-01-**-** Electricity 1,000 128 872 12.80%
          05-5002-02-**-** Electricity 1,104 0 1,104 0.00% (2)
          05-5003-01-**-** Natural Gas 0 172 (172) 0.00%
          05-5003-02-**-** Natural Gas 504 0 504 0.00% (2)
          05-5014-01-**-** Engineering - Misc. 10,000 2,592 7,408 25.92%
          05-5015-02-**-** Management Support Services 20,004 19,512 492 97.54%
          05-5017-01-**-** Legal Fees 0 484 (484) 0.00%
          05-5022-02-**-** Miscellaneous Expense 0 1,732 (1,732) 0.00%
          05-5027-01-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 0 4,428 (4,428) 0.00% (3)
          05-5027-02-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 2,332 580 1,752 24.87% (3)
          05-5031-02-**-** Safety Supplies 504 5,716 (5,212) 1134.13% (4)
          05-5034-02-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 3,004 400 2,604 13.32%
          05-5036-02-**-** Laboratory Supplies 16,996 15,404 1,592 90.63%
          05-5038-02-**-** Permits 145,000 182,524 (37,524) 125.88%
          05-5040-02-**-** Natural Gas - 11-EPS -  PC 5 396 0 396 0.00% (5)
          05-5041-02-**-** Electricity - 10-EPS - PC 5 31,500 0 31,500 0.00% (5)
          05-5042-02-**-** Contract Services - 29-EPS - PC 5 4,104 0 4,104 0.00% (5)
          05-5044-02-**-** Offshore Monitoring - 20A 20,004 15,592 4,412 77.94%
          05-5046-02-**-** Effluent Chemistry - 20C 26,000 14,112 11,888 54.28%
          05-5056-01-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Solids) 4 0 2,092 (2,092) 0.00% (6)
          05-5069-02-**-** Misc-Capital-Dilution & Metering Study 50,004 67,288 (17,284) 134.57%
          05-5101-02-**-** Employee Recognition 0 1,228 (1,228) 0.00% (7)
          05-5301-02-**-** Vehicle Pay 0 160 (160) 0.00%
          05-5305-02-**-** Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 1,932 (1,932) 0.00% (7)
          05-5705-02-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 0 4,124 (4,124) 0.00% (8)
          05-5802-01-**-** Shipping/Freight 0 24 (24) 0.00% (7)
          05-6500-02-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 28,308 23,688 4,620 83.68%

Rounding 0 (3) 3 0.00%
     Total Other Expenses 360,764 363,909 (3,145) 100.87%

Total Expenses 555,856 549,845 6,011 98.92%

(1) Actual fringe rate was 86.6%
(2) Expenses to be reclassified to Department 01 in the Use Audit.
(3) Increased Premiums
(4) Safety supplies are restocked for the FY and limited expenses are planned for the remainder of the FY.
(5) Based on the cost allocation workshop recommendation these costs will be reclassified to PC-2.
(6) Security and communications work occurred during the Fiscal Year.
(7) Expense Line Item Not Budgeted 
(8) Expense under budgeted for PC.  Overall expense is under budget.

Page 23c

183



(Over)/Under %

Budget Actual Budget Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Budget vs. Actual Comparison by Project Committee

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

08 - Pre Treatment
     Salary and Fringe
          08-5000-02-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 87,744 76,496 11,248 87.18%
          08-5001-02-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 1,800 0 1,800 0.00%
          08-5306-02-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 1,196 0 1,196 0.00%
          08-5401-02-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 62,292 66,260 (3,968) 106.37% (1)

     Total Payroll Costs 153,032 142,756 10,276 93.29%

     Other Expenses
          08-5011-02-**-** Laboratory Services 2,500 (1,692) 4,192 (67.68%) (2)
          08-5015-02-**-** Management Support Services 4,000 0 4,000 0.00%
          08-5016-02-**-** Audit - Environmental 500 0 500 0.00%
          08-5017-02-**-** Legal Fees 2,000 0 2,000 0.00%
          08-5018-02-**-** Public Notices/ Public Relations 500 140 360 28.00%
          08-5021-02-**-** Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 848 0 848 0.00% (3)
          08-5022-02-**-** Miscellaneous Expense 1,496 728 768 48.66%
          08-5026-02-**-** Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 1,196 0 1,196 0.00%
          08-5027-02-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 0 1,440 (1,440) 0.00% (4)
          08-5028-02-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 3,400 1,872 1,528 55.06%
          08-5031-02-**-** Safety Program & Supplies 0 140 (140) 0.00% (5)
          08-5034-02-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 3,496 3,132 364 89.59%
          08-5035-02-**-** Training Expense 1,496 1,500 (4) 100.27%
          08-5039-02-**-** Membership Dues/Fees 1,004 136 868 13.55%

Rounding 0 11 (11) 0.00%
     Total Other Expenses 22,436 7,407 15,029 32.96%

Total Expenses 175,468 150,163 25,305 85.57%

(1) Actual fringe rate was 86.6%
(2) Pretreatment staff needs sufficient buffer should additional investigations occur.
(3) Increasing expenses due to average fleet age of 11 years.
(4) Increased Premiums
(5) Safety supplies are restocked for the FY and limited expenses are planned for the remainder of the FY.

12 - Water Reclamation Permits
     Salary and Fringe
          12-5000-01-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 0 240 (240) 0.00%
          12-5000-02-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 33,040 35,320 (2,280) 106.90%
          12-5001-02-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 1,444 240 1,204 16.62%
          12-5306-02-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 956 0 956 0.00%
          12-5401-01-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 0 204 (204) 0.00% (1)
          12-5401-02-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 23,464 30,584 (7,120) 130.34% (1)

     Total Payroll Costs 58,904 66,588 (7,684) 113.05%

     Other Expenses
          12-5015-02-**-** Management Support Services 45,004 2,400 42,604 5.33%
          12-5017-02-**-** Legal Fees 8,008 0 8,008 0.00%
          12-5027-02-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 0 1,832 (1,832) 0.00%
          12-5038-02-**-** Permits 130,008 109,092 20,916 83.91%
          12-6500-02-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 20,000 15,304 4,696 76.52%

Rounding 0 36 (36) 0.00%
     Total Other Expenses 203,020 128,664 74,356 63.36%

Total Expenses 261,924 195,252 66,672 74.53%

(1) Budgeted as regular salaries in past budgets.

Page 23d

184



(Over)/Under %

Budget Actual Budget Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Budget vs. Actual Comparison by Project Committee

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

15 - Coastal Treatment Plant
     Salary and Fringe
          15-5000-01-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 732,484 681,580 50,904 93.05%
          15-5000-02-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 111,304 122,844 (11,540) 110.37%
          15-5001-01-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 10,440 22,860 (12,420) 218.97% (1)
          15-5001-02-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 2,996 788 2,208 26.30%
          15-5302-01-**-** Performance Based Merit Pay 0 6,772 (6,772) 0.00%
          15-5306-01-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 6,960 3,224 3,736 46.32%
          15-5306-02-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 1,996 1,208 788 60.52%
          15-5307-01-**-** Weekend Shift Pay 0 60 (60) 0.00% (2)
          15-5307-02-**-** Weekend Shift Pay 0 52 (52) 0.00% (2)
          15-5401-01-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 520,060 588,384 (68,324) 113.14% (3)
          15-5401-02-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 79,032 106,412 (27,380) 134.64% (3)
          15-5700-01-**-** Standby Pay 34,596 11,052 23,544 31.95%

     Total Payroll Costs 1,499,868 1,545,236 (45,368) 103.02%

     Other Expenses
          15-5002-01-**-** Electricity 270,008 205,220 64,788 76.01%
          15-5003-01-**-** Natural Gas 2,600 2,320 280 89.23%
          15-5004-01-**-** Potable & Reclaimed Water 12,404 18,136 (5,732) 146.21% (4)
          15-5006-01-**-** Chlorine/Sodium Hypochlorite 115,200 64,488 50,712 55.98%
          15-5007-01-**-** Polymer Products 2,000 0 2,000 0.00%
          15-5008-01-**-** Ferric Chloride 30,804 28,076 2,728 91.14%
          15-5009-01-**-** Odor Control Chemicals 82,400 71,552 10,848 86.84%
          15-5010-01-**-** Other Chemicals - Misc. 0 468 (468) 0.00% (5)
          15-5011-02-**-** Laboratory Services 9,700 8,208 1,492 84.62%
          15-5012-01-**-** Grit Hauling - 21A 28,200 24,672 3,528 87.49%
          15-5013-01-**-** Landscaping 50,000 76,352 (26,352) 152.70% (6)
          15-5014-01-**-** Engineering - Misc. 65,000 7,196 57,804 11.07%
          15-5015-01-**-** Management Support Services 8,008 6,116 1,892 76.37%
          15-5015-02-**-** Management Support Services 4,000 0 4,000 0.00%
          15-5017-01-**-** Legal Fees 50,000 30,588 19,412 61.18%
          15-5019-01-**-** Contract Services Misc. - 29 71,104 46,492 24,612 65.39%

          15-5021-01-**-** Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 5,692 5,324 368 93.53% (7)
          15-5022-01-**-** Miscellaneous Expense 2,704 1,472 1,232 54.44%
          15-5023-01-**-** Office Supplies - All 6,400 5,780 620 90.31% (8)
          15-5024-01-**-** Petroleum Products 1,700 3,968 (2,268) 233.41% (9)
          15-5025-01-**-** Uniforms 5,900 7,380 (1,480) 125.08% (10)
          15-5026-01-**-** Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 5,900 1,228 4,672 20.81%
          15-5027-01-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 5,904 26,064 (20,160) 441.46% (11)
          15-5027-02-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 7,240 0 7,240 0.00% (11)
          15-5028-01-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 7,200 7,712 (512) 107.11%
          15-5030-01-**-** Trash Disposal 3,104 1,256 1,848 40.46%
          15-5031-02-**-** Safety Supplies 18,496 20,520 (2,024) 110.94% (12)
          15-5032-01-**-** Equipment Rental 1,200 244 956 20.33%
          15-5033-01-**-** Recruitment 0 296 (296) 0.00% (13)
          15-5034-01-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 2,000 1,224 776 61.20%
          15-5034-02-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 3,000 0 3,000 0.00%
          15-5035-01-**-** Training Expense 5,992 8,684 (2,692) 144.93%
          15-5035-02-**-** Training Expense 0 3,512 (3,512) 0.00% (14)
          15-5036-02-**-** Laboratory Supplies 10,004 7,460 2,544 74.57%
          15-5037-01-**-** Office Equipment 1,000 172 828 17.20%

Page 23e

185



(Over)/Under %

Budget Actual Budget Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Budget vs. Actual Comparison by Project Committee

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

          15-5038-01-**-** Permits 6,504 0 6,504 0.00% (15)
          15-5038-02-**-** Permits 6,504 4,732 1,772 72.76%
          15-5039-01-**-** Membership Dues/Fees 1,000 1,584 (584) 158.40%
          15-5039-02-**-** Membership Dues/Fees 1,000 0 1,000 0.00%
          15-5047-01-**-** Access Road Expenses 45,400 36,244 9,156 79.83%
          15-5048-01-**-** Storm Damage 18,600 30,592 (11,992) 164.47% (16)
          15-5049-01-**-** Biosolids Disposal - 21B 125,004 0 125,004 0.00%
          15-5050-01-**-** Contract Services Generators - 29A 4,208 10,556 (6,348) 250.86% (17)
          15-5052-01-**-** Janitorial Services 10,000 6,976 3,024 69.76% (18)
          15-5054-01-**-** Diesel Truck Maint - 31B 1,004 3,356 (2,352) 334.26% (19)
          15-5057-01-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Liquids) 149,096 127,588 21,508 85.57%
          15-5058-01-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Commo 16,600 23,812 (7,212) 143.45% (20)
          15-5060-01-04-24 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (AWT) 4 26,700 29,940 (3,240) 112.13% (21)
          15-5061-01-**-** Mileage 1,204 468 736 38.87%
          15-5077-01-**-** IT Direct 0 82,732 (82,732) 0.00% (22)
          15-5301-01-01-16 Vehicle Pay 0 2,316 (2,316) 0.00%
          15-5303-01-**-** Group Insurance Waiver 0 2,000 (2,000) 0.00% (13)
          15-5305-01-**-** Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 4,408 (4,408) 0.00% (13)
          15-5705-01-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 4,004 3,700 304 92.41% (23)
          15-5802-01-**-** Shipping/Freight 0 12 (12) 0.00% (13)
          15-6500-01-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 103,256 100,720 2,536 97.54%
          15-6500-02-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 15,592 15,236 356 97.72%

Rounding 0 19 (19) 0.00%
     Total Other Expenses 1,430,540 1,179,171 251,369 82.43%

Total Expenses 2,930,408 2,724,407 206,001 92.97%

(1) New equipment startup and troubleshooting Issues, January/February Storms, odor complaint investigations, 
and staff filling in for vacancies.

(2) Budgeted as regular salaries in past budgets.
(3) Actual fringe rate was 86.6%
(4) Water usage is essentially the same as last FY. The increase is due to increases in user rates higher than budgeted.
(5) Solvents and degreaser chemicals needed for several repair projects.
(6) Carryover work from FY15-16 as presented at the June 2016 Board meeting.
(7) Increasing expenses due to average fleet age of 11 years.
(8) Office supplies and equipment due to new office set ups.
(9) Elevated fuel usage was caused by an elevated number of power outages (8) that were over extended durations (2 over 12 hours).
(10) Employee expenses due to 10% workforce retirement.
(11) Increased Premiums
(12) Safety supplies are restocked for the FY and limited expenses are planned for the remainder of the FY.
(13) Expense Line Item Not Budgeted 
(14) Expenses to be reclassified to Department 01 in the Use Audit.
(15) Not used
(16) Elevated expenses due to damage from the major January and February storms.
(17) Work completed for the year and within the 5-year average of maintenance costs.
(18) Budgeted high level of expense for newly anticipated contract with more thorough cleaning requirements. Proposals received 

were too high and rejected by the Board in May. The contract services scope is being revised for reissuance.
(19) The overall budget for diesel truck maintenance is within budget. These charges are associated with higher than planned

maintenance of SOCWA's boom truck, which is split between the 3 treatment plants.
(20) A number of air conditioner units required repairs and were budgeted in FY17-18 for replacement, 
(21) CTP AWT required several upgrades to eliminate water color falsely increasing turbidity and causing AWT shutdowns.
(22) IT Direct higher due to unanticipated SCADA software and hardware upgrades due to obsolesce.

Software upgrades were required to maintain reporting capabilities from SCADA and the SCADA hardware upgrades 
(23) Expense under budgeted for PC.  Overall expense is under budget.

Page 23f

186



(Over)/Under %

Budget Actual Budget Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Budget vs. Actual Comparison by Project Committee

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

17 - Joint Regional Wastewater Reclamation and Sludge Handling
     Salary and Fringe
          17-5000-01-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 1,522,376 1,317,864 204,512 86.57%
          17-5000-02-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 236,376 237,656 (1,280) 100.54%
          17-5001-01-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 32,996 73,684 (40,688) 223.31% (1)
          17-5001-02-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 2,996 2,004 992 66.89%
          17-5302-01-**-** Performance Based Merit Pay 0 6,508 (6,508) 0.00%
          17-5306-01-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 22,004 8,560 13,444 38.90%
          17-5306-02-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 0 2,316 (2,316) 0.00%
          17-5307-01-**-** Weekend Shift Pay 0 332 (332) 0.00% (2)
          17-5307-02-**-** Weekend Shift Pay 0 84 (84) 0.00% (2)
          17-5401-01-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 1,080,888 1,136,040 (55,152) 105.10% (3)
          17-5401-02-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 167,828 205,860 (38,032) 122.66% (3)
          17-5700-01-**-** Standby Pay 51,500 29,416 22,084 57.12%

     Total Payroll Costs 3,116,964 3,020,324 96,640 96.90%

     Other Expenses
          17-5002-01-**-** Electricity 675,504 401,880 273,624 59.49%
          17-5003-01-**-** Natural Gas 134,200 86,256 47,944 64.27%
          17-5004-01-**-** Potable & Reclaimed Water 32,000 25,908 6,092 80.96% (4)
          17-5005-01-**-** Co-generation Power Credit (450,004) (201,608) (248,396) 44.80%
          17-5006-01-**-** Chlorine/Sodium Hypochlorite 400,004 342,268 57,736 85.57%
          17-5007-01-**-** Polymer Products 387,004 331,080 55,924 85.55%
          17-5008-01-**-** Ferric Chloride 130,396 145,920 (15,524) 111.91% (5)
          17-5009-01-**-** Odor Control Chemicals 63,604 49,260 14,344 77.45%
          17-5010-01-**-** Other Chemicals - Misc. 4,000 0 4,000 0.00%
          17-5011-02-**-** Laboratory Services 13,000 12,172 828 93.63%
          17-5012-01-**-** Grit Hauling - 21A 46,500 48,816 (2,316) 104.98% (6)
          17-5013-01-**-** Landscaping 65,000 89,872 (24,872) 138.26% (7)
          17-5014-01-**-** Engineering - Misc. 95,000 82,280 12,720 86.61%
          17-5015-01-**-** Management Support Services 8,000 11,928 (3,928) 149.10%
          17-5015-02-**-** Management Support Services 49,000 3,004 45,996 6.13%
          17-5017-01-**-** Legal Fees 4,000 2,436 1,564 60.90%
          17-5019-01-**-** Contract Services Misc. - 29 122,000 86,928 35,072 71.25%
          17-5021-01-**-** Small Vehicle Expense - 31A 5,700 10,492 (4,792) 184.07% (8)
          17-5022-01-**-** Miscellaneous Expense 5,400 2,628 2,772 48.67%
          17-5023-01-**-** Office Supplies - All 7,200 11,836 (4,636) 164.39% (9)
          17-5024-01-**-** Petroleum Products 41,200 26,580 14,620 64.51%
          17-5025-01-**-** Uniforms 16,504 16,064 440 97.33%
          17-5026-01-**-** Small Vehicle Fuel - 37A 12,500 6,688 5,812 53.50%
          17-5027-01-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 40,004 64,480 (24,476) 161.18% (10)
          17-5027-02-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 5,004 0 5,004 0.00% (10)
          17-5028-01-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 20,604 21,984 (1,380) 106.70%
          17-5030-01-**-** Trash Disposal 904 1,424 (520) 157.52% (11)
          17-5031-02-**-** Safety Supplies 36,996 44,668 (7,672) 120.74% (12)
          17-5032-01-**-** Equipment Rental 3,004 14,908 (11,904) 496.27% (13)
          17-5033-01-**-** Recruitment 0 980 (980) 0.00% (14)
          17-5034-01-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 9,004 2,712 6,292 30.12%
          17-5034-02-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 3,004 1,608 1,396 53.53%
          17-5035-01-**-** Training Expense 24,004 17,256 6,748 71.89%
          17-5035-02-**-** Training Expense 0 736 (736) 0.00% (15)
          17-5036-02-**-** Laboratory Supplies 18,504 17,676 828 95.53%
          17-5037-01-**-** Office Equipment 5,400 5,820 (420) 107.78% (9)
          17-5038-02-**-** Permits 40,004 17,532 22,472 43.83%
          17-5039-01-**-** Membership Dues/Fees 3,004 5,572 (2,568) 185.49%
          17-5039-02-**-** Membership Dues/Fees 1,004 708 296 70.52%

Page 23g

187



(Over)/Under %

Budget Actual Budget Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Budget vs. Actual Comparison by Project Committee

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

          17-5049-01-**-** Biosolids Disposal - 21B 825,000 931,660 (106,660) 112.93% (16)
          17-5050-01-**-** Contract Services Generators - 29A 7,200 5,984 1,216 83.11%
          17-5052-01-**-** Janitorial Services 20,004 11,420 8,584 57.09% (17)
          17-5054-01-**-** Diesel Truck Maint - 31B 18,504 11,556 6,948 62.45%
          17-5055-01-**-** Diesel Truck Fuel - 37B 6,200 4,120 2,080 66.45%
          17-5056-01-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Solids) 4 178,400 199,612 (21,212) 111.89% (18)
          17-5057-01-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Liquids) 149,100 179,756 (30,656) 120.56%
          17-5058-01-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Commo 19,200 29,256 (10,056) 152.38% (19)
          17-5059-01-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Co-Gen 89,500 57,764 31,736 64.54%
          17-5060-01-04-22 Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (AWT) 4 30,900 29,928 972 96.85%
          17-5061-01-**-** Mileage 2,996 1,848 1,148 61.68%
          17-5061-02-01-22 Mileage 0 8 (8) 0.00%
          17-5068-02-**-** MNWD Lab Services and Supplies 23,996 22,508 1,488 93.80%
          17-5077-01-**-** IT Direct 0 42,028 (42,028) 0.00% (20)
          17-5101-01-**-** Employee Recognition 0 700 (700) 0.00% (14)
          17-5105-01-**-** Co-Generation Power Credit - Offset 450,004 201,616 248,388 44.80% (21)
          17-5303-02-**-** Group Insurance Waiver 0 1,788 (1,788) 0.00% (14)
          17-5305-01-**-** Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 1,992 (1,992) 0.00% (14)
          17-5305-02-**-** Medicare Tax Payments for Employees 0 84 (84) 0.00% (14)
          17-5309-01-**-** Operating Leases 3,004 0 3,004 0.00%
          17-5705-01-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 10,000 10,568 (568) 105.68% (22)
          17-5705-02-**-** Monthly Car Allowance 0 636 (636) 0.00% (22)
          17-5802-01-03-22 Shipping/Freight 0 64 (64) 0.00% (14)
          17-5802-02-**-** Shipping/Freight 0 60 (60) 0.00% (14)
          17-6500-01-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 189,288 191,604 (2,316) 101.22%
          17-6500-02-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 20,564 23,568 (3,004) 114.61%

Rounding 0 97 (97) 0.00%
     Total Other Expenses 4,122,016 3,770,977 351,039 91.48%

Total Expenses 7,238,980 6,791,301 447,679 93.81%

(1) New equipment startup and troubleshooting Issues, January/February Storms, odor complaint investigations, 
and staff filling in for vacancies.

(2) Budgeted as regular salaries in past budgets.
(3) Actual fringe rate was 86.6%
(4) Expenses to be reclassified to Department 01 in the Use Audit.
(5) The Ferric Chloride was increased at RTP to reduce fugitive odors from the treatment processes adjacent to the walking trail.
(6) The January and February storms caused equipment damage and the equipment failures increased

the weight of the grit hauled offsite.
(7) Carryover work from FY15-16 as presented to at the June 2016 Board meeting.
(8) Increasing expenses due to average fleet age of 11 years.
(9) Office supplies and equipment due to new office set ups.
(10) Increased Premiums
(11) Elevated trash disposals due to cleaning areas for planned CIP projects.
(12) Safety supplies are restocked for the FY and limited expenses are planned for the remainder of the FY.
(13) Elevated expenses due for rental equipment (standby generators) for the major January and February storms.
(14) Expense Line Item Not Budgeted 
(15) Not used
(16) RTP Biosolids expenses were elevated due to increases in Biosolids delivered to RTP. Biosolids increased primarily during the

summer months and may reflect increases in tourism within SCWD, CLB and MNWD.
(17) Budgeted high level of expense for newly anticipated contract with more thorough cleaning requirements. Proposals received 

were too high and rejected by the Board in May. The contract services scope is being revised for reissuance.
(18) Solids expenses were elevated due to several large repairs to the buried pipes at RTP.
(19) RTP had several gate operator repair projects. 
(20) IT Direct higher due to SCADA software and hardware upgrades.

Software upgrades were required to maintain reporting capabilities from SCADA and the SCADA hardware upgrades 
(21) Engine project at RTP was delayed. This caused a decrease in power production.
(22) Expense under budgeted for PC.  Overall expense is under budget.

Page 23h

188



(Over)/Under %

Budget Actual Budget Expended

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Budget vs. Actual Comparison by Project Committee

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

21 - Effluent Transmission Main
     Salary and Fringe
          21-5014-02-**-** Engineering - Misc. 85,000 796 84,204 0.94% (1)
          21-5019-02-**-** Contract Services Misc. - 29 0 524 (524) 0.00% (2)
          21-5027-02-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 564 12 552 2.13%
          21-5028-01-**-** Small Tools & Supplies 920 0 920 0.00%

Rounding 0 4 (4) 0.00%
     Total Payroll Costs 86,484 1,336 85,148 1.54%
Total Expenses 86,484 1,336 85,148 1.54%

(1) Expenses to be reclassified to Department 01 in the Use Audit.
(2) There were a number of projects along the pipe alignment that required utility location services.

24 - Aliso Creek Ocean Outfall
     Salary and Fringe
          24-5000-01-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 6,456 660 5,796 10.22%
          24-5000-02-**-** Regular Salaries-O&M 102,016 93,844 8,172 91.99%
          24-5001-02-**-** Overtime Salaries-O&M 3,000 548 2,452 18.27%
          24-5306-02-**-** Scheduled Holiday Work 1,996 48 1,948 2.40%
          24-5307-02-12-21 Weekend Shift Pay 0 4 (4) 0.00% (1)
          24-5401-01-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 4,580 576 4,004 12.58% (2)
          24-5401-02-**-** Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 72,436 81,304 (8,868) 112.24% (2)

     Total Payroll Costs 190,484 176,984 13,500 92.91%

     Other Expenses
          24-5002-01-**-** Electricity 700 0 700 0.00%
          24-5002-02-**-** Electricity 700 0 700 0.00%
          24-5014-01-**-** Engineering - Misc. 0 3,392 (3,392) 0.00% (3)
          24-5015-02-**-** Management Support Services 20,004 17,916 2,088 89.56%
          24-5017-01-**-** Legal Fees 0 464 (464) 0.00%
          24-5027-01-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 0 4,424 (4,424) 0.00% (4)
          24-5027-02-**-** Insurance - Property/Liability 1,396 0 1,396 0.00% (4)
          24-5031-02-**-** Safety Supplies 500 5,716 (5,216) 1143.20% (5)
          24-5034-02-**-** Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 2,004 0 2,004 0.00%
          24-5036-02-**-** Laboratory Supplies 16,004 14,980 1,024 93.60%
          24-5038-02-**-** Permits 138,000 143,448 (5,448) 103.95%
          24-5044-02-**-** Offshore Monitoring - 20A 20,004 17,036 2,968 85.16%
          24-5046-02-**-** Effluent Chemistry - 20C 26,004 24,744 1,260 95.15%
          24-5058-01-**-** Maintenance Equip. & Facilities (Commo 0 4,012 (4,012) 0.00%
          24-5069-02-**-** Outfall Inspection/Port Cleaning 15,000 35,384 (20,384) 235.89% (6)
          24-5802-01-**-** Shipping/Freight 0 24 (24) 0.00% (7)
          24-6500-01-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 0 2,828 (2,828) 0.00%
          24-6500-02-**-** IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 18,776 14,272 4,504 76.01%

Rounding 0 14 (14) 0.00%
     Total Other Expenses 259,092 288,654 (29,562) 111.40%

Total Expenses 449,576 465,638 (16,062) 103.57%

(1) Budgeted as regular salaries in past budgets.
(2) Actual fringe rate was 86.6%
(3) Carryover kelp survey expenses from FY15-16.
(4) Increased Premiums
(5) Safety supplies are restocked for the FY and limited expenses are planned for the remainder of the FY.
(6) Item of work overbudget due to increase in scope, presented at 12.08.2016 Board of Directors' meeting.
(7) Expense Line Item Not Budgeted 

17,464,324 16,587,654 876,670 95.0%
Report name: Budget vs Actual - By PC - WW/MA masked
Include these Department(s): 02, 01
Include all Wastewater(s)
Include all Member Agency(s)

page 23i

189



(Over)/Under %

FY 2016-17  
Budget

Actual Budget Expended

     Salary and Fringe

          **-5000-**-**-00 Regular Salaries-O&M 103,896 146,150 (42,254) 140.7%

          01-5302-03-00-00 Performance Based Merit Pay 0 7,363 (7,363) 0.0%

          01-5401-03-00-00 Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 73,764 126,599 (52,835) 171.6%

     Total Payroll Costs 177,660 280,112 (102,452) 157.7%

     Other Expenses

          01-5014-03-00-00 Engineering - Misc. 1,200 0 1,200 0.0%

          01-5015-03-00-00 Management Support Services 39,996 0 39,996 0.0%

          01-5017-03-00-00 Legal Fees 0 830 (830) 0.0%

          01-5022-03-00-00 Miscellaneous Expense 11,400 0 11,400 0.0%

          01-5033-03-00-00 Recruitment 0 265 (265) 0.0%

          01-5034-03-00-00 Travel Expense/Tech. Conferences 0 1,893 (1,893) 0.0%

          01-5035-03-00-00 Training Expense 0 2,131 (2,131) 0.0%

          01-5039-03-00-00 Membership Dues/Fees 1,200 779 421 64.9%

          01-5061-03-00-00 Mileage 396 147 249 37.0%

          01-5309-03-00-00 Operating Leases 15,000 18,637 (3,637) 124.2%

          01-5705-03-00-00 Monthly Car Allowance 5,820 4,281 1,539 73.6%

          01-5802-03-00-00 Shipping/Freight 300 79 221 26.5%

          01-6500-03-00-00 IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 44,028 34,864 9,164 79.2%

     Total Other Expenses 119,340 63,906 55,434 53.5%

Total Expenses 297,000 344,018 (47,018) 115.8%

Report name: Budget vs Actual - PC 01 - Engineering - 2016-17

Page 24

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Budget vs. Actual Comparison - Engineering

For the Period Ended June 30, 2017

190



(Over)/Under %

FY 2016-17 
Budget

Actual Budget Expended

     Salary and Fringe

          01-5401-04-00-00 Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 484,884 602,675 (117,791) 124.3%

          01-6000-04-00-00 Regular Salaries-Admin or IT 682,932 695,744 (12,812) 101.9%

          01-6001-04-00-00 Overtime Salaries-Admin or IT 19,308 27,883 (8,575) 144.4%

          01-6314-04-00-00 Performance Based Merit Pay Admin or IT 0 1,914 (1,914) 0.0%

     Total Payroll Costs 1,187,124 1,328,215 (141,091) 111.9%

     Other Expenses

          01-5018-04-00-00 Public Notices/ Public Relations 15,996 0 15,996 0.0%

          01-5019-04-00-00 Contract Services Misc. - 29 0 0 0 0.0%

          01-5020-04-00-00 Postage Expense 0 0 0 0.0%

          01-5023-04-00-00 Office Supplies - All 0 0 0 0.0%

          01-5027-04-00-00 Insurance - Property/Liability 39,720 28 39,692 0.1%

          01-5033-04-00-00 Recruitment 0 0 0 0.0%

          01-5037-04-00-00 Office Equipment 0 0 0 0.0%

          01-5039-04-00-00 Membership Dues/Fees 0 0 0 0.0%

          01-5061-04-00-00 Mileage 0 0 0 0.0%

          01-6101-04-00-00 Recruitment & Employee Relations 12,000 35,803 (23,803) 298.4%

          01-6102-04-00-00 Subscriptions 996 1,334 (338) 134.0%

          01-6200-04-00-00 Management Support Services 215,004 162,229 52,775 75.5%

          01-6201-04-00-00 Audit 35,004 34,700 304 99.1%

          01-6202-04-00-00 Legal 62,004 188,130 (126,126) 303.4%

          01-6203-04-00-00 Outside Services 2,004 5,110 (3,106) 255.0%

          01-6204-04-00-00 Postage 1,896 2,521 (625) 133.0%

          01-6220-04-00-00 Board of Directors - Fees 0 0 0 0.0%

          01-6223-04-00-00 Office Supplies - Admin 9,996 4,041 5,955 40.4%

          01-6224-04-00-00 Office Equipment Admin or IT 8,004 9,132 (1,128) 114.1%

          01-6234-04-00-00 Memberships & Trainings 96,108 75,467 20,641 78.5%

          01-6239-04-00-00 Travel & Conference 23,904 23,794 110 99.5%

          01-6240-04-00-00 Scholarship Sponsorship 996 1,000 (4) 100.4%

          01-6310-04-00-00 Miscellaneous 15,000 20,831 (5,831) 138.9%

          01-6311-04-00-00 Mileage 708 941 (233) 132.9%

          01-6317-04-00-00 Contract Services Misc 1,800 8,070 (6,270) 448.3%

          01-6500-04-00-00 IT Allocations in to PC's & Depts. 122,172 80,812 41,360 66.1%

          01-6601-04-00-00 Shipping/Freight 0 2,647 (2,647) 0.0%

          01-6705-04-00-00 Monthly Car Allowance 12,000 12,231 (231) 101.9%

     Total Other Expenses 675,312 668,821 6,491 99.0%

Total Expenses 1,862,436 1,997,037 (134,601) 107.2%

Report name: Budget vs Actual - PC 01 - Admin - 2016-17

Page 25

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Budget vs. Actual Comparison- Administration

For the Period Ended June 30, 2017

191



(Over)/Under %

FY 2016-17 
Budget

Actual Budget Expended

     Salary & Fringe

          01-5401-05-00-00 Fringe Benefits IN to PC's & Depts. 52,572 38,501 14,071 73.2%

          01-6000-05-00-00 Regular Salaries-Admin or IT 74,052 44,447 29,605 60.0%

          01-6001-05-00-00 Overtime Salaries-Admin or IT 2,004 2,122 (118) 105.9%

     Total Salary & Fringe 128,628 85,071 43,557 66.1%

     Other Expenses

          01-5028-05-00-00 Small Tools & Supplies 504 0 504 0.0%

          01-5031-05-00-00 Safety Supplies 0 195 (195) 0.0%

          01-5037-05-00-00 Office Equipment 6,000 0 6,000 0.0%

          01-5061-05-00-00 Mileage 348 0 348 0.0%

          01-6101-05-00-00 Recruitment & Employee Relations, IT DEPT 0 684 (684) 0.0%

          01-6102-05-00-00 Subscriptions 0 465 (465) 0.0%

          01-6200-05-00-00 Management Support Services 0 55,348 (55,348) 0.0%

          01-6234-05-00-00 Memberships & Trainings 1,848 85 1,763 4.6%

          01-6239-05-00-00 Travel & Conference 2,496 0 2,496 0.0%

          01-6300-05-00-00 Software Maintenance Agreements 57,144 50,374 6,770 88.2%

          01-6301-05-00-00 Hardware Maintenance Agreements 12,912 13,230 (318) 102.5%

          01-6302-05-00-00 Cloud Subscriptions (Internet) 9,516 0 9,516 0.0%

          01-6303-05-00-00 Telecommunications 109,020 123,153 (14,133) 113.0%

          01-6305-05-00-00 IT Professional Services 241,500 193,545 47,955 80.1%

          01-6306-05-00-00 Small Hardware Purchases (< $5k) 34,896 75,827 (40,931) 217.3%

          01-6307-05-00-00 Small Software Purchases & Licenses (<$5k) 48,540 33,674 14,866 69.4%

          01-6308-05-00-00 IT Memberships 0 521 (521) 0.0%

          01-6309-05-00-00 Operating Leases 44,004 44,903 (899) 102.0%

          01-6310-05-00-00 Miscellaneous 996 380 616 38.1%

          01-6312-05-00-00 Computer & Photocopy Supplies 252 3,194 (2,942) 1267.4%

          01-6601-05-00-00 Shipping/Freight 252 0 252 0.0%

     Total Other Expenses 570,228 595,576 (25,348) 104.4%

Total Expenses before Allocation 698,856 680,646 18,210 97.4%

          IT Allocations (Out) to PC's & Depts

               01-6400-05-00-00 IT Allocations (OUT) to PC's & Depts. (698,856) (680,646) (18,210) 97.4%

(698,856) (680,646) (18,210) 97.4%

(698,856) (680,646) (18,210) 97.4%

Report name: Budget vs Actual - PC 01 - IT - 2016-17 0 0 0

Page 26

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Budget vs. Actual Comparison-IT

For the Period Ended June 30, 2017

192



P
C

 0
2

P
C

 1
2

P
C

 0
3

P
C

 0
5

P
C

 1
5

P
C

 1
7

P
C

 2
1

P
C

 2
4

P
C

 0
8

S
O

C
W

A

W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r

  
  

 L
iq

u
id

s
5

7
8

,6
5

6
0

1
,0

9
6

0
4

4
4

,6
4

9
5

2
8

,0
4

6
0

0
0

1
,5

5
2

,4
4

7

  
  

 S
o

lid
s

4
8

4
,2

9
9

0
1

,0
9

6
0

0
6

4
7

,6
0

4
0

0
0

1
,1

3
2

,9
9

9

  
  

 C
o

m
m

o
n

 L
iq

u
id

s
1

1
8

,1
4

1
0

2
5

6
0

1
4

0
,9

3
4

7
4

,1
5

2
0

0
0

3
3

3
,4

8
4

  
  

 A
W

T
0

0
0

0
9

5
,9

9
7

6
8

,0
5

1
0

0
0

1
6

4
,0

4
8

  
  

 V
a

r 
5

%
0

0
0

5
2

1
0

0
0

6
6

4
0

1
,1

8
5

  
  

 R
e

g
io

n
 9

0
2

5
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

5
0

  
  

 H
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

5
0

0
0

5

T
o

ta
l D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

0
1

1
,1

8
1

,0
9

6
2

5
0

2
,4

4
7

5
2

1
6

8
1

,5
8

0
1

,3
1

7
,8

5
8

0
6

6
4

0
3

,1
8

4
,4

1
7

W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r

  
  

 N
o

 W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

7
6

,4
9

4
7

6
,4

9
4

  
  

 L
iq

u
id

s
8

3
,1

7
7

0
0

4
3

7
0

,5
9

8
9

9
,3

3
9

0
0

0
2

5
3

,1
5

7

  
  

 S
o

lid
s

2
0

,5
7

0
0

0
0

0
2

6
,0

0
6

0
0

0
4

6
,5

7
6

  
  

 C
o

m
m

o
n

 L
iq

u
id

s
3

7
,8

4
0

1
2

3
0

0
3

1
,0

6
7

3
7

,9
5

1
0

0
0

1
0

6
,9

8
1

  
  

 A
W

T
0

0
0

0
2

1
,1

8
2

3
4

,0
1

1
0

0
0

5
5

,1
9

3

  
  

 V
a

r 
5

%
0

0
0

9
9

,0
4

5
0

0
0

9
3

,8
4

9
0

1
9

2
,8

9
4

  
  

 R
e

g
io

n
 9

0
3

5
,1

8
8

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
3

5
,1

8
8

  
  

 T
im

e
ca

rd
8

,4
6

8
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

,4
6

8

  
  

 H
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
0

,3
4

8
0

0
0

4
0

,3
4

8

T
o

ta
l D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

0
2

1
5

0
,0

5
5

3
5

,3
1

1
0

9
9

,0
8

8
1

2
2

,8
4

7
2

3
7

,6
5

5
0

9
3

,8
4

9
7

6
,4

9
4

8
1

5
,2

9
9

W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r

  
  

 N
o

 W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

7
6

,4
9

4
7

6
,4

9
4

  
  

 L
iq

u
id

s
6

6
1

,8
3

3
0

1
,0

9
6

4
3

5
1

5
,2

4
7

6
2

7
,3

8
5

0
0

0
1

,8
0

5
,6

0
4

  
  

 S
o

lid
s

5
0

4
,8

6
8

0
1

,0
9

6
0

0
6

7
3

,6
1

0
0

0
0

1
,1

7
9

,5
7

5

  
  

 C
o

m
m

o
n

 L
iq

u
id

s
1

5
5

,9
8

1
1

2
3

2
5

6
0

1
7

2
,0

0
1

1
1

2
,1

0
3

0
0

0
4

4
0

,4
6

5

  
  

 A
W

T
0

0
0

0
1

1
7

,1
7

9
1

0
2

,0
6

2
0

0
0

2
1

9
,2

4
1

  
  

 V
a

r 
5

%
0

0
0

9
9

,5
6

6
0

0
0

9
4

,5
1

3
0

1
9

4
,0

7
9

  
  

 T
im

e
ca

rd
8

,4
6

8
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
8

,4
6

8

  
  

 R
e

g
io

n
 9

0
3

5
,4

3
8

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
3

5
,4

3
8

  
  

 H
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

4
0

,3
5

3
0

0
0

4
0

,3
5

3

T
o

ta
l D

ire
ct

 L
a

b
o

r
1

,3
3

1
,1

5
0

3
5

,5
6

2
2

,4
4

7
9

9
,6

0
9

8
0

4
,4

2
7

1
,5

5
5

,5
1

3
0

9
4

,5
1

3
7

6
,4

9
4

3
,9

9
9

,7
1

6

P
ag

e 
27

S
o

u
th

 O
ra

n
g

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

D
ir

ec
t 

L
ab

o
r 

b
y 

D
ep

t.
 a

n
d

 P
ro

je
ct

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
20

16
-1

7-
 D

o
lla

rs

193



P
C

 0
2

P
C

 1
2

P
C

 0
3

P
C

 0
5

P
C

 1
5

P
C

 1
7

P
C

 2
1

P
C

 2
4

P
C

 0
8

S
O

C
W

A

W
as

te
w

at
er

  
  

 L
iq

ui
ds

49
.0

%
0.

0%
44

.8
%

0.
0%

65
.2

%
40

.1
%

0.
0%

48
.8

%

  
  

 S
ol

id
s

41
.0

%
0.

0%
44

.8
%

0.
0%

0.
0%

49
.1

%
0.

0%
35

.6
%

  
  

 C
om

m
on

 L
iq

ui
ds

10
.0

%
0.

0%
10

.5
%

0.
0%

20
.7

%
5.

6%
0.

0%
10

.5
%

  
  

 A
W

T
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
14

.1
%

5.
2%

0.
0%

5.
2%

  
  

 V
ar

 5
%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

0.
0%

  
  

 R
eg

io
n 

9
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

  
  

 H
20

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
00

%
0.

0%
0.

0%

T
ot

al
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
01

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

W
as

te
w

at
er

  
  

 N
o 

W
as

te
w

at
er

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
9.

4%

  
  

 L
iq

ui
ds

55
.4

%
0.

0%
0.

0%
57

.5
%

41
.8

%
0.

0%
0.

0%
31

.1
%

  
  

 S
ol

id
s

13
.7

%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
10

.9
%

0.
0%

0.
0%

5.
7%

  
  

 C
om

m
on

 L
iq

ui
ds

25
.2

%
0.

3%
0.

0%
25

.3
%

16
.0

%
0.

0%
0.

0%
13

.1
%

  
  

 A
W

T
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
17

.2
%

14
.3

%
0.

0%
0.

0%
6.

8%

  
  

 V
a

r 
5

%
0.

0
%

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

0.
0%

23
.7

%

  
  

 R
eg

io
n 

9
0.

0%
99

.7
%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

4.
3%

  
  

 T
im

ec
ar

d
5.

6%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
1.

0%

  
  

 H
20

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

17
.0

%
0.

0%
0.

0%
4.

9%

T
ot

al
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
02

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

W
as

te
w

at
er

  
  

 N
o 

W
as

te
w

at
er

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
1.

9%

  
  

 L
iq

ui
ds

49
.7

%
0.

0%
44

.8
%

0.
0%

64
.1

%
40

.3
%

0.
0%

0.
0%

45
.1

%

  
  

 S
ol

id
s

37
.9

%
0.

0%
44

.8
%

0.
0%

0.
0%

43
.3

%
0.

0%
0.

0%
29

.5
%

  
  

 C
om

m
on

 L
iq

ui
ds

11
.7

%
0.

3%
10

.5
%

0.
0%

21
.4

%
7.

2%
0.

0%
0.

0%
11

.0
%

  
  

 A
W

T
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
14

.6
%

6.
6%

0.
0%

0.
0%

5.
5%

  
  

 V
a

r 
5

%
0.

0
%

0.
0%

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

0.
0%

4.
9%

  
  

 T
im

ec
ar

d
0.

6%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

0%
0.

2%

  
  

 R
eg

io
n 

9
0.

0%
99

.7
%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
9%

  
  

 H
20

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

0.
0%

2.
6%

0.
0%

0.
0%

1.
0%

T
ot

al
 D

ire
ct

 L
ab

or
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%
0.

0%
10

0.
0

%
10

0.
0%

10
0.

0%

P
ag

e 
28

S
o

u
th

 O
ra

n
g

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

D
ir

ec
t 

L
ab

o
r 

b
y 

D
ep

t.
 a

n
d

 P
ro

je
ct

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
20

16
-1

7-
 P

er
ce

n
ta

g
es

194



P
C

 0
2

P
C

 1
2

P
C

 0
3

P
C

 0
5

P
C

 1
5

P
C

 1
7

P
C

 2
1

P
C

 2
4

P
C

 0
8

S
O

C
W

A

W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r

N
o

 W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
5

6
9

  
  

 L
iq

u
id

s
2

5
,6

7
7

0
0

0
1

6
,3

0
0

3
3

,9
4

8
0

0
0

7
5

,9
2

4

  
  

 S
o

lid
s

1
8

,1
7

1
0

0
0

0
3

2
,1

4
8

0
0

0
5

0
,3

1
9

  
  

 C
o

m
m

o
n

 
2

,5
4

3
0

0
0

2
,2

9
2

3
,3

0
2

0
0

0
8

,1
3

7

  
  

 A
W

T
0

0
0

0
4

,2
6

7
4

,2
9

0
0

0
0

8
,5

5
8

T
o

ta
l D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

0
1

4
6

,3
9

1
0

0
0

2
2

,8
6

0
7

3
,6

8
8

0
0

0
1

4
3

,5
0

8

W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r

  
  

 L
iq

u
id

s
5

9
5

0
0

0
5

1
4

6
7

9
0

0
0

1
,7

8
8

  
  

 S
o

lid
s

0
0

0
0

0
8

1
0

0
0

8
1

  
  

 C
o

m
m

o
n

 L
iq

u
id

s
0

0
0

0
0

3
8

0
0

0
0

3
8

0

  
  

 A
W

T
0

0
0

0
2

7
2

4
8

8
0

0
0

7
6

1

  
  

 V
a

r 
5

%
0

0
0

5
7

0
0

0
5

5
7

0
6

1
4

  
  

 R
e

g
io

n
 9

0
2

4
7

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
2

4
7

  
  

 H
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

3
8

1
0

0
0

3
8

1

T
o

ta
l D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

0
2

5
9

5
2

4
7

0
5

7
7

8
6

2
,0

0
9

0
5

5
7

0
4

,2
5

2

W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r

  
  

 N
o

 W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r

0
0

0
0

0
5

6
9

0
0

0
5

6
9

  
  

 L
iq

u
id

s
2

6
,2

7
1

0
0

0
1

6
,8

1
4

3
4

,3
6

5
0

0
0

77
,4

50
  

  
 S

o
lid

s
1

8
,1

7
1

0
0

0
0

3
1

,9
8

1
0

0
0

50
,1

52
  

  
 C

o
m

m
o

n
 L

iq
u

id
s

2
,5

4
3

0
0

0
2

,2
9

2
3

,6
5

6
0

0
0

8,
49

2
  

  
 A

W
T

0
0

0
0

4
,5

4
0

4
,7

4
6

0
0

0
9,

28
5

  
  

 V
a

r 
5

%
0

0
0

5
7

0
0

0
5

5
7

0
61

4
  

  
 R

e
g

io
n

 9
0

2
4

7
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

24
7

  
  

 H
2

0
0

0
0

0
0

3
8

1
0

0
0

38
1

T
o

ta
l D

ire
ct

 L
a

b
o

r
4

6
,9

8
6

2
4

7
0

5
7

2
3

,6
4

6
7

5
,6

9
8

0
5

5
7

0
1

4
7

,1
9

0

P
ag

e 
29

S
o

u
th

 O
ra

n
g

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

D
ir

ec
t 

L
ab

o
r 

b
y 

D
ep

t.
 a

n
d

 P
ro

je
ct

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
20

16
-1

7 
Ju

n
e 

30
th

 -
 O

ve
rt

im
e 

D
o

lla
rs

195



P
C

 0
2

P
C

 1
2

P
C

 0
3

P
C

 0
5

P
C

 1
5

P
C

 1
7

P
C

 2
1

P
C

 2
4

P
C

 0
8

S
O

C
W

A

W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r

N
o

 W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
0

.4
%

  
  

 L
iq

u
id

s
5

5
.3

%
7

1
.3

%
4

6
.1

%
5

2
.9

%

  
  

 S
o

lid
s

3
9

.2
%

0
.0

%
4

3
.6

%
3

5
.1

%

  
  

 C
o

m
m

o
n

 
5

.5
%

1
0

.0
%

4
.5

%
5

.7
%

  
  

 A
W

T
0

.0
%

1
8

.7
%

5
.8

%
6

.0
%

T
o

ta
l D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

0
1

1
0

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r

  
  

 L
iq

u
id

s
1

0
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

6
5

.4
%

3
3

.8
%

0
.0

%
4

2
.1

%

  
  

 S
o

lid
s

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

4
.0

%
0

.0
%

1
.9

%

  
  

 C
o

m
m

o
n

 L
iq

u
id

s
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
1

8
.9

%
0

.0
%

8
.9

%

  
  

 A
W

T
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

3
4

.6
%

2
4

.3
%

0
.0

%
1

7
.9

%

  
  

 V
a

r 
5

%
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%
1

4
.4

%

  
  

 R
e

g
io

n
 9

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

5
.8

%

  
  

 H
2

0
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
1

9
.0

%
0

.0
%

9
.0

%

T
o

ta
l D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

0
2

1
0

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r

  
  

 N
o

 W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

0
.8

%
0

.0
%

0
.4

%

  
  

 L
iq

u
id

s
5

5
.9

%
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
7

1
.1

%
4

5
.4

%
0

.0
%

5
2

.6
%

  
  

 S
o

lid
s

3
8

.7
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
4

2
.2

%
0

.0
%

3
4

.1
%

  
  

 C
o

m
m

o
n

 L
iq

u
id

s
5

.4
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

9
.7

%
4

.8
%

0
.0

%
5

.8
%

  
  

 A
W

T
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

1
9

.2
%

6
.3

%
0

.0
%

6
.3

%

  
  

 V
a

r 
5

%
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%
0

.4
%

  
  

 R
e

g
io

n
 9

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

0
.2

%

  
  

 H
2

0
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

0
.0

%
0

.5
%

0
.0

%
0

.3
%

T
o

ta
l D

ire
ct

 L
a

b
o

r
1

0
0

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%
1

0
0

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%
0

.0
%

1
0

0
.0

%

P
ag

e 
30

S
o

u
th

 O
ra

n
g

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

D
ir

ec
t 

L
ab

o
r 

b
y 

D
ep

t.
 a

n
d

 P
ro

je
ct

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
F

is
ca

l Y
ea

r 
20

16
-1

7 
Ju

n
e 

30
th

 -
 O

ve
rt

im
e 

P
er

ce
n

ta
g

es

196



FY 2015-16 
Actual

FY 2016-17 
Actual

FY 2017-18 
Budget

457 Plan - Employer Contribution 13,821 83,925 85,000
Accrued Administrative Leave 34,879 30,478 21,622
Accrued Holiday 221,783 220,371 247,435
Accrued Personal Leave 74,238 76,638 84,288
Accrued Sick Pay 242,262 262,987 278,890
Accrued Vacation 372,526 416,343 409,536
Bereavement Pay 1,345 8,088 1,398
Disability Insurance - Private 51,728 56,122 59,307
Group Life Insurance > $50,000 (taxable) 7,233 0 0
Group Medical Insurance 941,108 1,017,679 967,541
Medicare Tax - Employer 94,167 94,550 84,963
Pension Benefit in Excess of Cap 2,824 2,199 2,937
Retiree Health PARS Investment 500,000 504,000 250,000
Retiree Health Benefits 281,389 384,936 308,402
Retirement - PERS Normal Costs 517,823 500,175 609,905
Retirement - PERS Unfunded Liability 429,804 497,705 595,685
Unemployment Ins./Reimbursement 1,378 1,234 1,433
Workers Compensation Ins. 76,883 212,990 223,717
Other Misc.

Total Fringe Benefits Pool 3,865,192 4,370,418 4,232,059

Pay for Time Worked Labor Base
O&M 3,184,417
Environmental 815,299
Engineering 305,422 (a)
Admin 695,744
IT 44,447

Total Pay for Time Worked Labor Base 4,976,917 5,045,329
Fringe Rate 78% 86.6%

(a) Engineering Labor
Salaries 146,150

         CIP 159,272
305,422

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
FY 2016-17 Fringe Benefits Pool

Page 31

197



FLOW SUMMARY (MGD)

2016/17 2016/17 Total Total
Member Budgeted Budgeted Avg. Flow Percent
Agency Flow Percent To Date To Date
  CSJC 3.190 38.02% 2.121 31.96%

  MNWD 1.400 16.69% 1.400 21.10%
  SCWD 2.000 23.84% 1.701 25.63%
  SMWD 1.800 21.45% 1.414 21.31%

8.390 100.00% 6.636 100.00%

SOLIDS LOADING SUMMARY (Pounds)

2016/17 2016/17 Total Total
Member Budgeted Budgeted Avg. Loadings Percent
Agency Loadings Percent To Date To Date
  CSJC 8,620 33.38% 5,767 24.54%

  MNWD 5,207 20.16% 4,396 18.70%
  SCWD 5,304 20.54% 5,391 22.94%
  SMWD 6,695 25.92% 7,949 33.82%

25,826 100.00% 23,503 100.00%

PC 2

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY WASTEWATER AUTHORITY
J.B. LATHAM TREATMENT PLANT MONTHLY FLOW & SOLIDS SUMMARY (1)

July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017

Page 32

198



Outfall Outfall
Member Flows Flows 
Agency MGD Percent

CSC 2.531 21.57
CSJC 2.348 20.01
MNWD 2.013 17.16
SCWD 1.74 14.83
SMWD 3.101 26.43

Totals 11.733 100.00

PC 5 FY 2016/17 Actual Flows

2 - The actual flow percentages were revised based on comments 
from the 12/11/17 Finance Committee.

Page 33

199



Region 9 Recyled Use % RW Use
Member Agency FY 2016/17 FY 2016/17

acft %
CSJC 529 3.40
ETWD 0 0
IRWD 815 5.23
MNWD 5888 37.80
SCWD 918 5.89
SMWD 6839 43.90
TCWD 588.5 3.78
Total 15577.5 100

PC 12 Recycled Water
FY 2016-17

Page 34

200



Plant Plant
Member Flows Flow
Agency MGD Percent

CLB 1.770 59.00
EBSD 0.05 1.67
SCWD 1.18 39.33
MNWD 0.000 0.0

Total 3.000 100.00

PC 15 FY 2016/17 Actual Flows

Page 35

201



Total
Member Plant Centrate Liquid Liquid
Agency Influent Flow Flow Flow

MGD MGD MGD %
CLB 0 0.01475 0.0122 0.1567
EBSD 0 0.0005 0.0004 0.0051
SCWD 0 0.00979 0.0081 0.1040
ETWD 0 0.01705 0.0141 0.1811
MNWD 7.75 0.09448 7.75 99.5530

7.75 0.13657 7.7848 100.0000

2016/17 2016/17
2015/16 #/Day %

4835 CLB 5133 12.48
5677 ETWD 5755 13.99
143 EBSD 158 0.39

26343 MNWD 26532 64.52
3162 SCWD 3546 8.62

Total 41124 100.00

PC 17 Liquids

Solids

FY 2016-17

Page 36

202



Member Outfall Variable
Agency Flow Cost 

 MGD Percent
CLB 1.89 17.72
EBSD 0.05 0.50
ETWD 2.46 23.08
IRWD 2.48 23.22
MNWD 3.08 28.92
SCWD 0.70 6.56

Total 10.67 100.00

PC 24 FY 16/17 Actual Flows

Page 37

203



Date Transaction Journal Vendor Name Amount
12/29/15 76-422 Accounts Payable Project Partners, In-7165 354                            
3/15/16 204-68 Adjustments Journal Lee & RO - 1133-03/01 S/B 3206-000 6,966                         
3/15/16 204-70 Adjustments Journal Lee & RO - 1133-03/02 correct project# 5,159                         
3/16/16 213-236 Accounts Payable Project Partners, In-7295-PO 8567  320 4,498                         
3/28/16 237-350 Accounts Payable DHK Engineers, Inc.-4216- 13,510                       
4/1/16 272-06 General Journal Lee & Ro, Inc.-1133-03/03 2,063                         

4/12/16 243-107 Accounts Payable Orange County Fire A-04/12/16-3206-00 980                            
6/20/16 324-035 Accounts Payable Project Partners, In-7322-A- 1,534                         
9/30/16 606-0817 Accounts Payable Gateway Pacific Cont-20- 51,921                       

10/18/16 606-0094 Accounts Payable Project Partners, In-7396- 1,770                         
10/18/16 606-0106 Accounts Payable Project Partners, In-7356- 1,416                         
10/18/16 606-0150 Accounts Payable Project Partners, In-7500- 236                            
11/30/16 673-1993 Accounts Payable DHK Engineers, Inc.-4266- 2,680                         
1/31/17 724-289 Accounts Payable Gateway Pacific Cont-24- 84,412                       

Total 177,499                     

Cash Collected 227,430                     

USE AUDIT Refund/(Amount Due) 49,931                       

2R
Member Allocations

Member Agency Ownership % Amount Allocated

CSJC 30.38% 15,171                       
MNWD 22.35% 11,159                       
SCWD 24.42% 12,195                       
SMWD 22.84% 11,406                       

Total Commons 49,931                       

Page 38

South Orange County Wastewater Authority
Large Capital Close Outs Detail

Diesel Storage Tank (2016) - Project 3206-000 (Common)

204



 D
u

e 
T

o
/(

F
ro

m
) 

 M
em

b
er

 A
g

en
cy

 

   
  L

iq
u

id
s

3
2

0
1

-0
0

0
A

e
ra

ti
o

n
/C

o
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 D

e
s

ig
n

/C
o

n
s

tr
u

c
ti

o
n

 (
2

0
0

9
)

7
,4

7
7

,6
1

1
   

   
   

 
7

,1
8

9
,1

7
9

   
   

   
 

2
8

8
,4

3
2

   
   

  
O

p
e

n
(1

)
64

4
B

lo
w

er
 N

o.
5

4
5

4
,4

8
4

   
   

   
   

 
64

5
B

lo
w

er
 N

o.
6

4
5

4
,4

8
4

   
   

   
   

 
64

6
B

lo
w

er
 N

o.
7

4
5

4
,4

8
4

   
   

   
   

 
64

7
B

lo
w

er
 B

ld
g 

N
o.

1 
P

ip
in

g 
an

d 
V

al
ve

s
2

0
7

,0
1

5
   

   
   

   
 

64
8

B
lo

w
er

 B
ld

g 
N

o.
1 

E
le

ct
ric

al
4

1
5

,2
7

0
   

   
   

   
 

64
9

A
er

at
io

n 
B

as
in

 2
 D

iff
us

er
s

1
9

8
,6

0
3

   
   

   
   

 
65

0
A

er
at

io
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
2 

C
on

tr
ol

 V
al

ve
s

7
9

,2
0

2
   

   
   

   
   

65
1

A
er

at
io

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

2 
A

ir 
F

lo
w

 M
et

er
s

7
0

,7
9

0
   

   
   

   
   

65
2

A
er

at
io

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

2 
E

ff
lu

en
t 

G
at

es
7

4
,8

7
9

   
   

   
   

   
65

3
A

er
at

io
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
3 

D
iff

us
er

s
1

9
8

,6
0

3
   

   
   

   
 

65
4

A
er

at
io

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

3 
C

on
tr

ol
 V

al
ve

s
7

9
,2

0
2

   
   

   
   

   
65

5
A

er
at

io
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
3 

A
ir 

F
lo

w
 M

et
er

s
7

0
,7

9
0

   
   

   
   

   
65

6
A

er
at

io
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
3 

E
ff

lu
en

t 
G

at
es

7
4

,8
7

9
   

   
   

   
   

65
7

A
er

at
io

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

4 
D

iff
us

er
s

1
9

8
,6

0
3

   
   

   
   

 
65

8
A

er
at

io
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
4 

C
on

tr
ol

 V
al

ve
s

7
9

,2
0

2
   

   
   

   
   

65
9

A
er

at
io

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

4 
A

ir 
F

lo
w

 M
et

er
s

7
0

,7
9

0
   

   
   

   
   

66
0

A
er

at
io

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

4 
E

ff
lu

en
t 

G
at

es
7

4
,8

7
9

   
   

   
   

   
66

1
A

er
at

io
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
5 

D
iff

us
er

s
1

9
8

,6
0

3
   

   
   

   
 

66
2

A
er

at
io

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

5 
C

on
tr

ol
 V

al
ve

s
7

9
,2

0
2

   
   

   
   

   
66

3
A

er
at

io
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
5 

A
ir 

F
lo

w
 M

et
er

s
7

0
,7

9
0

   
   

   
   

   
66

4
A

er
at

io
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
5 

E
ff

lu
en

t 
G

at
es

7
4

,8
7

9
   

   
   

   
   

66
5

A
er

at
io

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

6 
D

iff
us

er
s

1
9

8
,6

0
3

   
   

   
   

 
66

6
A

er
at

io
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
6 

C
on

tr
ol

 V
al

ve
s

7
9

,2
0

2
   

   
   

   
   

66
7

A
er

at
io

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

6 
A

ir 
F

lo
w

 M
et

er
s

7
0

,7
9

0
   

   
   

   
   

66
8

A
er

at
io

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

6 
E

ff
lu

en
t 

G
at

es
7

4
,8

7
9

   
   

   
   

   
66

9
A

er
at

io
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
7 

D
iff

us
er

s
1

9
8

,6
0

3
   

   
   

   
 

67
0

A
er

at
io

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

7 
C

on
tr

ol
 V

al
ve

s
7

9
,2

0
2

   
   

   
   

   
67

1
A

er
at

io
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
7 

A
ir 

F
lo

w
 M

et
er

s
7

0
,7

9
0

   
   

   
   

   
67

2
A

er
at

io
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
7 

E
ff

lu
en

t 
G

at
es

7
4

,8
7

9
   

   
   

   
   

67
3

A
er

at
io

n 
B

as
in

 E
le

ct
ric

al
 Im

pr
1

9
0

,2
7

0
   

   
   

   
 

67
4

A
er

at
io

n 
P

LC
7

6
,5

4
5

   
   

   
   

   
73

2
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

1 
Is

ol
at

io
n 

G
at

es
2

7
,9

5
0

   
   

   
   

   
73

3
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

1 
S

cu
m

 S
ki

m
m

er
2

8
,9

8
5

   
   

   
   

   
73

4
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

1 
D

ra
in

 V
al

ve
s

1
4

,8
7

6
   

   
   

   
   

73
5

S
ec

on
da

ry
 S

ed
im

en
ta

tio
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
1 

La
un

de
rs

/W
ei

rs
3

2
,6

1
6

   
   

   
   

   
73

6
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

8 
C

ol
le

ct
or

 D
riv

e
3

1
,8

0
1

   
   

   
   

   
73

8
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

8 
Is

ol
at

io
n 

G
at

es
2

7
,9

5
0

   
   

   
   

   
74

1
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

8 
S

cu
m

 S
ki

m
m

er
2

8
,9

8
5

   
   

   
   

   
74

2
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

8 
D

ra
in

 V
al

ve
s

1
4

,8
7

6
   

   
   

   
   

P
a

g
e

 3
9

P
C

2
 J

 B
 L

a
th

a
m

S
p

e
n

t 
In

ce
p

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

d
at

e
 D

if
fe

re
n

ce
 

 A
ss

et
s 

P
la

ce
d

 i
n

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 

 P
ro

je
c

t 
S

ta
tu

s 

S
o

u
th

 O
ra

n
g

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

C
ap

it
al

 A
ss

et
s 

P
la

ce
d

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 a

n
d

 /o
r 

P
ro

je
ct

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 F

Y
 2

0
1

6
-1

7
U

S
E

 A
U

D
IT

 F
Y

 2
0

1
6

-1
7

C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

je
ct

 D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 In

vo
ic

ed
 

In
ce

p
ti

o
n

 t
o

 
d

at
e 

205



 D
u

e 
T

o
/(

F
ro

m
) 

 M
em

b
er

 A
g

en
cy

 

S
p

e
n

t 
In

ce
p

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

d
at

e
 D

if
fe

re
n

ce
 

 A
ss

et
s 

P
la

ce
d

 i
n

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 

 P
ro

je
c

t 
S

ta
tu

s 

S
o

u
th

 O
ra

n
g

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

C
ap

it
al

 A
ss

et
s 

P
la

ce
d

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 a

n
d

 /o
r 

P
ro

je
ct

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 F

Y
 2

0
1

6
-1

7
U

S
E

 A
U

D
IT

 F
Y

 2
0

1
6

-1
7

C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

je
ct

 D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 In

vo
ic

ed
 

In
ce

p
ti

o
n

 t
o

 
d

at
e 

74
3

P
la

nt
 N

o.
1 

S
ec

on
da

ry
 S

ed
im

en
ta

tio
n 

B
as

in
 E

le
ct

ric
al

 Im
pr

ov
em

8
2

,2
0

5
   

   
   

   
   

74
4

S
ec

on
da

ry
 S

ed
im

en
ta

tio
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
9 

La
un

de
rs

/W
ei

rs
3

2
,6

1
6

   
   

   
   

   
74

5
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

9 
D

ra
in

 V
al

ve
s

1
4

,8
7

6
   

   
   

   
   

74
6

S
ec

on
da

ry
 S

ed
im

en
ta

tio
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
9 

S
cu

m
 S

ki
m

m
er

2
8

,9
8

5
   

   
   

   
   

74
7

S
ec

on
da

ry
 S

ed
im

en
ta

tio
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
9 

Is
ol

at
io

n 
G

at
es

2
7

,9
5

0
   

   
   

   
   

74
8

S
ec

on
da

ry
 S

ed
im

en
ta

tio
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
9 

C
ol

le
ct

or
 D

riv
e

3
1

,8
0

1
   

   
   

   
   

74
9

S
ec

on
da

ry
 S

ed
im

en
ta

tio
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
8 

La
un

de
rs

/W
ei

rs
3

2
,6

1
6

   
   

   
   

   
75

6
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

2 
C

ol
le

ct
or

 D
riv

e
3

1
,8

0
1

   
   

   
   

   
75

7
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

2 
Is

ol
at

io
n 

G
at

es
2

7
,9

5
0

   
   

   
   

   
75

8
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

2 
S

cu
m

 S
ki

m
m

er
2

8
,9

8
5

   
   

   
   

   
75

9
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

2 
D

ra
in

 V
al

ve
s

1
4

,8
7

6
   

   
   

   
   

76
0

S
ec

on
da

ry
 S

ed
im

en
ta

tio
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
2 

La
un

de
rs

/W
ei

rs
3

2
,6

1
6

   
   

   
   

   
76

1
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

3 
C

ol
le

ct
or

 D
riv

e
3

1
,8

0
1

   
   

   
   

   
76

2
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

3 
Is

ol
at

io
n 

G
at

es
2

7
,9

5
0

   
   

   
   

   
76

3
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

3 
S

cu
m

 S
ki

m
m

er
2

8
,9

8
5

   
   

   
   

   
76

4
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

3 
D

ra
in

 V
al

ve
s

1
4

,8
7

6
   

   
   

   
   

76
5

S
ec

on
da

ry
 S

ed
im

en
ta

tio
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
3 

La
un

de
rs

/W
ei

rs
3

2
,6

1
6

   
   

   
   

   
76

6
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

4 
C

ol
le

ct
or

 D
riv

e
3

1
,8

0
1

   
   

   
   

   
76

7
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

4 
Is

ol
at

io
n 

G
at

es
2

7
,9

5
0

   
   

   
   

   
76

8
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

4 
S

cu
m

 S
ki

m
m

er
2

8
,9

8
5

   
   

   
   

   
76

9
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

4 
D

ra
in

 V
al

ve
s

1
4

,8
7

6
   

   
   

   
   

77
0

S
ec

on
da

ry
 S

ed
im

en
ta

tio
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
4 

La
un

de
rs

/W
ei

rs
3

2
,6

1
6

   
   

   
   

   
77

1
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

5 
C

ol
le

ct
or

 D
riv

e
3

1
,8

0
1

   
   

   
   

   
77

2
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

5 
Is

ol
at

io
n 

G
at

es
2

7
,9

5
0

   
   

   
   

   
77

3
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

5 
S

cu
m

 S
ki

m
m

er
2

8
,9

8
5

   
   

   
   

   
77

4
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

5 
D

ra
in

 V
al

ve
s

1
4

,8
7

6
   

   
   

   
   

77
5

S
ec

on
da

ry
 S

ed
im

en
ta

tio
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
5 

La
un

de
rs

/W
ei

rs
3

2
,6

1
6

   
   

   
   

   
77

6
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

6 
C

ol
le

ct
or

 D
riv

e
3

1
,8

0
1

   
   

   
   

   
77

7
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

6 
Is

ol
at

io
n 

G
at

es
2

7
,9

5
0

   
   

   
   

   
77

8
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

6 
S

cu
m

 S
ki

m
m

er
2

8
,9

8
5

   
   

   
   

   
77

9
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

6 
D

ra
in

 V
al

ve
s

1
4

,8
7

6
   

   
   

   
   

78
0

S
ec

on
da

ry
 S

ed
im

en
ta

tio
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
6 

La
un

de
rs

/W
ei

rs
3

2
,6

1
6

   
   

   
   

   
78

1
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

7 
C

ol
le

ct
or

 D
riv

e
3

1
,8

0
1

   
   

   
   

   
78

2
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

7 
Is

ol
at

io
n 

G
at

es
2

7
,9

5
0

   
   

   
   

   
78

3
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

7 
S

cu
m

 S
ki

m
m

er
2

8
,9

8
5

   
   

   
   

   
78

4
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

7 
D

ra
in

 V
al

ve
s

1
4

,8
7

6
   

   
   

   
   

78
5

S
ec

on
da

ry
 S

ed
im

en
ta

tio
n 

B
as

in
 N

o.
7 

La
un

de
rs

/W
ei

rs
3

2
,6

1
6

   
   

   
   

   
73

1
S

ec
on

da
ry

 S
ed

im
en

ta
tio

n 
B

as
in

 N
o.

1 
C

ol
le

ct
or

 D
riv

e
3

1
,8

0
1

   
   

   
   

   
T

o
ta

l 
P

ro
je

ct
 3

20
1-

00
0

7
,4

7
7

,6
1

1
   

   
   

 
7

,1
8

9
,1

7
9

   
   

   
 

2
8

8
,4

3
2

   
   

  
6

,1
0

1
,6

5
3

   
   

   
 

3
2

0
3

-0
0

0
E

ff
lu

e
n

t 
S

ta
n

d
b

y 
G

e
n

e
ra

to
r 

A
T

S
 R

e
p

la
c

e
 (

2
0

1
6

)
1

7
6

,2
1

6
   

   
   

   
  

1
8

,5
6

1
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

5
7

,6
5

5
   

   
  

O
p

e
n

(1
)

75
1

E
ff

lu
en

t 
P

um
p 

S
ta

tio
n 

A
ut

o 
T

ra
ns

fe
r 

S
w

itc
h

1
8

,5
6

1
   

   
   

   
   

T
o

ta
l 

P
ro

je
ct

 3
20

3-
00

0
1

7
6

,2
1

6
   

   
   

   
  

1
8

,5
6

1
   

   
   

   
   

 
1

5
7

,6
5

5
   

   
  

1
8

,5
6

1
   

   
   

   
   

P
a

g
e

 4
0

206



 D
u

e 
T

o
/(

F
ro

m
) 

 M
em

b
er

 A
g

en
cy

 

S
p

e
n

t 
In

ce
p

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

d
at

e
 D

if
fe

re
n

ce
 

 A
ss

et
s 

P
la

ce
d

 i
n

 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 

 P
ro

je
c

t 
S

ta
tu

s 

S
o

u
th

 O
ra

n
g

e 
C

o
u

n
ty

 W
as

te
w

at
er

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

C
ap

it
al

 A
ss

et
s 

P
la

ce
d

 in
 S

er
vi

ce
 a

n
d

 /o
r 

P
ro

je
ct

 C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 F

Y
 2

0
1

6
-1

7
U

S
E

 A
U

D
IT

 F
Y

 2
0

1
6

-1
7

C
ap

it
al

 P
ro

je
ct

 D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 In

vo
ic

ed
 

In
ce

p
ti

o
n

 t
o

 
d

at
e 

3
2

0
4

-0
0

0
F

a
c

ili
ty

 Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

  S
tr

u
c

tu
ra

l R
e

p
a

ir
s

 (
2

0
1

5
)

6
9

1
,1

7
5

   
   

   
   

  
7

6
7

,1
7

5
   

   
   

   
  

(7
6

,0
0

0
)

   
   

   
(1

)
75

0
E

ff
lu

en
t 

P
um

p 
S

ta
tio

n 
S

tr
uc

tu
ra

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
5

8
,7

7
8

   
   

   
   

   

78
6

P
la

nt
 N

o.
1 

S
ec

on
da

ry
 S

ed
im

en
ta

tio
n 

B
as

in
 S

tr
uc

tu
ra

l I
m

pr
ov

em
3

2
4

,6
4

5
   

   
   

   
 

78
7

A
er

at
io

n 
B

as
in

 S
tr

uc
tu

ra
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

3
8

3
,7

5
2

   
   

   
   

 
T

o
ta

l 
P

ro
je

ct
 3

20
4-

00
0

6
9

1
,1

7
5

   
   

   
   

  
7

6
7

,1
7

5
   

   
   

   
  

(7
6

,0
0

0
)

   
   

   
7

6
7

,1
7

5
   

   
   

   
 

(1
)

8
,3

4
5

,0
0

2
   

   
   

 
7

,9
7

4
,9

1
5

   
   

   
 

3
7

0
,0

8
7

   
   

  
6

,8
8

7
,3

8
9

   
   

   
 

   
 C

o
m

m
o

n
3

2
0

6
-0

0
0

D
ie

s
e

l S
to

ra
g

e
 T

a
n

k
 (

2
0

1
6

)
2

2
7

,4
3

0
   

   
   

   
  

1
7

7
,4

9
9

   
   

   
   

  
4

9
,9

3
1

   
   

   
 

C
lo

s
e

d
4

9
,9

3
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
75

2
42

61
4

1
7

7
,4

9
9

   
   

   
   

 
T

o
ta

l 
P

ro
je

ct
 3

20
6-

00
0

2
2

7
,4

3
0

   
   

   
   

  
1

7
7

,4
9

9
   

   
   

   
  

4
9

,9
3

1
   

   
   

 
2

2
7

,4
3

0
   

   
   

   
  

1
7

7
,4

9
9

   
   

   
   

  
4

9
,9

3
1

   
   

   
 

1
7

7
,4

9
9

   
   

   
   

 
4

9
,9

3
1

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

8
,5

7
2

,4
3

2
   

  
8,

1
5

2
,4

1
3

   
  

4
2

0
,0

1
9

   
 

7,
0

6
4

,8
8

8
   

  
4

9
,9

3
1

   
   

   
   

  

8
,5

7
2

,4
3

2
   

  
8,

1
5

2
,4

1
3

   
  

4
2

0
,0

1
9

   
 

7,
0

6
4

,8
8

8
   

  
-

   
   

   
   

   
4

9
,9

3
1

   
   

   
   

  

(1
)

P
ar

tia
lly

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 p

ro
je

ct
 w

ith
 m

ul
tip

le
 a

ss
et

s 
pl

ac
ed

 in
 s

er
vi

ce
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

Li
fe

 o
f 

th
e 

P
ro

je
ct

.

P
a

g
e

 4
1

T
o

ta
l L

iq
u

id
s

T
o

ta
l C

o
m

m
o

n

T
o

ta
l P

C
2

 J
 B

 L
a

th
a

m

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

207



A enda Item 

Meeting Date: October 4, 2018 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

Board of Directors 

Betty Burnett, General Manager 

Final 2016-17 Use Audit Reconciliation to Finance Statements Audit 

Finance Committee requested at the September 19, 2018, meeting that staff prepare a 
reconciliation to Finance Statements for June 30, 2017 Use Audit. Item is attached. 

Recommended Action 

The Board will be requested to receive and file the SOCWA Financial Reconciliation for the 
Year Ended June 30, 2017. 

208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



220



221



222



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



A enda Item 

Meeting Date: October 4, 2018 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Betty Burnett, General Manager 

SUBJECT: Monthly Progress Report on State Audit Recommendations 

Attached are staff updates for the State Audit Response Schedule. 

Recommended Action 

The Board will be requested to receive and file the Monthly Progress Report on State 
Audit Recommendations - State Audit Response Schedule. 

238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257


	1 BoD Mintutes w-Attachments 9-6-18
	2 Finance Committee Minutes 12.06.17  (Approved-9.19.18)
	3 Financials - BoD 10-4-18
	4 Agenda Item - August 2018 Operations Report
	00R Agenda Item August 2018 Operations Report to October 2018 Board
	01 Monthly Operational Report Cover Sheet
	02 August 2018 Ops Report Page 1
	03 August 2018 Ops Report Page 2
	04 August 2018 Ops Report Page 3
	05 August 2018 Ops Report Page 4
	06 August 2018 Ops Report Page 5
	07 August 2018 Ops Report Page 6
	07A August 2018 Ops Report Page Critical Maint Work -2 pages
	08 SOCWA Ocean Outfall Discharges by Agency Cover Page
	09 August 2018 Ops Report Page Tab 2

	7 August -  Beach Ocean Monitoring Report Cover Sheet
	8 August - ACOO_0013
	1
	2
	3
	4
	5
	stations
	Offshore

	9 August - SJCOO_0012
	Effluent
	1
	2
	3
	4
	5
	Stations
	Offshore

	10 Aug & Sept Pretreatment Report Cover
	11 Aug & Sept Pretreatment Monthly Report
	12 Capital Improvement Report October 2018
	13 Capital Improvement Report October 2018 Attachment 1
	14 Capital Improvement Report October 2018 Attachment 2
	15 Capital Improvement Report October 2018 Attachment 3
	16 Capital Improvement Report October 2018 Attachment 4
	17 Capital Improvement Report October 2018 Attachment 5
	18 Capital Improvement Report October 2018 Attachment 6
	19 Capital Improvement Report October 2018 Attachment 7
	20 Capital Improvement Report October 2018 Attachment 8
	21 Change Order Item Change Orders to Carollo Engineers Design Services Contract for the JB Latham Treatment Plant Package B Improvements
	22 Change Order Item Change Orders to Carollo Engineers Design Services Contract for JB Latham Attachment 1 Exhibit 1 Project Ledger
	23 Draft Meeting Minutes  - Engineering Committee - 08-09-18
	24 Draft Meeting Minutes  - Engineering Committee - 05-10-18
	25 Agenda Item - Award of Construction Contract to SS Mechanical for CTP Tertiary Process Upgrade Project
	Summary
	Bidding Process
	Table 1 - Overall Bid Prices

	Bid and Budget Evaluation
	Fiscal Impact

	26 Agenda Item - Award of Construction Contract to SS Mechanical Attachment 1 Exhibit A Bid Summary
	27 Agenda Item - Award of Construction Contract to SS Mechanical Attachment 2 Exhibit B Project Ledger
	28 GM - Agenda item - Report USE Audit FY2016-17_10.4.18_r1
	29 FY2016-17 USE Audit Book_09.19.18
	00 - USE AUDIT Cover4
	0 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 Table of Contents_9.19.18
	1 - USE AUDIT 2016-17 Mgmt Discussion pg 1-7
	2 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 pg 8 & 8a
	Page 8
	Page 8a

	3 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 Usage Admin Applied_9.19.18
	4 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 by PC&Mbr Agency_9.19.18
	5 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 O&M Expenses by PC_9.19.18
	6 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC2 WW_9.19.18
	7 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC3 WW_9.19.18
	8 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC5 WW_9.19.18
	9 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC8 WW_9.19.18
	10 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC12 WW_9.19.18
	11 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC15 WW_9.19.18
	12 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC17 WW_9.19.18
	13 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC21 WW_9.19.18
	14 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC24 WW_9.19.18
	15 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 O&M Detail_9.19.18
	16 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 O&M Summary_9.19.18
	17 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 O&M Bdgt vs Act by PC_9.19.18
	18 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 Engineering_9.19.18
	19 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 Admin_9.19.18
	20 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 IT_9.19.18
	21 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 Direct Labor_9.19.18
	22 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 Overtime_9.19.18
	23 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 Fringe_9.19.18
	24 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC2_9.19.18
	25 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC5_9.19.18
	26 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC12_9.19.18
	27 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC15_9.19.18
	28 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC17_9.19.18
	29 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 PC24_9.19.18
	30 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 Large Cap_9.19.18
	31 - USE AUDIT BOOK 2016-17 In Service Assets_9.19.18

	30 Reconciliation Finance Statements Audit
	31 UAL Distribution by Member Agency
	32 Monthly State Audit Report
	33 Basin Plan Amendment
	34 Contract Chlor-Akali
	35 Carollo Cost Allocation
	36 GM Status Report



